FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC

a Delaware limited liability company

60 E. Superior Street, Suite 300

Chicago, Illinois 60611

® (312) 641-6500
www.giordanos.com

VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC offers franchises to operate restaurants known as Giordano’s®
Restaurants (“Giordano’s® Restaurants™). Giordano’s® Restaurants specialize in the sale of stuffed and
thin-crust pizza, pasta, sandwiches, salads and other related food products prepared and sold in a manner
and pursuant to specific recipes, formulas, techniques, methods of operation, procedures and standards.

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a Giordano’s® Restaurant franchise is
between $601,000 and $959,000 for a Limited-Service Restaurant and between $1,542,000 and
$2,025,000 for a Full-Service Restaurant. This includes an Initial Franchise Fee of $40,000 and payments
for initial inventory totaling approximately $6,000 to $9,000 for a Limited-Service Restaurant and $9,000
to $21,000 for a Full-Service Restaurant that must be paid to us or our affiliates. If you sign an Area
Development Agreement to develop multiple Restaurants in a specified area, you must also pay the
franchisor a Development Fee that will depend on the number of Restaurants that you develop. The
Development Fee is equal to $20,000 multiplied by the number of Restaurants that you must develop
under the Area Development Agreement. We do not require a commitment of a minimum number of
Restaurants to enter into an Area Development Agreement.

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other
information in plain English. Read this Disclosure Document and all accompanying agreements carefully.
You must receive this Disclosure Document at least 14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement
with, or make any payment to, us or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale. Note,
however, that no governmental agency has verified the information contained in this document.

You may wish to receive your Disclosure Document in another format that is more convenient to
you. To discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact Mr. David Poole, Chief
Financial Officer, VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC, 60 E. Superior Street, Suite 300, Chicago, Illinois 60611,
(312) 641-6500.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don’t rely on the Disclosure
Document alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contracts carefully. Show your contracts
and this Disclosure Document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this Disclosure Document can
help you make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to Buying
a Franchise,” which can help you understand how to use this Disclosure Document, is available from the
Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at
600 Pennsylvania Avenue NW, Washington, D.C. 20580. You can also visit the FTC’s home page at
www.ftc.gov for additional information. Call your state agency or visit your public library for other
sources of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

Issuance Date: May 8, 2024
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to

find more information:

QUESTION

WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can | earn?

Item 19 may give you information about outlet sales,
costs, profits or losses. You should also try to obtain
this information from others, like current and former
franchisees. You can find their names and contact
information in Item 20 or Exhibits F and G.

How much will I need to invest?

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the
franchisor or at the franchisor’s direction. Item 7 lists
the initial investment to open. Item 8 describes the
suppliers you must use.

Does the franchisor have the
financial ability to provide support
to my business?

Item 21 or Exhibit C includes financial statements.
Review these statements carefully.

Is the franchise system stable,
growing, or shrinking?

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the number of
company-owned and franchised outlets.

Will my business be the only
Giordano’s® business in my area?

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the franchise
agreement describe whether the franchisor and other
franchisees can compete with you.

Does the franchisor have a troubled
legal history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its
management have been involved in material litigation
or bankruptcy proceedings.

What'’s it like to be Giordano’s®
franchisee?

Item 20 or Exhibits F and G list current and former
franchisees. You can contact them to ask about their
experiences.

What else should | know?

These questions are only a few things you should look
for. Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in this
disclosure document to better understand this franchise
opportunity. See the table of contents.
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What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even
if you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change
its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to
make additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise
business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited
group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than
similar items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some
examples may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell,
how you market, and your hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you may
have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue to
operate your franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord
or other creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to
register before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that
the state recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To
find out if your state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency
information in Exhibit H.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be
made to your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See
the Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise
Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

1. Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement and area development
agreement require you to resolve disputes with the franchisor by mediation,
arbitration and/or litigation only in Illinois. Out-of-state mediation, arbitration, or
litigation may force you to accept a less favorable settlement for disputes. It may also
cost more to mediate, arbitrate, or litigate with the franchisor in Illinois than in your
own state.

2. Inventory Control. You must make inventory and supply purchases of at least
$6,000 to 9,000 for Limited-Service Restaurants and from $9,000 to $21,000 for
Full-Service Restaurants, for the initial opening of your Restaurant, even if you do
not need that much. Your inability to make these purchases or to maintain inventory
levels at all times may result in termination of your franchise and loss of your
investment.

3. Mandatory Minimum Payments. You must make minimum royalty or advertising
fund payments, regardless of your sales levels. Your inability to make the payments
may result in termination of your franchise and loss of your investment.

4. Supplier Control. You must purchase all or nearly all of the inventory or supplies
that are necessary to operate your business from the franchisor, its affiliates, or
suppliers that the franchisor designates, at prices the franchisor or they set. These
prices may be higher than prices you could obtain elsewhere for the same or similar
goods. This may reduce the anticipated profit of your franchise business.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific
Addenda” (if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.
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THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS
THAT ARE SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE
FOLLOWING PROVISIONS ARE IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE
PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE ENFORCED AGAINST YOU.

1. Each of the following provisions is void and unenforceable if contained in any
documents relating to a franchise:

@ A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of
franchisees.

(b) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, notation,
waiver, or estoppel which deprives a franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This
shall not preclude a franchisee, after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all
claims.

2. A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise before the expiration
of its term except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply
with any lawful provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given
written notice thereof and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days,
to cure such failure.

3. A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly
compensating the franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of
expiration of the franchisee’s inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings.
Personalized materials which have no value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment,
fixtures, and furnishings not reasonably required in the conduct of the franchise business are not
subject to compensation. This subsection applies only if: (i) the term of the franchise is less than
five years and (ii) the franchisee is prohibited by the franchise or other agreement from continuing
to conduct substantially the same business under another trademark, service mark, trade name,
logotype, advertising, or other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the expiration
of the franchise or the franchisee does not receive at least six months advance notice of the
franchisor’s intent not to renew the franchise.

4. A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms
generally available to other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This
section does not require a renewal provision.

5. A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state.
This shall not preclude the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration,
to conduct arbitration at a location outside this state.

6. A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership
of a franchise, except for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from
exercising a right of first refusal to purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not
limited to:
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@ The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor’s then-current
reasonable qualifications or standards.

(b) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or
subfranchisor.

(© The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply
with all lawful obligations.

(d) The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing
to the franchisor or to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of the pro-
posed transfer.

7. A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not
uniquely identified with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants
to a franchisor a right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and
conditions as a bona fide third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this
subdivision prohibit a provision that grants the franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a
franchise for the market or appraised value of such assets if the franchisee has breached the lawful
provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to cure the breach in the manner provided in
subdivision (c).

8. A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign,
or otherwise transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless
provision has been made for providing the required contractual services.

If the franchisor’s most recent financial statements are unaudited and show a net worth of
less than $100,000, the franchisee may request the franchisor to arrange for the escrow of initial
investment and other funds paid by the franchisee until the obligations, if any, of the franchisor to
provide real estate, improvements, equipment, inventory, training or other items included in the
franchise offering are fulfilled. At the option of the franchisor, a surety bond may be provided in
place of escrow.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE
ATTORNEY GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR
ENDORSEMENT BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to:

Michigan Department of Attorney General
Consumer Protection Division
Attention: Franchise Section

525 W. Ottawa Street
Williams Building, 1st Floor
Lansing, Michigan 48933
Telephone Number: (517) 373-7117
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ITEM1
THE FRANCHISOR, AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES

VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC is the franchisor and is referred to in this Disclosure Document
as “Franchisor,” “we,” “us” or “our.” We do business under the trade name of Giordano’s® and
Giordano’s® Restaurant(s). “You” or “Franchisee” means the person who buys the right operate
a Giordano’s® Restaurant from us. If you are a corporation, partnership, limited liability company
or other entity, certain provisions of your Franchise Agreement will also apply to your owners.

We are a Delaware limited liability company formed on November 22, 2011. Our current
principal business address is 60 E. Superior Street, Suite 300, Chicago, Illinois 60611. Our agents
for service of process are listed in Exhibit H attached to this Disclosure Document. We conduct
business under our corporate name and under the trade name and service mark “Giordano’s®” and
associated logos, designs, symbols and trade dress (see Item 13 of this Disclosure Document).

The Giordano’s® concept was founded in 1974, when the first Giordano’s® Restaurant
opened in Chicago, Illinois. Our predecessor, Giordano’s Enterprises, Inc. (“GEI”), 740 North
Rush Street, Suite 400, Chicago, Illinois, began offering franchises for Giordano’s® Restaurants
in 1980. Its affiliates (through common ownership) owned and operated eight Giordano’s®
Restaurants in Illinois and three Giordano’s® Restaurants in Florida. Of these locations, five
Restaurants were operated as joint ventures with third parties. GEI did not operate any of these
Giordano’s® Restaurants. In 2011, GEI’s affiliates sold their ownership interests in these
Restaurants to its joint venture partners; and GEI acquired three Giordano’s® Restaurants owned
by one of its franchisees.

On February 17, 2011, GEI and several of its affiliates filed voluntary petitions for relief
under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code (see Item 4 of this Disclosure Document). GEI
subsequently entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement, dated October 18, 2011, to sell
substantially all of the restaurant-related assets, including all of the Franchise Agreements held by
GEI. The Bankruptcy Court approved the Asset Purchase Agreement by order dated October 25,
2011. The transaction approved by the Bankruptcy Court closed in November 2011 (the
“Acquisition Transaction”). As a result of the Acquisition Transaction, our affiliate VPC Pizza
Operating Corp. acquired the Giordano’s® Restaurants owned by GEI and its affiliates, and we
became the franchisor of Giordano’s® Restaurants.

Our Parents, Predecessors and Affiliates

Except as disclosed in this Item, we do not have any parents, predecessors or affiliates
required to be disclosed in this Item. We are affiliated (through common ownership) with the
following entities:

We are a wholly owned subsidiary of VPC Pizza Intermediate LLC (“VVPC Intermediate”),
a Delaware limited liability company with the same principal business address as us, which was
formed on April 9, 2024. VPC Pizza Operating Corp., a Delaware corporation with the same
principal business address as us, was formed on November 22, 2011. VPC Pizza Operating Corp.
was our immediate parent company from November 2011 until April 2024. In April 2024, the
majority owner of VPC Pizza Operating Corp. became VPC TBP SPV, LP (“VPC SPV”), a
Delaware limited liability company with principal business address at 150 North Riverside Plaza,
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Suite 5200, Chicago, IL 60606, which was formed on March 28, 2024. Neither VPC Intermediate
nor VPC SPV have offered franchises in any line of business.

VPC Pizza Management, LLC (“VPC Mgmt”), a Delaware limited liability company
formed on November 22, 2011, is an affiliate of ours with the same principal business address. As
of the end of our 2023 fiscal year, there were 29 “company-owned” Giordano’s® Restaurants, each
of which are currently owned by wholly owned subsidiaries of VPC Intermediate and managed by
VPC Mgmt (see above in this Item and Item 20).

Americana Commissary, LLC (“Americana”) is a Delaware limited liability company
formed in November 2011, and is a wholly owned subsidiary of VPC Intermediate with its
principal business address at 2206 S. Busse Rd., Mount Prospect, Illinois 60056. Americana sells
products to our franchisees and the Giordano’s® Restaurants that our affiliates own and operate
(see Item 8 of this Disclosure Document). Americana’s predecessor, Americana Foods, Inc., 740
North Rush Street, Chicago, Illinois 60611, had been in business since 1982, and sold products to
Giordano’s® Restaurant franchises and the affiliate-owned Giordano’s® Restaurants until the
closing of the Acquisition Transaction described above in this Item. Neither Americana nor
Americana Foods, Inc. has ever offered franchises in any line of business.

Except as described in this Item, we do not have any affiliates that provide products or
services to our franchisees, and none of our predecessors or affiliates has ever offered franchises
in any line of business.

Giordano’s® System

Giordano’s® Restaurants are restaurants that specialize in the preparation and sale of stuffed
deep dish pizza and thin-crust pizza, pasta, sandwiches, salads, appetizers and other related food
products prepared and sold in a manner and pursuant to specific recipes, formulas, techniques,
methods of operation, procedures and standards for on and off premises consumption, and which
serve alcoholic beverages for on premises consumption (a “Giordano’s® Restaurant” or
“Restaurant”). Giordano’s® Restaurants operate under the service mark and trade name
“Giordano’s®” and other associated logos, designs, artwork and trade dress, trademarks, service
marks, commercial symbols, and e-names, which have gained and continue to gain public
acceptance and goodwill (the *“Marks”) and under distinctive business formats, methods,
procedures, designs, layouts, signs, equipment, menus, recipes, trade dress, standards and
specifications, all of which we may improve, further develop or otherwise modify from time to
time (the “System”). You will be required to follow our alcoholic beverage program, so you must
obtain an alcoholic beverage license that enables you to serve alcoholic beverages on the premises
of your Restaurant. We may in our discretion determine that certain Limited Service Restaurants
are not required or permitted to serve alcoholic beverages. We may waive this requirement in
certain jurisdictions where we believe obtaining such a license is not commercially feasible, due to
variations in the market, extremely high permitting costs or other regulatory compliance hurdles,
or other factors.

We currently offer the opportunity to become a franchisee of either a Full-Service
Restaurant or a Limited-Service Restaurant. A “Limited-Service Restaurant” is a Giordano’s
Restaurant that seats up to 20 customers or is between 900 and 1800 square feet. Limited-Service
Restaurants typically focus on delivery and carry-out services. We may require a Limited-Service
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Restaurant to limit its menu as compared to a Full-Service Giordano’s Restaurant. A “Full-Service
Restaurant” seats more than 20 customers or is between 3,500 and 4,500 square feet. Full-Service
Restaurants include delivery and carry-out services, but also offer dining room and bar seating and
in some cases private dining facilities.

We grant to persons who meet our qualifications, and who are willing to make the
investment and undertake the efforts required, a franchise for the right to own and operate a
Giordano’s® Restaurant (the “Franchise”) at a single location selected by the franchisee and
evaluated by us. Our current form of the Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise Agreement”) is
attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit A.

The same form of Franchise Agreement is used for both Limited-Service Restaurants and
Full-Service Restaurants, and all references in this Disclosure Document to a “Giordano’s®
Restaurant” or a “Restaurant” including both Limited-Service Restaurants and Full-Service
Restaurants.

Our Business

We do not engage in any other business activities and do not currently offer franchises in
other lines of business. We have conducted (through our affiliates) a business of the type to be
operated by you since the Acquisition Transaction described above in this Item closed in
November 2011.

Competition

You will be competing with other restaurants, including casual restaurants, fast food
restaurants, restaurants that offer carry-out and delivery services, and full-service restaurants, that
offer pizza and other Italian-style menu items. These restaurants may be associated with national
or regional chains or may be local independent restaurants and other businesses. You also will be
competing with other food service outlets, grocery stores and specialty stores that feature products
and services similar to those offered by Giordano’s® Restaurants. Your products and services will
be offered to the general public, to individual consumers, for on-site consumption, carry out and
if authorized by us delivery and catering. The market for restaurant services is developed and
highly competitive.

Regulations

The restaurant industry is regulated by federal, state, and local governments. The
preparation and handling of food is federally regulated by the Pure Food and Drugs Act of 1906;
the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act; and by rules and policies of the United States Food
and Drug Administration. The Federal Clean Air Act and various implementing state laws require
certain state and local areas to meet national air quality standards limiting emissions of ozone,
carbon monoxide and particulate matters, including caps on omissions from commercial food
preparation.

Many states also impose sanitation and food handling standards. Inspectors may enforce
state and local sanitation and food handling rules. Many state and local authorities also regulate
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the sale of alcoholic beverages, including those required to be served in your Giordano’s®
Restaurant.

Some state and local governments impose indoor air quality standards on restaurant
businesses.

Some state and local governments have adopted rules requiring nutritional disclosures in
addition to those required by the United Statement Food and Drug Administration. In addition,
some areas have adopted rules restricting ingredients, such as trans fats, in food products.

The location, construction and operation of your Giordano’s® Restaurant may also be
affected by a variety of state and local zoning, land use, planning, handicap access, minimum
wage, and labor laws and regulations.

You should consider these laws and regulations when evaluating your purchase of a
Giordano’s® Restaurant Franchise and should consult with your attorney to understand all laws
applicable to your Giordano’s® Restaurant.

Area Development Agreement

If you meet the qualifications established by us, and subject to our consent which can be
withheld in our discretion, you may enter into an Area Development Agreement for the
development of multiple Giordano’s® Restaurants in a designated geographic area called a
“Development Area.” Under the Area Development Agreement, you must develop in your
Development Area an agreed upon number of Giordano’s® Restaurants within a specified period
of time. For each Giordano’s® Restaurant you develop under the Area Development Agreement,
you must sign the then-current standard Franchise Agreement, which may differ from the form of
Franchise Agreement that is attached as an exhibit to this Disclosure Document. The amount of the
Initial Franchise Fee paid when you sign the then-current Franchise Agreement and the percentage
of your weekly Gross Revenues payable to us for the Continuing License Fee, however, will be
governed by the terms of the Area Development Agreement (see Item 5 and Item 6 below in this
Disclosure Document).

ITEM 2
BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Chief Executive Officer and President: Yorgo Koutsogiorgas

Mr. Koutsogiorgas is based at our headquarters in Chicago, Illinois and has been our Chief
Executive Officer and the Chief Executive Officer for VPC Pizza Management, LLC, a wholly
owned subsidiary of VPC Pizza Operating Corp. (also in Chicago, Illinois) since March 2012. He
was previously our President from March 2012 until July 29, 2016 and resumed that position in
June 2022.

Chief Financial Officer: David Poole

Mr. Poole is based at our headquarters in Chicago, lllinois and has been our Chief Financial Officer
and the Chief Financial Officer for VPC Pizza Management, LLC (also in Chicago, Illinois) since
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May 2022. Before that, he was Controller at American Residential Services in Itasca, Illinois from
July 2020 to May 2022, and Chief Financial Officer of What If Syndicate, LLC in Chicago, Illinois
from October 2019 to July 2020. He was previously Senior Director of Finance for VPC Pizza
Management, LLC from September 2013 to October 2019.

Vice President Restaurant Operations: Tod Barber

Mr. Barber is based at our headquarters in Chicago, Illinois and has been our Vice President of
Restaurant Operations since February 2020. Before that, he held senior leadership positions with
an assortment of restaurant companies including Lettuce Entertain You Enterprises, Gibson’s
Steakhouse, and Weber Girill.

Senior Director of Human Resources: Catherine Millar

Mrs. Millar is based at our headquarters in Chicago, Illinois and has been our Senior Director of
Human Resources since February 2020. Before that she held the position of Director of Human
Resources from August 2018 to February 2020. Previously, she was Director of Human Resources
at Preferred Foods in Berkeley, Illinois from October 2012 to August 2018.

Director of Supply Chain Management: Martha Spezia-Lashley

Ms. Spezia-Lashley is based at our headquarters in Chicago, Illinois and has been our Director of
Supply Chain Management since September 2021. Prior to that, she was our Director of Supply
Chain and E-Commerce from May 2015 to September 2021.

Director of Learning and Development: Buffy Bernardo

Ms. Bernardo is based at our headquarters in Chicago, Illinois and has been our Director of Learning
and Development since January 2021. She worked as an independent consultant from March 2019
until March 2020 and was unemployed between March 2020 and January 2021. Previously, she
was the Owner/Operator of Dish Restaurant Consulting in Palatine, Illinois from November 2015
until March 2019.

ITEM3
LITIGATION

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM 4
BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcy is required to be disclosed in this Item.
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ITEMS
INITIAL FEES

Initial Franchise Fee

The Initial Franchise Fee for a single Limited-Service or Full-Service Restaurant is $40,000
and is payable in full when you sign the Franchise Agreement. We charge the Initial Franchise Fee
uniformly to all franchisees. The Initial Franchise Fee is fully earned when paid and non-
refundable.

We currently require you to establish an inventory of, and purchase before the opening of
your Restaurant, certain specially formulated proprietary products, our secret Spice Blend and other
proprietary products, and Giordano’s® brand name products only from Americana (see Item 8 of
this Disclosure Document). The amount you are required to spend on these purchases will vary
depending on the size of your Restaurant, but they are estimated to range from $6,000 to $9,000 for
Limited-Service Restaurants and from $9,000 to $21,000 for Full-Service Restaurants, for the initial
opening of your Restaurant. These estimate ranges do not include cost of inventory for paper
supplies. Americana charges each Restaurant the same price for each product required to be
purchased from Americana. All payments to Americana are fully earned when paid and non-
refundable.

Development Fee

If you sign an Area Development Agreement, you must also pay us a non-refundable
Development Fee equal to $20,000 multiplied by the number of Restaurants that you must develop
under the Area Development Agreement. You will pay the Development Fee in full when you sign
the Area Development Agreement.

You will sign a separate Franchise Agreement for each Restaurant you develop under the
Area Development Agreement and, in addition to the Development Fee, you must pay a non-
refundable Initial Franchise Fee for each Restaurant you develop in the Development Area. The
Initial Franchise Fee you are required to pay for each Restaurant will be the amount stated in the
then-current form of Franchise Agreement executed in accordance with the Development Schedule,
less $20,000.

You will pay the Initial Franchise Fee each time you sign a Franchise Agreement for each
Restaurant you develop according to the Development Schedule in the Area Development
Agreement. You must sign your first Franchise Agreement when you sign the Area Development
Agreement.
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ITEMG6

OTHER FEES

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

Type of Fee (1)

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

Continuing License
Fee

6% of Gross Revenues (2) (8)

Wednesday of each
week for Gross
Revenues during the
preceding week.

Continuing License Fees must be
accompanied by a statement of daily
Gross Revenues in such form and detail
as we require.

Advertising Fee
(3)4)

Up to 3% of Gross Revenues
(currently 2% of Gross
Revenues)

Wednesday of each
week for Gross
Revenues during the
preceding week.

Percentage may be increased up to 3%
of Gross Revenues by us upon not less
than 30 days’ written notice to you (see
Item 11).

Local Advertising (5)

Minimum of $1,000 per month.

Payable as incurred.

Paid to vendors of approved forms of
local advertising, including telephone
and online directory listing.

Cooperative
Adbvertising (5)

Amount determined by Local
Co-op.

Payable as agreed.

Paid to local or regional advertising
cooperative of Giordano’s® Restaurant
franchisees, if applicable.

Grand Opening
Advertising

At least $15,000 for a Limited-
Service Restaurant or $20,000
for a Full-Service Restaurant.

Must be spent during the
period beginning one
month before opening
and ending five months
after opening.

Payable as incurred to vendors of
approved grand opening advertising.

Additional and
Remedial Training or
Guidance

$500 per eight-hour day for
each of our representatives
conducting such training, plus
all costs of travel, food, lodging
and other incidental expenses
incurred by our representatives.

Payable as incurred.

We provide initial training at no cost to
you or the supervisory personnel you
are required to maintain according to
the Franchise Agreement and our
guidelines.

Transfer Fee

50% of the then-current Initial
Franchise Fee.

$2,500 deposit due at
the time of the request to
transfer. The remaining
fee is due before
transfer. A portion of
the deposit may be
refundable if the transfer
does not occur.

Requires our prior approval.

Relocation Fee

50% of the then-current Initial
Franchise Fee.

On the date you receive
approval from us to
relocate the Restaurant
to a new location.

Payable only if you request and
receive approval from us to relocate
the Restaurant.

Late Charges

The lesser of 2% per month, or
the highest rate allowed by law.

As incurred.

The late charge will accrue from the
date any payment was due until the
payment is actually received by us.

Audit (6)

Any discovered deficiency,
plus late charges.

Within seven days after
receipt of the audit
report.

If the audit is necessary due to your
failure to furnish information on a
timely basis or if the audit reveals an
understatement of Gross Revenues for
any period of greater than 2%, you
must pay for the cost of the audit.
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Type of Fee (1) Amount Due Date Remarks
Amount incurred for Payments for quality assurance
Quality Assurance inspections, quality assurance Within 10 days after y quality

Costs

programs and secret shopper
Visits.

receipt of an invoice.

monitoring will not exceed $1,000 per
quarter.

15% of then-current Initial

At the time you sign our
then-current Franchise

If you are in compliance with the
Franchise Agreement, then after
expiration of the initial 10-year term,

Renewal Fee Franchise Fee. Agreement in connection | you will have the option to renew the
with the renewal. Franchise for two additional five-year
terms.
$500 per eight-hour day for each
of our representatives We may appoint a manager for you if
conducting such management you are in default under the Franchise
Management . .
Services services, plus all costs of travel, | Upon demand. Agreement or if you do not have a

food, lodging and other
incidental expenses incurred by
our appointed manager.

satisfactory manager who has
completed our training program.

Consideration of
Proposed Suppliers

All reasonable costs related to
the testing and approval of a
supplier proposed by you.

30 days after billing.

Equipment Fees

We intend to commence
charging for upgraded
commissary ordering costs,
estimated to range from $600 to
$1,200 annually.

30 days after receipt of
invoice from us
indicating the amount
owed, or as incurred.

We can charge you for the costs
associated with your Equipment and
updating, upgrading or replacing your
Equipment.

Website Fees

If imposed, amount incurred by
us for the Giordano’s® Website

).

30 days after receipt of
invoice from us
indicating the amount
owed, or as incurred.

We can charge you for the costs
associated with the maintenance or
enhancement of the content, features
and functions of the Giordano’s®
Website.

Program Fees

If imposed, amount incurred by
us for gift certificate, gift card,
loyalty and online programs for
Giordano’s® Restaurants (7).

30 days after receipt of
invoice from us
indicating the amount
owed, or as incurred.

We can charge you for the costs
associated with gift certificate, gift
card, loyalty and online programs and
promotions for Giordano’s®
Restaurants.

Information
Technology Fees

Costs and expenses incurred by
us, including, if the services
are provided by our
employee(s), a per diem fee of
$500 per employee.

Upon demand.

If you fail to establish and maintain an
IT support relationship with a qualified
employee, contractor, supplier or
vendor, we can arrange for the
necessary information technology
support and services required for your
Restaurant.

Remodeling and
Maintenance

Reimbursement of all costs and
expenses incurred by us.

Upon demand.

If you fail to remodel, repair, redecorate
or otherwise maintain the Restaurant as
required, we may, but are not required
to, arrange for the completion of such
actions and you must reimburse us.
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Type of Fee (1) Amount Due Date Remarks

You have to reimburse us if we are held

Indemnification Will vary under circumstances. As incurred. liable for claims arising from your
Restaurant’s operations.
Reimbursement to us for all costs and

Costs and Attorneys Will vary under circumstances. As incurred. expenses incurred _|f we prevail in any

Fees proceeding enforcing of the terms of
your Franchise Agreement.

AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
Type of Fee (1) Amount Date Due Remarks

Transfer Fee

Reimbursement of all of
our costs and expenses
associated with the
transfer.

$2,500 deposit due at the time of

the request to transfer. The
remaining fee is due before
transfer. A portion of the deposi
may be refundable if the transfer
does not occur.

t Requires our prior approval.

Extension Fees

$10,000

Payable when you request an
extension of a deadline in the
Development Schedule of your
Area Development Agreement.

You can request one 60-day
extension of each deadline in the
Development Schedule in the Area
Development Agreement. If you
request a 60-day extension of any
deadline in the Development
Schedule, an Extension Fee of
$10,000 must accompany each
extension request you make to us.

Notes:

1)

@)

All fees are imposed by and are payable to us at our principal business address. All fees
are non-refundable unless otherwise noted. Different versions of the Franchise
Agreement and Area Development Agreement from prior years contain different fees,
due dates and fee amounts, including a lower percentage for the Continuing License Fee
and an Advertising Fee capped at 2%. Unless otherwise specified in this Disclosure
Document, the fees payable under the current Franchise Agreement and Area
Development Agreement disclosed in this Item are uniformly imposed by us.

“Gross Revenues” includes all sales, monies, revenues, charges, and receipts received by
Franchisee including sales, monies, revenues, charges, and receipts received by any other
person which are derived from products prepared or sold and services performed at the
Restaurant whether or not paid to or received by Franchisee, at special events or from
catering and from all sales and orders made, solicited or received at the Restaurant or at
special events and from all other business conducted at or from the Restaurant or related
in any way to the Restaurant, including pick-up and delivery of products, and whether
such revenues are evidenced by cash, credit (and regardless of collection in the case of
credit), checks, gift certificates, scrip, coupons, services, property or other means of
exchange, and whether such sales are of food, beverages, tobacco products, vending or
coin operated machine items, services, merchandise or products of any nature

2024 VVPC Pizza Franchise, LLC FDD 9

63401274v5



3)

(4)

()

(6)

()

(8)

whatsoever. However, Gross Revenues do not include (a) sales taxes or other taxes
measured on the basis of the Gross Revenues of the business imposed by governmental
authorities directly on sales and collected from customers, provided the taxes are added
to the selling price and are in fact, paid by Franchisee to the appropriate governmental
authorities; or (b) promotional discounts and coupons authorized by us, not to exceed 5%
of weekly Gross Revenues (the “Discount”). We may increase the Discount for special
promotions that we approve in writing.

We reserve the right, by written notice to you, to waive all or part of the Advertising Fee
during any period in which our sales promotions program is or will be inactive, but any
such waiver is without prejudice to our right to reinstate the Advertising Fee by prior
written notice to you of the reactivation of the program.

Franchisees with Giordano’s® Restaurants in the Chicago urban/suburban area pay
Advertising Fees currently capped at 2% of their Gross Revenues consistent with the
settlement agreement reached with the Franchisee Group in the lawsuit disclosed in Item
3 of this Disclosure Document. Certain franchisees with Giordano’s® Restaurants outside
the Chicago urban/suburban area do not currently pay Advertising Fees, and instead are
required to make increased monthly local advertising expenditures.

If an association of Giordano’s® Restaurant franchisees is established in a geographic
area in which your Restaurant is located, you must join and actively participate in the
local co-op. You must contribute to the local co-op such amounts as are determined from
time to time by it. We will not set the amount of those contributions and there is no limit.
However, your local advertising requirement will be reduced by the amount that you
contribute to any local co-op, up to the full amount of your local advertising requirement.
There not currently are any cooperatives in the system.

If the auditor is unable to complete an audit due to your failure to maintain adequate and
proper records or data, your Gross Revenues will be presumed to be 20% more than
reported by you, and additional Continuing License Fees and Advertising Fees will be due
on that amount.

If your Restaurant is located outside the Chicago urban/suburban area and the payment of
Advertising Fees is deferred or reduced, you may be required to pay us Website Fees and
Program Fees estimated to range from $5,000 to $10,000 annually.

If you sign an Area Development Agreement, then for the second and each subsequent
Franchise Agreement you sign for the Restaurants you must develop under the Area
Development Agreement, you will pay weekly Continuing License Fees at the rate
specified in the Franchise Agreement for your first Restaurant, even if the Continuing
License Fees in subsequent Franchise Agreements differ. You will pay all other Fees in
the amounts specified in each Franchise Agreement that you sign for the Restaurants you
develop under the Area Development Agreement.
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ITEM7

ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

Limited-Service Restaurant:

Amount _ Method of To Whom Payment
Type of Expenditure Low High Payment When Due is to be Made
Initial Franchise Fee (1) $40,000 | $40,000 | Lump Sum See Iltem 5 Us
Leasehold Improvements (2) $265,000 | $445,000 | As Agreed Before Opening | Third Parties
Furniture, Fixtures, Equipment & Fees (3) $230,000 | $380,000 | As Agreed Before Opening | Third Parties
Initial Inventory (4) $6,000 $9,000 Lump Sum | Before Opening Q;rwt?é;cana and Third
Security Deposits and Advance Rent (5) $10,000 $20,000 Lump Sum Before Opening | Third Parties
Grand Opening Advertising (6) $15,000 $15,000 As Agreed As Incurred Third Parties
Miscellaneous Start-Up Costs (7) $30,000 $40,000 As Agreed As Incurred Third Parties
Additional Funds - 3 Months (8) $5,000 $10,000 | As Agreed As Incurred Third Parties
Total (9) (10) (11) $601,000 | $959,000
Full-Service Restaurant:
Amount Method of To Whom Payment
Type of Expenditure Low High Payment When Due is to be Made

Initial Franchise Fee (1) $40,000 $40,000 Lump Sum See Item 5 Us
Leasehold Improvements (2) $840,000 | $1,080,000 | As Agreed | Before Opening | Third Parties
Furniture, Fixtures, Equipment & Fees (3) | $548,000 $704,000 As Agreed | Before Opening | Third Parties
Initial Inventory (4) $9,000 $21,000 Lump Sum | Before Opening Q{;rr]t?;cana and Third
Security Deposits and Advance Rent (5) $20,000 $30,000 Lump Sum | Before Opening | Third Parties
Grand Opening Advertising (6) $20,000 $20,000 As Agreed As Incurred Third Parties
Miscellaneous Start-Up Costs (7) $50,000 $100,000 As Agreed As Incurred Third Parties
Additional Funds - 3 Months (8) $15,000 $30,000 As Agreed As Incurred Third Parties
Total (9) (10) (11) $1,542,000 | $2,025,000

Notes:

1) The Initial Franchise Fee is non-refundable under any circumstances.

2 The Restaurant must be constructed according to the plans and specifications we approve.
The costs of such construction and decorating vary greatly depending upon the size,
condition, configuration, and geographical location of the Restaurant premises, as well as
local zoning and building ordinances, labor and material costs, and other economic factors.

3 The required purchase and installation of all furniture, fixtures, equipment and signs
necessary to open and operate the Restaurant must be in compliance with our standards.
Such items may include kitchen and bar equipment, furniture and millwork, decor items
and faux finishes, point of sale computerized cash register system, sound system,
miscellaneous office furniture, equipment and safe, architectural/engineering fees, and
construction permits and licenses. The cost of such items will vary depending upon the
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(4)

(5)

(6)

(")

(8)

(9)

size, condition, configuration and geographical location of the Restaurant as well as
transportation costs, labor costs, and other economic factors. No coin-operated vending
devices of any kind, newspaper racks, telephone booths, rides or other coin-operated
machines (other than a coin-operated telephone which meets specifications) may be
installed or operated at the Restaurant.

You must purchase an opening inventory of products and other supplies and materials. You
must purchase from such distributors and other suppliers as are approved by us, all
products, supplies and packaging or other materials which meet our standards and
specifications. Your shipping and handling costs will likely be higher if your Giordano’s®
Restaurant is located outside of the state of Illinois.

You will generally be required to make certain security deposits for the occupancy of a
site. Deposits typically depend on the size, condition and location of the premises as well
as your financial status. A typical lease calls for a deposit equal to one month’s rent plus
one month’s rent in advance. The premises required for a Giordano’s® Restaurant will be
approximately 900 to 4,500 square feet in size in an area zoned for commercial use. We
estimate that rental rates for such properties will range from $25 to $55 per square foot,
depending on location. This estimate assumes that your Restaurant will not be located in a
major tourist area, where the rent may be substantially higher.

You must spend a minimum of $15,000 for a Limited-Service Restaurant or $20,000 for a
Full-Service Restaurant on approved grand opening advertising. This amount must be
spent during the period commencing one month before the opening of your Restaurant and
ending five months after the opening of your Restaurant.

Miscellaneous start-up costs include such items as pre-opening salaries and wages of
employees, wages, travel and living expenses of employees who attend the initial training
program, operating licenses, initial insurance premiums, legal and accounting expenses as
well as other start-up operating costs.

This estimates other start-up expenses for the Restaurant’s first three months of operation.
These expenses include payroll costs, utilities, advertising expenditures, fees payable under
the Franchise Agreement and other miscellaneous operating costs. These figures are
estimates and we cannot guarantee that you will not have additional expenses starting the
business. We have estimated these expenses based on our experience operating
Giordano’s® Restaurants in and around Chicago, Illinois. Your costs will depend upon
various factors including your adherence to our methods and procedures; your management
skills, experience and business acumen; local economic conditions; the local market for the
product; the prevailing wage rate; competition; and the sales level reached during the initial
period.

The figures set forth in the above table are estimates only for a Restaurant with leased
premises, and do not include the real estate (land and building) costs. You should review
these figures carefully with a business advisor before making any decision to purchase the
Franchise.
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(10)  All fees and payments are non-refundable unless otherwise noted. We do not offer
financing for any part of the initial investment.

(11)  Your estimated initial expenditures if you sign an Area Development Agreement are as
disclosed in the chart, except you must also pay us a non-refundable Development Fee
equal to $20,000 multiplied by the number of Giordano’s® Restaurants that you must
develop under the Area Development Agreement. You must pay the Development Fee in
full when you sign the Area Development Agreement. You must sign a separate Franchise
Agreement for each Giordano’s® Restaurant you develop under the Area Development
Agreement, and in addition to the Development Fee, you must pay a non-refundable Initial
Franchise Fee for each Giordano’s® Restaurant you develop in your Development Area
(see Item 5). You will pay the applicable Initial Franchise Fee each time you sign a
Franchise Agreement for a Restaurant you develop according to the Development Schedule
in the Area Development Agreement. You must sign your first Franchise Agreement and
pay an Initial Franchise Fee of $20,000 when you sign the Area Development Agreement.

ITEMS8
RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Purchases from Us

We currently require you to purchase certain specially formulated proprietary products; our
secret spice blend (“Spice Blend”) and other proprietary products; and Giordano’s® brand products
only from our affiliate, Americana (see Item 1 of this Disclosure Document). These products
include thin crust pizza sauce containing our Spice Blend, stuffed deep dish pizza sauce containing
our Spice Blend, marinara and meat sauces containing our Spice Blend, pizza dough containing
specially formulated flour, Giordano’s® sausage, Giordano’s® tomato products, Giordano’s®
salad dressings and other cold mixed sauces made from secret recipes, various freshly
prepared soups containing our Spice Blend, Italian roast beef and gravy made from a secret recipe,
and a specific brand of mozzarella cheese. We will provide you with a list of such designated,
proprietary and Giordano’s® products that must be purchased from Americana. In the best interest
of the System, we specifically reserve the right to update and change this list. For Limited-Service
Restaurants, purchases from us, or any of our affiliates, will represent approximately 6% to 8% of
your total purchases to establish your Restaurant and about 50% to 60% of your total annual
purchases to operate your Restaurant. For Full-Service Restaurants, purchases from us, or any of
our affiliates, will represent approximately 4% to 5% of your total purchases to establish your
Restaurant and about 50% to 60% of your total annual purchases to operate your Restaurant.
During 2023, Americana received $10,159,962 for purchases by franchisees. This amounted to
approximately 40% of Americana’s total 2023 revenues of $25,519,196.

Approved Suppliers

In order to maintain the quality of the goods and services sold by Giordano’s® Restaurants
and the reputation of Giordano’s® Restaurants, we will review and approve suppliers and
distributors of the products, materials, equipment, and supplies used in the operation of
Giordano’s® Restaurants that meet our standards and requirements, including standards and
requirements, product quality, uniformity, prices, consistency, reliability, financial capability, labor
relations and customer relations. You must purchase all products, materials and supplies only from
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distributors and other suppliers approved by us. For Limited-Service Restaurants, required
purchases from approved suppliers, including us or our affiliates, will represent approximately 10%
to 12% of your total purchases in connection with the establishment of your Restaurant and
approximately 75% to 85% of your overall annual purchases in operating the Restaurant. For Full-
Service Restaurants, required purchases from approved suppliers, including us or our affiliates, will
represent approximately 7% to 8% of your total purchases in connection with the establishment of
your Restaurant and approximately 75% to 85% of your overall annual purchases in operating the
Restaurant.

There are no suppliers in which any of our officers own an interest. Americana is a wholly

owned subsidiary of our parent, VPC Pizza Operating Corp. (see Item 1 of this Disclosure
Document).

Standards and Specifications

We set minimum quality standards and specifications for Giordano’s® Restaurants,
including equipment, signage, layout design, decor, furniture, fixtures, furnishing, inventory
supplies, advertising and sales promotion materials and other products or materials used in the
operation of a Giordano’s® Restaurant. We have established these standards for uniformity,
consistency, quality control and to protect, maintain and foster the reputation, goodwill and public
acceptance of Giordano’s® Restaurants and their products and services. All information regarding
standards and specifications is contained in the Manual. We may modify all standards and
specifications may be modified at any time. We will provide you with a list of and specifications
for the equipment, point of sale computerized cash register systems interfacing with our corporate
office, fixtures, furniture, and furnishings which are consistent with the standard Giordano’s®
Restaurant. We will provide you with a list of recommended fixtures, furniture, equipment, and
furnishings and the approved suppliers, which may be modified periodically. We will also provide
you with lists and specifications of approved paper goods, promotional materials, supplies, and
other inventory items needed in the daily operation of Giordano’s® Restaurant and the approved
suppliers. For Limited-Service Restaurants, we estimate that required purchases according to our
specifications and standards will represent approximately 45% to 55% of your total purchases in
connection with the establishment of your Restaurant and 75% to 85% of your overall annual
purchases in operating the Restaurant. For Full-Service Restaurants, we estimate that required
purchases according to our specifications and standards will represent approximately 45% to 55%
of your total purchases in connection with the establishment of your Restaurant and 75% to 85%
of your overall annual purchases in operating the Restaurant.

We may approve a single distributor or other supplier for any product and may approve a
supplier only for certain products. We may concentrate purchases with one or more suppliers to
obtain lower prices or the best advertising support or services for any group of Giordano’s®
Restaurants. We may take advantage of discounts offered by a supplier for the acquisition of large
quantities of products and resell such products to you at a profit. Approval of a supplier maybe
conditioned on requirements for the frequency of deliveries, concentration of purchases, standards
of service, including prompt attention to complaints, and other criteria, and is subject to our
continued evaluation of the supplier.

In addition, all packaged products must be served in containers bearing accurate
reproductions of the Marks. All pizza boxes, napkins, placemats, straws, bags, cups, matches,

2024 VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC FDD 14
63401274v5



menus and other paper goods and the like articles used in connection with your Giordano’s®
Restaurant must be of a quality and style and bear such reproductions of designs, names,
trademarks, service marks and symbols as we may specify, and all art work and reproductions used
must conform to the specifications we establish. Such imprinted items must be purchased by you
through an affiliate of ours or other approved supplier.

We may revoke our approval of particular products, ingredients or suppliers if we
determine that such products, ingredients or suppliers no longer meet our standards or
specifications. Upon receipt of written notice of a supplier revocation, you must immediately cease
to sell or use any disapproved products or ingredients and cease to purchase products or ingredients
from any disapproved supplier.

Changes of Suppliers

If you give us sufficient prior written notice that you wish to purchase equipment, supplies
or food (other than those designated products and supplies which must be purchased from
Americana or another designated supplier) from any supplier or distributor not already approved
by us, then we will not unreasonably withhold the prompt approval of such purchases, provided
you follow the prescribed procedure for securing our approval and the purchases conform to the
appearance, quality, taste, size or portion, brand name, uniformity standards and other of our
specifications and criteria, including price and product liability insurance. In addition, the
proposed supplier must possess reliability, a good reputation, dependability, adequate facilities
and service capabilities. We may require that samples from alternate suppliers be delivered to us
or a designated independent testing laboratory for evaluation before approval and use. You must
pay an amount that will not exceed the actual cost of the test made by us or by an independent
testing laboratory designated by us (see Item 6 of this Disclosure Document). We are not
obligated to approve any proposed supplier. You must also pay a reasonable non-refundable fee to
make the evaluation (see Item 6). The approval process will take approximately 40 to 75 days.
We will make available our criteria for approving alternate suppliers upon the reasonable written
request from a franchisee who in good faith desires to propose an alternate supplier.

Our franchisees may be allowed to assist us in approving suppliers and distributors of the
products, materials, equipment and supplies used in the operation of Giordano’s® Restaurants.
our current form of the Franchisee Approved Supplier and Distributor Assistance Agreement is
attached as Exhibit D to this Disclosure Document.

Rebates

We may negotiate with suppliers and manufacturers to receive rebates on certain items you
must purchase for your Giordano’s® Restaurant. The amount of rebates can vary and is typically
based on payments per case. Our rebate programs may vary depending on the supplier and the
nature of the product or service. Not every supplier pays rebates to us. We received no rebates in
2023 based upon purchases by franchisees from approved suppliers.

There are currently no purchasing or distribution cooperatives. We do not provide material
benefits to franchisees based on their use of designated or approved sources.
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Construction Plans and Specifications

For each Franchise granted, you will construct (or renovate) and equip the Restaurant at
your expense in a good and workmanlike manner in conformity with all applicable laws, rules and
regulations, and plans and specifications prepared by you and approved by us. All plans and
specifications or modifications to our preliminary model plans and specifications proposed by you
must be submitted to us for written approval before commencement of construction and must be
modified as we request. Costs of contractor plans and specifications are your responsibility.

Insurance

In addition to any insurance requirements of the lease for the premises of the Restaurant,
you are required to carry such amounts and types of insurance coverage as we require issued by
carriers and companies approved by us.

Before opening the Restaurant for business, you must obtain and submit to us certificates
of insurance for the following insurance coverage under policies issued by carriers approved by us
and carrying a rating by A.M. Best (or other insurance industry rating agency specified by us) of
“A” or higher and a Financial Size Category of “VII” or better: (1) comprehensive commercial
general liability insurance with limits not less than $1,000,000 each occurrence and $2,000,000 in
the aggregate for bodily injury and property damage; $1,000,000 each occurrence and aggregate
for products and completed operations; and $1,000,000 for personal injury and advertising liability
per occurrence; (2) general casualty insurance including fire and extended coverage, vandalism,
theft, burglary and malicious mischief insurance for the replacement value special coverage of the
Restaurant and its contents which may range from $275,000 to $800,000; (3) workers’
compensation insurance in an amount prescribed by statute; employer’s liability insurance with a
limit of not less than $500,000 for bodily injury by accident (each accident), $500,000 for bodily
injury by disease (each employee), and $500,000 for bodily injury by disease (policy limit); as
well as such other insurance as may be required by statute or rule in the state where the Restaurant
is located; (4) business interruption and rent insurance to cover a 12-month period in order to re-
establish normal business operations with coverage adequate to coincide with the value of the
Restaurant premises and its contents; (5) employment practices liability insurance with minimum
limits of $500,000 for first and third party liability coverage; (6) dram-shop insurance with limits
not less than $1,000,000 for each occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate; (7) commercial
automobile liability insurance for all owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles used in connection
with the Restaurant with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit for bodily injury
and property damage; (8) data security/cyber breach liability coverage with limits of not less than
$1,000,000; and (9) umbrella/excess liability insurance with limits not less than $2,000,000 for
each occurrence and in the aggregate.

You must maintain in force, and submit to us evidence of renewal or replacement insurance
policies for, all required insurance policies during the entire term of the Franchise Agreement. We
may periodically increase or decrease the amounts of coverage required under these insurance
policies and require different or additional kinds of insurance or endorsements at any time,
including excess liability insurance, to reflect inflation, identification of new risks, changes in law
or circumstances. Each insurance policy must name VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC (and, if we
request, the directors, employees or owners of VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC) as additional
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insureds, must contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of us, and must provide us with 30 days’
advance written notice of any material modification, cancellation, or expiration of the policy.

ITEM9

FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the Franchise and other
agreements. It will help you find more detailed information about your obligations in these
agreements and in other Items of this Disclosure Document.

Obligation

Section in Agreement

Disclosure Document

ltem

Site selection and acquisition /
lease

Section 4 of Franchise Agreement

Items 7 and 11

Pre-opening purchases / leases

Sections 4(A) - 4(H), 10(B), 10(C), 10(H), 10(1),
10(J) of Franchise Agreement

Items 7 and 8

Site development and other pre-
opening requirements

Sections 4, 5(A) - 5(C), 6(A) of Franchise
Agreement

Items 6, 7 and 11

Initial and ongoing training Sections 5, 6(A), 6(B) of Franchise Agreement Item 11

Opening Section 4(K) of Franchise Agreement Item 11
Sections 2(B)(5), 3, 4(L), 5(E), 5(F), 6(A),
10(B), 10(V), 10(W), 11(D), 14(A)(5) of

Fees Frzfm():hise(A)greeEne%t; Sgct)ions(?;,)é(,)A)(G), 6(B) Items 5 and 6
of Area Development Agreement

Compliance with standards and Sections 4, 6, 10 of Franchise Agreement; ltem 11

policies / operating manual

Section 5 of Area Development Agreement

Trademarks and proprietary
information

Sections 7, 9, 10(K), 16(N) of Franchise
Agreement; Section 1 of Area Development
Agreement

Items 13 and 14

Restrictions on products /services

offered Sections 10(C) - 10(J) of Franchise Agreement Item 16
Waffa”ty and customer service Section 10(X) of Franchise Agreement
requirements
Territorial development and Section 1 of Franchise Agreement; Section 4 of

Item 12
sales guotas Area Development Agreement
Ongoing product /service Section 10(D) of Franchise Agreement Item 8

purchases

Maintenance, appearance and
remodeling requirements

Sections 2(B)(2), 10(A), 10(B), 10(P) of
Franchise Agreement

Items 6 and 11

Insurance Section 10(Z) of Franchise Agreement Items 7 and 8
Sections 3(C), 11 of Franchise Agreement;
Advertising Sections 3(E), 5(C) of Area Development Items 6 and 11

Agreement

Indemnification

Section 8(E) of Franchise Agreement; Section
10(D) of Area Development Agreement

Item 6

Owner’s participation /
management / staffing

Sections 5(A), 5(B) of Franchise Agreement;
Section 5(G) of Area Development Agreement

Items 11 and 15

Records and reports

Section 12 of Franchise Agreement

Item 6

Inspections and audits

Section 13 of Franchise Agreement

Items 6 and 11
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Disclosure Document
Obligation Section in Agreement Item

Section 14 of Franchise Agreement; Section 6 of

Transfer Area Development Agreement Item 17

Renewal Section 2(B) of Franchise Agreement Item 17
Sections 8(E), 15(E) - 15(1), 16(X) of Franchise

Post-termination obligations Agreement; Sections 8, 10(D), 11(X) of Area Item 17
Development Agreement

Non-competition covenants Section 9(E) of Franchise Agreement; Section ltem 17

9(B) of Area Development Agreement

Sections 16(T) - 16(V), 16(X) of Franchise
Dispute resolution Agreement; Sections 11(T) - 11(V), 11(X) of Item 17
Area Development Agreement

ITEM 10
FINANCING

We do not offer direct or indirect financing. We do not guarantee your note, lease or
obligation.

ITEM 11
FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING,
COMPUTER SYSTEMS AND TRAINING

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance.

Pre-opening Obligations:

Before you open your Restaurant, we will:

1. Evaluate the proposed Site for your Restaurant (see Section 4(C) of the Franchise
Agreement). We do not select or approve the Site for your Restaurant. However, we will evaluate
the proposed Site for your Restaurant and, if we don’t object to the Site, we will issue a no-
objection letter within 30 days after our receipt of the Site Information. If you fail to obtain lawful
possession of the Site within 60 days after your receipt of the no-objection letter, we can
withdraw our no-objection letter for the Site.

2. Review the lease for the premises of the Restaurant (see Section 4(B) of the
Franchise Agreement). If you fail to select the Site for your Restaurant and fail to execute a lease
for or otherwise acquire possession of the Site within six months of signing a Franchise Agreement
for a Limited Service Restaurant and nine months of signing a Franchise Agreement for a Full
Service Restaurant, the Franchise Agreement will terminate.

3. Consult with you regarding the construction of the interior of the Restaurant and
interior leasehold improvements and provide you with preliminary plans and specifications based
upon typical configurations for the layout of the Restaurant (see Section 4(C) of the Franchise
Agreement). We do not provide any assistance in obtaining required permits or licenses, and it is
your responsibility to ensure that all contruction plans be in conformity with all applicable laws,
rules and regulations, and are approved by us.
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4. Provide you with a list of and specifications for the equipment, fixtures, furniture,
and furnishings for a standard Giordano’s® Restaurant (see Section 10(B) of the Franchise
Agreement and Item 8 of this Disclosure Document).

5. Provide you with a list of all approved suppliers (see Section 10(J) of the Franchise
Agreement). We will also provide you with lists and specifications of approved paper goods,
promotional materials, supplies, and other inventory items needed in the daily operation of
Giordano’s® Restaurants (see Sections 10(C), 10(D), 10(H) and 10(J) of the Franchise Agreement
and Item 8 of this Disclosure Document).

6. Provide you with a training program in the operation of a Giordano’s® Restaurant.
The initial training program is included in the Initial Franchise Fee. However, you will be responsible
for all costs of travel, food, lodging and other incidental expenses incurred by the employees who
attend the initial training program and any additional training (see Section 5(B) of the Franchise
Agreement). Additional pre- and post-opening training assistance is provided as part of the initial
training program, as described below. The training provided to you is more fully described below
in the Training section of this Item.

7. Provide access to a copy of our confidential Operations Manual (the “Manual”)
(see Section 6(C) of the Franchise Agreement).

Time To Opening

We estimate that there will be an interval of from 6 to 12 months between the signing of
the Franchise Agreement and the opening of the Restaurant, but the interval may vary based upon
such factors as the location and condition of the Site, the construction schedule for the Restaurant,
the extent to which an existing location must be upgraded or remodeled, the delivery schedule for
equipment and supplies, delays in securing financing arrangements and completing training and
your compliance with local laws and regulations. Under the terms of the Franchise Agreement,
you must open the Restaurant for business within nine months for a Limited Service Restaurant or
twelve months for a Full-Service Restaurant. If the Restaurant is not opened for business within
the required time period, we may, in our discretion, grant you an additional 6 months to open the
Restaurant if (1) the Site evaluation by us was satisfactory and we issued a no-objection letter; and
(2) a lease has been executed or you have otherwise acquired legal possession of the Site for your
Restaurant.

Opening and Post-Opening Obligations:

For the opening of your Restaurant and during the operation of your Restaurant after it opens for
business, we will:

1. Provide, at our expense, at least two qualified employees of ours to provide opening
and post-opening training and assistance at your Restaurant (see Section 6(A) of the Franchise
Agreement). The opening and post-opening training provided to you is more fully described below
in the Training section of this Item.

2. Provide additional training programs, refresher courses or on-the-job training at your
Restaurant at mutually convenient time (see Sections 5(E) and 5(F) of the Franchise Agreement).
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You will pay us the then-current per diem training fee and the travel and other expenses incurred
for each of our representatives who provides additional training to you (see Item 6).

3. Provide guidance and assistance to you in the operation of your Restaurant in the
form of consultation services by field visits, telephone or written communication (see Section 6(B)
of the Franchise Agreement).

4. Furnish you with any amendments, revisions or supplements to Manual, all of
which will be effective seven days after receipt. The Manual which contains certain unique and
secret recipes and methods of operation developed by or licensed to us for use in the operation of
Giordano’s® Restaurants and other trade secrets and confidential information used in connection
with Giordano’s® Restaurants. Standard operation procedures contained in the Manual may
include approved product recipes, hours of operation, methods of preparation, testing, marketing
and sale of products and services, instructions on the performance of specific employee’s duties,
maintenance of equipment, checklists, records preparation and retention, general rules and
regulations for employees and the like, and other matters that in our sole judgment require
standardization and uniformity in all Giordano’s® Restaurants (see Section 6(C) of the Franchise
Agreement).

5. Provide you with information about newly developed products, supplies and
methods that we develop for the Giordano’s® Restaurants (see Sections 6(C) and 10(D) of the
Franchise Agreement).

Site and Lease Evaluation

You must submit a complete site report (containing the demographic, commercial, and
other information and photographs as we may reasonably require) for each site at which you
propose to establish and operate a Giordano’s® Restaurant (the “Site””) which must conform to
minimum criteria we establish. In evaluating the Site, we will consider the criteria we deem
material, including demographic characteristics, household income, population, traffic patterns,
parking, the predominant character of the neighborhood, competition from other businesses
providing similar products and services within the area (including other Giordano’s® Restaurants),
the proximity to other businesses, the exclusivity granted to other Giordano’s® Restaurant
franchisees or developers, the nature of other businesses in proximity to the Site, and other
commercial characteristics (including the purchase price or rental obligations and other lease terms
for the Site) and the size, appearance, and other physical characteristics of the Site. We will deliver
a written evaluation of the Site to you within 30 days after our receipt of the complete site reports
and other materials requested by us containing all information reasonably required by us (the “Site
Information”). However, our failure to provide an evaluation of a proposed Site within 30 days
after receipt of the Site Information for the Site is not a waiver of our right to evaluate the Site, or
an approval by us of the Site.

You may not execute a lease for the premises of your Restaurant before we have reviewed
and indicated in writing we have no objections to the lease. Our review of the lease is solely to
protect our rights and is not intended to determine whether the lease is acceptable to you or is a
contract you should enter into. You should ask your attorney to review your lease. You must
deliver copies of the fully-executed lease (including all exhibits) and other controlling documents
to us within 15 days of the execution, including any future amendments, assignments or renewals
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of your lease. You may not execute or agree to any modification of the lease which would affect
our rights without our prior written approval. The lease must contain the required provisions and
the lessor must sign an Option for Assignment of Lease (see Exhibits C and D to the Franchise
Agreement).

Advertising

You must adhere to such advertising regulations as we may impose, and you must use only
materials and discount promotions provided or approved by us for local advertising use. You must
also exhibit, promote the sale of, sell and distribute Giordano’s® products and novelties,
promotional literature, and other materials as we may request, and you must participate in
promotional drives, prize contests, and other programs, without regard to the geographic territory,
as we may require.

Training
Personnel

Your “Management Team” must attend all management training we require, as described
below. For a Limited-Service Restaurant, Franchisee’s Management Team will include the General
Manager and one assistant manager, and if applicable, Franchisee (or managing partner or senior
officer of Franchisee). The Management Team for a Full-Service Restaurant will include the
General Manager, one assistance manager, and the Kitchen Manager, and if applicable, Franchisee
(or managing partner or senior officer of Franchisee). The “Kitchen Manager” will be the individual
who assists the General Manager with the management and operation of the Restaurant, with
particular emphasis on the preparation of menu items in the kitchen facilities of the Restaurant.

Franchisee / General Manager

Either the Franchisee or General Manager, as appropriate, must attend an “Owner’s Training
Program” lasting between two to three weeks at our Giordano’s® Pizza Academy, corporate office
and “Training Restaurant” in the Chicago, Illinois area, or another location we designate. This
training will be tailored based on the Franchisee or General Manager’s previous restaurant operating
experience. The Franchisee or General Manager must pass our post-training assessment prior to
opening their Restaurant. If Franchisee or General Manager fails to attend or complete this training
program to our satisfaction, we may terminate the Franchise Agreement, in which case the Initial
Franchise Fee will not be refunded. We will base our determination regarding whether the
Franchisee or the General Manager has completed training to our satisfaction on our post-training
assessment, which is administered by our training personnel, and the observations of our training
personnel. In particular, our training personnel are concerned with whether the General Manager
will be able to implement the System, including delivering the products and services and providing
excellent customer service.

Managers

The Restaurant General Manager and Kitchen Manager must attend the “Restaurant
Management Initial Training Program” we conduct. The training program will last eight weeks
(approximately 40 hours per week). This training includes five weeks of pre-opening training at
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our Giordano’s® Pizza Academy and Training Restaurant in the Chicago, Illinois area, or another
location designated by us, two weeks of pre-opening training and support at your Giordano’s®
Restaurant, and one week of post-opening training and support at your Restaurant. The Restaurant
Management training curriculum is sequentially designed and must be consecutively completed in
the order we provide. If any portion of the curriculum is missed, the General Manager and Kitchen
Manager must take the missed segment, at a time we specify before continuing with the remainder
of the training program. We regularly publish a Management Training schedule. Seats are limited
and must be reserved in advance. With the exception of the training provided at your Restaurant,
the General Manager and Kitchen Manager must complete the initial training program at least
three weeks before the opening of your Restaurant. The restaurant General Manager and Kitchen
Manager must successfully pass our assessment(s) prior to being allowed to open their Restaurant.
If the General Manager or Kitchen Manager fails to attend or complete this training program to our
satisfaction, we may terminate the Franchise Agreement, in which case the Initial Franchise Fee
will not be refunded. We will base our determination regarding whether the General Manager or
the Kitchen Manager has completed training to our satisfaction on our post-training assessment and
the observations of our training personnel.

Other Employees

The following employees of your Restaurant must attend and successfully complete the
“Pre-Opening Training Program” two to three weeks before the opening of your Restaurant:

e If you develop a Full-Service Restaurant, three pizza cooks (two in the case of a
Limited Service Restaurant) must attend the following training: two days of training
at our Giordano’s® Pizza Academy and 10 days of pre-opening training at our
Training Restaurant in the Chicago, Illinois area, or another location we designate.

e Two line cooks must attend seven days of pre-opening training at our Training
Restaurant in the Chicago, Illinois area, or another location we designate.

e Two delivery/carry-out employees must attend five days of pre-opening training at
our Training Restaurant in the Chicago, Illinois area, or another location we
designate.

Your employees who are required to attend our training must successfully pass our assessment(s)
prior to working in your Restaurant.

These initial training programs will include information and instruction in the operation of a
Giordano’s® Restaurant, including preparation of foods, personnel training, inventory procedures,
sales and marketing, administration and management. Some portions of the curriculum may be
omitted by us if it is not applicable to or required for your type of Restaurant.

Attendance at and successful completion of the training programs described above is mandatory
for your Management Team and the other employees that we designate. Attendance at and
successful completion of the training program is optional for all other employees. If your
Management Team fails to attend or complete the training program to our satisfaction, we may
terminate the Franchise Agreement and the Initial Franchise Fee will not be refunded. We will base
our determination regarding whether the Management Team has completed training to our
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satisfaction on our post-training assessment and the observations of our training personnel.
Currently, the initial training program for your Management Team consists of the following:

TRAINING PROGRAM

Hours of Classroom Hours of On-The-

Subiject (1) Training (1)(2) Job Training (1) Location
Giordano’s® Pizza Academy in
Back Kitchen & Preparation 10 40 Chicago, Illinois; Training Restaurant in

Chicago, Illinois; and your Restaurant

Giordano’s® Pizza Academy in
Pizza Line 16 50 Chicago, Illinois; Training Restaurant in
Chicago, lllinois; and your Restaurant

Giordano’s® Pizza Academy in
Chicago, Illinois; Giordano’s® Pizza
Cashier, Telephone, Hosting 10 55 Academy in Chicago, Illinois; Training
Restaurant in Chicago, lllinois; and
your Restaurant

Administrative (scheduling Giordano’s® Pizza Academy in
employees, ordering, 26 50 Chicago, Illinois; Training Restaurant in
shadowing general manager) Chicago, Illinois; and your Restaurant
Giordano’s® Pizza Academy in
Opening & Closing Restaurant 8 55 Chicago, Illinois; Training Restaurant in
Chicago, Illinois; and your Restaurant
Total 70 250
Notes:

1) We may, in our sole discretion, reduce the topics and number of hours of training provided
to you for additional franchised Giordano’s® Restaurants you subsequently open and operate.

@) Includes classroom training, one-on-one instruction with a trainer and self-study training.

The materials used in training include the Manual, as well as other handouts. Training will
be conducted or supervised by two or more of the following employees, as we determine, who
have the following experience with the subjects taught and Giordano’s® Restaurants:

Buffy Bernardo: Ms. Bernardo has been our Director of Learning and Development since
January 2021. Since 2014, she has worked with franchise brands on training and marketing.

Jesse Harris: Mr. Harris started with us in early 2013, and has worked for us in various
capacities, including General Manager, Catering Chef, Manager of Purchasing and Culinary
Systems, and Culinary Trainer. He has created extensive training materials such as detailed recipe
manuals, kitchen procedure manuals and back-of-house training procedures. Before joining us,
Mr. Harris was a General Manager for Go Roma Italian Kitchen, the Kitchen and Floor Manager
of Boudin’s flagship restaurant at Fisherman’s Wharf in San Francisco, California, and the
Executive Chef of Michael’s Uptown Café in Bloomington, Indiana.
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Nihad Cehic: Mr. Cehic has been in the restaurant industry for 18 years and has worked
in different Giordano’s® Restaurants for over 10 years. Mr. Cehic is currently our Regional
Director, responsible for the oversight of six company-owned Giordano’s® Restaurants.

Participation and successful completion of training is validated/measured through on-the-
job observations conducted by our certified restaurant general managers, trainers and franchise
support center representatives, as well as a more formal quiz or other assessment.

The Restaurant Management Initial Training Program and Owner’s Training Program shall
be provided at no cost to Franchisee. However, Franchisee shall be responsible for all costs of
travel, food, lodging and other incidental expenses incurred by Franchisee, Franchisee’s
Management Team and any other employees of Franchisee who attend any training program.

At your request, we may also provide additional training programs, refresher courses or
on-the-job training at a mutually convenient time, or you may be required to attend and participate
in remedial training at your Restaurant or another location designated by us if your Restaurant fails
to meet our performance standards (see Sections 5(C) and (D) of the Franchise Agreement). You
must pay to us our then-current per diem fee (which is currently $500 per day for each
representative of ours conducting such training) for each eight-hour day such training continues.
You are also obligated to pay the expenses of travel, lodging and meals incurred by our
representatives. The instructor of all training programs will be one of our principal officers or
management personnel or a current manager, or other supervisory personnel, of a Restaurant
owned by us or one of our affiliates who has at least a year of experience in operating a
Giordano’s® Restaurant.

Any training provided by us to any of your employees will be limited to training or guiding
the employees regarding the delivery of approved products and services to customers in a manner
that reflects the customer service standards of the System. You are, and will remain, the sole
employer of your employees during all training programs, and you are solely responsible for all
employment decisions and actions related to your employees.

Internet

You may not advertise on the Internet or establish or operate any website for your
Giordano’s® Restaurant or establish or participate in any “Giordano’s®”-related blog or other
online discussion forum without our prior written consent. We may maintain one or more social
media sites (e.g., www.twitter.com, www.facebook.com, etc.). You may not establish or maintain
any social media sites utilizing any user names or otherwise associating with the Marks without our
advance written consent, which will require, among other requirements, that all administrative
credentials for such sites be shared with us and kept up-to-date. We may designate regional or
territory-specific user names/handles that you must maintain. You must adhere to any social media
policies that we establish, and you must require all of your employees to do so as well.

You may not register any domain name for use with your Restaurant. We will obtain and
register a designated domain name for your use. All email correspondence related to the operation
of your Giordano’s® Restaurant must be conducted via a designated email address hosted on a
domain obtained by us for your use.
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Advertising

You must develop local advertising materials for your own use, at your own cost, and spend
at least $1,000 per month for local advertising and promotions for your Restaurant. You may not
use any advertising materials we have not approved and you must adhere to all of our advertising
standards (see Item 8 of this Disclosure Document and Section 11(A) of the Franchise Agreement).

In addition, you must pay a mandatory Advertising Fee (see Item 6 of this Disclosure
Document and Section 3(C) of the Franchise Agreement). Other franchisees and our affiliate-
owned Restaurants must contribute to the Advertising Fund on the same basis as you, except as
stated in Note 4 to Item 6 of this Disclosure Document. We may waive all or part of the
Advertising Fee during any period in which our sales promotions program is or will be inactive,
but we may reinstate the Advertising Fee after prior written notice to you of the reactivation of the
program.

The Advertising Fee is intended to maximize general public recognition of the Marks and
patronage of Giordano’s® Restaurants. We and/or an affiliate of ours (the “Advertising Affiliate”)
determines how the Advertising Fees will be spent. Some portion of the Advertising Fees may be
used for production of marketing surveys, research and development, menu development,
administration of gift card programs, image, design, test marketing, donations in the form of
Giordano’s® gift certificates and/or Approved Products, and for the development, production,
publication and distribution of advertising and promotional materials which we and/or our
Advertising Affiliate determines will most advance the unique Giordano’s® System or the
Approved Products and Approved Services (see Item 8 of this Disclosure Document). No portion
of the Advertising Fees is presently used for advertising that is principally a solicitation for the
sale of new franchisees.

We and/or our Advertising Affiliate will direct all advertising activities, select the
advertising agencies and public relations firms, if any, and oversee creative concepts, materials
and media used and its placement and allocation. The advertising may be disseminated in any
media, including signage, print, radio or television. The Advertising Fees will be used for national
and/or regional advertising, publicity and promotion. Subject to any imposed restrictions, (i) we
and/or our Advertising Affiliate has the right to determine the composition of all geographic and
market areas for the implementation of such advertising and promotional activities, and (ii) neither
we nor the Advertising Affiliate is obligated to spend any amount of money on advertising in the
geographic area where you are located. Your failure to derive any direct or proportionate benefit
from the Advertising Fees you pay will not serve as a basis for a reduction or elimination of your
obligation to pay the Advertising Fee.

We and/or our Advertising Affiliate will be reimbursed out of the Advertising Fees for the
total actual costs (including indirect costs) of developing, producing and distributing any
advertising materials, administering regional and multi-regional advertising programs and
collecting and holding the Advertising Fees (“Administrative Costs”). Such reimbursement for
Administrative Costs includes attorneys’, auditors’ and accountants’ fees, tax liabilities and other
expenses incurred in administering, accounting for and collecting any Advertising Fees, as well as
the proportionate share of our and/or our Advertising Affiliate’s office rent, overhead and
compensation for our and/or our Advertising Affiliate’s employees who devote time and render
services for the development of advertising, administration and collections of the Advertising Fees.
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On an annual basis, we and/or our Advertising Affiliate will limit the amount of Advertising Fees
used to pay Administrative Costs to 17% of the total Advertising Fees spent during the applicable
annual period.

In addition to our and/or the Advertising Affiliate’s Administrative Costs described in the
preceding paragraph, we and our Advertising Affiliate may hire, and pay from the Advertising
Fees, an advertising agency, public relations firm or similar source to formulate, develop, produce
and conduct the advertising and promotional programs. We and our Advertising Affiliate also
reserve the right to undertake and provide such services in-house.

An unaudited statement of the Advertising Fund will be prepared annually by us and will
be made available to you upon request. We may cause the Advertising Fund to be audited, but we
have no obligation to do so. If all Advertising Fees are not spent in the year in which they accrue,
they will remain segregated from our other funds for use in subsequent years. During 2023,
expenditures from the Advertising Fund were for:

Media Placement Costs 5%
Administrative Costs 12%
Production Costs 3%
Gift Cards 4%
Market Research 0%
Website Costs 6%

100%

If an association of Giordano’s® Restaurant franchisees is established in the geographic
area in which your Restaurant is located (the “Local Co-0p”), you must also join and actively
participate in the Local Co-op. You must contribute to the Local Co-op such amounts as are
determined by the Local Co-op. We will not set the amount of those contributions and there is no
limit. However, your local advertising requirement will be reduced by the amount that you
contribute to any Co-op, up to the full amount of your local advertising requirement.

We may establish an advertising council to serve in an advisory capacity for advertising
and promotional matters and the Advertising Fund in the Chicago area. If established, the council
will be composed of seven members, four of whom will be selected by the franchisees and three
selected by us. The number of members on the advisory council and the form of the council may

be subject to change.

Computer Systems

You must use the computer equipment and operating systems we require. The following
minimum specifications are required:

e Currently approved point-of-sale software (Squirrel Professional) compatible hardware
with keyboard, mouse, integrated gift/employee card reader.

e Eigen (or other manufacturer we approve) external encrypted credit card swipe and
keypad supporting hardware/point-to-point encryption.

e Appropriate broadband connection with minimum 2Mbps X 1Mbps throughput and a
minimum of two usable public IP addresses.
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e A backup Internet connection via a broadband provider other than your primary
Internet provider.

e Meraki or other equivalent firewall. The firewall must meet all requirements as
outlined in the Firewall Configuration Guidelines, including current firmware, current
support contract, and current security service subscriptions (e.g., content filtering,
IVS/IPS, virus scanning, etc.) and associated monitoring service by a qualified
managed service provider.

e Up-to-date Anti-Virus/Anti-Malware software with current subscriptions, PCI
monitoring services and software provided by a qualified managed service provider.

You must also purchase at least two cash register terminals, at least two order-taking
terminals and at least three individual printers. We estimate that the cost of the computer system
will be approximately $20,000 to $50,000 (see Item 7 of this Disclosure Document).

You must use the point-of-sale software program we specify. We will customize the
program and create interface programs. The customized computer cash register system will allow
data relating to gross sales to be collected, stored and generated by you and us. We will have
independent access to the information or data via modem or otherwise, and there are no contractual
limitations on our right to access the information and data. This includes our ability to access your
system unattended at any time.

You must participate in all online programs we mandate, which may include e-commerce
(online ordering), loyalty, gift card, and promotion management. All of these programs will require
you to utilize our approved vendor.

You must upgrade or update your computer hardware and software programs as they
become obsolete, mechanically impaired to the extent that they require replacement, or as we
require in order to meet the changing standards of the restaurant industry, payment card industry,
or our system standards. There are no contractual limitations on the frequency or the cost of your
continuing obligation to do this.

Neither we, our affiliates, nor any third parties are required to provide ongoing
maintenance, repairs, upgrades, or updates to your computer system. Currently, there are no
optional or required maintenance/upgrade contracts for the point-of-sale or computer system.
However, you must maintain a current information technology (“I1T”) support relationship with a
qualified employee, contractor, supplier or vendor to assist with IT infrastructure including
firewalls, network switches, cabling, internet service providers, wireless internet connections and
service, vulnerability management (for example, virus protection and critical software updates),
and other products and services associated with current information technology services required
at your Restaurant. If you fail to establish and maintain an IT support relationship with a qualified
employee, contractor, supplier or vendor, we can arrange for the necessary information technology
support and services required for your Restaurant and charge you for the costs and expenses
incurred by us to do so, including a $500 per diem charge if the services are provided by our
employee.

You must be compliant with all items outlined in our Vulnerability Management Policy.
You must comply with all laws related to the operation of your Restaurant, including those related
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to data security and privacy and you must comply with all payment card industry (PCI) data
security standards. Additionally, you must meet our minimum information security standards.

Operations Manual

The current Operations Manual has 41 chapters containing 73 pages. A copy of the Table of
Contents of our Manual is attached as Exhibit E to this Disclosure Document.

Area Development Agreement

If you enter into an Area Development Agreement, our obligations to you will be as disclosed
above in this Item for each Restaurant you develop under the Area Development Agreement.

ITEM 12
TERRITORY

You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other
franchisees, from outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands
that we control.

The granting of a protected territory (a “Territory”) in the Franchise Agreement is subject
to negotiation between parties. The boundaries of a Territory, if any, will be defined by streets and
set forth in the Franchise Agreement, and will depend upon such factors as demographic
characteristics, population, household income, size and distance. The Territory will usually consist
of one or more cities or market areas. There is no minimum size for a Territory. The granting of a
Territory in the Franchise Agreement means that as long as the Franchise Agreement is in effect
and you are not in default under the Franchise Agreement, we may not operate or license others to
operate another Giordano’s® Restaurant at any location within that Territory unless we first provide
you with a right of first refusal to own and operate the Giordano’s® Restaurant under identical
terms being offered to the other party. If you enter into a Franchise Agreement, you will be granted
a defined “Delivery Area.” You are permitted to deliver approved products to destinations within
your Delivery Area. The boundaries of your Delivery Area may be different than the boundaries
of any Territory granted to you. If you are granted a Territory, you do not have the exclusive right
to deliver approved products within the Territory, and we, our affiliates, and Giordano’s®
franchisees may provide delivery services within your Territory.

If you enter into an Area Development Agreement with us, you will receive the right to
develop and operate Giordano’s® Restaurants in a specified geographic area called a “Development
Area.” The Development Area typically consists of one or more cities or market areas and will be
delineated by specifying the streets or highways, or the county lines that form the boundaries of the
Development Area. Before you sign the Area Development Agreement, a description of the
Development Area will be included in the Area Development Agreement and a map of the
Development Area may also be attached. The size of the Development Area and the number of
Giordano’s® Restaurants you will develop within the Development Area are determined by the
population of the Development Area and its market potential, taking into account demographics,
economic conditions, business climate, competition, your financial resources and other relevant
factors. Your Development Area may not be altered or relocated during the term of the Area
Development Agreement. You must meet the Development Schedule in the Area Development

2024 VVPC Pizza Franchise, LLC FDD 28
63401274v5



Agreement or you will lose your right to continue to develop Giordano’s® Restaurants in the
Development Area. Otherwise, the continuation of your Development Area is not dependent upon
your achieving a certain sales volume, market penetration or any other contingency. The Area
Development Agreement does not grant any options, rights of first refusal or similar rights to you
for the acquisition of additional development rights in your Development Area or contiguous areas
during or after the expiration of the term of the Area Development Agreement. We retain certain
rights within your Development Area, as discussed below. Therefore, you will not receive an
exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees, from outlets that we own, or
from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control.

Except for the specific grant of a Territory or Development Area, we retain all rights to the
products and services sold at or from Giordano’s® Restaurants, the Marks and the System,
including the right to operate or grant others the right to operate Giordano’s® Restaurants outside
the Territory or Development Area on terms and conditions we deem appropriate and the right to
produce and sell products using the Marks or other commercial symbols through retail stores and
other channels of distribution (other than Giordano’s® Restaurants) pursuant to terms and
conditions we deem appropriate. We also reserve the right to operate other restaurants or enter into
other lines of businesses offering similar or dissimilar products or services under different
trademarks and service marks, other than the Marks. Furthermore, we retain the exclusive right to
market our stuffed pizza and other products through the Internet, at airports, shopping centers, food
courts, stadiums, grocery outlets, military installations, public carriers (including airplanes, trains
and cruise lines) and other special purpose venues, or any other channels of distribution which may
originate in or service your Territory or Development Area. Additionally, we retain the exclusive
right to ship our pizza and other products anywhere, whether these orders for shipment are received
by telephone, facsimile transmission, Internet communication or otherwise, and even if the
origination of the order is in your Territory or Development Area, or the destination of the shipped
products is in your Territory or Development Area.

Except as expressly limited by the above, we (on behalf of ourselves and our affiliates)
retain all rights to Giordano’s® Restaurants, the Marks and the sale of products and services,
anywhere in the world, including: (1) the right to operate or grant others the right to operate
restaurants at locations anywhere outside the Territory or Development Area regardless of its
proximity to a Giordano’s® Restaurant and on such terms and conditions as we deem appropriate;
(2) the right to develop, manufacture, distribute, rent and/or sell food products through any channel
of distribution (including under or in association with the Marks or any other trade name or
trademark), and to grant this right to others; and (3) the right to develop, market, distribute, rent
and/or sell any other product or service or own or operate any other business under the Marks or
any other trade name or trademark.

You must operate your Restaurant only at the Site evaluated by us specified in the Franchise
Agreement, and you may not relocate the Site for your Restaurant to another location without our
prior written consent. If you enter into an Area Development Agreement, the Site for each
Restaurant developed thereunder must conform to our then-current site criteria that we have in place
at the time you execute the applicable Franchise Agreement. We apply the same considerations for
evaluating relocations of a Restaurant and the leasing of another Site as we do for Restaurants and
Sites generally. You may solicit customers and advertise your Restaurant anywhere you choose.
There are no restrictions on you, any of our other franchisees, or us to prevent any soliciting or
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advertising in someone else’s protected territory. No party is obligated to pay compensation to any
other party for soliciting customers or accepting orders (for pick-up) from the other franchisee’s

protected area.

Continuation of your Territory under the Franchise Agreement does not depend on
achievement of any particular sales volume, market penetration or contingency other than full
compliance with the terms of the Franchise Agreement.

The grant of a Giordano’s® Restaurant franchise is only to the operation of one
Giordano’s® Restaurant within a Territory, and does not convey any other rights to you.

You may not advertise on the Internet or establish or maintain any website or any presence
on the Internet without our prior written consent. You may use the Internet to advertise only in

compliance with the Franchise Agreement.

ITEM 13
TRADEMARKS

Principal Trademarks

We grant you the right to use certain trademarks, service marks and other commercial
symbols in operating your Restaurant. The principal Mark we use is “Giordano’s®,” but we also

authorize you to use other Marks.

Trademark Reqgistrations

The following Marks are registered on the Principal Register of the United States Patent and

Trademark Office (the “PTO”):

Registration

Registration

Mark Date No. Class/Use

GIORDANOQO’S 03/23/04 2,824,400 Restaurant Services
GIORDANO’S and Design

07/07/81 1,160,481 Restaurant Services

FAMOUS STUFFED PIZZA. FRESH ITALIAN 09/10/13 4,402,032 Restaurant Services
GIORDANO’S and Design

10/01/13 4,411,249 Restaurant Services

G Catering & Events 01/13/15 4,669,710 Catering Services
ITALIAN BORN CHICAGO RAISED 01/10/17 5,118,897 Restaurant Services
GIORDANO’S IT'é‘k:g'E\IDBORN' CHICAGO 01/10/17 5,119,426 Restaurant Services
GIORDANO’S FAMOUS STUFFED DEEP DISH .
PIZZA. ITALIAN BORN CHICAGO RAISED 07/11/17 5,239,572 Restaurant Services
GIORDANOG’S FAMOUS STUFFED PIZZA. FRESH 07/11/17 5,239,629 Restaurant Services

ITALIAN.

2024 VVPC Pizza Franchise, LLC FDD
63401274v5

30




Registration | Registration

Mark Date No. Class/Use
GIORDANO’S FAM?DlIJZSZSATUFFED DEEP DISH 07/11/17 5,239,630 Restaurant Services
GIORDANO’S WORLD FAMOUS STUFFED DEEP .
DISH PIZZA 02/20/18 5,408,262 Restaurant Services

The Marks are owned by VPC Pizza IP, LLC (*VPC IP”), an affiliate of ours. We entered
into a Trademark License Agreement, effective November 22, 2011, with VPC IP granting us the
right to use and license the Marks for the purpose of operating and franchising Giordano’s®
Restaurants. The term of the Trademark License Agreement is indefinite, contains no material
restrictions and, unless terminated sooner by mutual agreement, will remain in force for at least as
long as any Franchise Agreement is in effect. If during the term of your Franchise Agreement, the
Trademark License Agreement is terminated, VPC IP, will grant to you the right to use the Marks
for the remaining term of your Franchise Agreement. Otherwise, there are no other agreements
currently in effect which significantly limit our rights to use or license the use of the Marks in a
manner material to the Franchise. There are no currently effective material determinations of the
PTO, the Trademark Trial and Appeal Board, the trademark administrator of any state or any court,
nor are there any pending infringements, opposition or cancellation proceedings, or material
litigation involving the principal trademarks. We have filed all affidavits and renewal registrations
required for the Marks.

Use of Marks

You will use and display the Marks only in the manner authorized in writing by us and
may not alter or change the Marks in any way without our prior written approval. You cannot use
any Mark as part of your corporate or legal business name or with modifying words, designs or
symbols (except for those we license to you). You cannot use any Mark in connection with the
performance or sale of any unauthorized services or products or in any other manner we have not
expressly authorized in writing.

Infringements

You must notify us immediately of any apparent infringement or challenge to your use of
any Mark, or of any claim by any person of any rights in any Mark, and you may not communicate
with any person other than us, our attorneys and your attorneys in connection with any such
infringement, challenge or claim. We have sole discretion to take such action as we deem
appropriate and the right to control exclusively any litigation, PTO proceeding or any other
administrative proceeding arising from such infringement, challenge or claim or otherwise relating
to any Mark. You must sign any instruments and documents, provide such assistance and take any
action that, in the opinion of our attorneys, may be necessary or advisable to protect and maintain
our interests in any litigation or PTO or other proceeding or otherwise to protect and maintain our
interests in the Marks.

We are not obligated to protect your rights to use the Marks or to protect you against claims
of infringement or unfair competition because of your use of the Marks, although we intend to do
so when this action is in the best interests of the Giordano’s® System. We are not obligated to
participate in your defense or indemnify you for expenses or damages if you are party to an
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administrative or judicial proceeding involving the Marks if the proceeding is resolved
unfavorably to you.

Changes to Marks

If we determine that the Restaurants must modify or discontinue the use of any Mark or
use one or more additional or substitute trademark or service marks, you must comply with our
directions to do so within a reasonable time after receiving notice. We will not be obligated to
reimburse you for any loss of revenue attributable to any modified or discontinued Mark or for
any expenditures you make to promote a modified or substitute trademark or service mark.

Other than as described above in this Item, we do not actually know of either superior prior
rights or infringing uses that could materially affect your use of the Marks in any state.

ITEM 14
PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

There are no patents that are material to the Franchise.

We have registered a photograph used in advertising materials with the United States
Copyright Office, Registration Number VA 1-894-026, effective February 25, 2014.

We claim copyrights in the Manual and the menus, and advertising materials and related
items used in operating the franchise. Except for our 2012 menu (Registration Number TX 7-795-
724, effective October 24, 2013) and 2013 menu (Registration Number TX 7-794-055, effective
October 24, 2013), these copyrights have not been registered with the United States Registrar of
Copyrights.

The Manual, which is described in Item 11 of this Disclosure Document, and other
materials we possess contain our confidential information. This information includes site selection
criteria; recipes; methods, formats, specifications, standards, systems, procedures and sales and
marketing techniques used, and knowledge of and experience, in developing and operating
Giordano’s® Restaurants; marketing and advertising programs for Giordano’s® Restaurants;
knowledge of specifications for and suppliers of certain fixtures, furnishings, equipment, products,
materials and supplies; and knowledge of the operating results and financial performance of
Giordano’s® Restaurants other than your Restaurant.

All ideas, recipes, menu items, concepts, techniques or materials relating to Giordano’s®
Restaurants (including any specific to your Restaurant), whether or not constituting protectable
intellectual property, and whether created by or on behalf of you or your owners, must be promptly
disclosed to us, will be considered our property and part of our System and will be considered to
be works made-for-hire for us. You and your owners must sign whatever documents we request
to evidence our ownership or to assist us in securing intellectual property rights in such ideas,
concepts, techniques or materials.

2024 VVPC Pizza Franchise, LLC FDD 32
63401274v5



You may not use our confidential information in an unauthorized manner and must take
reasonable steps to prevent its disclosure to others. We may require that your managers sign our
then-current form of Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreement.

There currently are no effective determinations of the Copyright Office (Library of
Congress) or any court regarding any of the copyrighted materials. Nor are there any agreements
currently in effect which significantly limit our right to use or authorize franchisees to use any
copyrighted materials. Furthermore, there are no infringing uses actually known to us which could
materially affect a franchisee’s use of the copyrighted materials in any state. We are not required
by any agreement to protect or defend copyrights or confidential information, although we intend
to do so when this action is in the best interests of the Giordano’s® System.

ITEM 15
OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE
ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS

The Restaurant must at all times be under the direct, day-to-day, full-time supervision of
Franchisee or a General Manager designated by Franchisee as described below:

1) If Franchisee is a sole proprietorship, then the proprietor must engage actively and
personally in the management and supervision of the operations as the General Manager of the
Restaurant.

@) If Franchisee is a partnership, then the partners owning at least a majority interest
in the capital and profits of the partnership must engage actively and personally in the management
of the Restaurant, and Franchisee must designate in the Franchise Agreement one partner as the
General Manager of the Restaurant.

(3) If Franchisee is a corporation or other entity, then it must designate in the Franchise
Agreement a senior officer who owns at least 10% of the ownership of the entity as the General
Manager of the Restaurant. The General Manager signs the Franchise Agreement as an owner of
Franchisee and the Owners’ and Guarantors’ Undertaking attached as Exhibit F to the Franchise
Agreement.

If a designated General Manager supervises the Restaurant, Franchisee (or a managing
partner or senior officer who has satisfactorily completed the training program) must remain active
in overseeing the operations of the Restaurant conducted under the supervision of the designated
General Manager. If Franchisee owns multiple franchised Giordano’s® Restaurants, Franchisee’s
designated General Manager may, with our approval, manage and supervise the operations of more
than one Restaurant.

The designated General Manager must be approved in writing in advance by us and must
manage and supervise the operations of the Restaurant and assure compliance by you and your
personnel with the Franchise Agreement. You must get our approval for any replacement General
Manager.
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Appointment of Manager

If at any time the Restaurant is not being managed by Franchisee, the designated General
Manager or a manager who has satisfactorily completed our training program, we may appoint a
representative of ours to maintain the operations of the Restaurant for you. Our representative will
operate the Restaurant for as long as we deem necessary and practical. All funds from the operation
of the Restaurant during the period our representative manages the Restaurant will be kept in a
separate fund and all expenses of the Restaurant incurred during this period, including the
manager’s salary, will be charged to this fund. In addition to the payment of the manager’s salary,
you must also pay to us our then-current per diem fee for each day our representative continues to
manage and operate the Restaurant, and all third-party costs we incur in connection with the
management and operation of the Restaurant. The operation of the Restaurant during this period
will at all times be conducted on your behalf, provided that we only have a duty to utilize our
reasonable efforts in the operation of the Restaurant and will not be liable to you for any losses
incurred from the operation of the Restaurant or to any of your creditors for any merchandise,
supplies or services purchased by the Restaurant during this period. You must hold us and our
representatives harmless from any and all claims of any kind arising out of our operation of the
Restaurant. Our appointment of a manager to operate the Restaurant will not relieve you of any
obligations under the Franchise Agreement nor constitute a waiver of our right to terminate the
Franchise Agreement. You must agree to pay all of our reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred as a
result of our exercise of our right to appoint a manager.

ITEM 16
RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

Franchisee must offer for sale all products and services and only those products and
services as we approve. You must offer all approved products and services for sale on a continuous
basis at the Restaurant at the time and in the manner we require. No sale of any product or service
except approved products and services may be solicited, accepted or made at or from the
Restaurant. On 30 days’ notice from us, you must discontinue the marketing of an approved
product or service. Except as we may determine, you must serve alcoholic beverages at your
Restaurant.

You may not: (1) sell any product for resale; (2) sell any product or service at or from any
place except the Restaurant; or (3) prepare any product at any place other than the Restaurant,
except that Franchisee may sell approved products and services at special events including fairs,
conventions and food-fests with our prior approval. You must give us at least 30 days’ prior
written notice of any fair, convention or other special event in your Territory at which you desire
to conduct special event sales.

The Franchise Agreement contains no restriction on the customers to whom Franchisee
may sell goods and services, except that delivery services can only be provided to customers within
the delivery area we specified in the Franchise Agreement. All dealings and transactions with
customers and suppliers must be fair and honest.
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ITEM 17
RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

These tables list certain important provisions of the franchise, area development and
related agreements. You should read these provisions in the agreements attached to
this Disclosure Document.

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

Franchise Agreement:

Provisions

Section in Franchise
or other Agreement

Summary

Term of Franchise

Section 2(A)

Initial term is 10 years, equal to lease term.

Renewal or extension of
term

Section 2(B)

If you are in good standing, you have an option to renew for
two five-year terms.

Requirements for you to
renew or extend

Section 2(B)

For each renewal term: give timely notice, be and have been
in good standing; make required capital expenditures, if any;
relocate Restaurant if necessary; sign the then-current form
of Franchise Agreement and any ancillary agreements,
which agreements may be materially different than the form
attached to this Disclosure Document; pay renewal fee equal
to 15% of then-current Initial Franchise Fee; and provide us
with a copy of the lease for a term at least as long as the
renewal term.

Termination by you

None

The Franchise Agreement does not provide you with the
right to terminate. Applicable laws may provide you with
grounds to terminate.

Termination by us without
cause

None

We may terminate the Franchise Agreement if you default
or for cause as specified in the Franchise Agreement.

Termination by us with
cause

Sections 15(A) and
15(B)

We may terminate the Franchise Agreement when you are in
material breach of its terms and do not cure the breach
following notice from us as the Franchise Agreement
requires.

“Cause” defined —
defaults which can be
cured

Sections 15(A) and
15(B)

You have 5 days to cure the non-payment of fees. You have
10 days to cure your noncompliance with any law or
regulation applicable to the operation of the Restaurant. You
have 30 days to cure any other breach.
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Provisions

Section in Franchise
or other Agreement

Summary

“Cause defined” —
defaults which cannot be
cure

Section 15(A)

Non-curable defaults: a suitable Site is not found within six
months if the Restaurant is a Limited-Service Restaurant or
nine months if the Restaurant is a Full-Service Restaurant;
bankruptcy or insolvency; abandonment; mutual written
agreement between us and you; material misrepresentation
or materially unfavorable conduct; repeated defaults even if
cured; seizure of assets; unsatisfied judgment; conviction of
a felony or other criminal misconduct that adversely affects
us; operation poses an imminent danger to public health or
safety; failure to complete training program; failure to open
the Restaurant within 9 months if the Restaurant is a
Limited-Service Restaurant or 12 months of the Restaurant
is a Full-Service Restaurant; unauthorized sale, assignment
or transfer of your interest; termination of lease.

Your obligations on
termination / nonrenewal

Section 15(E)

Obligations include complete de-identification, return of the
Manual and all items bearing the Marks and payment of
amounts due to us and others (also see r. below).

Assignment of contract by
us

Section 14(1)

No restriction on our right to assign.

“Transfer” by you —
definition

Section 14(A)

Assign, sell, transfer, or encumber, by operation of law or
otherwise.

Our approval of transfer
by franchisee

Section 14(A)

All transfers must be approved in advance by us.

Conditions for our
‘| approval of transfer

Section 14(A)

Includes: new franchisee qualifies and completes training
program, all outstanding debts paid; release signed by you;
then-current Franchise Agreement signed by new franchisee;
transfer fee paid; new franchisee obtains all required
licenses; you have cured all defaults; purchase agreement
approved by us (also see r. below).

Our right of first refusal to
acquire your business

Section 14(E)

We can match any offer for Franchisee’s business.

Our option to purchase
your business

Section 15(G)

We may purchase your assets for an agreed upon price or a
price determined by an independent appraiser if the
Franchise Agreement expires, or at book value if the
Franchise Agreement is terminated.

Your death or disability

Section 14(F)

Franchise must be assigned by surviving spouse, heirs or
estate to an approved buyer within 180 days.

Non-competition
covenants during the term
of the franchise

Section 9(D)

No involvement or financial interest in a similar or
competing business.

Non-competition
covenants after the
franchise is terminated or
expires

Section 9(E)

No involvement or financial interest in a competing or
similar business for two years within 15 miles of another
Giordano’s® Restaurant, of the Territory or Development
Area or of any office, affiliate or facility of ours.

Modification of
agreement

Section 16(H)

Modification permitted only by signed written agreement of
the parties, except the Manual which may be modified by
us.
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Provisions

Section in Franchise
or other Agreement

Summary

Integration / merger
clause

Section 16(H)

Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement are binding
(subject to applicable state law); however, nothing in the
Franchise Agreement or any related agreement is intended to
disclaim representations made in this Disclosure Document.
No other oral or written agreements concerning the subject
matter exist enforceable.

Dispute resolution by
arbitration or mediation

Section 16(U)

Except for certain claims, all disputes must be arbitrated in
Cook County, Illinois on an individual basis (subject to
applicable state law). The decision of the arbitrator is
binding.

Choice of forum

Section 16(Q)

Litigation must be in Cook County, Illinois (subject to
applicable state law).

Except in limited circumstances, the law of the state where

| Choice of law Section 17 your Restaurant is located will apply.
Area Development Agreement:
- Section in Area
Provisions Summary

Development Agreement

Term of Agreement

Section 2

To be determined by you and us.

Renewal or extension of

None
term
Requirements for you to None
renew or extend
The Area Development Agreement does not provide you
Termination by you None with the right to terminate. Applicable laws may provide
you with grounds to terminate.
N We may only terminate the Area Development Agreement if
Termination by us e
; None you default or for cause as specified in the Area
without cause
Development Agreement.
We may terminate the Area Development Agreement when
you are in breach of its terms following notice from us as
the Area Development Agreement requires. Termination of
Termination by us with Sections 7(A) and the Arhe_a Development Agreement is not a deEauIt under any
cause 7(B) Franchise Agreements executed purs_uant to the Are_a
Development Agreement. Termination of a Franchise
Agreement executed pursuant to the Area Development
Agreement is a default under the Area Development
Agreement.
w S You have 5 days to cure the non-payment of fees. You have
Cause” defined — . q q I ith |
defaults which can be Sections 7(A) an 10 ays to cure your noncompliance with any law or
7(B) regulation applicable to the operation of the Restaurant. You

cured

have 30 days to cure any other breach.
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Provisions

Section in Area
Development Agreement

Summary

“Cause defined” —
defaults which cannot be
cure

Section 7(A)

Non-curable defaults: failure to comply with Development
Schedule; abandonment; bankruptcy or insolvency; mutual
written agreement between us and the Area Developer;
material misrepresentation or materially unfavorable
conduct; repeated defaults even if cured; seizure of assets;
unsatisfied judgment; conviction of a felony or other
criminal misconduct that adversely affects us; impairment
of goodwill; unauthorized sale, assignment or transfer of
your interest; termination of a Franchise Agreement.

Your obligation on

Your rights under the Area Development Agreement revert
to us; and you must continue to operate the Giordano’s®

termination / nonrenewal Section 8 Restaurants you opened before termination of the Area
Development Agreement.

Q;sulgnment of contract Section 6(H) No restriction on our right to assign.

Tr_an_sfer by you — Section 6(A) Asmgnz sell, transfer, or encumber by operation of law or

definition otherwise.

Our approval of transfer | Sections 6(A) and All transfers must be approved in advance by us.

by you 6(C)
Includes: 50% of the Restaurants set forth in the
Development Schedule are open and operating; new area

Conditions for our Section 6(A) developer qualifies, all outstanding debts paid; release

approval of transfer signed by you; then-current Area Development Agreement
signed by new area developer; transfer fee paid; you have
cured all defaults.

Our “ght of first re]_‘usal Section 6(E) We can match any offer for the Area Developer’s business.

to acquire your business

Our option to purchase . We can match any third-party offer for the Area

X Section 6(E) ) .

your business Developer’s business.

Your death or disability Section 6(F) Area Developer must be a53|gneql b_y surviving spouse, heirs
or estate to an approved buyer within 180 days.

Non-competition . . A . o

. . No involvement or financial interest in a similar or
covenants during the term | Section 9(A) . .
. competing business.

of the franchise

Non-competition No involvement or financial interest in a competing or

covenants after the Area Section 9(B) similar business for two years within 15 miles of another

Development Agreement
is terminated or expires

Giordano’s® Restaurant, of the Territory or Development
Area or of any office, affiliate or facility of ours.

Modification of
agreement

Section 11(H)

Modification permitted only by signed written agreement of
the parties.

Integration / merger
clause

Section 11(H)

Only the terms of the Area Development Agreement are
binding (subject to applicable state law); however, nothing
in the Area Development Agreement or any related
agreement is intended to disclaim representations made in
this Disclosure Document. No other oral or written
agreements concerning the subject matter exist enforceable.
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Provisions

Section in Area
Development Agreement

Summary

Dispute resolution by
arbitration or mediation

Sections 11(U) and
11(V)

Except for certain claims, all disputes must be arbitrated in
Cook County, Illinois on an individual basis (subject to
applicable state law). The decision of the arbitrator is
binding.

Choice of forum

Section 11(Q)

Litigation must be in Cook County, Illinois (subject to
applicable state law).

Choice of law

Section 12

Except in limited circumstances, the law of the state where
your Development Area is located will apply.

ITEM 18
PUBLIC FIGURES

We do not use any public figure to promote the Franchise. No public figure is involved in
our management.

ITEM 19
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or
potential financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a
reasonable basis for the information, and if the information is included in Item 19 of the Disclosure
Document. Financial performance information that differs from that included in this Item 19 may
be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the actual records of an existing outlet that you are
considering buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements the information provided in this Item 19, for
example, by providing information about possible performance at a particular location or under
particular circumstances.

The financial performance representations below reflect certain historical information
experienced by our company-owned Restaurants (which are actually owned and operated by our
affiliates) and franchised Restaurants that operated as either a Full-Service Restaurant or Limited-
Service Restaurant. The financial information in this Item 19 has been prepared by our
management and has not been compiled, reviewed or audited by our auditors. Accordingly, our
auditors do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance with respect thereto and assume
no responsibility for the financial information included in this item.

As of December 31, 2023, there were 33 franchised Giordano’s® Restaurants and 29
company-owned Giordano’s® Restaurants. The tables below reflect annual Gross Revenue
information for 31 existing franchised Restaurants and 29 company-owned Restaurants that were
each open and operating full-time for at least 12 months as of December 31, 2023. Two
franchised Restaurants were excluded because they were not open and operating throughout all
of 2023.

The below charts exclude one existing franchised Restaurant because it opened in 2023
and was not operating for a full 12 months as of December 31, 2022.
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Table 1 — Company-Owned and Franchised Restaurants

2023 Calendar Year Gross Revenues of Company-Owned and Franchised
Restaurants Continuously Open for at least 12 Months as of December 31, 2023

Number of Number and Percentage
Restaurant Description Restaurants | Average | Minimum | Maximum Above/Below Average Median
g‘t;;"'/"?roo'ﬁ’;g t':é’é'stiﬁ?é:fé 6 $6,499,420 | $2,631,409 | $13,442,515 33%2§467% $4,923,658
SU(tiE:EZ%O/TEbZ#IFL esset;nir‘;its 34 $1,891,996 | $867,968 | $6,016,319 29;%2741% $1,658,041
guhgﬁfg;’r:a;‘ﬂr';)'g'tsgs;iré':; 6 $948,878 | $685,562 | $1,400,761 33%2§467% $825,731
ngts;d/eT'gl'J’;:)s'tsge‘*s't'aire;]’t'ge 6 $3,764,528 | $2,067,270 | $8,018,183 17%1;583% $3,162,287
O”tssfj‘z)eu:g;?fge;‘;: ;re];‘s’ice 8 $1,948,150 | $1,226,863 | $3,103,487 38(;;563% $1,863,334

Table 2 - Company-Owned Restaurants

2023 Calendar Year Gross Revenues of Company-Owned Restaurants Continuously
Open for at least 12 Months as of December 31, 2023

Number of Number and Percentage
Restaurant Description Restaurants Average Minimum | Maximum Above/Below Average Median
g‘t;f";‘g.’roclﬁ':gg;;ﬁrr‘;fé 5 $7,073,022 | $3,069,007 | $13,442,515 S0 5056 $6,460,263
Suﬁﬂ:‘gﬁ%"mfbg: IFIQ- ess‘i;‘lj'r‘;en s 13 $2,272,654 | $1,264,975 | $6,016,319 380/05//862% $1,720,309
Scuhgﬁ";‘ggr']afg;‘;'tégsgirr‘gﬁfs 3 $1,151,998 | $804,770 | $1,400,761 67%2;133% $1,250,465
Ogff)'/d/eT'(')'l'J?I"S'tSF'{:é‘S't'aﬁre;Xt'ge 2 $5,042,727 | $2,067,270 | $8,018,183 50%1;150% $5,042,727
Outsicle Iinols Full-Service 6 $1,724628 | $1,226,863 | $2,040,540 o a0 $1,764,058

Table 3 — Franchised Restaurants

2023 Calendar Year Gross Revenues of Franchised Restaurants Continuously Open
for at least 12 Months as of December 31, 2023

Number of Number and Percentage

Restaurant Description Restaurants Average Minimum | Maximum Above/Below Average Median

g‘t';j‘%o()'ﬁ?l‘:t':;é'séﬁrr‘;ﬁ 1 $2,631,400 | $2,631,400 | $2,631,409 :;: $2,631,409
SU(;E:%Z%O/IT??MF#'FI{ Ss‘i;‘l’f;ts 21 $1,656,351 | $867,968 | $4,181,230 430/90/ /1;0 " $1,542,688
Shicagoland Limited Service 3 $745758 | $685562 | $846,693 . $705,020
Ogff}',d/eT'gl'J?gisggs':aﬁfarxge 4 $3,125429 | $2,690,259 | $3,486,884 o e $3,162,287
Outside Iinols Pl Service 2 $2,618716 | $2,133,045 | $3,103,487 50%1j150% $2,618,716
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Notes to Tables 1, 2, and 3:

1. Some businesses have sold this amount. Your individual results may differ.
There is no assurance that you will sell as much.

2. “Gross Revenues” includes all sales, monies, revenues, charges, and receipts
received by the Restaurant including sales, monies, revenues, charges, and receipts received by
any other person which are derived from products prepared or sold and services performed at the
Restaurant whether or not paid to or received by the Restaurant, at special events or from catering
and from all sales and orders made, solicited or received at the Restaurant or at special events and
from all other business conducted at or from the Restaurant or related in any way to the Restaurant,
including pick-up and delivery of products, and whether such revenues are evidenced by cash,
credit (and regardless of collection in the case of credit), checks, gift certificates, scrip, coupons,
services, property or other means of exchange, and whether such sales are of food, beverages,
tobacco products, vending or coin operated machine items, services, merchandise or products of
any nature whatsoever. However, Gross Revenues do not include (a) sales taxes or other taxes
measured on the basis of the Gross Revenues of the business imposed by governmental authorities
directly on sales and collected from customers, provided the taxes are added to the selling price
and are in fact, paid by the Restaurant to the appropriate governmental authorities; or (b)
promotional discounts and coupons authorized by us, not to exceed 5% of weekly Gross Revenues.

3. “Tourist Restaurant” means a Restaurant that is located in or around an area that
includes major tourist attractions and whose customer base includes a significant portion of people
who live more than ten miles away from the restaurant location.

4. The information included in this Item 19 about the franchised Restaurants was
provided to us by our franchisees. We have not audited or independently verified this information.

5. The financial performance representation figures listed in this Item 19 do not
reflect the cost of sales, operating expenses, fees, or other costs and expenses that must be
deducted from the gross revenue figures to obtain your net income or profit.

Written substantiation for the financial performance representation will be made available
to the prospective franchisee upon reasonable request.

Other than the preceding financial performance representation, we do not make any
financial performance representations. We also do not authorize our employees or representatives
to make any such representations either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an existing
outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual records of that outlet. If you receive any
other financial performance information or projections of your future income, you should report it
to our management by contacting Mr. David Poole, 60 E. Superior Street, Suite 300, Chicago,
Illinois 60611, (312) 641-6500, the Federal Trade Commission, and the appropriate state
regulatory agencies.
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ITEM 20
OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

Table No. 1
Systemwide Outlet Summary
For Fiscal Years Ending January 2022, 2023 and 2024*

Outlets at the Outlets at the

Outlet Type Year Start of the Year | End of the Year Net Change
2021 35 37 +2
Franchised 2022 37 36 -1
2023 36 33 -3
2021 33 33 0
Company-Owned 2022 33 29 -4
2023 29 29 0
2021 68 70 +2
Total Outlets 2022 70 65 -5
2023 65 62 -3

(1) References to “company-owned” Restaurants in this Item mean the Giordano’s® Restaurants
owned by subsidiaries of VPC Intermediate and operated by VPC Mgmt (see Item 1).

Table No. 2
Transfers of Outlets from Franchisees to New Owners (other than us)
For Fiscal Years Ending January 2022, 2023 and 2024*

State Year Outlets at Start of Year
2021 0

Illinois 2022
2023
2021
Total 2022
2023

O OoO|Oo|r

Table No. 3
Status of Franchised Outlets
For Fiscal Years Ending January 2022, 2023 and 2024*

Outlets Ceased Outlets

at Start | Outlets Termi- Non- Reacquired Operations - at End

State Year of Year | Opened nations Renewals by Us Other Reasons | of Year
2021 1 2 0 0 0 0 3
Colorado 2022 3 1 2 0 0 0 2
2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
2021 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
Florida 2022 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2023 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2021 29 0 0 0 0 0 29
Illinois 2022 29 0 0 0 0 0 29
2023 29 1 4 0 0 0 26
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State

Year

Outlets
at Start
of Year

Outlets
Opened

Termi-
nations

Non-
Renewals

Reacquired
by Us

Ceased
Operations -
Other Reasons

Outlets
at End
of Year

Indiana

2021

2

0

0

0

0

0

2

2022

2

2

2023

2

2

Total

2021

35

37

2022

37

36

2023

36

RPN O|IO

AINO|O|O

o|o|o|0o|Oo

ojo|o|o|o

ojo|o|o|o

33

For Fiscal Years Ending January 2022, 2023 and 2024*

Table No. 4
Status of Company-Owned Outlets

State

Year

Outlets at

Start of Year

Outlets
Opened

Outlets Reacquired
From Franchisee

Outlets
Closed

Outlets Sold Outlets at End

to Franchisee

of Year

Arizona

2021

1

0

0

0

0

1

2022

1

0

2023

0

0

Ilinois

2021

21

21

2022

21

20

2023

N
o

N
o

Indiana

2021

2022

2023

lowa

2021

2022

2023

Minnesota

2021

2022

2023

Nevada

2021

2022

2023

Ohio

2021

2022

2023

Wisconsin

2021

2022

2023

Totals

2021

2022

2023

N |w
BIRB ||, Rr (v ww|N N NP R R R RPN w|w

OO0 |0O|00 0|00 |O|0|0O|0|0(0O|0|00O|0O|0O|0O|O|O0|0O|O|O

OO0 |I0|0O|O0O|0|0|0O|O|0|0|0O|O|O|0O|0|0O|O|O|0O|0O|O|O|O

=i lellellelleolle]] Jdlellellellelle]llellellelleollellell llellel] i lelle)) ol

OO0 |I0|0O|O0O|0|0|0O|O|0|0|0|O|O|0O|0|0O|0O|O|0O|0o|Oo|Oo|Oo

NN (W
S|P PP INNWINININ R R PR RPN N W
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Table No. 5
Projected Openings As Of Fiscal Year End January 2024*

Franchise Agreements Signed Projected New Franchised Projected New Company-Owned

State But Outlet Not Opened Outlet in Next Fiscal Year 2024 | Outlets in Next Fiscal Year 2024
Illinois 1 1 0
Totals 1 1 0

*Qur 2023 fiscal year ended January 1, 2024.

The name, business address, and business telephone number of the current franchisees are
listed in Exhibit F to this Disclosure Document.

The name, city, state, and current business telephone number (or, if unknown, the last known
home telephone number) of the franchisee(s) who had a franchised Giordano’s® Restaurant
terminated, cancelled, not renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business
under the Franchise Agreement or who left the System during the most recently completed fiscal
year, or had not communicated with us within the last 10 weeks are listed in Exhibit G to this
Disclosure Document.

If you buy this Franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers
when you leave the franchise system.

We are not currently offering any existing franchised outlets to prospective franchisees,
including those that either have been reacquired by us or are still being operated by current
franchisees pending a transfer. If we begin to offer any such outlet, specific information about the
outlet will be provided to you in a separate supplement to this Disclosure Document.

In some instances, current and former franchisees sign provisions restricting their ability to
speak openly about their experience with the Giordano’s® System. You may wish to speak with
current and former franchisees, but be aware that not all such franchisees will be able to
communicate with you.

As of the date of this Disclosure Document, there were no trademark-specific franchisee
organizations associated with the Giordano’s® System.

ITEM 21
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Attached as Exhibit C to this Disclosure Document is our audited financial statements as of
January 1, 2024, January 2, 2023, and January 3, 2022 together with our unaudited interim balance
sheet and income statement for the period ended April 1, 2024.
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ITEM 22
CONTRACTS

The following contracts are attached to this Disclosure Document:

Exhibit A - Franchise Agreements with exhibits:
Location Acceptance Statement (Exhibit A)
Licensed Marks (Exhibit B)
Lease Term Requirements (Exhibit C)
Option for Assignment of Lease (Exhibit D)
Ownership/Management of Franchisee (Exhibit E)
Owners’ and Guarantors’ Undertaking (Exhibit F)

Exhibit B — Area Development Agreement
Exhibit D - Franchisee Approved Supplier and Distributor Assistance Agreement
Exhibit | - Franchise Compliance Certificate
ITEM 23
RECEIPTS

You will find two copies of a detachable Receipt in Exhibit K at the end of this Disclosure
Document. One Receipt must be signed, dated and delivered to us. The other Receipt should be

retained by you for your records.
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ILLINOIS STATE ADDENDUM TO
VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Item 5 of the Franchise Disclosure Document regarding the Initial Franchise Fee and the
Development Fee are amended and revised as follows:

The Illinois Attorney General’s Office has determined that we must assure our financial
ability to furnish goods and services to assist our franchisees in establishing and opening their
franchises by one of several means, at our option. As a result, the payment of the Initial Franchise
Fee will be deferred until you commence business at your Restaurant. The Illinois Attorney
General’s Office imposed this deferral requirement due to our financial condition.

Initial Franchise Fee

The Initial Franchise Fee for a single Limited-Service or Full-Service Restaurant is $40,000,
and is payable in full when you commence business at the Restaurant. A Restaurant that seats
approximately 0-20 customers or is between 900-1,800 square feet in area is a limited-service
restaurant (a “Limited-Service Restaurant”). A Restaurant that seats more than 20 customers or is
between 3,500-4,500 square feet in area is a full-service restaurant (a “Full-Service Restaurant™).
Unless otherwise specified, all references in this Disclosure Document to a Giordano’s® Restaurant
or a Restaurant will include a Limited-Service Restaurant and a Full-Service Restaurant. We charge
the Initial Franchise Fee uniformly to all franchisees. The Initial Franchise Fee is fully earned when
paid and non-refundable.

We currently require you to establish an inventory of, and purchase before the opening of
your Restaurant, certain specially formulated proprietary products, our secret Spice Blend and other
proprietary products, and Giordano’s® brand name products only from Americana (see Item 8 of
this Disclosure Document). The amount you are required to spend on these purchases will vary
depending on the size of your Restaurant, but they are estimated to range from $4,000 to $8,000 for
Limited-Service Restaurants and from $10,000 to $27,000 for Full-Service Restaurants, for the
initial opening of your Restaurant. Americana charges each Restaurant the same price for each
product required to be purchased from Americana. All payments to Americana are fully earned
when paid and non-refundable.

Development Fee

If you sign an Area Development Agreement, you must also pay us a non-refundable
Development Fee equal to $20,000 multiplied by the number of Restaurants that you must develop
under the Area Development Agreement. You will pay the Development Fee in full when you open
your first Restaurant in the Development Area.

You will sign a separate Franchise Agreement for each Restaurant you develop under the
Area Development Agreement and, in addition to the Development Fee, you must pay a non-
refundable Initial Franchise Fee for each Restaurant you develop in the Development Area. The
Initial Franchise Fee you are required to pay for each Restaurant will be the amount stated in the
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then-current form of Franchise Agreement executed in accordance with the Development Schedule,
less $20,000.

You will pay an Initial Franchise Fee for each Restaurant you develop according to the
Development Schedule in the Area Development Agreement. You must sign your first Franchise
Agreement for the first Restaurant in the Development Area when you sign the Area Development
Agreement. You must pay the Initial Franchise Fee for the first Restaurant in the Development
Area when you commence business at the Restaurant. You will pay the Initial Franchise Fee for
each subsequent Restaurant developed by you in the Development Area on the date required by the
terms of each then-current standard Franchise Agreement executed in accordance with the
Development Schedule.

Item 5 and Item 7 of the Franchise Disclosure Document are amended and revised by the addition
of the following language:

Payment of Initial Franchise Fees will be deferred until we have met our initial obligations
to you, and you have commenced doing business. This financial assurance requirement was
imposed by the Office of the Illinois Attorney General due to our financial condition. If you sign
an Area Development Agreement, the Development Fee is payable in full when you commence
business at the first Restaurant in your Development Area.

Item 17 of the Franchise Disclosure Document is amended and revised by the addition of the
following language:

Illinois law governs the franchise agreements.

In conformance with Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any provision in a
franchise agreement that designates jurisdiction and venue in a forum outside of the State of Illinois
is void. However, a franchise agreement may provide for arbitration to take place outside of
Illinois.

Franchisees rights upon termination and non-renewal are set forth in sections 19 and 20 of
the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act.

In conformance with Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any condition,
stipulation or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance
with the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i)
waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement,
or (i) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other
person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any
document executed in connection with the franchise.
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STATE OF MINNESOTA ADDENDUM TO
VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

The scope of release executed by you as a condition of renewal or assignment of the
franchised business will be limited by applicable law. Minn. Rule 2860.4400D prohibits us from
requiring you to assent to a release, assignment, novation or waiver that would relieve any person
from liability imposed by Minn. Stat. Secs. 80C.01 to 80C.22.

Item 5 of this Disclosure Document is amended to state that the payment of the initial
franchise fees will be deferred until you open your Restaurant.

We will comply with Minn. Stat. 880C.14, Subds. 3, 4, and 5 which require, except in
certain specified cases, that you be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and
180 days’ notice for nonrenewal of your franchise.

Minn. Stat. 880C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400J prohibit us from requiring litigation to be
conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver of a jury trial, or requiring you to consent to
liquidated damages, termination penalties or judgment notes.

We will protect your right to use our trademarks, service marks, trade names, logotypes and
commercial symbols, and will indemnify you from any loss, cost or expense arising out of a claim,
suit or demand regarding your authorized use of the Marks.

Nothing in this Disclosure Document or the agreements attached as exhibits to this
Disclosure Document can abrogate or reduce any of your rights as provided for in Minnesota
Statutes, Chapter 80C, or your rights to any procedure, forum or remedies provided for by the laws
of the jurisdiction.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i)
waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement,
or (i) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other
person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any
document executed in connection with the franchise.

2024 VVPC Pizza Franchise, LLC FDD 3
634012745



EXHIBIT A
VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
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VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC

®

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
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VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

THIS FRANCHISE AGREEMENT is made and entered into on the day of

, 20 (the “Effective Date”) by and between VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC,

(“Franchisor”) whose principal business address is 60 E. Superior Street, Suite 300, Chicago Illinois
60611, and (“Franchisee™) whose address is

, for the following

period, unless terminated earlier as provided herein:

O Initial Term: Period of ten (10) years commencing on and ending

O First Renewal Term: Period of five (5) years commencing on and ending

O Second Renewal Term: Period of five (5) years commencing on and ending
RECITALS

Franchisor has the right to construct, own, operate, supervise and exclusively franchise certain
outlets (referred to herein as “Restaurants”) that specialize in the preparation and sale of stuffed and thin-
crust pizza and other products (the products which Franchisee shall be required to sell at Franchisee’s
Restaurant are referred to herein as “Approved Products”) and in the performance and rendering of
services as are designated and approved from time to time by Franchisor (such services which Franchisee
will be required to perform to or render at Franchisee’s Restaurant are referred to herein as the “Approved
Services”) using the Marks and pursuant to the System, both as hereinafter defined.

Franchisor is the owner of, or licensed to use and sublicense, certain trade secrets and confidential
and proprietary information including, but not limited to:

1. The trade name, trademark and service mark “Giordano’s®” (collectively, the “Marks”),
and

2. Proprietary and secret recipes and formulae for the preparation of stuffed and thin-crust
pizza and other Approved Products; secret spice ingredients for the preparation of pizza dough and pizza
sauces for stuffed and thin-crust pizza and other Approved Products; know-how, trade secrets, formats,
designs, systems, methods, specifications, standards, procedures, a unique and readily recognizable
commercial symbol, a unique method and style of interior design, layout, signage and decoration, and a
unique and secret method of operating Restaurants serving stuffed and thin-crust pizza and other
Approved Products and providing Approved Services, all of which are designed to maintain a uniform
high quality of product, service and image, all of which may be improved, further developed or otherwise
modified from time to time by Franchisor (all of which are referred to herein as the “System”).

Franchisor has the right and authority to license the use of the name “Giordano’s®” and the other
Marks for use in connection with the System to selected persons, businesses or entities that will comply
with Franchisor’s uniformity requirements and quality standards. Franchisor intends, in the exercise of its
business judgment, to develop, use and control the use of the Marks in order to identify for the public the
source of the Approved Products and Approved Services marketed under the Marks using the System, and
to represent to the public the System’s high standards of quality, appearance, cleanliness and service.
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Franchisee recognizes that in order to better promote and enhance the value of the System, the
Marks, the Approved Products, the Approved Services, and the other products and services sold at the
Restaurants, and the goodwill associated therewith, this Agreement places detailed and substantial
obligations on Franchisee, including strict adherence to Franchisor’s present and future requirements
regarding products, services, advertising, physical facilities and related matters.

Franchisee is willing to undertake the investment and effort to establish and develop a franchised
Giordano’s® Restaurant (the “Giordano’s® Restaurant,” the “Restaurant” or the “Franchise”) and
personally to devote its full time and best efforts in the operation of the Restaurant using the unique
Giordano’s® System and the Marks and selling the Approved Products and rendering the Approved
Services.

Franchisee desires to develop, own and operate a Giordano’s® Restaurant in strict conformity
with the System and the uniformity requirements and quality standards, as may be established by
Franchisor from time to time, and all other terms of this Agreement. Franchisee acknowledges the
importance of, and the value to be derived by Franchisee, Franchisor, and other Giordano’s® franchisees
from the System, the Marks, uniformity of image among all Restaurants, and uniformity and consistency
of the Approved Products and Approved Services and other products sold and services rendered at all
Restaurants. Any required specifications, standards and operating procedures exist to protect Franchisor’s
interests in the System and the Marks and to create a uniform customer experience, and not for the
purpose of establishing any control or duty to take control over those matters that are reserved to
Franchisee.

Franchisor is desirous of granting Franchisee a license pursuant to which Franchisee will have the
right to operate a Giordano’s® Restaurant pursuant to Franchisor’s System at a location to be designated
pursuant to Section 4(A) of this Agreement and specified in the Location Addendum attached as Exhibit
A hereto.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which
is hereby acknowledged and in further consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained
herein, Franchisor and Franchisee agree as follows:

1. GRANT OF LICENSE AND TERRITORY

A. Grant of License. Subject to the terms, conditions and limitations elsewhere in this
Agreement, Franchisor hereby grants to Franchisee during the License Term (as defined herein below) a
nontransferable personal license (the “License”) to use at the address specified in the Location Addendum
to be executed by Franchisor and Franchisee in the form of Exhibit A attached hereto, the Marks as
described in Exhibit B attached hereto (which Marks may be amended or modified from time to time) and
to market, sell and provide the Approved Products and to perform and render the Approved Services in
accordance with Franchisor’s System (which System may be modified from time to time). The Approved
Products and Approved Services are the only products and services authorized to be offered at the
Restaurant. As Approved Products and Approved Services are introduced by Franchisor into the System
or are deleted from the System, Franchisor will give notice of the time and manner of introduction or
deletion. Franchisee obtains no right, title or interest in the System, the Marks, or the Approved Products
and Approved Services other than the right expressly granted in this Section 1(A) to use them in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement. The License granted in this Section shall expire on
termination of this Agreement whether by expiration of time, by act of Franchisor, as a result of
Franchisee’s default, or otherwise.
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B. Limitations on License. The License does not include any right to sell any product for
resale or the right to prepare or sell any product that is not an Approved Product, or provide any service
that is not an Approved Service at or from any location except the specific address designated in the
Location Addendum. Franchisee may not use the System or the Marks licensed hereunder at any location
other than the specific address designated in the Location Addendum; nor may Franchisee prepare or sell
Approved Products or any other product substantially similar thereto at or from any location other than
the specific address designated in the Location Addendum or on the Internet; nor may Franchisee perform
or render the Approved Services or serve Restaurant customers at or from any location other than the
specific address designated in the Location Addendum. Franchisee’s failure to adhere to these terms shall
be a material breach of this Agreement and shall give Franchisor, in addition to all other rights and
remedies hereunder, the right to terminate this Agreement.

C. Delivery. Although Franchisee may accept telephone orders for delivery of Approved
Products originating from the Site (as defined in Section 4(A) of this Agreement) to a destination within
the “Delivery Area” determined by Franchisor as defined in the Location Addendum, the License does
not include the exclusive right to deliver Approved Products within the “Territory” designated in the
attached Location Addendum. Franchisee agrees to indemnify and hold Franchisor harmless for any
claims or liability arising out of disputes with respect to delivery service and/or advertising that may cross
over the boundaries defining Franchisee’s Territory.

D. Restaurant Name. Franchisee agrees that the Restaurant herein licensed shall be called
“Giordano’s®” without any suffix or prefix attached thereto and shall have signs, advertising and slogans
which shall have been approved by Franchisor and which denote that the Restaurant is hamed only
“Giordano’s®” and shall have no signs, advertising or slogans not so approved in writing by Franchisor.
Franchisee will comply with all local, state and national governmental requirements in filing the
appropriate agency notice of the fact that it is doing business as “Giordano’s®.”

E. Exclusivity. During the License Term, and provided Franchisee is in full compliance
with this Agreement, Franchisor shall not operate or grant a Franchise for the operation of another
Giordano’s® Restaurant at any location within the Territory (if any) described or stated in the Location
Addendum during the term of this Agreement, unless Franchisor first provides Franchisee with the right
of first refusal described in Section 1(G) below. Notwithstanding anything to contrary herein, Franchisor
retains the right to conduct sales at special events such as, but not limited to, fairs or food-fests which
may be located within the Territory, but only after giving Franchisee notice that Franchisor will conduct
such sales after Franchisee has elected not to participate in the event, and further excepting that
Franchisor retains the right to conduct marketing tests in the Territory. Franchisor need not provide
Franchisee with any right of first refusal for operations at such special events. In addition, Franchisor
retains the sole and exclusive right to market its stuffed and thin crust pizza and other products through
grocery outlets, the Internet, airports, shopping centers, food courts, stadiums, military installations,
public carriers, and any other channels of distribution (including, but not limited to, airplanes, trains, and
cruise lines), which may originate in or service Franchisee’s Territory. Additionally, and not by way of
limitation, Franchisor retains the exclusive right to ship its stuffed and thin crust pizza and other
Approved Products, whether such orders for shipment are received by telephone, facsimile transmission,
Internet communication or otherwise, and without regard to the origination of the order or destination of
the shipped product.

F. Exceptions. Other than as expressly provided above, it is expressly understood and
agreed by and between Franchisor and Franchisee that (1) Franchisee does not have any “exclusive,”
“protected” or “reserved” territorial or similar rights; (2) Franchisor (on behalf of itself and its affiliates)
retains all rights with respect to Giordano’s® Restaurants, the Marks and the sale of products and
services, anywhere in the world including, without limitation: (a) the right to operate or grant others the
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right to operate Giordano’s® Restaurants at such locations anywhere outside the Territory regardless of
its proximity to Franchisee’s Restaurant, and on such terms and conditions as Franchisor, in its sole
discretion, deems appropriate; (b) the right to develop, manufacture, distribute, rent and/or sell products,
whether competitive or not and whether identified by the Marks or otherwise, through any channel of
distribution within or outside the Territory, and/or grant others such right; (c) the right to develop, market,
distribute, rent and/or sell any other product or service or own or operate any other business under the
Marks or any other trademark; and (d) the right to own, operate, manage, franchise and/or license other
restaurant concepts anywhere in the world if Franchisor or an affiliate derives its ownership or other
interest in such restaurants as a part of an acquisition or purchase of the ownership or assets of another
entity.

G. Right of First Refusal. If Franchisor desires to operate or grant a Franchise for the
operation of another Giordano’s® Restaurant at any location within the Territory (if any) described or
stated in the Location Addendum during the term of this Agreement and if Franchisee is in full
compliance with this Agreement and any other agreement with Franchisor, Franchisor must give
Franchisee not less than thirty (30) days prior written notice of such proposed transaction. Said notice
may specify, among other things, the planned location for the new Giordano’s® Restaurant and the price,
terms, and other conditions relevant to the proposed transaction. Franchisee shall have the option,
exercisable within fifteen (15) days after receipt of such notice, to irrevocably agree in writing to pursue
the same transaction for the same price and upon the same terms and conditions as set forth in the notice.
If Franchisee waives or does not timely exercise its right of first refusal, then Franchisor may complete
the proposed transaction without Franchisee’s involvement.

2. LICENSE TERM AND RENEWAL OPTIONS

The License granted pursuant to this Agreement is for a period of time known as the “License
Term.” The total of all potential License Terms granted under all Franchise Agreements by and between
Franchisee and Franchisor shall be for a total of twenty (20) years.

A. Initial License Term. An Initial License Term shall be granted upon execution of the
first Franchise Agreement entered into by and between Franchisee and Franchisor, for a period of ten (10)
years, subject however, to earlier termination as provided for in this Agreement.

B. Renewal Terms. After the expiration of the Initial License Term, Franchisee shall have
two (2) options to renew the License for a period of five (5) years each (“Renewal Terms”). Franchisee
may exercise each renewal option by giving written notice thereof to Franchisor not more than eighteen
(18) months and not less than one (1) year prior to the expiration of the Initial License Term or the First
Renewal Term, whichever is applicable. The applicable Renewal Term shall commence upon expiration
of the Initial License Term or the First Renewal Term, and execution of the then-current Franchise
Agreement and ancillary agreements, subject however, to earlier termination as provided for in this
Agreement.

The grant of each Renewal Term is contingent upon Franchisee’s compliance with the notice
requirement set forth above and with Franchisee’s further compliance with the following additional
requirements:

@ At the time the renewal option is exercised and at the anticipated commencement of the
Renewal Term, Franchisee shall be in good standing and in full compliance and shall not be in default
under this Agreement, a previous Franchise Agreement or any other agreement or obligation Franchisee
may have with or to Franchisor or any other affiliate of Franchisor;
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2 Franchisee agrees to make capital expenditures that may be reasonably required to
renovate and modernize the Restaurant and its signs and equipment as required by Franchisor to reflect
the then-current Giordano’s® Restaurant image;

3 If renovation and modernization of the Restaurant are not feasible or Franchisee is unable
to maintain possession of the Restaurant premises, Franchisee must relocate the Restaurant within the
Territory, or such other area that Franchisor approves in writing in accordance with this Agreement and
Franchisor’s relocation procedures;

(@)) At the time of renewal, Franchisee must execute a new Franchise Agreement and such
ancillary agreements as Franchisor then customarily uses to grant Giordano’s® Restaurant franchises
(with appropriate modifications and/or designations to reflect the grant of a Renewal Term for a period of
five (5) years), which agreements may contain fees and other provisions that differ from those contained
in this Agreement;

5) Franchisee pays Franchisor a renewal fee in an amount equal to fifteen percent (15%) of
the then-current Initial Franchise Fee charged by Franchisor at the time Franchisee executes such new
Franchise Agreement for a five (5) year period;

(6) At the time the renewal option is exercised and at the time such renewal is expected to
commence, all money obligations owed to Franchisor, any affiliate of Franchisor and any suppliers must
be current and must have been current at all times during the preceding twelve (12) months;

@) Franchisee must not have engaged in repeated breaches of this Agreement or any other
agreement with Franchisor within the preceding twenty-four (24) months; and

(8) Franchisee must furnish Franchisor with a copy of the lease for the Site indicating a lease
term including options, at least as long as the Renewal Term.

Franchisor may refuse to renew the License Term if Franchisee fails to satisfy any of the
conditions described above.

If Franchisee continues to operate the Restaurant after the expiration of the Initial License Term
or after the expiration of a Renewal Term without exercising its option to renew, Franchisee shall be
deemed to be in default and operating on a month-to-month basis under the terms and conditions of the
franchise agreement then being offered to a new Giordano’s® franchisees, subject, however, to
Franchisor’s right to immediately terminate the License upon delivery of written notice to Franchisee.

If local law requires that Franchisor give notice to Franchisee prior to the expiration of any term
hereof, this Agreement shall remain in effect on a month-to-month basis following such expiration until
Franchisor has given Franchisee the notice required by law.

3. FEES

A Initial Franchise Fee. In consideration of the foregoing grant of the License, Franchisee
shall pay to Franchisor an Initial Franchise Fee in the amount of Forty Thousand Dollars ($40,000) for a
Giordano’s® Limited-Service or Full-Service Restaurant. A Restaurant at a Site which seats up to twenty
(20) customers or is between nine hundred (900) and eighteen hundred (1,800) square feet in area is a
limited-service restaurant (a “Limited-Service Restaurant”). A Restaurant at a Site which seats more than
twenty (20) customers or is between thirty-five hundred (3,500) and forty-five hundred (4,500) square
feet in area is a full-service restaurant (a “Full-Service Restaurant”).
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The License granted by Franchisor to Franchisee by this Agreement is for a (check one):
Limited-Service Restaurant
Full-Service Restaurant

The Initial Franchise Fee shall be paid to Franchisor in full, by cashier’s or certified check (or
other form of payment reasonably acceptable to Franchisor) at the time of Franchisee’s delivery to
Franchisor of two (2) executed copies of this Agreement. The Initial Franchise Fee shall be deemed fully
earned by Franchisor upon Franchisor’s delivery to Franchisee of a copy of this Agreement executed by
Franchisor. Subsequent to Franchisor’s execution of this Agreement, the Initial Franchise Fee shall not
be refunded, in whole or in part, unless otherwise provided herein. References in this Agreement to the
“Giordano’s® Restaurant” or the “Restaurant” include Franchisee’s Limited-Service Restaurant or Full-
Service Restaurant, whichever is applicable.

B. Continuing License Fee. In further consideration of the foregoing grant of License,
Franchisee shall, without notice from Franchisor, pay to Franchisor on a weekly basis a non-refundable
Continuing License Fee in an amount equal to six percent (6%) of Franchisee’s weekly Gross Revenues
(“Gross Revenues” is defined below) commencing on the first day of operation of the Restaurant. On or
before Wednesday of each week (Monday through Sunday), Franchisee shall, without notice from
Franchisor, pay to Franchisor the Continuing License Fee for the preceding week. Each such payment
shall be accompanied by a statement of daily Gross Revenues, which shall be described in such form and
detail as may be required and prescribed by Franchisor from time to time, and shall be certified by
Franchisee as true, complete and correct, and shall be delivered to Franchisor’s principal business
address. Franchisor reserves the right to change the time and manner of the Continuing License Fee and
Advertising Fee payments upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to Franchisee.

C. Advertising Fee. In further consideration of the foregoing grant of the License,
Franchisee shall, without notice from Franchisor, pay to Franchisor or its designee a nonrefundable
Advertising Fee in an amount equal to a percentage of Franchisee’s Gross Revenues. The percentage
shall be determined by Franchisor from time to time, but shall not exceed three percent (3%) of Gross
Revenues. The Advertising Fee shall be payable at the same time and in the same manner as the
Continuing License Fee. Franchisor will give Franchisee not less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of the percentage to be charged, or of any change in the percentage to be charged. All Advertising
Fees will be accounted for separately from Franchisor’s other funds and administered by Franchisor. The
Advertising Fee shall be used for national and/or regional advertising, publicity and promotion relating to
Giordano’s® Restaurants. Franchisor alone will determine, in its fully unrestricted discretion, the manner
in which the Advertising Fee will be expended. Some portion of the Advertising Fee may be used for
production of marketing surveys, research and development, image, design, test marketing, donations in
the form of Giordano’s® gift certificates and/or Approved Products, and for the development, production,
publication and distribution of advertising and promotional materials which, in the sole discretion of
Franchisor, will most advance the unique Giordano’s® System or the Approved Products and Approved
Services. Franchisor may also use some portion of the Advertising Fee to advertise and promote the
Marks and name recognition, regionally and/or nationally and for the development and administration of
a gift card program for Giordano’s® Restaurants. Franchisor shall direct all such advertising activities
with sole discretion over the selection of the advertising agencies and public relations firms and over
creative concepts, materials and media used and the placement and allocation thereof. Franchisor shall
have the right to determine, in its sole discretion, the composition of all geographic and market areas for
the implementation of such advertising and promotional activities.
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D. Use of Advertising Fees. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that the Advertising Fees
are intended to maximize general public recognition of the Marks and patronage of all Giordano’s®
Restaurants. Franchisor will undertake no obligation to ensure that expenditures of the Advertising Fees
in or affecting any geographic area are proportionate or equivalent to payments of Advertising Fees by
franchisees operating in that geographic area or that any Giordano’s® Restaurant will benefit directly
from or in proportion to the Advertising Fees paid by it from the development of advertising and
marketing materials or the placement of advertising. Franchisee acknowledges that its failure to derive
any such benefit will not serve as a basis for a reduction or elimination of its obligation to pay its
Advertising Fee. Franchisor assumes no direct or indirect liability or obligation to Franchisee with
respect to the maintenance, direction or administration of Advertising Fees.

E. Administrative Costs. Franchisor reserves the right to reimburse itself out of the
Advertising Fees for the total actual costs (including indirect costs) of developing, producing and
distributing any advertising materials, administering regional and multi-regional advertising programs,
and collecting and holding the Advertising Fees (“Administrative Costs”). Such reimbursement for
Administrative Costs shall include, without limitation, attorneys’, auditors’ and accountants’ fees, tax
liabilities and other expenses incurred in connection with administering, accounting for and collecting any
Advertising Fees, as well as the proportionate share of Franchisor’s office rent, overhead and
compensation for Franchisor’s employees who devote time and render services in connection with the
development of advertising, collections and administration of the Advertising Fees. On an annual basis,
Franchisor will limit the amount of Advertising Fees used to pay Administrative Costs to seventeen
percent (17%) of the total Advertising Fees spent during such annual period.

F. Advertising Agency Services. In addition to Franchisor’s Administrative Costs
described in the preceding paragraph, Franchisor may hire, and pay from the Advertising Fees, an
advertising agency, public relations firm or similar source to formulate, develop, produce and conduct the
advertising and promotional programs. Franchisor also reserves the right to undertake and provide such
services in-house.

G. Waiver of Advertising Fee. Franchisor reserves the right from time to time, by notice to
Franchisee, to waive all or part of the continuing Advertising Fee during or in respect to any period in
which Franchisor’s sales promotions program is or will be inactive, but any such waiver is without
prejudice to Franchisor’s right to reinstate the continuing Advertising Fee, prospectively, by prior written
notice to Franchisee, in connection with or in anticipation of reactivation of the program. Franchisor
reserves the right to defer or reduce contributions of any Giordano’s® franchisee. An unaudited
statement of the Advertising Fees will be prepared annually by Franchisor and will be made available to
Franchisee upon request. Franchisor may, from time to time, cause the Advertising Fees to be audited,
but it has no obligation to do so.

H. Gross Revenues.

(1) No mention of products or services in this Section is intended to mean or imply that such
products or services are approved for sale at a Restaurant.

(2 For purpose of this Agreement, “Gross Revenues” includes all sales, monies, revenues,
charges, and receipts received by Franchisee including, for purposes thereof, such sales, monies,
revenues, charges, and receipts received by any other person which are derived from products prepared or
sold and services performed at the Restaurant whether or not paid to or received by Franchisee, at special
events or from catering and from all sales and orders made, solicited or received at the Restaurant or at
special events and from all other business whatsoever conducted at or from the Restaurant or related in
any way to the Restaurant including, but not limited to, pick-up and delivery of products, and whether

2024 VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC FA 7
63404914v2



such revenues are evidenced by cash, credit (and regardless of collection in the case of credit), checks,
gift certificates, scrip, coupons, services, property or other means of exchange, and whether such sales are
of food, beverages, tobacco products, vending or coin operated machine items, services, merchandise or
products of any nature whatsoever. However, Gross Revenues shall not include (a) sales taxes or other
taxes measured on the basis of the Gross Revenues of the business imposed by governmental authorities
directly on sales and collected from customers, provided the taxes are added to the selling price and are in
fact, paid by Franchisee to the appropriate governmental authorities (“Sales Taxes”); or (b) promotional
discounts or coupons authorized in writing by Franchisor not to exceed five percent (5%) of weekly Gross
Revenues (the “Discount”). Franchisor may increase the Discount from time to time for special
promotions it approves.

3 Gross Revenues shall be deemed received by Franchisee at the time any payment or
promise of payment is received by Franchisee, whether such payment represents an installment or partial
payment or payment in full for any of the products, merchandise or services sold, contracted for or
rendered. Gross Revenues consisting of property or services shall be valued at the prices applicable, at
the time such Gross Revenues are received, to the products or services exchanged for such Gross
Revenues.

(@) Franchisee shall report Gross Revenues to Franchisor at the time of payment of the
Continuing License Fee and Advertising Fee on such form and in such detail as may be prescribed from
time to time by Franchisor, and at the same time Franchisee shall deliver to Franchisor all guest checks
and customer order tickets as Franchisor may from time to time require.

I Closure of Restaurant. If Franchisee closes its Restaurant or ceases to operate its
Restaurant for any period of time, whether voluntarily or involuntarily even if the closure or cessation of
operation of the Restaurant is the result of events beyond Franchisee’s control, such as fire, natural
disaster, act of God, riot, or civil war, Franchisee shall, nevertheless, continue to pay Franchisor the
Continuing License Fee and Advertising Fee each week as provided in Sections 3(B) and 3(C) herein. If
there are no actual Gross Revenues during any week during which the Restaurant is closed, then
Franchisee’s Gross Revenues for such week shall be deemed to be the average weekly Gross Revenues
for the most recent fifty-two (52) weeks during which Franchisee’s Restaurant was open preceding the
closure of the Restaurant. If Franchisee’s Restaurant was not open for fifty-two (52) weeks prior to the
closure, then Franchisee’s Gross Revenues for such week shall be deemed to the average weekly Gross
Revenues for all of the weeks Franchisee’s Restaurant was open for business preceding the closure. If
Franchisee’s Restaurant was not open for business for at least seven (7) days prior to the closure of the
Restaurant, Franchisee’s Gross Revenues for such week shall be deemed to be Franchisee’s average daily
Gross Revenues on those days in such week during which the Restaurant was fully open multiplied by
seven (7).

J. Interest on Late Payments; Administrative Fee. To encourage prompt and timely
payment of Continuing License Fees, Advertising Fees and any and all other sums which Franchisee may
owe to Franchisor from time to time pursuant to the terms hereof, and to cover the costs and expenses
involved in handling and processing of any payments not received by their due dates, Franchisee shall
also pay, upon demand, a late payment charge in an amount equal to the lesser of (i) interest of the late
payment at the rate of two percent (2%) per month, compounded monthly, or (ii) the highest rate of
interest permitted by law. Such interest charge shall accrue from the date payment was due until the date
payment is actually received by Franchisor. Franchisee will also pay Franchisor an Administrative Fee of
One Hundred Dollars ($100) for each delinquent payment within ten (10) days after the delinquent
payment was due. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each failure to pay Continuing License Fees,
Advertising Fees or other payments payable to Franchisor when due will be a material breach of this
Agreement.
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K. Application of Payments. Franchisor shall have sole discretion to apply any payments
received from Franchisee to any past due indebtedness of Franchisee for Continuing License Fees,
Advertising Fees, purchases from Franchisor or its affiliates, late payment charges or any other
indebtedness of Franchisee to Franchisor or its affiliates. Franchisor may receive, endorse deposit, or
otherwise collect any payment from Franchisee and apply such payment in Franchisor’s discretion,
notwithstanding the insertion by Franchisee of a restrictive endorsement on such payment or the tendering
by Franchisee of such payment on or subject to any condition, and no restrictive endorsement on or
conditional submission by Franchisee of any payment shall be binding on Franchisor.

L. Payment Offsets. Franchisor may set off from any amounts that Franchisor or its
affiliates may owe Franchisee any amount that Franchisee owes to Franchisor or its affiliates including,
without limitation, Continuing License Fees, Advertising Fees, late payment interest, amounts owed to
Franchisor or its affiliates for the purchase of goods or services, or for any other reason. However,
Franchisee does not have the right to offset payments owed to Franchisor or its affiliates for amounts
purportedly due to Franchisee or for any other reason.

4. LOCATION OF RESTAURANT; LEASE; CONSTRUCTION; OPENING
FOR BUSINESS

A Location of Restaurant. A Giordano’s® Restaurant Franchise is granted only for a
single designated location. If the location for the Restaurant has not been specified at the time of the
execution of this Agreement by Franchisor and Franchisee, Franchisee shall, upon the execution of this
Agreement, use its best efforts and proceed with diligence to obtain and designate a specific location for
the Restaurant, which Site will be subject to Franchisor’s written evaluation. (A site evaluated by
Franchisor is referred to in this provision as a “Site.”) Upon Franchisor’s evaluation of a Site, Franchisor
and Franchisee shall execute the Location Addendum which shall be deemed to be incorporated herein
and made a part of this Agreement. Franchisee acknowledges that the Site of the Restaurant is a major
factor in the Restaurant’s potential for success. Franchisee also acknowledges that the evaluation by
Franchisor of any Site shall not in any way be deemed to be a guaranty, warranty or any other assurance
(expressed or implied) of the success of Franchisee’s Restaurant at such Site. If within six (6) months
after the execution date of this Agreement by Franchisor if the Restaurant is a Limited-Service Restaurant
or within nine (9) months after the execution date of this Agreement by Franchisor if the Restaurant is a
Full-Service Restaurant, a Site for the Restaurant has not been located by Franchisee and evaluated by
Franchisor and a lease for the Site has not been executed by Franchisee (or possession of the Site for the
Restaurant has not been otherwise legally acquired by Franchisee), then this Agreement shall
automatically terminate. The Initial Franchise Fee paid by Franchisee shall not be refunded, in whole or
in part, under any circumstances.

B. Site _Information. Franchisee shall submit to Franchisor a complete Site report
(containing such demographics; commercial and other information and photographs as Franchisor may
reasonably require) for each Site at which Franchisee proposes to establish and operates a Giordano’s®
Restaurant (the “Site Information”), and which Franchisee reasonably believes to conform to certain
minimum site selection criteria established by Franchisor from time to time. In evaluating any proposed
Site, Franchisor will consider such matters as it deems material, including without limitation,
demographic characteristics, population, household income, traffic patterns, parking, the predominant
character of the neighborhood, competition from other businesses providing similar services with the area
(including other Giordano’s® Restaurants), the proximity to other businesses, the exclusivity granted to
other franchisees of Franchisor, the nature of other businesses in proximity to the Site and other
commercial characteristics (including the purchase price or rental obligations and other base terms for the
proposed Site) and the size, appearance, and other physical characteristics of the proposed Site.

2024 VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC FA 9
63404914v2



C. Evaluation of Site. Franchisee hereby acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor’s
evaluation of a Site does not constitute an assurance, representation or warranty of any kind, express or
implied, as to the suitability of the Site for a Giordano’s® Restaurant or any other purpose. Franchisor’s
evaluation of the Site indicates only that Franchisor believes the Site complies with acceptable minimum
criteria established by Franchisor solely for its purposes as of the time of the evaluation. Both Franchisee
and Franchisor acknowledge that application of criteria that have been effective with respect to other Sites
may not be predictive of potential for all Sites and that, subsequent to Franchisor’s evaluation of a Site,
demographic and/or economic factors, such as competition from other similar businesses, included or
excluded form Franchisor’s criteria could change, thereby altering the potential of a Site. Such factors are
unpredictable and are beyond Franchisor’s control. Franchisor shall not be responsible for the failure of a
Site evaluated by Franchisor to meet Franchisee’s expectations as to revenue or operational criteria.
Franchisee further acknowledges and agrees that its decision to operate a Giordano’s® Restaurant at the
Site is based on its own independent investigation of the suitability of the Site.

D. Notice of No Obijection. Franchisor will evaluate Franchisee’s proposed Site by delivery
of a written notice of no objection letter to Franchisee before Franchisee acquires legal possession of a
proposed Site for the Restaurant. Franchisor will endeavor to deliver a written notification to Franchisee
within thirty (30) days after receipt by Franchisor of the Site Information requested by Franchisor
containing all information and materials required by Franchisor. Notwithstanding any other provision of
this Agreement, Franchisor’s failure to provide Franchisee with a written notice of no objection letter to
one or more proposed Sites shall in no event constitute a waiver of Franchisor’s right to evaluate the
proposed Sites for the Restaurant, nor does it constitute the approval by Franchisor of a proposed Site.

E. Lease of Premises of Restaurant. Franchisee shall not execute any lease or sublease for
the premises of the Site for the Restaurant without Franchisor’s prior review and written notification that
Franchisor does not object to such lease or sublease. Franchisee will also have the lease reviewed by its
legal counsel. Franchisor’s review of the lease will not be for the purpose of approving the legality,
economics or rental terms of the lease. Accordingly, Franchisor will have no responsibility to Franchisee
regarding the economics, legality or enforceability of the lease. Concurrently with the execution of the
lease for the premises, Franchisee and the lessor must enter into an addendum to the lease in the form
attached hereto as Exhibit C. Furthermore, Franchisor may object to any lease which does not include
terms and conditions acceptable to Franchisor, including any lease in which the lessor refuses to enter
into, concurrently with the execution of such lease, an “Option for Assignment of Lease” in form and
substance as provided for in Exhibit D attached hereto.

F. Affiliated Lessor. If the Restaurant is to be leased or subleased by Franchisee from an
entity or person affiliated in any way with Franchisee then, in addition to other reasons for Franchisor to
object to the lease, Franchisor may object if the lease contains terms which (1) render it difficult or
impossible for Franchisor to assume the lease pursuant to the Option for Assignment of Lease (including
the absence of appropriate non-disturbance agreements from mortgagors or ground lessors) or (2) should
Franchisor assume the lease pursuant to the Option for Assignment of Lease, would be disadvantageous
to Franchisor for reasons including, but not limited to, economic or other terms which are not comparable
to the terms of similar leases in the comparable or appropriate geographic area which could be obtained
through arms’ length negotiations between unrelated parties of equal bargaining power. In addition, if the
Site for Franchisee’s Restaurant is owned by Franchisee or an entity or person affiliated in any way with
Franchisee, then Franchisee will be required to enter into a lease with the owner of the Site, which lease
will not be amendable without Franchisor’s consent and will not be terminable without either
Franchisor’s consent or allowing Franchisor to assume the lease.

G. Execution of Lease. Franchisee shall deliver copies of the fully-executed lease
(including all exhibits) and other controlling documents relating to the leasing or subleasing of the Site
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for the Restaurant to Franchisor within fifteen (15) days after execution. Franchisee further agrees that it
will not execute or agree to any modification of the lease or sublease (or other document relating to the
Site) which would affect Franchisor’s rights without the prior written approval of Franchisor. Signed
copies of all amendments, assignments or renewals of the lease or sublease for the Site must be provided
to Franchisor within fifteen (15) days after execution.

H. Possession of Site. If Franchisee shall have failed to obtain lawful possession of the Site
for the Restaurant (through acquisition or lease) within sixty (60) days after delivery of Franchisor’s
notice of no objection letter, Franchisor may at its sole discretion, withdraw its non-objection to such Site.
Further, in the event a lease which has been reviewed by Franchisor has not been executed by Franchisee
(or legal possession through acquisition has not occurred) within six (6) months for a Limited-Service
Restaurant or within nine (9) months for a Full-Service Restaurant after the execution date of this
Agreement by Franchisor, this Agreement shall automatically terminate. The Initial Franchise Fee shall
not be refunded under any circumstances.

I Site Release. Franchisor will have no duty or obligation to assist Franchisee in the
selection of the Site for the Restaurant, or to provide any assistance to Franchisee in the purchase or lease
of the Site. Franchisor has informed Franchisee that it does not have any experience or expertise in
selecting real estate sites in the geographic area where Franchisee’s Restaurant will be located and
therefore, Franchisor will not have any obligation, duty or liability to Franchisee as a result of the Site
selected by Franchisee. Franchisee hereby releases Franchisor and its current and former affiliates and
their respective past and present owners, officers, directors, executives, agents and employees, in their
corporate and individual capacities, from any and all claims by Franchisee arising from, in connection
with, or as a result of Franchisee’s selection, purchase or lease of the Site for Franchisee’s Restaurant.

J. Construction Plans _and Specifications. Franchisor will consult with Franchisee
regarding the construction of the interior and exterior of the Restaurant or interior leasehold
improvements. Franchisor will provide Franchisee with preliminary model plans and specifications based
upon typical configurations for the layout of the Restaurant. Franchisee must construct (or renovate) and
equip the Restaurant in a good and workmanlike manner and in conformity with all laws, rules,
regulations and requirements of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Restaurant and in
accordance with plans and specifications prepared by Franchisee and approved in writing by Franchisor.
All plans and specifications or modifications to Franchisor’s preliminary model plans and specifications
proposed by Franchisee must be submitted to Franchisor for written approval prior to the commencement
of construction and must be modified as Franchisor requests. Costs of contractor plans and specifications
are the responsibility of Franchisee. Franchisee will forthwith cause any mechanics’ liens, material men’s
liens or other liens which may be recorded or perfected or which may otherwise attach to all or any
portion of the Restaurant as a result of work done by or for Franchisee to be discharged or released of
record or (with Franchisor’s prior written consent) be bonded in amounts and on terms reasonably
satisfactory to Franchisor.

K. Opening of Restaurant. Franchisee shall open the Restaurant for business as follows:

(D) If the Site requires the installation of Improvements (as hereinafter defined), then
Franchisee shall open the Restaurant for business upon completion thereof, provided, however, that
Franchisee shall not delay the completion of the Improvements; provided further, that (subject only to
force majeure) Franchisee shall open the Restaurant for business not later than: (a) nine (9) months after
the execution date of this Agreement by Franchisor if the Restaurant is a Limited Service Restaurant, or
(b) twelve (12) months after the execution date of this Agreement by Franchisor if the Restaurant is a
Full-Service Restaurant; and provided further, Franchisor may, in its sole discretion, grant Franchisee an
additional period of no more than six (6) months for Franchisee to open the Restaurant for business if
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Franchisor has issued a written notice of no objection letter to Franchisee and Franchisee has acquired
legal possession of the Site for the Restaurant; or

(2 If the Site does not require the installation of Improvements, then Franchisee shall open
the Restaurant as soon as practicable after receiving possession of the Restaurant premises; provided,
however, that Franchisee shall not delay taking delivery of possession of the Site; or

3 If the Site is being developed pursuant to an Area Development Agreement or other
written agreement between Franchisor and Franchisee or Franchisee’s affiliate, then Franchisee shall open
the Restaurant for business on the date specified in the Area Development Agreement or other written
agreement between the parties.

(@) In the event the Restaurant is not open for business on or before the time provided for
above, Franchisor may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to Franchisee
unless the Restaurant shall open for business pursuant to the terms of this Agreement within such thirty
(30) day period.

(5) For purposes of this Section 4(K), “Improvements” shall mean and include all
improvements necessary or required to operate a Giordano’s® Restaurant including, but not limited to,
electrical, plumbing, and carpentry work, floor treatments, heating, ventilating, and air conditioning,
ceiling and sheet metal work, parking lot, exterior lighting, and landscaping improvements.

(6) In no event shall the Restaurant be opened for business until: (a) all Franchisee’s
obligations under this Section 4 have been fulfilled; (b) Franchisor determines that the Restaurant has
been constructed, decorated, furnished, equipped and stocked with materials and supplies in accordance
with plans and specifications Franchisor has approved; (c) the initial training program has been completed
to Franchisor’s satisfaction by all required persons; (d) the Initial Franchise Fee and all other amounts due
to Franchisor have been paid; (e) Franchisee has furnished Franchisor with all certificates of insurance
required by Section 10(Z) herein; (f) Franchisee has obtained all required governmental permits, licenses
and authorizations necessary for the operation of the Restaurant; (g) Franchisee is in full compliance with
all the terms of this Agreement; and (h) all items in Franchisor’s opening checklist have been complied
with to Franchisor’s satisfaction.

L. Relocation. Provided Franchisee is not in default of this Agreement, Franchisee may, at
its sole expense and with the prior written approval of Franchisor, relocate the Restaurant if: (a) the
proposed new location for the Restaurant meets Franchisor’s requirements as set forth in this Agreement;
and (b) Franchisee’s new Territory and Delivery Area, as redefined in the Addendum to this Agreement
based upon Franchisor’s then-current criteria for defining same, does not infringe upon (i) the market area
of any existing or proposed Giordano’s® Restaurant or any other Restaurant owned or operated by
Franchisor or any of its affiliates; or (ii) any protected area granted to any other Giordano’s® franchisee.
The new location of the Restaurant, including the real estate and the building, must comply with
Franchisor’s then-current image, décor, standards and specifications. Franchisee will pay Franchisor a
Relocation Fee equal to 50% of the then-current Initial Franchise Fee on the date Franchisor approves
Franchisee’s right to relocate the Restaurant to the new location.

5. GENERAL MANAGER; TRAINING

A General Manager. The Restaurant must at all times be under the direct, day-to-day, full
time supervision of the General Manager as described below and designated in Exhibit E of this
Agreement and approved by Franchisor. Franchisee’s “General Manager” will be the individual
responsible for the overall management and operation of Franchisee’s Giordano’s® Restaurant including,
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but not limited to, administration, basic operations, marketing, record keeping, employee staffing and
training, inventory control, hiring and firing, food preparation and maintenance of the Restaurant. The
General Manager is obligated to devote his or her full time, best efforts and constant personal attention to
the operation of the Restaurant. The General Manager must have full authority from Franchisee to
implement the System at the Restaurant. If a General Manager supervises the Restaurant, Franchisee (or
managing partner or senior officer of Franchisee who has satisfactorily completed the training required by
Franchisor) must remain active in overseeing the operations of the Restaurant conducted under the
supervision of the General Manager.

(D) If Franchisee is a sole proprietorship, then the proprietor must engage actively and
personally in the management and supervision of the Restaurant and its operations and act as the General
Manager for the Restaurant.

(2 If Franchisee is a partnership, then partners owning at least a majority interest in the
capital and profits of the partnership must engage actively and personally in the management of the
Restaurant. Franchisee must designate one partner as the General Manager for the Restaurant.

3 If Franchisee is an entity, then it must designate as the General Manager a person who
owns at least ten percent (10%) of the ownership of the entity who is a senior officer of the entity. The
designated General Manager will sign this Agreement as an owner of Franchisee and the Owners’ and
Guarantors’ Undertaking attached as an exhibit to this Agreement.

The General Manager must be approved in writing in advance by Franchisor and must manage
and supervise the operations of the Restaurant and assure compliance by Franchisee and its personnel
with this Agreement. The General Manager must obtain certification in the current food safety
requirements from the applicable local regulatory authority, and such other equivalent food safety
certifications as may be required by Franchisor, at least thirty (30) days prior to the scheduled opening of
the Restaurant, and must continue to maintain such certifications during the term of this Agreement.
Franchisee must procure Franchisor’s approval of any replacement General Manager. Franchisor, subject
to the terms of this Agreement, will not unreasonably withhold such approval.

B. Initial Training Program. The training program will be conducted at the mutual
convenience of Franchisor and Franchisee at a place designated by Franchisor and will commence at least
eight (8) weeks prior to opening the Restaurant for business, but not before execution of this Agreement.
The training program currently has two components: the “Restaurant Management Initial Training
Program,” which will last for eight (8) weeks, and the “Owner’s Training Program,” which will last two
(2) to three (3) weeks (which will not necessarily be consecutive weeks). The “Restaurant Management
Initial Training Program” includes the opening and post-opening training described in Section 6(A) of
this Agreement. Designated members of Franchisee’s Management Team, and any other employees of
Franchisee that Franchisor may designate, must attend all required initial training. For a Limited-Service
Restaurant, Franchisee’s “Management Team” will include the General Manager and one assistant
manager, and if applicable, Franchisee (or managing partner or senior officer of Franchisee). The
Management Team for a Full-Service Restaurant will include the General Manager and the Kitchen
Manager, and if applicable, Franchisee (or managing partner or senior officer of Franchisee). For the
purposes of this Agreement, the “Kitchen Manager” will be the individual who assists the General
Manager with the management and operation of the Restaurant, with particular emphasis on the
preparation of menu items in the kitchen facilities of the Restaurant.

C. Mandatory Training. The training program will include information and instruction in
the operation of a Giordano’s® Restaurant including, but not limited to, preparation of foods, personnel
training, inventory procedures, sales and marketing, administration and management of the Restaurant

2024 VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC FA 13
63404914v2



business, and compliance with local, state and federal laws and regulations relating to labor, food safety
and sanitation practices. Attendance at and successful completion of all required training programs is
mandatory for designated members of Franchisee’s Management Team and any other employees of
Franchisee that Franchisor designates. Attendance at and successful completion of the training program
is optional for all other individuals. If designated members of Franchisee’s Management Team fail to
attend or fail to complete the training program to Franchisor’s satisfaction, Franchisor may elect to
terminate this Agreement and, in such event, the Initial Franchise Fee shall not be refunded under any
circumstances. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Franchisor reserves the right to amend
or waive its obligation to provide, or the requirement of Franchisee’s Management Team and employees
to attend and complete, Franchisor’s training program if Franchisee owns more than one Giordano’s®
Restaurant or as otherwise determined by Franchisor, in its sole discretion, but any such amendment or
waiver is without prejudice to Franchisor’s right to reinstate this requirement by written notice to
Franchisee.

D. Costs and Expenses. The initial training program described in Section 5(B) shall be
provided at no cost to Franchisee. However, Franchisee shall be responsible for all costs of travel, food,
lodging and other incidental expenses incurred by Franchisee, Franchisee’s Management Team and any
other employees of Franchisee who attend any training program.

E. Additional Training. Upon Franchisee’s reasonable written request or if offered or
required by Franchisor, Franchisor may provide Franchisee with additional training programs, refresher
courses or on-the-job training at mutually convenient times at locations determined by Franchisor.
Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor the then-current per diem fee for each representative of Franchisor
conducting such training for each day such training continues. Franchisee shall also pay all expenses of
travel, lodging and meals incurred by Franchisor’s representatives.

F. Remedial Training. Upon the reasonable request of Franchisee or as Franchisor
determines necessary, Franchisor will, during the term hereof, subject to the availability of personnel,
provide Franchisee with additional trained representatives who will provide on-site remedial training to
Franchisee’s personnel at Franchisee’s Restaurant. Franchisee will pay the per diem fee then being
charged to other franchisees for the services of such trained representatives, plus all travel expenses
(attributable to the on-site remedial training period) of Franchisor’s representatives. Franchisee, the
General Manager and other employees of Franchisee designated by Franchisor will be required by
Franchisor to attend, at Franchisee’s expense, additional remedial training on the dates scheduled by
Franchisor at the location designated by Franchisor on topics to be determined by Franchisor if
Franchisee’s Restaurant fails to meet certain performance standards established by Franchisor or
Franchisor otherwise determines, in its sole discretion, that additional remedial training is necessary or
required. Franchisee will pay the then-current per diem training fee to Franchisor, based upon the number
of trainers and the number of individuals attending the additional remedial training, and will reimburse
Franchisor for any travel, lodging and other expenses of the trainers provided by Franchisor during the
remedial training period.

G. Training Release and Indemnification. Franchisee and its owners hereby waive any
right to sue for damages or other relief, and release all known and unknown claims they may allegedly
have against Franchisor and/or any of its current and former affiliates and their past and present owners,
employees, agents, officers and directors, arising out of the adequacy or accuracy of the information
provided at or any activities occurring during any training program, additional training and/or opening
assistance (collectively referred to as “Training” in this provision), or any harm or injury any attendee or
participant suffers during and as a result of his/her attendance at or participation in the Training.
Franchisee and the owners agree to hold Franchisor, its current and former affiliates and their employees,
agents, officers and directors harmless for any claims or damages incurred by Franchisee, the past and
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present owners or any of their affiliates, employees, agents, officers and directors arising out of, in any
way connected with or as a result of attendance at or participation in the Training. Franchisee, the owners
and all persons who attend and participate in the Training on behalf of Franchisee will sign the
documentation required by Franchisor or an affiliate as a condition to their attendance at, participation in
and successful completion of the Training.

6. GUIDANCE; OPERATIONS MANUAL

A Assistance in Opening. Included in the training program described in Section 5(B) of
this Agreement, Franchisor will provide not less than two (2) nor more than seven (7) individuals chosen
by Franchisor, in its sole discretion, to assist in the opening of the Restaurant covered by this Agreement.
Such employees shall be at the Restaurant for two (2) weeks (for a total of fourteen (14) days) prior to the
opening of the Restaurant and one (1) week (for a total of seven (7) days) after the opening of the
Restaurant (which days prior to the opening or thereafter will not necessarily be consecutive days). If
Franchisee requests that any such employees be available at Franchisee’s Restaurant for more than
fourteen (14) days prior to the opening of the Restaurant and/or seven (7) days after the opening of the
Restaurant, Franchisee shall pay Franchisor the then-current per diem fee for each additional day, plus
payment of each employees’ expenses for travel, lodging and meals attributable to the additional time at
the Restaurant.

B. Continuing Assistance. Throughout the term of this Agreement, Franchisor will provide
guidance and assistance to Franchisee in the operation of the Restaurant. Such guidance may be provided
in the form of consultation services by field visits, telephone or written communication. Anything herein
to the contrary notwithstanding, the Initial Franchisee Fee and the Continuing License Fee are paid or
payable for the License granted by this Agreement and not for any services or assistance required of
Franchisor hereunder, and any failure by Franchisor to provide required services or assistance shall not
excuse Franchisee from paying the Initial Franchise Fee or the Continuing License Fee.

C. Operations Manual.

(1) Manual. Much of the guidance and assistance Franchisor will provide to Franchisee will
be provided in Franchisor’s confidential Operations Manual. The confidential Operations Manual will be
provided to Franchisee using the format and method determined by Franchisor from time to time, in its
sole discretion, including hard copies, on-line, via an Intranet network and/or other printed or electronic
means. Franchisor reserves the right to amend, revise, modify or supplement the content, format and
delivery method of the confidential Operations Manual at any time and from time to time; Franchisor will
furnish to Franchisee any amendments, revisions, modifications and supplements thereto, all of which
will be effective seven (7) days after Franchisor has furnished the same to Franchisee. The confidential
Operations Manual and all amendments, revisions, modifications and supplements thereto are collectively
referred to herein as the “Manual.” Franchisee shall, immediately upon receipt of an amendment,
revision, modification, or supplement to the Manual, incorporate the same into the Manual and implement
the same into the operations of its Restaurant. The Manual and all of the mandatory terms and provisions
of the Manual are incorporated herein by this reference and the term “Agreement” shall, in the context of
describing the duties and obligations of Franchisee, mean and include both this Agreement and the
mandatory elements of the Manual. Franchisee acknowledges having received a copy of or access to the
Manual. Franchisee acknowledges that access to the Manual is received from Franchisor, and that
Franchisee has acquired no ownership interest in the Manual.

(2 Contents of Manual. The Manual contains certain unique and secret recipes and formulas
for the preparation of the Approved Products, unique and secret methods of operating Giordano’s®
Restaurants serving stuffed and thin-crust pizza and other Approved Products and providing Approved
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Services and other unique and secret methods of operation developed by or licensed to Franchisor for use
in the operation of Giordano’s® Restaurants and otherwise supplies trade secrets and other confidential
and proprietary information used in connection with Giordano’s® Restaurants. The Manual shall at all
times remain the sole property of Franchisor, and Franchisee acquires no right in or to the Manual or its
contents excepting only the right to use it in strict accordance with the terms hereof. Franchisee agrees to
operate the Restaurant in strict accordance with the mandatory terms of the Manual and to be responsible
for assuring strict compliance with the mandatory standards, specifications, requirements and instructions
set forth therein and any and all subsequent amendments, revisions and supplements thereto, in the
operation of the Restaurant. In the event a dispute arises as to the contents of the Manual, the master copy
maintained by Franchisor will be controlling. The Manual may contain certain optional or advisory terms,
which Franchisor includes as a convenience to Franchisee and to assist in the operation of Franchisee’s
Restaurant as Franchisee deems appropriate in its business judgment.

3 Confidentiality. Franchisee acknowledges that the Manual and the contents of the
Manual constitute Confidential Information and Franchisee agrees to hold same in strict confidence.
Franchisee shall not disclose any such information to any person or business entity other than bona fide
employees of Franchisee who (i) are required by their work to be familiar with such information and (ii)
agree in writing (on forms prepared by Franchisor) to maintain the confidentiality thereof. Franchisee
shall not permit any person to copy or reproduce any part of the Manual or otherwise permit its use or
inspection by any person other than Franchisee, bona fide employees of Franchisee who are required by
their work to be familiar with such information and who agree to maintain the confidentiality thereof, and
authorized representatives of Franchisor, without Franchisor’s prior written consent. Notwithstanding
any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, there may be certain instances where applicable
law allows for the disclosure of certain Confidential Information under limited circumstances as specified
in the Manual or otherwise in writing by Franchisor.

(@) Use of Confidential Information. Franchisee shall not use any information contained in
the Manual in connection with the operation of any establishment or enterprise other than its Restaurant.

5) Return of Manual. Franchisee shall keep the Manual in its Restaurant at all times and
make the same available for inspection upon Franchisor’s request and promptly return the Manual, all
pages which were at one time part of the Manual but which were subsequently superseded by
amendments, revisions, modifications or supplements to the Manual and which were not returned to
Franchisor, and all copies if Franchisor has permitted Franchisee to make any copies, to Franchisor upon
the expiration or termination of this Agreement, and shall refrain from making any copies, to Franchisor
upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement, and shall refrain from making any copies thereof or
otherwise reproducing it either in whole or in part at any time.

7. MARKS

A. Ownership and Goodwill of Marks. Franchisee acknowledges that VPC Pizza IP, LLC
has sole, exclusive and proprietary ownership rights to current and future names and the Marks, and that
Franchisor is licensed to use and sublicense the Marks to franchisees pursuant to a Trademark License
Agreement with VPC Pizza IP, LLC. All goodwill associated with and related to the Marks accrues
directly and exclusively to the benefit of, and is the property of VPC Pizza IP, LLC. Franchisee
acknowledges that it has no right, title or interest in or to the Marks or the goodwill at any time associated
with these, other than those rights expressly granted in this Agreement. Franchisee further acknowledges
that in protection of Franchisor’s interest in the Marks, Franchisor has the right and need to control the
quality of goods and services offered in connection with the Marks and any other trade names, trademarks
or service marks developed by Franchisor during the term of this Agreement and licensed by Franchisor
to Franchisee for use in connection with Franchisee’s Restaurant. Any references in this Agreement to
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use of the Marks shall be equally applicable to any other trade names, trademarks or service marks
licensed by Franchisor to Franchisee during the term of this Agreement. Franchisor is not obligated to
take any action to protect against unfair competition with respect to the Marks or to indemnify, defend or
hold harmless Franchisee from any loss, cost, expense or damage incurred by Franchisee related to the
Marks, the use thereof or any claims of infringement or unfair competition.

B. Franchisee’s Use of Marks. Franchisee shall operate its Restaurant under the name
“Giordano’s®,” and during the term of this Agreement, use its Site exclusively for the operation of a
Giordano’s® Restaurant. Franchisee shall not allow the premises or any part thereof to be used for any
immoral or illegal purposes and shall not allow, suffer or permit such premises to be used for any
purpose, business activity, function or object to which Franchisor objects. Franchisee shall protect the
integrity of and other proprietary rights of Franchisor by maintaining the highest standards of quality and
reputation associated with the Marks. Franchisee shall use the Marks and all trade secrets and methods of
operation in the Manual in strict compliance with this Section 7 and in a manner tending to promote the
goodwill and public image of Franchisor, and only use the Marks in the form and manner uniformly
required by Franchisor from time to time when using them in connection with any identification of the
Restaurant or its products, specifically including advertising and sales promotion materials, signs,
letterhead, envelopes and the like.

C. Limitations on Franchisee’s Use of Marks.

(D) Use of Marks in Business Entity. Franchisee shall not use any of the Marks or any
stylistic or colorable variation thereof or any part of Franchisor’s corporate name as part of the name of
any corporation, partnership, proprietorship or other business entity in which Franchisee owns or holds an
interest or as the trade name or assumed name of any such business entity, unless approved by Franchisor
in writing, which approval may be arbitrarily withheld by Franchisor.

2 Use of Marks. Franchisee shall not use or allow the use of the Marks or any commercial
symbol or logo similar to the Marks in connection with the performance or sale of any unauthorized
products or services or in any other manner Franchisor has not expressly authorized in writing.

3 Display of Marks. Franchisor shall display the Marks in the precise form prescribed by
Franchisor and observe all directions regarding representation thereof and the manner of display and use.
Franchisee shall, prior to use, submit to Franchisor for approval all paper goods, advertising and
promotional material not furnished by Franchisor. Franchisee shall always display the Marks along with
such notices or symbols of trademark and service mark registrations as Franchisor specifies.

(@) Identification of Restaurant. Franchisee must answer the telephone at the Restaurant
using only the name of “Giordano’s®.” Franchisee must use the Marks as the sole identification of the
Restaurant, provided that Franchisee must be identified as the independent owner of the Restaurant which
identification must be made in and only in the manner prescribed by Franchisor.

5) Name Registrations. Before commencing business at the Restaurant, Franchisee must
supply evidence satisfactory to Franchisor that Franchisee has complied with all applicable laws
regarding the use of fictitious or assumed names. Franchisee must take such steps as Franchisor approves
in writing to register the name “Giordano’s® Restaurant” to be able to operate the Restaurant under such
name. Except for registration of a “d/b/a” or assumed name or other fictitious name certificate in
connection with the operation of the Restaurant, Franchisee must not register Franchisor’s names or the
Marks in Franchisee’s own name or that of any other entity. Franchisee shall not register any domain
name, email address, or other online presence for the Restaurant or using any of the Marks.
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(6) Modification of Marks. If it becomes advisable at any time in Franchisor’s sole
discretion for either or both of Franchisor and Franchisee to modify or discontinue the use of any or all of
the Marks or to use one or more additional or substitute Marks, Franchisee must comply with
Franchisor’s directions to do so within a reasonable time after notice thereof by Franchisor.

D. Notification of Infringing Uses and Claims. Franchisee shall not knowingly permit and
shall immediately report to Franchisor any known or suspected infringement or threatened infringement
or piracy of or challenge to the Marks or the System by any person. Franchisor has the right to make the
final determination of infringement or other unlawful use and to conduct all legal proceedings relating
thereto. Franchisee must assist and cooperate with Franchisor in taking any action, at Franchisor’s cost
and expense, that Franchisor deems appropriate to protect the Marks or the System.

E. Validity of Marks. Franchisee shall not make any written or oral representation or
admission that any of the Marks is in any way invalid or infringes the rights of any person or is open to
any other form of attack. Franchisee shall not at any time contest or aid in contesting the validity or
ownership of the Marks and shall not take any action in derogation of Franchisor’s claimed rights in and
to the Marks, whether now existent or hereafter obtained.

F. Marks Upon Expiration or Termination. Franchisee shall, upon the expiration or
termination of this Agreement, promptly discontinue all use of the Marks, as more fully described in
Section 15(E) herein.

8. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES; INDEMNIFICATION

A. Independent Contractor; No Fiduciary Relationship. Both Franchisor and Franchisee
understand and agree that this Agreement does not create a fiduciary relationship between Franchisor and
Franchisee, that Franchisee and Franchisor are independent contractors, and that nothing in this
Agreement is intended to make either party a general or special agent, joint venturer, partner, or employee
of the other for any purpose whatsoever. Franchisee agrees to conspicuously identify itself in all its
dealings with customers, suppliers, public officials, Restaurant personnel, and others as the owner of the
Restaurant pursuant to a Franchise Agreement with Franchisor, and agrees to place any other notices of
independent ownership on its forms, business cards, stationery, advertising, and other material as
Franchisor may require from time to time.

B. Operation of Restaurant. Franchisee will be totally and solely responsible for the daily
management and operation of its Giordano’s® Restaurant, and will control, supervise and manage all the
employees, agents and independent contractors who work for or with Franchisee, including the right to
hire and fire its employees. Franchisee will be responsible for the acts of its employees, agents and
independent contractors, and will take all reasonable business actions necessary to ensure that its
employees, agents and independent contractors comply with all federal, state and local laws, rules and
regulations including, but not limited to, all discrimination laws, sexual harassment laws and laws relating
to the disabled. Franchisor will not have any right, obligation or responsibility to hire, control, supervise,
manage or fire Franchisee’s employees, agents or independent contractors, and will no way be involved in
the day-to-day operations of Franchisee’s Restaurant.

C. Employment Decisions. Franchisee shall be solely responsible for all employment
decisions and functions of the Restaurant including, without limitation, those related to hiring, firing,
training, compliance with wage and hour requirements, personnel policies, benefits, recordkeeping,
scheduling, supervision, and discipline of employees, regardless of whether Franchisee receives advice
from Franchisor on these subjects. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that all personnel decisions shall
be made by Franchisee, without any influence or advice from Franchisor, and such decisions and actions
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shall not be, nor be deemed to be, a decision or action of Franchisor. Neither Franchisee nor any
employee of Franchisee will be considered an employee of Franchisor under any circumstances. To the
extent that any legal authority determines that Franchisor has a duty to act or not act with respect to any of
Franchisee’s employees, Franchisor hereby assigns to Franchisee any such duty, and Franchisee hereby
accepts such assignment.

D. No Liability; No Warranties. Franchisor has not authorized or empowered Franchisee
to use the Marks except as provided by this Agreement and Franchisee agrees not to employ any of the
Marks in signing any contract, check, purchase agreement, negotiable instrument or legal obligation,
application for any license or permit, or in a manner that may result in liability to Franchisor for any
indebtedness or obligation of Franchisee. Except as expressly authorized by this Agreement, neither
Franchisor nor Franchisee may make any express or implied agreements, warranties, guarantees or
representations, or incur any debt, in the name of or on behalf of the other or represent that their
relationship is other than that of franchisor and franchisee.

E. Indemnification. Franchisor will not assume any liability or be deemed liable for any
agreements, representations, or warranties Franchisee makes that are not expressly authorized under this
Agreement, nor will Franchisor be obligated for any claims or damages to any person, entity or property
which arise directly or indirectly out of or are based upon or related to this Agreement, the activities
conducted under this Agreement or in connection with Franchisee’s Restaurant and business, or
Franchisee’s or Franchisee’s employees’ actions or inaction, whether caused by Franchisee’s or its
employee’s negligent or willful action or failure to act or otherwise. Franchisor will have no liability for
any sales, use, excise, income, gross receipts, property, or other taxes levied against Franchisee or
Franchisee’s assets or on Franchisor in connection with the Restaurant business Franchisee conducts, or
any payments Franchisee makes to Franchisor pursuant to this Agreement or any Franchise Agreement
(except for Franchisor’s own income taxes). Franchisee agrees to indemnify, defend (by counsel selected
by Franchisor) and hold harmless Franchisor and all of its parents and affiliates and the shareholders,
owners, directors, officers, employees, agents and assignees of each against and from, and to reimburse
any or all of them for, all such claims, obligations, damages, and taxes for which any or all of them is held
liable and for all costs any or all of them reasonably incurs in the defense of any such claim brought
against them or in any such action in which any or all of them is named as a party, including without
limitation, actual and consequential damages, attorneys’, accountants’ and expert witness fees, costs of
investigation and proof of facts, court costs, other litigation expenses and travel and living expenses.
Franchisor, VPC Pizza IP, LLC and/or their affiliates have the right to defend any such claim against it.
Franchisee further agrees to hold Franchisor harmless from and to indemnify and defend (by counsel
selected by Franchisor) Franchisor against all costs, expenses or losses Franchisor incurs in enforcing the
provisions of this Agreement, in exercising Franchisor’s rights under this Agreement, in defending
Franchisor’s actions taken relating to this Agreement, or resulting from Franchisee’s breach of this
Agreement, including, without limitation, arbitrators’ and attorneys’ fees (including those for appeal)
unless, after legal proceedings are completed, Franchisee is found to have fulfilled and complied with all
the terms of this Agreement. Franchisee’s indemnification obligations described above will continue in
full force and effect after, and notwithstanding, the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

9. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; NON-COMPETITION

A. Types of Confidential Information. Franchisor possess certain unique, confidential and
proprietary information and trade secrets consisting of the following categories of information, methods,
techniques, products, and knowledge developed by Franchisor and affiliates: (1) unique and secret recipes
and formulae for the preparation of stuffed and thin-crust pizza and other Approved Products; (2) secret
spice ingredients for the preparation of pizza sauces and pizza dough for stuffed and thin-crust pizza and
other Approved Products; (3) a unique and secret method of operating Giordano’s® Restaurants serving
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stuffed and thin-crust pizza and other Approved Products and providing Approved Services; (4) design,
manufacture, test, product development, quality control, ordering, and methods of operation of the
Restaurant, and methods of preparation (including, but not limited to, time and temperature of
preparation) of products sold at Giordano’s® Restaurants including without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, the Approved Products; (5) design, test, marketing, quality control, ordering, methods of
performing and rendering of services at Giordano’s® Restaurants including, without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, the Approved Services; (6) knowledge of sales and profit performance of any
one or more of the Restaurants; (7) knowledge of test programs, concepts or results relating to new-
products; sources of products; advertising and promotional programs; Restaurant image or decor; and the
selection and training of the Management Team and other personnel; (8) methods, techniques, formats,
specifications, procedures, information, systems and knowledge of and experience in the site selection,
leasing, planning and construction, development, operation, and franchising of Giordano’s® Restaurants;
and (9) methods of training managers and other confidential and proprietary information disclosed to
Franchisee by Franchisor is referred to in this Agreement as “Confidential Information.” Franchisor will
disclose much of the Confidential Information to Franchisee in the Manual and also in (among other
ways) furnishing to Franchisee prototype plans for a Giordano’s® Restaurant, advising Franchisee about
site selection, training Franchisee’s Management Team, and guiding and assisting Franchisee under this
Agreement.

B. Improvements by Franchisee. In the course of the operation of the Restaurant,
Franchisee or its employees may develop ideas, concepts, methods, techniques or improvements relating
to the Restaurant or the System, all of which ideas, concepts, methods, techniques, and improvements will
be considered confidential and proprietary information of, and will become the property of, Franchisor.
Franchisee agrees to disclose the same only to Franchisor and Franchisor may then authorize Franchisee
to use the same in the operation of the Restaurant. Confidential Information as used herein shall also
mean and include such ideas, concepts, methods, techniques, and improvements.

C. Non-Disclosure Agreement. Franchisee acknowledges that it has obtained and will
obtain the Confidential Information from Franchisor; that such Confidential Information was unknown to
it prior to the negotiation and execution of this Agreement (or, if Franchisee is already a party to another
Giordano’s® Franchise Agreement, prior to first becoming a Giordano’s® franchisee) and that the
Confidential Information is unique and novel; that the Confidential Information is necessary and essential
to the operation of its Restaurant; and that without such Confidential Information it could not effectively
operate its Restaurant. Franchisee agrees that its relationship with Franchisor does not vest in Franchisee
any interest in the Confidential Information other than the right to use it in the development and operation
of Giordano’s® Restaurants under Franchise Agreements with Franchisor, and that the use or duplication
of the Confidential Information in any other business would constitute an unfair method of competition.
Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that the Confidential Information belongs to Franchisor, contains
trade secrets belonging to Franchisor and is disclosed to Franchisee or authorized for Franchisee’s use
solely on the condition that Franchisee agrees, and Franchisee therefore does agree, that Franchisee (1)
will not use the Confidential Information in any other business or capacity; (2) will maintain the absolute
confidentiality of the Confidential Information during and after the term of this Agreement; (3) will not
exhibit the original nor make any unauthorized copies whatsoever of any portion of the Confidential
Information disclosed in written form; and (4) will adopt and implement all procedures Franchisor may
prescribe from time to time to present unauthorized use or disclosure of the Confidential Information,
including without limitation, restrictions on disclosure to Franchisee’s employees and the use of non-
disclosure and non-competition agreements Franchisor may prescribe for employees, shareholders or
partners of Franchisee who have access to the Confidential Information. Without limiting the foregoing,
Franchisee agrees to require each of its employees prior to the commencement of work for Franchisee, as
well as any other person Franchisor reasonably believes will acquire the Confidential Information or will
learn through Franchisee’s operations of Franchisor’s trade secrets, to sign non-disclosure and non-
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competition agreements in such form as Franchisor requires. The restrictions on Franchisee’s disclosure
and use of the Confidential Information will not apply to the following: (a) information, processes, or
techniques which are generally known and used in the restaurant industry (as long as the availability is
not because of a disclosure by Franchisee) and (b) disclosure of the Confidential Information in legal
proceedings when Franchisee is legally required to disclose it and Franchisee has first given Franchisor
the opportunity to obtain an appropriate legal protective order or other assurance satisfactory to
Franchisor that the information required to be disclosed will be treated confidentially.

D. In-Term Non-Competition Agreement. Franchisee agrees that during the term of this
Agreement (including any renewals) neither Franchisee nor any shareholder, partner, owner, officer,
director or other principal of Franchisee, nor any member of Franchisee’s immediate family or of the
immediate family of any shareholder, partner, officer, director or the principal of Franchisee, shall,
directly or indirectly through a corporation, partnership, trust, association, joint venture, or any other type
of business or entity, perform any services for, engage in, acquire or have any direct or indirect financial
or other interest as a disclosed or beneficial owner, investor, partner, director, officer, employee, manager,
consultant, representative or agent in any franchisor of or in any Similar Business (as hereinafter defined),
except for other businesses franchised from Franchisor or its affiliates. “Similar Business” means (a) any
business which prepares or sells pizza, pasta, flatbread or other similar products regardless of where or
how prepared or sold including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, preparation for sale or
sale at wholesale or retail, in grocery stores, in restaurants, or for carry-out or delivery, or (b) any business
where 10% or more of the revenue from food or products is revenue from the sale of Italian food or
products, whether at a single location or in the aggregate from two (2) or more locations. Franchisee and
the owners of Franchisee and their immediate family if Franchisee is a partnership, corporation or other
entity, may collectively own not more than three percent (3%) of the stock of a company engaged in a
Similar Business, the stock of which is publicly traded at the time of such ownership. “Immediate
family,” for the purposes of this Agreement, will include a spouse, children and parents.

E. Post-Term Non-Competition Agreement. Franchisee agrees that for a period of two
(2) years following the termination or expiration of this Agreement, or the date Franchisee ceases to
conduct its activities hereunder, whichever is later, neither Franchisee nor any shareholder, partner,
owner, officer, director or other principal of Franchisee, nor any member of Franchisee’s immediate
family or of the immediate family of any shareholder, partner, owner, officer, director or other principal
of Franchisee shall directly or indirectly through a corporation, partnership, trust, association, joint
venture, or any other type of business or entity perform any services for, engage in, acquire or have any
direct or indirect financial or other interest as a disclosed or beneficial owner, investor, partner, director,
officer, employee, manager, consultant, representative or agent in any franchisor of or in any Similar
Business, except for other businesses franchised from Franchisor or its affiliates, which Similar Business
is situated within fifteen (15) miles from (a) any Restaurant then-existing or in development; (b) all
territories reserved to future Giordano’s® franchisees by area development or reservation agreements
between such franchisee or franchisees and Franchisor or another person or entity authorized to license
Giordano’s® Restaurants (which territories Franchisor shall disclose to Franchisee upon request
following the termination of this Agreement); (c) any office of Franchisor; and (d) any manufacturing,
assembly, preparation, or distribution facility of Franchisor, or an affiliate of Franchisor established as an
Approved Supplier of Approved Products, Approved Ingredients, or Approved Supplies, all without
regard to whether such radius extends beyond the border of the state in which Franchisee’s Restaurant
was located or beyond the border of the United States of America. If the time period within which
Franchisee may not compete with Franchisor shall be too long to be enforceable, or if the area within
which Franchisee may not compete with Franchisor shall be too broad to be enforceable, then the time,
area, or both, as applicable, shall be reduced to such time, such area, or both as shall be legally
enforceable. Franchisee and/or the owners of Franchisee acknowledge that they have previously worked
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in or have been gainfully employed in other fields and that the restrictive provisions hereof will in no way
prevent them from earning a living.

F. Remedies. Franchisee acknowledges that as a Giordano’s® franchisee, it will have
access to Franchisor’s Confidential Information and trade secrets and therefore be in a unique position to
use the same. Franchisee also acknowledges that a breach of the covenants contained in this Section 9
will threaten immediate and irreparable injury to Franchisor. Accordingly, Franchisee agrees that
Franchisor shall have the right, as more fully described in Section 16(N) of this Agreement, to obtain
immediate injunctive relief without limiting any other rights or remedies of Franchisor.

10. RESTAURANT STANDARDS, IMAGE AND UNIFORMITY OF OPERATION

Franchisee agrees that Franchisor’s special standardized design and decor of Giordano’s®
Restaurants; quality and consistency of the Approved Products sold and Approved Services provided,;
uniformity of equipment and layout; and adherence to the Manual are essential to the image of a
Giordano’s® Restaurant and the functioning of the System. In recognition of the benefits accruing from
maintaining uniformity of appearances, services, products and marketing procedures, Franchisee agrees
that it will operate its Restaurant in accordance with the standards, specifications and procedures set forth
in the Manual or otherwise communicated to Franchisee in writing. Franchisee agrees further that
changes in such standards, specifications and procedures may become necessary from time to time and
agrees to accept such modifications, revisions and additions to the standards and specifications which
Franchisor in the good faith exercise of its judgment believes to be necessary and reasonable. All such
written recipes, formulae, specifications, standards, and operating procedures prescribed from time to
time by Franchisor in writing will constitute provisions of this Agreement as if fully set forth in this
Agreement. Franchisee agrees that required specifications, standards and operating procedures exist to
protect Franchisor’s interests in the Giordano’s® System and the Marks and to create a uniform customer
experience, and not for the purpose of establishing any control or duty to take control over those matters
that are reserved to Franchisee. Franchisee agrees not to deviate from Franchisor’s mandatory standards
relating to current image, theme, quality, consistency, cleanliness and sanitation in the operation of
Giordano’s® Restaurants, including the following:

A. Building and Premises. Franchisee agrees that:

(1) Neither the Restaurant nor the premises of the Site will be used for any purpose other
than the operation of a Giordano’s® Restaurant in compliance with this Agreement;

2 Franchisee will maintain the condition and appearance of the Restaurant, its equipment,
furniture, fixtures, signs, and the premises of the Site in accordance with the specifications of Franchisor
and consistent with the current image of a Giordano’s® Restaurant as an efficiently operated Italian
restaurant specializing in stuffed pizza and thin crust pizza, pasta, sandwiches, salads and other Approved
Products.

3 Franchisee shall at all times keep and maintain the Restaurant premises in a clean, neat,
orderly and sanitary condition. To maintain a modern, progressive, sanitary and uniform operational
image, Franchisor shall have the right to require Franchisee to perform such remodeling, repairs,
upgrades, replacements and redecoration in and upon the Restaurant premises which are reasonably
necessary to bring the Restaurant premises up to the then-current standards of Franchisor. Franchisee will
perform such maintenance with respect to the decor, equipment, furniture, fixtures, and signs of the
Restaurant and the premises of the Site, as may be required from time to time to maintain such condition,
appearance, and efficient operation, including, but not limited to:
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@) the interior of the Restaurant building and exterior painted portions of the
building shall be renewed or repainted as necessary but in any event not less frequently than
every three (3) years in accordance with Franchisor’s then-current color schemes and standards.

(b) carpeting shall be replaced as necessary, but in any event, not less frequently than
every four (4) years in accordance with Franchisor’s then-current color schemes.

(c) interior and exterior repair of the premises of the Restaurant shall be performed
promptly to fix or correct any disrepair or damage.

(d) thorough cleaning shall be performed on a daily basis.

(e) damaged, worn out, outmoded or obsolete equipment, furniture, fixtures and
signs shall be repaired or replaced prompted as needed to comply with Franchisor’s current image
and standards.

4) Franchisee will not make any material alterations to the Premises or alter the Restaurant’s
image as originally developed, without prior approval in writing by Franchisor;

(5) Franchisee will not make any material alterations to the premises of the Restaurant not
less frequently than every seven (7) years and at reasonable times determined by Franchisor to reflect
changes in the operation of Giordano’s® Restaurants prescribed by Franchisor and in accordance with the
newest Giordano’s® image and theme, subject to approval by Franchisor of all plans, layouts and
designs; and

(6) Franchisee acknowledges that additional investment may be required pursuant to this
Section 10(A). If Franchisee fails to make any required remodeling, repairs, replacements, redecoration
or other maintenance or refurbishing required hereunder within ten (10) days after receipt of notice from
Franchisor of the actions required to be taken, Franchisor may, but is not required to, arrange for the
completion of all required actions on Franchisee’s behalf, and Franchisee shall reimburse Franchisor upon
demand for all costs and expenses incurred.

B. Equipment. Franchisor will provide Franchisee with a list of and specifications for the
Restaurant’s required equipment including, but not limited to, an approved computerized cash register
system, computer hardware and peripheral devices, including printers, monitors, modems and networking
equipment, computer software and operating systems, including point-of-sale, front-of-house, back-of-
house and other accounting and operating systems, machines, furniture and furnishings and other personal
property (collectively referred to as the “Equipment”) which are consistent with the standard
Giordano’s® Restaurant. Franchisee shall acquire, through an affiliate of Franchisor or other approved
sources, by purchase or lease such Equipment. Franchisee agrees to maintain such Equipment in
excellent working condition. Franchisor shall have the right to inspect all Equipment to assure
Franchisee’s compliance with Franchisor’s standards and specifications. As items of the Equipment
become obsolete or mechanically impaired to the extent that they require replacement, or as Franchisor
requires new, upgraded or updated Equipment for the Restaurant in its sole judgment to meet the
changing standards of the restaurant industry or Franchisor’s system standards, Franchisee will purchase,
replace, upgrade or update, at its expense, such items with the same types and kinds of Equipment as are
being installed in Giordano’s® Restaurants at the time replacement becomes necessary or are required by
Franchisor. All Equipment used in Franchisee’s Giordano’s® Restaurant, whether purchased from such
affiliate or other approved suppliers pursuant to Section 10(l) below, shall meet Franchisor’s standards or
specifications, which may be modified from time to time by Franchisor. Franchisor reserves the right to
charge Franchisee a one-time fee or periodic fees (“Equipment Fees”) for the costs incurred by
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Franchisor, an Approved Supplier (as defined below) or any other vendor associated with the Equipment
and any updates, upgrades or replacements of the Equipment.

C. Approved Products and Approved Services. Franchisee agrees to serve the menu
items specified by Franchisor, to follow all specifications, formulas and recipes of Franchisor as to weight
and method of preparation of the Approved Products served, and to sell no other food or drink item or any
other merchandise of any kind without the prior written approval of Franchisor. Franchisee agrees that
the Restaurant will offer for sale on a continuous basis all types of food, beverages and any other
Approved Products that Franchisor prescribes, and only those prescribed, and that the Restaurant will
make available all Approved Services on a continuous basis that Franchisor prescribes for Giordano’s®
Restaurants, and only Approved Services.

D. On-Going Requirements. Franchisor has developed and will continue to develop new
requirements for the Approved Products to be served by Giordano’s® Restaurants. Franchisor may
continue to approve additional Approved Products and Approved Services to be offered by Giordano’s®
Restaurants. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that all Approved Products sold from the Restaurant
must conform with Franchisor’s requirements and specifications, including but not limited to, methods of
preparation and serving, size and proportion, variety, use of Approved Ingredients and Approved
Supplies, and methods of packaging. If requested by Franchisor on at least thirty (30) days’ notice as part
of a general program or standardization effort by Franchisor, the marketing of an Approved Product or the
performance or rendering of an Approved Service must be discontinued. In such event, such product or
services ceases to be an Approved Product or Approved Service, as applicable. Franchisee shall not
deviate from the prescribed procedures for preparing, cooking and serving the Approved Products and
providing the Approved Services as prescribed from time to time in the Manual, or otherwise
communicated to Franchisee in writing.

E. Special Events. Franchisee may not: (a) sell any product for resale; (b) sell any product
or service at or from any place except the Restaurant; or (c) prepare any product at any place other than
the Restaurant, except that Franchisee may sell the Approved Products at special events in the Territory
including, but not limited to, fairs and food-fests. Franchisee must give Franchisor thirty (30) days prior
written notice (or such shorter notice as is reasonable under the circumstances) of any fair, food-fests or
other special event at which Franchisee desires to conduct special event sales. In the event that
Franchisee does not desire to conduct sales at such special event, Franchisor retains the right to conduct
such sales at the special event.

F. Market Research. Franchisor may, from time to time, conduct market research and
testing to determine consumer trends and salability of new products and services. Franchisee must
cooperate by participating in Franchisor’s market research programs, test marketing new products and
services and providing timely reports and other relevant information regarding market research. In
connection with such test marketing, Franchisee must purchase a reasonable quantity of products to be
tested and effectively promote and make a reasonable effort to sell such products and services.

G. Franchisor’s Exclusive Rights. Franchisor retains the exclusive right to market its
stuffed pizza and other products through any channels of distribution or at special purpose venues
including, but not limited to, through grocery outlets, shopping centers, food courts, airports, stadiums,
military installations, public carriers (including, but not limited to, airplanes, trains and cruise lines), or
any other channels of distribution or special purpose venues which may originate in, be located in or
service Franchisee’s Territory.

H. Approved Ingredients and Approved Supplies. The reputation and goodwill of
Franchisor is based upon, and can be maintained only by the satisfaction of customers who rely upon the
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consistency, quality and variety of Approved Products offered by a Giordano’s® Restaurant, as well as
courteous and efficient Approved Services provided by Giordano’s® Restaurants. To maintain quality,
uniformity and consistency, Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that all Approved Products must be
made only with those ingredients approved by Franchisor (“Approved Ingredients”). In addition,
Franchisor has approved and will from time to time approve certain supplies and Equipment to be used in
connection with the operation of Giordano’s® Restaurants (“Approved Supplies”) and, with respect to
such supplies and Equipment, Franchisee acknowledges that all Restaurants must only be stocked with
and utilize Approved Supplies and Approved Products. Franchisee shall not use any ingredients or
supplies in the Restaurant or offer any products which do not meet Franchisor’s quality standards and
prior written approval. Franchisee shall at all times maintain an inventory of Approved Products,
Approved Ingredients and Approved Supplies sufficient in quantity and variety to realize the full potential
of the Restaurant.

I Approved Suppliers. Franchisee agrees that the Restaurant will purchase Approved
Products, Approved Ingredients and Approved Supplies only from suppliers or manufacturers that
Franchisor has approved in writing (“Approved Suppliers™). Franchisor has approved and will continue
to approve in writing suppliers of Approved Ingredients, Approved Supplies and Approved Products that
meet its standards relating to reputation, product quality, prices, consistency, reliability, service facilities
and capability, financial capability, product liability insurance coverage, labor relations and customer
relations. Approval of a supplier may also be conditioned upon requirements relating to the frequency of
delivery and standards of service, including prompt attention to complaints, or other criteria, and shall be
subject to ongoing evaluation by Franchisor.

J. Designated Suppliers and Products. Franchisor may approve a single supplier or a
single brand name for some Approved Products, Approved Ingredients and Approved Supplies. Certain
Approved Products, Approved Ingredients and Approved Supplies must be purchased only from
Franchisor or Franchisor’s affiliated supplier. These include certain specially formulated Approved
Products and Approved Ingredients and specified Giordano’s® brand name items designated by
Franchisor, including but not limited to, pizza dough containing specially formulated flour and secret
spice ingredients, thin crust pizza sauce containing secret spice ingredients, stuffed deep dish pizza sauce
containing secret spice ingredients, marinara and meat sauces containing secret spice ingredients,
Giordano’s® brand name bulk and link sausage, Giordano’s® brand name tomato products, various soups
freshly prepared and containing secret spice ingredients, Italian roast beef and gravy containing secret
spice ingredients, and a specific brand name of mozzarella cheese. Franchisor shall provide Franchisee
with a list of designated and Giordano’s® brand name products that must be purchased from Franchisor
or Franchisor’s affiliated supplier. In the best interest of the System, Franchisor specifically reserves the
right to update and change such list from time to time.

K. Packaging. Franchisee agrees that all packaged products will be served in containers
bearing accurate reproductions of the Marks. All pizza boxes, napkins, placemats, straws, bags, cups,
matches, menus and other paper goods and the like articles used in connection with Franchisee’s
Giordano’s® Restaurant shall be of a quality and style and bear such reproductions of designs, names,
trademarks, service marks and symbols as Franchisor shall specify and all art work and reproductions
used in connection therewith shall conform to the specifications established by Franchisor. Such
imprinted items shall be purchased by Franchisee through an affiliate of Franchisor or through an
Approved Supplier.

L. Discounts. Franchisor may negotiate group or volume purchasing arrangements with
Approved Suppliers. Franchisor will be entitled to all rebates, bonuses and promotional benefits
associated with those programs. Franchisee must not, without Franchisor’s prior written consent, sell,
dispense, give away or otherwise provide products or items except by means of retail sales to employees
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or customers at the Restaurant, or an approved program of charitable giving. Franchisor, may, if it
chooses, take advantage of discounts offered by a supplier in connection with the acquisition of large
guantities of products and ingredients and resell the products and ingredients to Franchisee at a profit.

M. Revocation of Approval. Franchisor may revoke its approval of particular products,
ingredients or suppliers if Franchisor determines, in its sole discretion, that such products, ingredients or
suppliers no longer meet Franchisor’s standards or specifications. Upon receipt of written notice of such
revocation, Franchisee must immediately cease to sell or use any disapproved products or ingredients and
cease to purchase products from any disapproved suppliers.

N. Alternate Suppliers. If Franchisee gives Franchisor written notice, sufficiently in
advance to permit supplier specification verification and testing, that it wishes to purchase equipment,
supplies or food products (other than Approved Ingredients, Approved Products and Approved Supplies
as to which Franchisor has designated its affiliated supplier as the sole approved supplier as provided in
the preceding Section 10(J)), from any supplier or distributor not approved by Franchisor, then
Franchisor will not unreasonably withhold the prompt approval of such purchases, provided the purchases
conform to the appearance, quality, taste, size or portion, brand name, uniformity standards and other
specifications and criteria of Franchisor, including but not limited to, price and product liability insurance.
In addition, the proposed supplier must possess reliability, a good reputation, dependability, adequate
facilities and service capabilities. Franchisor may require that samples from alternate suppliers be
delivered to Franchisor or a designated independent testing laboratory for testing before approval and use.
A charge not to exceed the actual cost of the test may be made by Franchisor or by an independent testing
laboratory designated by Franchisor, and shall be paid for by Franchisee. Franchisor shall in no event be
obligated to approve any proposed supplier.

0. Vending Machines. Franchisee shall not install coin operated vending devices of any
kind, newspaper racks, telephone booths, games, rides, or other coin operated machines, or permit others
to do so, except that Franchisee may install a coin telephone which meets Franchisor’s specifications
(including location in the Restaurant premises).

P. Signs. In order to insure uniformity in the use and to maintain the validity of the Marks,
Franchisee agrees to display the Marks at the Restaurant in the manner authorized by Franchisor.
Franchisor agrees to maintain and display signs reflecting the current image of Franchisor. The color,
size, design and location of the signs shall be specified by Franchisor. Franchisee shall not place
additional signs or posters on the premises of the Restaurant without the written consent of Franchisor.
Franchisee will place or display at the Restaurant (interior and exterior) only such signs, emblems,
lettering, logos and display and advertising materials that are from time to time approved by Franchisor.

Q. Right of Entry and Inspection. Franchisor or its authorized agent and representative
shall have the right to enter and inspect the Restaurant premises and examine and test food, products,
equipment, furnishings and supplies for the purpose of ascertaining that Franchisee is operating the
Restaurant in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and the Manual. Inspection shall be
conducted during normal business hours. Franchisor shall notify Franchisee of any deficiencies, damages
or instances of noncompliance detected during inspection and Franchisee shall diligently correct or repair
any such deficiencies, damages or instances of noncompliance. Upon notification by Franchisor that any
equipment, food, supplies, ingredients, products, signs, fixtures, furnishings or imprinted containers do
not meet the specifications, standards and requirements of Franchisor, Franchisee shall immediately desist
and refrain from the further use of such items and shall immediately remove such items from the premises
of the Restaurant.
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R. Hours of Operation. Subject to local ordinance and lease requirements, Franchisee shall
remain open during Franchisor’s established regular business hours specified in the Manual unless
Franchisor consents to other hours or days at the request of Franchisee. Franchisor recognizes that
considerations peculiar to the location of Franchisee’s Restaurant may make it desirable to alter the hours
of operation, and Franchisor will not unreasonably withhold its consent to modify such hours of
operation.

S. Compliance with Standards. Franchisee will use the Marks and the System in strict
compliance with the mandatory moral and ethical standards, quality standards, health standards, operating
procedures, data security standards, and other specifications, requirements and instructions required by
Franchisor. It is understood and agreed that the mandatory standards established by this Agreement
including, but not limited to, the inspection and audit rights provided in this Agreement, and the
provisions of the Manual are reasonable means by which Franchisor seeks to avoid and prevent conduct
which is likely to impair the value of and the goodwill associated with the Marks and the System being
licensed under this Agreement and do not reflect any right or effort by Franchisor to control the day-to-
day operation of the Restaurant or the business decisions of Franchisee. Franchisee agrees to comply
with all mandatory provisions of the Manual, as they may be revised from time to time by Franchisor in
the exercise of its business judgment; provided, however, that those portions of the Manual that are
expressly designated as recommendations are not intended to limit or control the business decisions of
Franchisee. Franchisee understands and acknowledges that over the term of this Agreement it may be
appropriate for Franchisor, in the exercise of its business judgment, to adopt standards and business
principles needed to maintain the reputation, legal status or competitive position of the Marks and the
System and to reflect such details in the Manual. To the extent that the Manual, as it may be amended
from time to time, conflicts with this Agreement, the provisions of the Manual then in effect shall control.
Franchisee further understands and acknowledges that due to local circumstances, Franchisor may
occasionally adopt different standards and business principles to apply to different market areas or types
of Giordano’s® Restaurants.

T. Compliance with Laws and Good Business Practices. Franchisee must secure and
maintain in force in its name all required licenses, permits and certificates relating to the operation of the
Restaurant.  Franchisee must operate the Restaurant in full compliance with all applicable laws,
ordinances, and regulations including, without limitation, all government regulations relating to workers’
compensation insurance, unemployment insurance, and withholding and payment of federal and state
income taxes, social security taxes and sales taxes. All necessary and appropriate measures must be taken
to avoid unsatisfactory safety, sanitation, or health ratings at all times from government authorities.
Conditions or practices disapproved by any such authorities must be corrected promptly except that, after
consultation between Franchisee and Franchisor, Franchisee may contest in good faith the action by such
authority as being arbitrary, capricious, unfair or unlawful. All advertising employed by Franchisee must
be completely factual, in good taste (in Franchisor’s judgment), and must conform to the highest
standards of honesty, integrity, fair dealing and ethical conduct. Franchisee must refrain from any
business or advertising practice which may be harmful to the business of Franchisor, the goodwill
associated with the Marks or other Giordano’s® Restaurants. Franchisee must notify Franchisor in
writing within five (5) days of the commencement of any action, suit, or proceedings, and of the issuance
of any order, writ, injunction, award, or decree of any court, agency, or other governmental unit, which
may adversely affect the operation or financial condition of Franchisee or the Restaurant, or of any notice
of violation of any law, ordinance, or regulation relating to health or safety.

u. Credit Cards. Franchisee will honor all credit, charge, debit and cash cards approved by
Franchisor in writing. To the extent Franchisee will store, process, transmit or otherwise access or
possess cardholder data in connection with the sale of the Approved Products and Approved Services
provided under this Agreement, Franchisee will maintain the security of cardholder data and adhere to the
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then-current Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards (“PClI DSS”), currently found at
www.pcisecuritystandards.org, for the protection of cardholder data throughout the term of this
Agreement. Franchisee further understands it is responsible for the security of cardholder data in the
possession or control of any subcontractors it engages to perform under this Agreement. Such
subcontractors must be identified to Franchisor in writing prior to sharing cardholder data with the
subcontractor. Franchisee will, if requested to do so by Franchisor, provide appropriate documentation to
Franchisor to demonstrate compliance with applicable PCI DSS requirements by Franchisee and all
identified subcontractors.

V. Gift Cards; Customer Loyalty Programs; eCommerce. Franchisee will not create or
issue any gift certificates or gift cards and will only sell gift certificates or gift cards that have been issued
or approved by Franchisor for acceptance at all Giordano’s® Restaurants. Franchisee will participate in
all gift certificate and/or gift card administration programs as may be designated by Franchisor from time
to time. Franchisee will honor all coupons, gift certificates, gift cards and other programs or promotions
as directed by Franchisor. Franchisee will fully participate in all online programs required by Franchisor,
which may include eCommerce (online ordering), loyalty, gift card, and promotion management.
Franchisee will not issue coupons or discounts of any type for use at its Restaurant except as approved by
Franchisor in writing, which may be withheld in its sole and absolute discretion. Franchisor reserves the
right to charge Franchisee a one-time fee or periodic fees to reimburse Franchisor for the costs associated
with gift card, loyalty, digital advertising and online programs and promotions for Giordano’s®
Restaurants.

W. Information Technology.  Franchisee must establish and maintain a business
relationship with a qualified employee, contractor, supplier or vendor to provide information technology
(*“IT”) support and assistance with Franchisee’s IT infrastructure including, but not limited to, firewalls,
network switches, cabling, Internet service providers, wireless Internet connections and service,
vulnerability management (for example, virus protection and critical software updates), and other
products and services associated with the then-current IT services required for the Restaurant. If
Franchisee fails to establish and maintain an IT support relationship with a qualified employee, contractor
or vendor, Franchisor will have the right, but not the obligation, to arrange for the performance of the
necessary IT services required for Franchisee’s Restaurant business on Franchisee’s behalf, and
Franchisee will be responsible for the payment of the costs and expenses incurred for such IT support
services including, if the services are provided by employee(s) of Franchisor, per diem fees of Five
Hundred Dollars ($500) per employee providing the IT support services (“IT Fees”) to Franchisee.
Franchisee will pay the IT Fees in full immediately upon receipt of an invoice indicating the amount
owed. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Franchisee will be responsible for protecting itself from
disruptions, Internet access failures, Internet content failures, and attacks by hackers and other
unauthorized intruders, and Franchisee waives any and all claims against Franchisor as the direct or
indirect result of such disruptions, failures and attacks.

X. Employee Training, Staffing and Appearance. The Restaurant must at all times be
under the direct, on-premises supervision of a General Manager who has satisfactorily completed
Franchisor’s training program. To assure quality Approved Products and prompt, courteous services,
Franchisee shall staff the Restaurant with the number of managers, cooks, servers, bus persons, hosts,
phone clerks, delivery drivers, bartenders and other employees as Franchisor specifies from time to time.
Franchisee shall hire all employees of the Restaurant and be exclusively responsible for the terms of their
employment, their compensation, and for the proper training of the employees in the operation of the
Restaurant. Franchisee must establish at the Restaurant a training program for all employees that meets
Franchisor’s standards. All employees shall be clean and neat and must comply with the then-current
dress code or uniform as set forth in the Manual. Franchisee will be totally and solely responsible for the
operation of its Restaurant, and will control, supervise and manage all the employees, agents and
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independent contractors who work for or with Franchisee. Franchisee will be responsible for the acts of
its employees, agents and independent contractors, and will take all reasonable business actions necessary
to ensure that its employees, agents and independent contractors comply with all applicable federal, state,
city, local and municipal laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations. Franchisor will not have any
right, obligation or responsibility to hire, control, supervise, manage or fire Franchisee’s employees,
agents or independent contractors, and will in no way be involved in the day-to-day operations of
Franchisee’s Restaurant. Neither Franchisee nor any employee of Franchisee will be considered an
employee of Franchisor under any circumstances To the extent any legal authority determines that
Franchisor has a duty to act or not act with respect to any of Franchisee’s employees, Franchisor hereby
assigns to Franchisee any such duty, and Franchisee hereby accepts such assignment.

Y. Appointment of Manager. If at any time the Restaurant is not being managed by
Franchisee, the General Manager or a manager previously approved by Franchisor and who has
satisfactorily completed Franchisor’s training program, Franchisor may, but is not required to, appoint a
manager to maintain the operations of the Restaurant for and on behalf of Franchisee. Franchisor’s
representative shall operate the Restaurant for as long as Franchisor deems necessary and practical. All
funds from the operation of the Restaurant during the period Franchisor’s representative manages the
Restaurant shall be kept in a separate fund and all expenses of the Restaurant incurred during this period,
including the manager’s salary, shall be charged to the fund. In addition to the payment of the manager’s
salary, Franchisee shall also pay to Franchisor a per diem fee for each day Franchisor’s representative
continues to manage and operate the Restaurant. Operation of the Restaurant during any such period shall
at all times be conducted for and on behalf of Franchisee, provided that Franchisor shall only have a duty
to utilize its reasonable efforts in the operation of the Restaurant and shall not be liable to Franchisee for
any losses incurred from such operation of the Restaurant, or to any of Franchisee’s creditors for any
merchandise, supplies or services purchased by the Restaurant during such period. Franchisee shall hold
harmless Franchisor and its representatives from any and all claims of any kind arising out of Franchisor’s
operation of the Restaurant. Franchisor’s appointment of a manager to operate the Restaurant shall not
relieve Franchisee of any obligations under this Agreement nor constitute a waiver of Franchisor’s right
to terminate this Agreement as provided in Section 15 hereof. Franchisee agrees to pay all of
Franchisor’s attorneys’ fees incurred in connection with Franchisor’s exercise of its rights to appoint a
manager under this Section 10(Y).

Z. Insurance. Prior to opening the Restaurant for business, Franchisee must obtain, and
submit to VPC certificates of insurance for, the following insurance coverage under policies of insurance
issued by carriers approved by Franchisor: (1) comprehensive commercial general liability insurance with
limits not less than $1,000,000 each occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate for bodily injury and
property damage; $1,000,000 each occurrence and aggregate for products and completed operations; and
$1,000,000 for personal injury and advertising liability per occurrence; (2) general casualty insurance
including fire and extended coverage, vandalism, theft, burglary and malicious mischief insurance for the
replacement value special coverage of the Restaurant and its contents; (3) workers’ compensation
insurance in an amount prescribed by statute; employer’s liability insurance with a limit of not less than
$500,000 for bodily injury by accident (each accident), $500,000 for bodily injury by disease (each
employee), and $500,000 for bodily injury by disease (policy limit); as well as such other insurance as
may be required by statute or rule in the state where the Restaurant is located; (4) business interruption
and rent insurance to cover a 12-month period in order to re-establish normal business operations with
coverage adequate to coincide with the value of the Restaurant premises and its contents; (5) employment
practices liability insurance with minimum limits of $500,000 for first and third party liability coverage;
(6) dram-shop insurance with limits not less than $1,000,000 for each occurrence and $2,000,000 in the
aggregate; (7) commercial automobile liability insurance for all owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles
used in connection with the Restaurant with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit for
bodily injury and property damage; (8) data security/cyber breach liability coverage with limits not less
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than $1,000,000 combined single limit; and (9) umbrella/excess liability insurance with limits not less
than $2,000,000 for each occurrence and in the aggregate. Franchisee must maintain all required policies
in force during the entire term of this Agreement and any renewals thereof. Franchisor may periodically
increase or decrease the amounts of coverage required under these insurance policies and require different
or additional kinds of insurance at any time, including excess liability insurance, to reflect inflation,
identification of new risks, changes in law or changes in circumstances. Each insurance policy must
name Franchisor (and, if Franchisor so requests, the officers, directors, employees or owners of
Franchisor) as additional insureds on a primary and non-contributory basis, must contain a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Franchisor, and must provide Franchisor with thirty (30) days advance written
notice of any material modification, non-renewal, cancellation, or expiration of the policy. Additional
insured coverage shall not be limited to vicarious liability and shall extend to (and there shall be no
endorsement limiting coverage for) the negligent acts, errors, or omissions of Franchisor and other
additional insureds. In addition, if Franchisee receives notice of any change in coverage, notice of non-
renewal, cancellation, or expiration of any policy required under this Agreement, Franchisee shall provide
Franchisor with a copy of such notice within five (5) days of Franchisee’s receipt of such notice. All
insurance policies must be provided by an insurer carrying a minimum A.M. Best (or such other insurance
industry rating agency as may be subsequently specified by Franchisor in writing) rating of “A” and a
Financial Size Category of “VII” or better.

AA. Evidence of Insurance. Before Franchisee takes possession and commences
development of the Restaurant premises and at such other times as Franchisor may require, for each
insurance policy, Franchisee will provide Franchisor with copies of the additional insured endorsement,
declarations page, the certificate of insurance, and other evidence of compliance with these requirements
as Franchisor periodically requires. Before the expiration of the term of each insurance policy, Franchisee
must furnish Franchisor with copies of the additional insured endorsement, declarations page, the
certificate of insurance, and other evidence of compliance with these requirements for each policy to be
maintained for the upcoming term, along with evidence of the payment of the premium for each. If
Franchisee does not maintain the required insurance coverage, or does not furnish Franchisor with
satisfactory evidence of the required insurance coverage and the payment of the premiums for same,
Franchisor may, at its option and in addition to its other rights and remedies under this Agreement, obtain
any required insurance coverage on Franchisee’s behalf. If Franchisor does so, Franchisee agrees to fully
cooperate with Franchisor in its effort to obtain the insurance policies, promptly execute all forms or
instruments required to obtain or maintain the insurance, allow any inspections of the Restaurant which
are required to obtain or maintain the insurance and pay to Franchisor, on demand, any costs and
premiums Franchisor incurs.

BB. Insurance Maintained by Franchisor. Franchisee’s obligation to obtain and maintain
insurance policies in the amounts specified herein shall not be limited in any way by reason of any
insurance that Franchisor may maintain, nor does Franchisee’s procurement of required insurance relieve
Franchisee of liability under the indemnity obligations described in Section 8(E). Franchisee’s insurance
procurement obligations under this Agreement are separate and independent of Franchisee’s indemnity
obligations. Franchisor does not represent or warrant that any insurance that Franchisee is required to
purchase will provide adequate coverage for Franchisee. Franchisee should consult with its own
insurance agents, brokers, attorneys and other insurance advisors to determine the level of insurance
protection it needs and desires, in addition to the coverage and limits required by Franchisor.

11. ADVERTISING

A Local Advertising. In addition to the Advertising Fee payable to Franchisor under
Section 3(C) of this Agreement, Franchisee shall aggressively advertise and promote the Marks.
Commencing in the sixth (6" calendar month of operation, Franchisee must expend a minimum of One
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Thousand Dollars ($1,000) per month for local advertising and promotions to be conducted within the
Territory in accordance with the provisions of the Manual. Franchisee shall adhere to such advertising
regulations as Franchisor may impose, and use only materials and promotional discounts provided or
approved by Franchisor for local advertising use, and make all signs and other advertising in all instances
with an appropriate indication to protect Franchisor’s rights in the Marks, and cause all local signs and
other advertising made by or for Franchisee to display and reproduce the Marks exactly and accurately,
and in the form and manner uniformly required by Franchisor. In addition, Franchisee shall advertise
continuously in the printed book and/or on-line versions of each local telephone directory distributed
within the Territory under the listing of “Restaurant” using ad mats which have been approved in advance
by Franchisor. Franchisee shall also exhibit, promote the sale of, sell and distribute Giordano’s®
premiums and novelties, promotional literature, and other materials as Franchisor at any time and from
time to time requests, and shall participate in such promotional drives, prize contests, and other programs,
without regard to the geographic territory thereof, as Franchisor may at any time and from time to time

specify.

B. Grand Opening Advertising. During the period commencing one (1) month prior to the
opening of Franchisee’s Restaurant and ending five (5) months after the date on which Franchisee’s
Restaurant opens for business, Franchisee will spend a minimum amount on approved grand opening
advertising and promotion for its Restaurant of (i) Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000) if Franchisee’s
Restaurant is a Limited-Service Restaurant; or (ii) Twenty Thousand Dollars ($20,000) if Franchisee’s
Restaurant is a Full-Service Restaurant.

C. Advertising Reports. Franchisee will provide Franchisor with an accurate accounting
(in the form prescribed by Franchisor) of its expenditures for grand opening advertising and promotion
within six (6) months after the opening of the Restaurant, and of its monthly expenditures for local
advertising by the tenth (10") day of each month for the preceding month.

D. Giordano’s® Website; Digital Content. Franchisor will establish and maintain an on-
line presence on the Internet or a website (the “Giordano’s® Website”) to advertise and promote
Giordano’s® Restaurants, including Franchisee’s Giordano’s® Restaurant.  All features of the
Giordano’s® Website, including the domain name, content, features, format, functions, procedures and
links to other websites, will be determined by Franchisor, in its sole discretion. Franchisor will have the
right to modify, enhance, suspend or temporarily or permanently discontinue the Giordano’s® Website at
any time, in its sole discretion. Franchisee will not have the right to establish a website on the Internet to
advertise or promote its Restaurant. Franchisor and its Affiliates will have the sole right to promote on
the Internet the Approved Products and Approved Services offered by Franchisee’s Restaurant, to create a
website containing the “Giordano’s” name and the Marks, and to use “giordanos.com” or any derivative
or related domain name. Franchisor reserves the right to charge Franchisee a one-time fee or periodic
fees to reimburse Franchisor for the costs associated with digital and online advertising for Giordano’s®
Restaurants and the maintenance or enhancement of the content, features and functions of the
Giordano’s® Website. Franchisee’s Restaurant will be removed from the Giordano’s® Website
immediately upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

E. Email; Intranet. All email correspondence related to Franchisee’s Giordano’s®
Restaurant will be conducted via the email address designated by Franchisor for the Restaurant. If
Franchisor develops an Intranet network through which Franchisor and its franchisees can communicate
by email or similar electronic means, then Franchisee will use Franchisor’s Intranet in strict compliance
with the standards, protocols and restrictions that are set forth in this Agreement, the Manual or otherwise
in writing by Franchisor. Franchisee will not transmit any Confidential Information, documents or data
without complying with the security measures adopted by Franchisor. Franchisee will not make any
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derogatory, defamatory or libelous statements in any transmission made via the Internet, through an
Intranet network or by any other means.

F. Social Networking. Franchisee and its Management Team, employees and agents will
not have the right to use any of the Marks or other intellectual property of Franchisor on any social
network, social media or online discussion forum or community on the Internet or any other online,
digital or electronic medium including, but not limited to, any “blog,” YouTube, Facebook, MySpace,
Wikipedia, professional networks like Linked-In, live-blogging tools like Twitter, virtual worlds, file,
audio and video sharing sites, and other similar social networking media or tools (as such programs,
platforms, and sites now exist and may exist in the future, “Social Media”), except with the prior written
permission of Franchisor which will require, among other requirements, that all administrative credentials
for such sites be shared with Franchisor, and kept up-to-date. Franchisor may designate from time to time
regional or territory-specific user names/handles that Franchisee must maintain. Franchisee and its
Management Team, employees and agents will comply with all of Franchisor’s policies, standards and
procedures for use of any Social Media that in any way references the Marks or involves the Restaurant.

G. Co-op Advertising. If an association of Giordano’s® Restaurant franchisees is
established in a geographic area in which Franchisee’s Restaurant is located (the “Co-op”), Franchisee
must join and actively participate in it. Franchisee also must contribute to the Co-op such amounts as are
determined from time to time by the franchisees in the Co-op. Franchisor will not set the amount of those
contributions and there is no limit. Franchisee’s local advertising requirement will be reduced by the
amount that Franchisee contributes to any Co-op, up to the amount of Franchisee’s local advertising
requirement. The Co-op will adopt its own rules, regulations and procedures, which Franchisee must
follow. However, the rules, regulations and procedures of the Co-op must be approved by Franchisor.
No advertising may be utilized by the Co-op unless and until Franchisor has reviewed and approved it.
Franchisor also has the right to participate in any meetings of the Co-op and its members. Franchisee’s
failure to timely contribute the amounts required by the Co-op constitutes a material breach of this
Agreement.

12. BOOKS, RECORDS, REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A Books and Records. Franchisee shall use in the Restaurant only point-of-sale
computerized cash register systems interfacing with Franchisor’s main office computer, equipped with a
non-resettable device. At Franchisor’s request, Franchisee shall install and use in the Restaurant such
software, data processing and data transmission equipment as Franchisor may designate, upgrading it as
necessary to meet Franchisor’s specifications. Franchisee shall maintain and keep on its premises or at
such other practical and mutually convenient place acceptable to Franchisor, true and accurate records,
books and data, which shall reflect all particulars relating to the business done and the expenditures and
receipts of the operation of the Restaurant business. At Franchisor’s request, on a daily basis or
otherwise, Franchisee shall allow Franchisor to derive and copy data and sales information from
Franchisee’s computer by modem, diskette or otherwise. Franchisee shall retain for a period of not less
than five (5) years all supporting documents and other materials including, but not limited to cash register
tapes, computer printouts and other devices used to store or record computerized data and information
payroll records, payroll tax returns, time cards, dining room guest checks, pick-up and delivery order
guest checks, sales invoices, bank statements, deposit receipts, cancelled checks, paid invoices, and a true
and complete copy of the annual inventory or the value of the inventory on hand.

B. Reports and Financial Statements. Franchisee shall, without any notice or demand by
Franchisor, deliver to Franchisor, in the form and/or format approved or required by Franchisor from time
to time, the following: (1) by Wednesday of each week, a statement of Gross Revenues of the Restaurant
for the week ending the preceding Sunday; (2) by the fifteenth (15th) day of each month, a statement of
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the Gross Revenues for the preceding month and any other data, information, and supporting records
Franchisor reasonably requires; (3) by the fifteenth (15th) day of each month, financial statements for the
preceding month; (4) by the fifteenth (15th) day of each month, copies of all applicable state and local
sales, use and service tax returns or reports for the immediately preceding month; (5) within ninety (90)
days after the end of each fiscal year, a profit and loss statement and balance sheet covering Franchisee’s
previous fiscal year’s operations; and (6) a copy of Franchisee’s state and federal income tax return for
each year, at such time as such tax returns are filed. Additionally, Franchisee’s owners and guarantors
shall, without any notice or demand by Franchisor, deliver to Franchisor: (a) financial statements for each
fiscal year within one hundred twenty (120) days after the owner’s and/or guarantor’s fiscal year end; and
(b) a copy of each such owner’s and/or guarantor’s state and federal tax returns for each year at such time
as such tax returns are filed. All of Franchisee’s financial statements shall be prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied and will conform to the accounting year and
standard chart of accounts prescribed by Franchisor in the Manual or otherwise in writing. Franchisor
reserves the right to require that any or all financial statements be prepared and audited or reviewed by an
independent certified public accountant designated or approved by Franchisor.

13. INSPECTIONS AND AUDITS

A Inspections. Franchisor and its representatives or agents will have the right during
business hours without notice, and at other reasonable times with notice, to enter and inspect the
Restaurant and the Equipment used to prepare, store, sell and provide any Approved Products and
perform or render any Approved Services, to discuss with Franchisee, or such others as Franchisor may
elect, all matters that may pertain to compliance with this Agreement and with the standards referred to
herein, to review and copy data stored on the computer, to photograph and videotape the Restaurant and
such other facilities and to remove for testing, without payment, samples of products and other items at
the Restaurant and such other facilities. Franchisor and its representatives or agents will also have the
right, under Franchisee’s supervision, to collect samples at any other facilities under Franchisee’s control.
Franchisor and any of its authorized employees, supervisors or agents shall have the right to remove all
unauthorized products from the Restaurant without any liability to Franchisee including, but not limited
to, payment for such unauthorized products.

B. Quality Assurance Programs. Franchisee will, at its expense, cooperate with and
participate in any inspections, quality assurance programs and other procedures or programs specified or
required by Franchisor to monitor the quality of the operations of Franchisee’s Restaurant, including
telephonic or electronic customer polling and on-site “secret shopper” programs. Payments for the costs
associated with Franchisee’s participation in such quality assurance programs will be due and payable by
Franchisee within ten (10) days after receipt of an invoice indicating the amount owed; provided however,
that such payments will not exceed One Thousand Dollars ($1,000) in any calendar quarter.

C. Audits. Franchisor and its representatives or agents will have the right at any time during
business hours without notice and at other reasonable times without notice, to inspect, copy, request,
receive and/or audit, or cause to be inspected, copied, requested, received and/or audited, the business
records, bookkeeping and accounting records, sales and income tax records and returns and other records
of the Restaurant including, but not limited to, the cash register(s) and the books and records of any
corporation, partnership or other entity which holds the Franchise wherever such records may be located.
Franchisee agrees to fully cooperate with Franchisor and its representatives or agents and any independent
accountants selected and hired by Franchisor to conduct any inspection or audit. If any inspection or
audit discloses an understatement of the Gross Revenues of the Restaurant, Franchisee must pay
Franchisor within seven (7) days after receipt of the inspection or audit report, the Continuing License
Fees and Advertising Fees, plus interest and Administrative Fees on the amount of the understatement (at
a rate and on the terms provided in Section 3(J) of this Agreement) from the date originally due until the
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date of payment. Further, if the inspection or audit is made necessary by failure to furnish the reports,
supporting records, sales tax returns, other information or financial statements, required by this
Agreement, or to furnish those reports, records, information or financial statements on a timely basis, or if
an understatement of the reported Gross Revenues for any period is determined by an audit or inspection
to be greater than two percent (2%), or if the audit cannot reasonably be completed, Franchisee shall
reimburse Franchisor for any costs associated with such inspection or audit, including, without limitation,
the charges of attorneys and any accountants, and the travel expenses, room and board and applicable per
diem charges for Franchisor’s representatives or agents. In addition, if the audit cannot reasonably be
completed, it shall be presumed that Franchisee under reported its Gross Revenues during such period by
twenty percent (20%), and Franchisee shall pay Franchisor the additional Advertising Fees and
Continuing License Fees, interest and Administrative Fees due thereon. The above remedies are in
addition to all other remedies and rights Franchisor may have under this Agreement or under applicable
law.

14. ASSIGNMENT AND SALE

A. Assignment by Franchisee; Conditions. This Agreement is a personal one being
entered into by Franchisor in reliance upon and in consideration of the personal skills, qualifications and
representations of, and the trust and confidence reposed in Franchisee and, where applicable, its partners,
officers, directors, owners and managers. Accordingly, except as otherwise provided herein, Franchisee
shall have no right to assign, sell, transfer, or encumber, by operation of law or otherwise (hereinafter
referred to as “assignment” or, in the predicate, as “assign™) all or part of its interest in this Agreement
and/or any of the Franchise Assets without obtaining the prior written consent of Franchisor, which
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, and in conformance with the first refusal procedures
described in Section 14(E) below. “Franchise Assets” will include: (i) this Agreement; (ii) the ownership
interests in Franchisee, if Franchisee is an entity; (iii) any of the assets of Franchisee’s Restaurant; (iv) the
lease for the Restaurant; (v) the land and building for the Site of the Restaurant (if owned by Franchisee
or Franchisee’s owners); and (vi) the Equipment, furniture, fixtures, supplies and other items used in the
Restaurant, except for transactions involving the sale of such items in the normal course of business. It
shall not be unreasonable for Franchisor to impose certain conditions precedent to or as a condition of its
consent to an assignment by Franchisee including, but not limited to, the following:

@ That the purchaser, transferee or assignee (hereinafter referred to as “assignee”) in the
sole judgment of Franchisor meets Franchisor’s standards then applied to evaluate prospective
franchisees, including but not limited to, good moral character and reputation, competence, financial
ability and satisfaction of credit requirements;

2 That all outstanding debts of Franchisee owed to Franchisor and all others and all other
obligations incurred pursuant to this Agreement are fully satisfied and shall be assumed by the assignee
and its owners, in a manner satisfactory to Franchisor;

3 That prior to the assignment, Franchisee executes a general release of Franchisor of all
claims in a form approved by Franchisor;

(@) That the assignee and its owners, if any, execute the then-current form of Franchise
Agreement in compliance with all waiting periods under applicable federal and state franchise registration
and disclosure laws or rules and agree to be bound by all provisions of the Franchise Agreement,
including, but not limited to, any restrictive covenants contained therein;

2024 VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC FA 34
63404914v2



(5) That Franchisee pays to Franchisor in cash or certified check or cashier’s check a transfer
fee in an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of the then-current Initial Franchise Fee (the “Transfer
Fee™);

(6) That the assignee and/or its personnel successfully completes, to Franchisor’s
satisfaction, the next available initial training program with the cost of the training program as well as
transportation, lodging and meals to be paid by the assignee;

@) That Franchisee has cured all defaults and non-compliance under this Agreement
(including the Manual) and any other Agreement between Franchisee and Franchisor or any of their
affiliates; and

(8 That the assignee obtains, in the proper name, all necessary, effective and valid insurance
policies, business license(s) and liquor license(s) prior to the closing of any proposed assignment.

Franchisor may expand upon, and provide more details related to, the conditions for assignment
and Franchisor’s consent as described in this Section 14(A), and may do so in the Operations Manual or
otherwise in writing.

B. Transfer Costs. The Transfer Fee is intended to cover all costs attendant to such
assignment, including without limitation, credit investigation, legal fees, and related expenses, including
an allocation of Franchisor’s internal costs and, if applicable, the costs of training the assignee and/or its
Management Team (the “Transfer Costs”). Franchisee shall pay Franchisor a deposit of Two Thousand
Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500) upon submitting its formal written request to assign, which will be
credited towards the Transfer Fee. If no assignment occurs, Franchisor will return the deposit to
Franchisee, less Franchisor’s Transfer Costs associated with the request for assignment.

C. Consent to Assignment by Franchisor. At least sixty (60) days prior to the closing of
any proposed assignment, Franchisee must deliver by registered mail to Franchisor written notice of all
the terms and conditions of the proposed assignment and the financial statements of the proposed assignee
for the preceding three (3) years or such other financial and other information as Franchisor may require
including, if Franchisor so requests, a copy of the unconditional, non-contingent contract for such sale or
assignment. Franchisor shall not under any circumstance be deemed to have ratified or approved any
representation or warranty therein or other provision thereof, and Franchisor shall have no liability to
Franchisee or any successor to any part or all of Franchisee’s interest hereunder due to any defects or
inaccuracies in such contract. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Franchisor may require full and accurate
disclosure by Franchisee to the proposed assignee of all obligations in connection with or related to the
Franchise. Franchisee must thereafter deliver to Franchisor by registered mail, within seven (7) days after
Franchisor’s request, any additional information Franchisor requests. Within thirty (30) days after receipt
of the notice of proposed assignment and the financial statements described above, Franchisor shall either
approve or disapprove the assignment or notify Franchisee that Franchisor will exercise their right of first
refusal described in Section 14(E) below. If Franchisor fails to notify Franchisee within thirty (30) days,
Franchisor shall be deemed to have consented to the assignment. Consent to an assignment shall not
constitute consent to an assignment to the same assignee upon any other terms or conditions or to any
subsequent assignment to another assignee.

D. Deemed Assignments. In addition to the assignments described above, the following
shall be deemed to be assignments of this Agreement which will require Franchisor’s prior written
consent and the payment of the appropriate Transfer Fees:
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(1) If Franchisee is a corporation:

@) any merger, consolidation, recapitalization or similar reorganization involving
the corporation or its shareholders;

(b) any sale or transfer of voting stock or debt instruments convertible into voting
stock;

(c) the sale, lease or other transfer of all or substantially all the assets of such
corporation; or

(d) the dissolution of such corporation.
2 If Franchisee is a partnership or limited liability company:

@) any sale or transfer of any general partner’s, manager’s or member’s interest
(including a transfer or series of transfers of shares of voting stock of a corporate partner,
manager or member);

(b) any sale or transfer of voting partnership or membership interests or debt
instruments convertible into voting partnership or membership interests;

(c) any sale, lease or other transfer of all or substantially all the partnership or
limited liability company’s assets; or

(d) the dissolution of the partnership or limited liability company.

E. Franchisor’s Right of First Refusal. If Franchisee desires to make any assignment
which requires Franchisor’s consent hereunder, Franchisee must give Franchisor not less than sixty (60)
days prior written notice of such proposed assignment. Said notice must specify the name and address of
the proposed purchaser or assignee and must set forth the price, terms, conditions and date and place of
the closing of the proposed assignment. Franchisor shall have the option, exercisable within thirty (30)
days after receipt of such notice, to purchase the interest being assigned for the same price and upon the
same terms and conditions as set forth in the notice. During that period of thirty (30) days, Franchisor
shall have the right to inspect all of Franchisee’s books and records relating to the franchise operation,
specifically including all financial records and statements for the three (3) full fiscal years preceding the
date on which the thirty (30) day right of first refusal commences, and, if Franchisee is a corporation, all
corporate minute books and transfer records. If Franchisor waives or does not exercise its right of first
refusal, then Franchisee may complete the proposed assignment provided Franchisor first consents thereto
in writing as required by and under the terms and conditions stated in Section 14(A) above. In the event
the proposed assignment is not completed, or the terms and conditions of the proposed assignment are
altered, Franchisor shall have a new right of first refusal for thirty (30) days with regard to an assignment.

F. Assignment on Death. If Franchisee or, as applicable, Franchisee’s majority equity
owner(s) or general partner(s) die(s), the surviving spouse, heirs or estate of the deceased Franchisee,
owner or partner, as the case may be, shall be allowed to participate in the ownership of the franchised
Restaurant business during the one hundred eighty (180) days after such death. During the one hundred
eighty (180) day period, all standards and obligations under this Agreement must be maintained. Prior to
the end of the one hundred eighty (180) day period, the participant must either (1) apply to Franchisor for
the right to continue to operate the Franchise for the remainder of the term of this Agreement and any
renewals hereof, which right shall be granted upon the participant’s fulfiliment of all the then-current
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gualifications for Giordano’s® Restaurant franchisees; or (2) assign this Agreement and the Restaurant to
an assignee who satisfies Franchisor’s then-current standards for franchisees in accordance with this
Section 14.

G. Assignment or Transfer of Real Estate. Franchisor’s consent is not required for an
assignment or transfer of the real estate upon which the Restaurant is located, provided that (1) if
Franchisee or an affiliated or related person or entity is the seller or purchaser thereof, the lease provisions
are satisfactory to Franchisor, (2) such assignment or transfer does not materially affect Franchisee’s
business, and (3) Franchisor is given twenty (20) days prior written notice of the intended assignment or
transfer and a reasonable opportunity to review the intended assignment and/or transfer documents in
order to determine whether such assignment or transfer will materially affect Franchisee’s business.

H. Franchisee’s Continued Liability. If any assignment is permitted and effected
hereunder pursuant to this Section 14, then the assigning Franchisee, partner or owner, as the case may
be, shall be and remain liable to Franchisor for payment of all monies due to Franchisor, liability for
which accrued prior to the effective date of the assignment. The assigning Franchisee, partner or owner
shall also continue to be bound by the restrictive covenants and provisions set forth in Sections 6, 8, 9 and
15 of this Agreement, except that the restrictive period provided for in Section 9(E) shall commence on
the effective date of the assignment or on the date the assignee takes possession of the Restaurant and
commences business, whichever shall occur first.

I Assignment by Franchisor. Franchisor shall have the right to assign this Agreement
without the consent or approval of Franchisee. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of Franchisor,
its successors and assigns.

J. Agreement of Assignee. Any assignee of all or part of Franchisee’s or a partner’s or
owner’s interest in this Agreement shall be deemed to have expressly agreed to and assumed all of the
obligations of Franchisee under this Agreement, specifically including all restrictions on assignment
provided for in this Section 14, and any reference in this Agreement to “Franchisee” shall be deemed to
include any such assignees.

15. TERMINATION

A Termination Without Notice or Opportunity to Cure. Franchisor shall have the right
to terminate this Agreement effectively immediately without notice or opportunity to cure if any of the
following events occur:

@ In the event the Site has not been located and the lease for the Restaurant has not been
executed (or legal possession of the Site has not been acquired) within six (6) months after the execution
date of this Agreement by Franchisor if the Restaurant is a Limited-Service Restaurant or nine (9) months
after the execution date of this Agreement by Franchisor if the Restaurant is a Full-Service Restaurant.
The Initial Franchise Fee paid by Franchisee shall not be refunded under any circumstances.

2 Franchisee is declared bankrupt or judicially determined to be insolvent, or all or a
substantial part of the assets of Franchisee are assigned to or for the benefit of any creditor, or Franchisee
admits an inability to pay Franchisee’s debts as they come due;

3 Franchisee abandons the Franchise by failing to operate the Restaurant for five (5)
consecutive days during which Franchisee is required to operate, or any shorter period after which it is not
unreasonable for Franchisor to conclude that Franchisee does not intend to continue to operate the
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Restaurant unless such failure to operate is due to fire, flood, earthquake or other similar causes beyond
Franchisee’s control;

(@)) Franchisor and Franchisee agree in writing to terminate this Agreement;

(5) Franchisee makes any material misrepresentations relating to the acquisition of the
Franchise or Franchisee engages in conduct that reflects materially and unfavorably upon the operation
and reputation of Franchisor, the Restaurant or the System;

(6) After curing any breaches described in Section 15(B) of this Agreement, Franchisee
engages in the same non-compliance, regardless of whether such non-compliance is corrected after notice;

@) Franchisee repeatedly fails to comply with one or more requirements of this Agreement,
regardless of whether corrected after notice;

(8) The Restaurant or any other assets (including books and records) used by Franchisee in
connection with the operation of the Restaurant or Franchisee’s business are seized by a government
official in the exercise of such official’s duties (other than condemnation) or seized by a creditor,
lienholder or lessor;

9 A final judgment against Franchisee remains unsatisfied for thirty (30) days, unless a
supersedeas or other appeal bond has been filed, or a levy or execution is made upon the License granted
by this Agreement or upon any property used in the Restaurant and is not discharged within five (5) days
after such levy or execution;

(10)  Franchisee, any partner or owner of Franchisee or the General Manager is convicted of
(a) a felony or (b) other criminal misconduct that substantially impairs the goodwill associated with the
Marks;

(11)  Franchisor reasonably determines that Franchisee’s continued operation of the Restaurant
will result in imminent danger to public health or safety or will substantially impair the goodwill
associated with the Marks or Giordano’s®;

(12)  Franchisee fails to attend or to satisfactorily complete Franchisor’s training program;

(13)  Franchisee fails to open the Restaurant as set forth in Section 4(K) of this Agreement, or
opens the Restaurant without completely complying with each and all of the requirements set forth in
Section 4 of this Agreement;

(14)  Franchisee sells, assigns or transfers all or any part of its interest in this Agreement or, if
Franchisee is an entity, an owner sells, assigns or transfers all or part of his or her ownership interest, or,
if Franchisee is a partnership, a partner sells, assigns or transfers all or any part of his or her interest in the
partnership, without first complying with the terms of Section 14 of this Agreement; or

(15)  The lease for the Restaurant premises is cancelled or terminated by the landlord thereof
or Franchisee is in default under the lease beyond any applicable cure period.
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B. Termination After Notice and Opportunity to Cure. Franchisor shall have the right to
terminate this Agreement after notice and an opportunity to cure as follows:

(D) If Franchisee fails to pay when due any monies owed to Franchisor or any affiliate of
Franchisor, or any supplier or other creditor, then written notice of such failure will be personally
delivered or sent, postage prepaid by certified or registered mail to Franchisee, and this Agreement shall
terminate upon the expiration of a period of five (5) days without any further notice, except as may be
required by law, if Franchisee fails to pay the monies owed by the expiration of such five (5) day period;

2 If Franchisee fails to comply with any federal, state or local law or regulation applicable
to the operation of the Restaurant, then written notice of such non-compliance will be personally
delivered or sent, postage prepaid by certified or registered mail to Franchisee, and this Agreement shall
terminate upon the expiration of a period of ten (10) days without any further notice, except as may be
required by law, if Franchisee fails to cure such non-compliance by the expiration of such ten (10) day
period; or

3 If Franchisee breaches this Agreement, other than those described in Sections 15(A),
15(B)(1) and 15(B)(2) above, then written notice of such breach will be personally delivered or sent,
postage prepaid by certified or registered mail to Franchisee, and this Agreement shall terminate upon the
expiration of a period of thirty (30) days without any further notice, except as may be required by law, if
Franchisee fails to cure such breach by the expiration of such thirty (30) day period.

C. Termination After Notice. This Agreement will automatically terminate on delivery of
notice of termination to Franchisee if any part of this Agreement relating to the payment of fees to
Franchisor, to Franchisor’s right to control the use of Advertising Fees, to non-competition during the
term of this Agreement or to the preservation of any of the Marks or Confidential Information is for any
reason declared invalid or unenforceable, and if as a result, Franchisor believes in its sole opinion that the
continuation of this Agreement would not be in the best interests of the Giordano’s® System.

D. Cross-Default. Any default or non-compliance by Franchisee under this Agreement
constitutes a default under any other agreement between Franchisee or Franchisee’s affiliates, on the one
hand, and Franchisor or Franchisor’s affiliates, on the other hand. Any default or non-compliance under
any other agreement between Franchisee or Franchisee’s affiliates, on the one hand, and Franchisor or
Franchisor’s affiliates, on the other hand, or any failure by Franchisee or Franchisee’s affiliates to
perform any obligation owed to Franchisor or Franchisor’s affiliates constitutes a default under this
Agreement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Franchisee and Franchisor are parties to an Area
Development Agreement, Franchisee’s failure to comply with the Development Schedule (as defined in
the Area Development Agreement) shall not constitute a default under this Agreement.

E. Franchisee’s Obligations Upon Termination. Upon termination of this Agreement for
any reason, all rights and obligations between Franchisor and Franchisee will terminate except for those
obligations of Franchisee that specifically or by their nature survive such termination. Franchisee will
cease to be a licensed participant in the System. Franchisee must:

@ Pay to Franchisor within seven (7) days after the effective date of termination or
expiration all amounts owing from Franchisee to Franchisor, plus late payments charges thereon as
described in Section 3(J);

2 Immediately discontinue and thereafter abstain from all usage of the Marks, signs and
structures, forms of promotion or advertising, and all materials, techniques, methods and products of any
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kind that are identified or associated with the System, and must return all such materials to Franchisor,
whether or not furnished by Franchisor;

3 Immediately make or cause to be made such changes in signs, buildings and structures as
Franchisor may direct in order to distinguish the business from its former appearance and from other
Giordano’s® Restaurants and, if Franchisee fails or omits to make or cause to be made such changes, then
Franchisor shall have the right to enter upon the Restaurant premises, without liability to Franchisee, and
to make or cause to be made such changes at the expense of Franchisee, which expense Franchisee shall
pay on demand,;

(@) Immediately take all actions necessary to cancel any assumed or fictitious name or other
registration containing any of the Marks, so as to delete the Marks and all references to anything
associated with the System, and furnish to Franchisor satisfactory evidence of compliance with this
obligation and the obligation to discontinue use of the Marks, within thirty (30) days after such expiration
or termination of this Agreement and if Franchisee fails to do so, Franchisor shall have the right to
execute in Franchisee’s name, an abandonment of the use of the name “Giordano’s®” and any derivative
or similar name or any work contained in such name, and Franchisee hereby irrevocably appoints and
designates Franchisor as Franchisee’s attorney-in-fact to do so which appointment shall be deemed to be
coupled with an interest;

5) Discontinue the use of any telephone listing or telephone directory listing for the
Restaurant and assign Franchisee’s Restaurant telephone number to Franchisor or the assignee designated
by Franchisor;

(6) Thereafter make no representation nor state that Franchisee is in any way approved or
licensed by Franchisor or associated with Franchisor, the Marks or the System;

@) Deliver immediately to Franchisor the Manual and all supplements, amendments and
additions thereto and all promotional or other materials of a proprietary nature or which bears any of the
Marks;

(8 Pay within seven (7) days after the effective termination or expiration all charges and
amounts due to others in connection with Franchisee’s operation of the Restaurant including, but not
limited to, affiliates, and all of Franchisor’s costs and expense of entering the Restaurant and making the
necessary changes as provided in this Section 15(E); and

9 If Franchisor’s repurchase option, as described in Sections 15(G) and 15(H) below, is not
exercised, upon Franchisee’s request and upon payment of the fair wholesale value thereof, return to
Franchisor all products and supplies bearing the Marks.

F. Appointment of Manager. In the event Franchisee has not cured a default under this
Agreement within the applicable cure period provided herein, Franchisor may, but is not required to,
appoint a manager to maintain the operations of the Restaurant for and on behalf of Franchisee for as long
as Franchisor deems necessary and practical. All funds from the operation of the Restaurant during the
period Franchisor’s representative manages the Restaurant shall be kept in a separate fund and all
expenses of the Restaurant incurred during this period, including the manager’s salary, shall be charged to
the fund. In addition to the payment of the manager’s salary, Franchisee shall also pay to Franchisor a per
diem fee for each day Franchisor’s representative continues to manage and operate the Restaurant, and all
third-party costs Franchisor incurs in connection with the management and operation of the Restaurant.
Operation of the Restaurant during any such period shall at all times be conducted for and on behalf of
Franchisee, provided that Franchisor shall only have a duty to utilize its reasonable efforts in the
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operation of the Restaurant and shall not be liable to Franchisee for any losses incurred from such
operation of the Restaurant, or to any of Franchisee’s creditors for any merchandise, supplies or services
purchased by the Restaurant during such period. Franchisee shall hold harmless Franchisor and its
representatives from any and all claims of any kind arising out of Franchisor’s operation of the
Restaurant. Franchisor’s appointment of a manager to operate the Restaurant shall not relieve Franchisee
of any obligations under this Agreement nor constitute a waiver of Franchisor’s right to Franchisor’s
appointment of a manager to operate the Restaurant shall not relieve Franchisee of any obligations under
this Agreement nor constitute a waiver of Franchisor’s right to terminate this Agreement as provided in
this Section 15. Franchisee agrees to pay all of Franchisor’s attorneys’ fees incurred in connection with
Franchisor’s exercise of its right to appoint a manager under this Section 15(F).

G. Franchisor’s Right to Repurchase. Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement,
Franchisor shall have the option, exercisable by written notice given to Franchisee within thirty (30) days
after the expiration or termination of this Agreement, to purchase from Franchisee for cash all tangible
assets of the Restaurant. Franchisor will also be entitled, at no additional cost, to an assignment of
Franchisee’s lease for the premises of the Restaurant or, if an assignment is prohibited, a sublease, for the
full remaining term of and on the same terms and conditions as Franchisee’s lease. If Franchisee or a
person or entity related to or affiliated with Franchisee owns the real property used for the Restaurant,
Franchisor shall also have the option, exercisable by written notice given to Franchisee within thirty (30)
days after the later to occur of (1) the expiration or termination of this Agreement or (2) Franchisor’s
learning that the real estate is owned by Franchisee or a person or entity related to or affiliated with
Franchisee, to purchase such real property. If this Agreement expires, the purchase price for the
Restaurant assets shall be an amount agreed upon by Franchisee and Franchisor within thirty (30) days
after Franchisor’s notice is given to Franchisee. If upon the expiration of this Agreement, Franchisee and
Franchisor cannot agree on a purchase price within such time, the purchase price shall be determined by
an independent appraiser selected as follows: (1) Franchisor and Franchisee shall each, by written notice
given to the other not later than thirty (30) days after Franchisor’s notice is given to Franchisee, designate
one appraiser with at least ten (10) years of experience appraising assets of the type which are the subject
of Franchisor’s notice in the area of the Restaurant; (2) if only one of Franchisor and Franchisee designate
an appraiser within such time, then the one appraiser so designated shall determine the purchase price. If
two appraisers are designated within such time, then the appraisers shall be directed to select, not later
than forty (40) days after Franchisor’s notice is given, a third appraiser who shall determine the purchase
price; (3) the decision of the appraiser shall be binding on Franchisor and Franchisee; (4) Franchisor and
Franchisee shall each pay the cost of the one appraiser, if only one appraiser is designated, or Franchisor
and Franchisee shall each pay the costs of their respective appraisers and the cost of the third appraiser
shall be divided equally between Franchisor and Franchisee; and (5) the appraiser making the
determination shall be directed, in determining the purchase price, not to include value for intangibles,
goodwill or for the business as a going concern. Upon the termination of this Agreement, the purchase
price for the Restaurant assets shall be book value as determined by generally accepted accounting
principles.

H. Closing of Repurchase Transaction. The closing of Franchisor’s purchase of the assets
(the “Closing™) shall occur at a time and place designated by Franchisor but in no event later than sixty
(60) days after determination of the purchase price. The purchase price shall be paid in three (3) equal
installments. The first installment shall be paid at the Closing and subsequent instaliments shall be due
on the first and second anniversary dates of the Closing. Unpaid installments of the purchase price shall
accrue interest from the date of the Closing until paid at the prime rate of interest announced from time to
time by the First National Bank of Chicago or, if the Bank stops announcing such a rate, then at the rate
the Bank charges its largest commercial borrowers for short-term borrowing. Payment of any accrued
interest shall accompany payments to Franchisee of each installment of the purchase price. Franchisor
shall have the right to offset against and reduce the amount of the first installment of the purchase price,
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and defer the installment, if necessary, by any and all amounts owed by Franchisee to Franchisor or any
of its affiliates. If Franchisee is unable to deliver clear title to all the purchase assets or if there are other
unresolved issues, the Closing will be accomplished through an escrow. If Franchisor exercises the
repurchase option set forth herein, Franchisor shall have the right, pending the Closing, to appoint a
manager to maintain the operation of the Restaurant. Alternatively, Franchisor may require Franchisee to
close the Restaurant during such time period without removing any assets other than perishable products.
Franchisor has an unrestricted right to assign the option to repurchase set forth herein to a third party.

I Continuing Obligations. All obligations of this Agreement (whether Franchisor’s or
Franchisee’s) which expressly or by their nature survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement
will continue in full force and effect after and notwithstanding its expiration or termination until such
obligations are satisfied in full or by their nature expire.

16. MISCELLANEQOUS

A. Invalid Provisions; Substitution of Valid Provisions. As stated earlier in this
Agreement in Section 15, if any provision of this Agreement relating to the payment of fees to Franchisor,
to non-competition during the term of this Agreement, or to the preservation of any of the Marks or
Confidential Information disclosed pursuant to this Agreement is declared invalid or unenforceable, and
if, as a result, Franchisor believes in its sole opinion that the continuation of this Agreement would not be
in the best interests of the System, Franchisor has the right to terminate this Agreement on written notice
to Franchisee. If any state or federal law requires Franchisor to renew this Agreement, Franchisee agrees
that renewal will be pursuant to the terms of Franchisor’s then-current form of Franchise Agreement. To
the extent that any restrictive covenant contained in this Agreement is deemed unenforceable because of
its scope in terms of area, business activity prohibited, or length of time, Franchisee agrees that the invalid
provision will be deemed modified or limited to the extent or manner necessary to make that particular
provision valid and enforceable to the greatest extent possible in light of the intent of the parties
expressed in that provision under the laws applied in the forum in which Franchisor is seeking to enforce
it. If any lawful requirement or court order of any jurisdiction (1) requires a greater advance notice of the
termination or non-renewal of this Agreement than is required under this Agreement, or the taking of
some other action which is not required by this Agreement, or (2) makes any provision of this Agreement
or any specification, action or operating procedure prescribed by Franchisor invalid or unenforceable, the
advance notice and/or other action required or revision of the specification action or operating procedure
will be substituted for the comparable provisions of this Agreement in order to make the modified
provision enforceable to the greatest extent possible. Franchisee agrees to be bound by the modification
to the greatest extent lawfully permitted.

B. Unilateral Waiver of Obligations. Either Franchisor or Franchisee may, by written
notice, unilaterally waive or reduce any obligation or restriction of the other party under this Agreement.
The waiver or reduction may be revoked at any time for any reason on ten (10) days written notice.

C. Written Consents from Franchisor. Whenever this Agreement requires Franchisor’s
advance approval or consent, Franchisee agrees to make timely written request for it. Franchisor’s
approval or consent will not be valid unless it is in writing.

D. No Guarantees. If in connection with this Agreement, Franchisor provides to Franchisee
any waiver, approval, consent or suggestion, or if Franchisor neglects or delays its response or denies any
request for any of those, Franchisor will not be deemed to have made any warranties or guarantees which
Franchisee may rely on, and will not assume any liability or obligation to Franchisee.
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E. No Waiver. If at any time or from time to time Franchisor does not exercise a right or
power available to it under this Agreement or does not insist on Franchisee’s strict compliance with the
terms of this Agreement, Franchisor will not be deemed to have waived its right to demand exact
compliance with any of the terms of this Agreement at a later time, and Franchisor’s waiver of any
particular breach or series of breaches under this Agreement or of any similar term in any other agreement
between Franchisor and any other franchises will not affect Franchisor’s rights with respect to any later
breach, and Franchisee waives any claim that any such act or failure to act by Franchisor constitutes a
custom or practice or deviation from or variance with the terms of this Agreement. Subsequent
acceptance by Franchisor of any payments due to it hereunder shall not be deemed to be a waiver by
Franchisor of any preceding or succeeding breach by Franchisee of any terms, provisions, covenants, or
conditions of this Agreement.

F. Cumulative Remedies. The rights and remedies specifically granted to either Franchisee
or Franchisor by this Agreement will not be deemed to prohibit either Franchisor or Franchisee from
exercising any other right or remedy provided under this Agreement or permitted by law or equity.

G. Binding Effect. This Agreement is binding on and will inure to the benefit of
Franchisor’s successor and assigns and will be binding on and inure to the benefit of Franchisee’s
successor and permitted assigns, and if Franchisee is an individual, on and to Franchisee’s heirs,
executors and administrators.

H. Entire Agreement. This Agreement supersedes and terminates all prior agreements,
either oral or in writing, between the parties involving the Franchise and/or the Restaurant and therefore,
representations, inducements, promises or agreements alleged by either Franchisor or Franchisee that are
not contained in this Agreement will not be enforceable. This Agreement, together with the recitals and
exhibits to it, constitutes the entire agreement between Franchisor and Franchisee relating to the
Restaurant, and there are no other oral or written understandings or agreements between Franchisor and
Franchisee concerning the subject matter of this Agreement; provided, however, that nothing in this or
any related agreement shall disclaim or require Franchisee to waive reliance on any representation
that Franchisor made in the most recent Franchise Disclosure Document (including its exhibits and
amendments) that Franchisor delivered to Franchisee or its representative, subject to any agreed-
upon changes to the contract terms and conditions described in that Franchise Disclosure
Document and reflected in this Agreement (including any riders or addenda signed at the same
time as this Agreement). This Agreement will not supersede any written agreements or contracts that
are signed by the parties concurrently with this Agreement. This Agreement (excluding, however, the
Manual which is deemed for certain purposes to be part of this Agreement) may be modified only by
written agreement signed by both Franchisor and Franchisee.

I No Liability to Others; No Other Beneficiaries. Franchisor will not, because of this
Agreement or by virtue of any approvals, advice or services provided to Franchisee, be liable to any
person or legal entity who is not a party to this Agreement, and no other party shall have any rights
because of this Agreement.

J. Construction. All headings of the various sections and paragraphs of this Agreement are
for convenience only and do not affect the meaning or construction of any provision. All reference in this
Agreement masculine, neuter or singular or plural usage will be construed to include the masculine,
feminine, neuter or singular or plural, wherever applicable. Except where this Agreement expressly
obligates Franchisor to reasonably approve or not unreasonably withhold its approval of any of
Franchisee’s actions or requests, Franchisor has the absolute right to refuse any request by Franchisee or
to withhold its approval of any action or omission by Franchisee. The term “affiliate” as used in this
Agreement is applicable to any company directly or indirectly owned or controlled by Franchisor or under
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common control with Franchisor that owns or operates Giordano’s® Restaurants, that sells products,
equipment or any other materials used in connection with the operation of a Giordano’s® Restaurant or
that otherwise transacts business with Franchisee.

K. Joint_and Several Liability. If two (2) or more persons are Franchisee under this
Agreement, their obligation and liability to Franchisor shall be joint and several.

L. Multiple Originals. This Agreement may be executed using multiple copies, each of
which will be deemed an original.

M. Timing Is Important. Time is of the essence with respect to each and every provision of
this Agreement in which time is a factor; provided, however, neither Franchisor nor Franchisee shall be
liable for loss or damage due to delay in the performance of its obligations resulting from transportation
shortages, inadequate supply of labor, material or energy, or the voluntary foregoing of the right to
acquire or use any of the foregoing in order to accommodate or comply with the orders, requests,
regulations, recommendations or instructions of any federal, state or municipal government or any
department or agency thereof, compliance with any law, ruling, order, regulation, requirement or
instruction of any federal, state, municipal government or any department or agency thereof, acts of God,
acts or omissions of the other party, fires, strikes, embargoes, wars, riots, or any other similar event or
cause beyond a party’s control. Any delay resulting from any of these causes shall extend performance
accordingly or excuse performance, in whole or in part, as may be reasonable.

N. Specific Performance, Injunctive Relief. Provided Franchisor gives Franchisee any
notice which may be required by law, Franchisor will be entitled, without being required to post a bond,
to the entry of temporary and permanent injunctions and orders of specific performance in any court of
competent jurisdiction (1) to enforce the provisions of this Agreement relating to Franchisee’s use of the
Marks and Franchisee’s confidentiality, non-disclosure and non-competition obligations under this
Agreement, (2) to enforce the provisions in Section 14 of this Agreement related to assignment and
prevent Franchisee’s assignment of this Agreement or the Franchise Assets without Franchisor’s prior
written consent, (3) to prohibit any act or omission by Franchisee or its employees that constitutes illegal
activity, a violation of any applicable law, ordinance or regulation, constitutes a danger to the public, or
may impair the goodwill associated with the Marks or Giordano’s® Restaurants, or (4) to prevent any
other irreparable harm to Franchisor’s interests, the Marks or the System. If Franchisor obtains an
injunction or order of specific performance, Franchisee agrees to pay Franchisor an amount equal to the
total of Franchisor’s costs of obtaining it, including without limitation, attorneys’, arbitrators’ and expert
witness fees, costs of investigation and proof of facts, court costs, other arbitration or litigation expenses
and travel and living expenses, and any damages Franchisor incurs as a result of the breach of any such
provision. Franchisee further agrees to waive any claims for damage in the event there is a later
determination that an injunction or specific performance order was issued improperly. Nothing in this
Agreement shall limit or restrict Franchisor’s rights under this Section 16(N).

0. Independent Provisions. The provisions of this Agreement are deemed to be severable.
The parties agree that each provision of this Agreement will be construed as independent of any other
provision of this Agreement.

P. Costs and Legal Fees. If Franchisor or Franchisee is required to enforce this Agreement
in a judicial or arbitration proceeding, the party prevailing in the proceeding shall be reimbursed by the
other party for its costs and expenses, including, without limitation, accountants’, attorneys’, attorneys
assistants’, arbitrators’ and expert witness fees, cost of investigation and proof of facts, court costs, other
litigation expenses and travel and living expenses, whether incurred prior to, in preparation for or in
contemplation of the filing of any such proceeding. If Franchisor is required to engage legal counsel in
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connection with any failure by Franchisee to comply with this Agreement, Franchisee shall reimburse
Franchisor for any of the above-listed costs and expenses incurred by it.

Q. Consent to Jurisdiction. Except as limited by Section 16(V) below, Franchisee agrees
that is shall and Franchisor may institute any action arising out of or relating to this Agreement in any
state or federal court of general jurisdiction in Cook County, Illinois. Franchisee and each partner,
shareholder, or other owner of Franchise irrevocably submits to the jurisdiction of such courts and waives
any objection it may have to either the jurisdiction or venue of such court. Franchisee acknowledges and
agrees that this Section shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

R. Waiver of Punitive Damages, Class Action Proceedings and Jury Trial. Franchisee
hereby waives to the fullest extent permitted by law, any right to or claim for punitive or exemplary
damages against Franchisor and agrees that in the event of a dispute between them, Franchisee shall be
limited to the recovery of actual damages sustained by it. Franchisor and Franchisee agree that any
dispute and any arbitration will be conducted and resolved on an individual basis only and not a
consolidated, class-wide, multiple plaintiff or similar basis. Any such proceeding will not be consolidated
with any other proceeding involving any other person, except for disputes involving affiliates of the
parties to such dispute or arbitration. Franchisor and Franchisee hereby irrevocably waive trial by jury in
any action, proceeding or counterclaim, whether at law or equity, brought by either of them against the
other whether or not there are other parties in such action or proceeding.

S. Limitations of Claims. Except with regard to Franchisee’s obligations to make
payments to Franchisor pursuant to this Agreement, any and all claims arising out of or relating to this
Agreement or the relationship of Franchisee and Franchisor pursuant hereto shall be barred unless an
action or proceeding is commenced within one (1) year after the first day on which Franchisee or
Franchisor knew or should have known, in the exercise of reasonable diligence, of the facts giving rise to
such claims. If written notice of the claim is not given by Franchisee or Franchisor within one (1) year
after the first day on which Franchisee or Franchisor knew or should have known, in the exercise of
reasonable diligence, of the facts giving rise to such claim, then the claim will be deemed to be condoned,
approved and waived by Franchisee or Franchisor. Upon written request from Franchisor, Franchisee will
furnish to Franchisor written confirmation, in a form acceptable to Franchisor, that as of the date of the
request, Franchisee does not have any claims against Franchisor arising out of or relating to this
Agreement or its relationship with Franchisor. For purposes of this Section 16(S), the term “claims”
means any allegation, challenge, demand, cause of action, lawsuit, arbitration, dispute, controversy,
investigation or administrative proceeding.

T. Mandatory Meeting of Executives. The parties agree that that before resorting to
arbitration, as required under Section 16(U), or any other legal proceeding, they will first attempt in good
faith to resolve any dispute, claim, or controversy arising out of or relating to this Agreement or any
alleged breach hereof by arranging a meeting between Franchisor and Franchisee. The party invoking a
meeting under this Section 16(T) must notify the other party in writing, which notice must name at least
one (1) owner, officer or director with decision-making authority who will be present at the meeting. The
party receiving the notice must reply within seven (7) days of receiving the notice, and must also identify
at least one (1) owner, officer or director with decision-making authority who will be present at the
meeting. No more than two (2) individuals from each party shall attend the meeting and, unless otherwise
agreed, counsel for either party shall not be present. The meeting will be held at Franchisor’s then-
current headquarters and must take place within thirty (30) days following the date either party first gives
notice hereunder. Neither party shall commence arbitration pursuant to Section 16(U) until thirty (30)
days after the meeting of executives takes place, during which time the parties will attempt in good faith
to resolve the dispute. If no resolution is reached, either party may commence arbitration pursuant to
Section 16(U) on the thirtieth (30th) day following the meeting. The entire meeting shall be confidential
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and the conduct, statements, promises, offers, views, and opinions of the parties will not be discoverable
or admissible in any legal proceeding for any purpose; provided, however, that evidence which is
otherwise discoverable or admissible will not be excluded from discovery or admission as a result of its
use in the meeting. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Section 16(T) shall not apply to Franchisor’s
right to seek temporary and permanent injunctions and orders of specific performance pursuant to Section
16(N) or any claim arising out of Franchisee’s failure to pay any monies owed to Franchisor or any
affiliate of Franchisor.

u. Arbitration. Except for controversies, disputes or claims related to or based on
Franchisee’s use of the Marks or Confidential Information, and any rights Franchisor may have to
possession of the premises of the Restaurant under any sublease, lease or collateral assignments, all
controversies, disputes or claims between Franchisor, its affiliates, and their respective owners, officers,
directors, agents, employees and attorneys, and Franchisee (its affiliates and owners and guarantors, if
applicable), arising out of or related to the following categories will be submitted for Arbitration:

@ This Agreement or any other agreement between the parties, or any provision of such
Agreements;

2 Franchisor’s relationship with Franchisee, or the obligations by and between the parties;

3 The validity of this Agreement or any other agreement between Franchisor and
Franchisee or any provision of such agreements;

(@) The System and any standard or criteria relating to the establishment or operation of the
Restaurant, including but not limited to, the approved methods of operation, approved methods of
preparation, secret recipes, uniformity and consistency of Approved Products and Approved Services; or

5) Any applicable statute or regulation with respect to the parties.

V. Arbitration Procedures. The claim will be submitted before one arbitrator to the
Chicago, lllinois office of the American Arbitration Association on demand of either party. Such
Arbitration proceedings will be conducted in Cook County, Illinois and, except as otherwise provided in
this Agreement, will be heard in accordance with the then-current rules of the American Arbitration
Association including, but not limited to, its Commercial Arbitration Rules and Optional Appellate
Arbitration Rules. Upon election by Franchisor, the Arbitration proceedings will be conducted in
accordance with the American Arbitration Association’s Expedited Procedures regardless of the amount
of any claim or counterclaim. All matters relating to Arbitration will be governed by the Federal
Arbitration Act (9 U.S.C. 81, et seq.) and not by any state arbitration law, and by the provisions of this
Agreement.

(1) Arbitration will be conducted on an individual basis only, not as a consolidated or class-
action proceeding, and Franchisor and Franchisee waive any and all rights to proceed on a consolidated or
class basis. Further, an Arbitration proceeding between Franchisor and Franchisee (its affiliates and
owners and guarantors) may not be consolidated with any other Arbitration proceeding between them and
any other franchisee, person or entity.

2 The parties agree that the Arbitrator must have a minimum of ten (10) years of
experience practicing in the area of franchise and distribution law, and must have served as an arbitrator
in at least five (5) arbitrations involving disputes between franchisors and franchisees.

2024 VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC FA 46
63404914v2



3 The Arbitrator shall have the exclusive jurisdiction to decide any questions as to whether
any claims are arbitrable or whether any respondent to such claims is subject to the arbitration
requirements of this Agreement.

(@)) Except as limited by this Agreement, the Arbitrator will have the right to award or
include in the award any relief which the Arbitrator deems proper in the circumstances, including, without
limitation, money damages (with interest on unpaid amounts from the date due), specific performance,
injunctive relief, and attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses (and interest on such fees, costs and expenses),
provided that the Arbitrator will not have the right to declare any mark generic or otherwise invalid or to
award exemplary or punitive damages. The decision of the Arbitrator will be conclusive and binding
upon all parties and judgment upon the Arbitrator’s decision may be entered in any court of competent
jurisdiction. The parties agree to be bound by the provisions of any limitation on the period of time in
which claims must be brought under applicable law or this Agreement, whichever expires earlier. The
parties further agree that, in connection with any such Arbitration proceeding, each must submit or file
any claim which would constitute a compulsory counterclaim (as defined by Rule 13 of the Federal Rules
of Civil Procedure) within the same proceeding as the claim to which it relates. Any such claim which is
not submitted or filed as described above will be forever barred. All claims subject to arbitration shall also
be subject to the statute of limitations prescribed by applicable law or by the applicable agreement(s)
between or among the parties.

W. Injunctive Relief. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Section,
Franchisor has the right in a proper case to obtain temporary restraining orders and temporary or
preliminary injunctive relief from a court of competent jurisdiction, as permitted by Section 16(N).

X. Survival of Arbitration Provisions. The provisions of Agreement relating to arbitration
are intended to benefit and bind certain third party nonsignatories and will continue in full force and
effect subsequent to and notwithstanding the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

Y. Exercise of Franchisor’s Business Judgment. Franchisor shall have the right, in its
sole judgment, to operate, develop and change the System in any manner that is not specifically
prohibited by this Agreement. Whenever Franchisor has reserved in this Agreement a right to take or
withhold an action, or to grant or decline to grant Franchisee a right to take or omit an action, Franchisor
may, except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, make its decision or exercise its rights
based on the information readily available to Franchisor and its judgment of what is in Franchisor’s, its
franchisees’, and/or the System’s best interests at the time the decision is made, regardless of whether
Franchisor could have made other reasonable or even arguably preferable alternative decisions or whether
its decision or the action it takes promotes its financial or other individual interest.

Z. Varying Standards. Because complete and detailed uniformity under many varying
conditions may not be possible or practical, Franchisor specifically reserves the right and privilege, in its
sole and absolute discretion and as it may deem in the best interests of all concerned in any specific
instance, to vary standards and Franchise Agreement provisions for any franchisee or prospective
franchisee based upon the peculiarities of a particular site or circumstance, density of population, business
potential, population or trade area, existing business practices, or any other condition which Franchisor
deems to be of importance to the successful operation of such franchisee’s business. Franchisee will not
have the right to complain about a variation from standard specifications and practices granted to any
other franchisee and will not be entitled to require Franchisor to grant Franchisee a like or similar
variation.

AA. Notices and Payments. All written notices and reports permitted or required under this
Agreement or by the Manual are given when personally delivered or deposited with the United States
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mail or with an overnight courier for delivery and will be deemed delivered at the time of delivery by
hand, one (1) business day after sending by overnight courier and three (3) business days after placement
in the United States mail. Notices delivered by United States mail shall be sent by Registered or Certified
Mail, Return Receipt Requested, postage prepaid. Notices to Franchisee shall be deemed properly
addressed if addressed to the address of the Restaurant. Any required payment or report which Franchisor
does not actually receive during regular business hours on the date due (or postmarked by postal
authorities at least two (2) days before it is due) will be deemed delinquent.

BB. Ownership of Franchise. Franchisee warrants and represents that Exhibit E attached
hereto is a complete and accurate statement of any and all persons or entities who have an ownership
interest, either directly or indirectly, legally or equitably, in Franchisee and the nature and extent of such
ownership interest.

CC. Guaranty and Assumption of Obligations. This Agreement shall be personally
guaranteed by all owners of Franchisee if Franchisee is a corporation or other legal entity, or all partners
of Franchisee if Franchisee is a partnership. Concurrent with the execution of this Agreement, all such
owners or partners shall execute an Owners’ and Guarantors’ Undertaking in the form of Exhibit F
attached hereto.

DD. Acknowledgments, Representations and Covenants.

@ Franchisee acknowledges that it received Franchisor’s Franchise Disclosure Document at
least fourteen (14) days prior to the payment of the Initial Franchise Fee and/or its execution of this
Agreement, that it received a copy of this Agreement with all material blanks filled in at least seven (7)
days prior to the execution of this Agreement, and that it understands and accepts the terms, conditions,
and covenants contained in this Agreement as being reasonably necessary to maintain Franchisor’s high
standards of quality and service and the uniformity of those standards at all and thereby to protect and
preserve the goodwill of the Marks and the System.

2 Franchisee acknowledges and represents that it has conducted an independent
investigation of the business venture contemplated by this Agreement and recognizes that, like any other
business, the nature of the business conducted by Franchisee may evolve and change over time, that an
investment in a Giordano’s® Restaurant Franchise involves business risks and that the success of the
venture is largely dependent upon the business abilities and efforts of Franchisee.

3 Neither Franchisor’s sales personnel nor any employee or officer of Franchisor is
authorized to make any claims or statements as to the earnings, sales or profits or prospects or chances of
success of any Franchise. Franchisor specifically instructs its sales personnel, agents, employees and
officers that they are not permitted to make such claims or statements as to the earnings, sales or profits or
the prospects or chances of success, nor are they authorized to represent or estimate dollar figures as to a
Giordano’s® Restaurant Franchise. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that except as set forth in this
Agreement or Franchisor’s Franchise Disclosure Document, Franchisee has not received and has not
relied on any representations, warranties, or guarantees, express or implied, regarding actual or potential
revenues, income, earnings, profitability, or success of the franchised business. Franchisor recommends
that applicants for Giordano’s® Restaurant Franchises make their own investigations and determine
whether or not a Giordano’s® Restaurant Franchise is profitable. Franchisor recommends that each
applicant for a Giordano’s® Restaurant Franchise consult with an attorney of its choosing and further be
represented by legal counsel at the time of its closing.

(@) If Franchisee is a legal entity, Franchisee (a) represents that it is duly organized and
validly existing in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its organization, is qualified to do
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business in all jurisdictions in which its business activities or the nature of properties owned by
Franchisee requires such qualification, and has the authority to execute, deliver and carry out all the terms
of this Agreement; and (b) agrees and warrants that all certificates representing ownership interests in
Franchisee now outstanding or hereafter issued will be endorsed with a legend in form approved by
Franchisor reciting that the transfer of ownership is subject to restrictions contained in this Agreement.
Franchisee further represents and warrants that all owners of Franchisee and their interests therein are
completely and accurately listed in Exhibit E of this Agreement and that Franchisee will execute such
revised Exhibit E as may be necessary during the term of this Agreement to reflect any changes in the
information contained therein.

(5) FRANCHISOR HAS MADE NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY THAT IT
WILL REPURCHASE THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS FROM FRANCHISEE OR IN ANY OTHER
WAY PROTECT FRANCHISEE FROM THE LOSS OF ANY MONIES PAID IN CONNECTION
WITH OR PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT AND THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS.
FRANCHISEE HAS BEEN INFORMED AND ACKNOWLEDGES ITS UNDERSTANDING OF THE
FACT THAT, BECAUSE OF THE HIGHLY COMPETITIVE NATURE OF THE BUSINESS
INVOLVED, SUCCESSFUL OPERATIONS OF THE FRANCHISE WILL DEPEND UPON ITS BEST
EFFORTS, CAPABILITIES, MANAGEMENT, AND EFFICIENT OPERATION OF THE
FRANCHISE BUSINESS, AS WELL AS THE GENERAL ECONOMIC TRENDS AND OTHER
LOCAL MARKETING CONDITIONS.

17. GOVERNING LAW; STATE MODIFICATIONS

A Governing Law; Severability. Except to the extent governed by the United States
Trademark Act of 1946 (Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. 81051, et seq.) and the Federal Arbitration Act, this
Agreement and the relationship between Franchisor and Franchisee will be governed by the laws of the
state in which the Restaurant is located. The provisions of this Agreement which conflict with or are
inconsistent with applicable governing law will be superseded and/or modified by such applicable law
only to the extent such provisions are inconsistent. The parties agree that any state law or regulation
applicable to the offer or sale of franchises or the franchise relationship will not apply unless the
jurisdictional provisions are independently met. Franchisee waives, to the fullest extent permitted by law,
the rights and protections provided by any such franchise law or regulation. All other provisions of this
Agreement will be enforceable as originally made and entered into upon the execution of this Agreement
by Franchisee and Franchisor.

B. Applicable State Laws. If applicable, the following states have statutes which may
supersede the provisions of this Agreement in Franchisee’s relationship with Franchisor in the areas of
termination and renewal of the Franchise: Arkansas [Stat. Section 70-807], California [Bus. & Prof. Code
Sections 20000-20043], Connecticut [Gen. Stat. Section 42-133e et seq.], Delaware [Code Section 2552],
Hawaii [Rev. Stat. Section 482E-1], Illinois [815 ILCS 705/19-20], Indiana [Stat. Section 23-2-2.7],
Michigan [Stat. Section 19.854(27)], Minnesota [Stat. Section 80C.14], Mississippi [Code Section 75-24-
51], Missouri [Stat. Section 407.400], Nebraska [Rev. Stat. Section 87-401], New Jersey [Stat. Section
56:10-1], Virginia [Code 13.1-557-574-13.1-564], Washington [Code Section 19.100.180], and
Wisconsin [Stat. Section 135.03]. These and other states may have court decisions that may supersede
the provisions of this Agreement in Franchisee’s relationship with Franchisor in the areas of termination
and renewal of the Franchise.

C. State Law Modifications. If Franchisee’s Restaurant is located in any one of the states
indicated below in this Section, or if the laws of any such state are otherwise applicable, then this
Agreement will be amended and revised as follows:
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@ California. If this Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of California, then: (a)
the covenant not to compete upon termination or expiration of this Agreement contained in Section 9(E)
may be unenforceable, except in certain circumstances provided by law; and (b) provisions of this
Agreement giving Franchisor the right to terminate in the event of Franchisee’s bankruptcy may not be
enforceable under federal bankruptcy laws (11 U.S.C. 8101, et seq.). No statement, questionnaire, or
acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the
franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise
law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any
franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes
any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

Payment of the initial franchise fee is deferred until such time as the franchisor completes its
initial obligations and franchise is open for business.

2 Minnesota. If this Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Minnesota, then:
(a) this Agreement will be amended to provide that, except in certain circumstances specified by law,
Franchisor must give Franchisee at least one hundred eighty (180) days prior written notice of nonrenewal
of the franchise; (b) except where the immediate termination of this Agreement is permitted under
Minnesota law, in the event Franchisor gives Franchisee written notice that Franchisee has breached this
Agreement, such written notice will be given to Franchisee at least ninety (90) days prior to the date this
Agreement is terminated by Franchisor, and Franchisee will have sixty (60) days after such written notice
within which to correct the breach specified in the written notice; (c) notwithstanding any provisions of
this Agreement to the contrary, a court of competent jurisdiction will determine whether Franchisor will
be required to post a bond or other security, and the amount of such bond or other security, in any
injunctive proceeding commenced by Franchisor against Franchisee, Franchisee’s owners or the personal
guarantors; (d) the scope of any release executed by Franchisee as a condition of assignment of this
Agreement or the Restaurant will be limited by applicable law; (e) notwithstanding any provisions of this
Agreement to the contrary, Franchisee will have up to three years after the cause of action accrues to
bring an action against Franchisor pursuant to Minn. Stat. §880C.17; (f) Minn. Stat. § 80C.21 and Minn.
Rule 2860.4400J prohibit Franchisor from requiring litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota,
requiring waiver of a jury trial, or requiring Franchisee to consent to liquidated damages, termination
penalties or judgment notes; (g) notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in this Agreement,
Franchisor will protect Franchisee’s right to use the Marks, and will indemnify Franchisee from any loss,
cost or expense arising out of a claim, suit or demand regarding Franchisee’s authorized use of the Marks;
and (h) nothing in this Agreement will be construed to abrogate or reduce any of the rights as provided for
in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C, or the rights to any procedure, forum or remedies provided for by the
laws of the State of Minnesota. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a
franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i)
waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii)
disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on
behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in
connection with the franchise.

3 New York. If this Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of New York, then:
(a) all rights enjoyed by Franchisee and any cause of action arising in its favor from the laws of the State
of New York and the regulations issued thereunder will remain in force, it being the intent of this
provision that the nonwaiver requirements of General Business Law 8§8687.4 and §687.5 be satisfied; and
(b) modifications to the Manual by Franchisor will not unreasonably increase Franchisee’s obligations or
place an excessive economic burden on Franchisee’s operations.
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(@) Washington. To the extent the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, Wash.
Rev. Code §819.100.010 — 19.100.940 applies, the terms of this Addendum apply. (1) In the event of a
conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, Chapter 19.100
RCW will prevail. (2) RCW 19.100.180 may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with
the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There may also be court
decisions which may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including
the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. (3) In any arbitration or mediation involving a
franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration or mediation site will be either in the state of
Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the time of the arbitration or mediation, or as
determined by the arbitrator or mediator at the time of arbitration or mediation. In addition, if litigation is
not precluded by the franchise agreement, a franchisee may bring an action or proceeding arising out of or
in connection with the sale of franchises, or a violation of the Washington Franchise Investment
Protection Act, in Washington. (4) A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee may not include
rights under the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder except
when executed pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties
are represented by independent counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or limit the
statute of limitations period for claims under the Act, or rights or remedies under the Act such as a right to
a jury trial, may not be enforceable. (5) Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the
franchisor’s reasonable estimated or actual costs in effecting a transfer. (6) Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a
noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an employee, including an employee of a
franchisee, unless the employee’s earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed
$100,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). In addition, a noncompetition
covenant is void and unenforceable against an independent contractor of a franchisee under RCW
49.62.030 unless the independent contractor’s earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when
annualized, exceed $250,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). As a result,
any provisions contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere that conflict with these limitations are
void and unenforceable in Washington. (7) RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting,
restraining, or prohibiting a franchisee from (i) soliciting or hiring any employee of a franchisee of the
same franchisor or (ii) soliciting or hiring any employee of the franchisor. As a result, any such provisions
contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere are void and unenforceable in Washington. No
statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

5) Wisconsin. If this Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Wisconsin, then the
provisions of the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, Wis. Stat. Chapter 135, will supersede any conflicting
terms of this Agreement.

[Signatures to follow]
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Intending to be legally bound, the parties have executed and delivered this Agreement to be
effective as of the Effective Date, regardless of the dates listed below.

FRANCHISOR: VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC
DATED: BY:
ATTEST: TITLE:
FRANCHISEE:
DATED: BY:
ATTEST: TITLE:
DATED:

Individually
DATED:

Individually
DATED:

Individually
DATED:

Individually
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EXHIBIT A
LOCATION ADDENDUM

The Site of the franchised Giordano’s® Restaurant which relates to the foregoing Franchise

Agreement, dated , 20 , between VVPC Pizza Franchise, LLC (“Franchisor”)
and (“Franchisee”) shall
be:

The Territory of the Restaurant shall be:

As follows: cor

No Territory

The Delivery Area for the Restaurant shall be as follows:

The undersigned Franchisee acknowledges that it has made a thorough investigation and analysis
of the Site for its Giordano’s® Restaurant and of the Territory (if any) described above, and it hereby
approves the same. The License grants specific and limited exclusive rights to Franchisee to operate a
Giordano’s® Restaurant at the Site within the Territory described above. The rights, both exclusive and
non-exclusive, attendant to the grant of the License are more fully described in Section 1 of the Franchise
Agreement.

FRANCHISOR: FRANCHISEE:
VPC PI1ZZA FRANCHISE, LLC
A(n)
By: By:
Print Name: Print Name:
Title: Title:
, individually
Print Name:
, individually
Print Name:
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EXHIBITB

LICENSED MARKS

Registration

Registration

Mark Class/Use
Date No.

GIORDANO’S 03/23/04 2,824,400 Restaurant Services
GIORDANO’S and Design 07/07/81 1,160,481 Restaurant Services
FAMOUS STUFFED PIZZA. FRESH ITALIAN 09/10/13 4,402,032 Restaurant Services
GIORDANOQO’S and Design 10/01/13 4,411,249 Restaurant Services

G Catering & Events 01/13/15 4,669,710 Catering Services
THE 1 GIORDANO’S WORLD FAMOUS PIZZA. FRESH 06/21/22 6,768,648 Restaurant Services

ITALIAN and Design
ITALIAN BORN CHICAGO RAISED 01/10/17 5,118,897 Restaurant Services
GIORDANO’S ITALIAN BORN. CHICAGO RAISED. 01/10/17 5,119,426 Restaurant Services
GIORDANO’S FAMOUS STUFFED DEEP DISH PIZZA. .

ITALIAN BORN CHICAGO RAISED 07/11/17 5,239,572 Restaurant Services
GIORDANO'S FAMCI)TU :L?;ﬁFFED PIZZA. FRESH 07/11/17 5,239,629 Restaurant Services
GIORDANO’S FAMOUS STUFFED DEEP DISH PIZZA 07/11/17 5,239,630 Restaurant Services
GIORDANO’S WORLD FAMOUS STUFFED DEEP DISH 02/20/18 5,408,262 Restaurant Services

PIZZA
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EXHIBIT C
ADDENDUM TO THE LEASE

THIS ADDENDUM TO THE LEASE (this “Addendum”) is dated , 20 :
and is entered into by and between:

Franchisee/Lessee: (“Lessee”)

Street Address:

City, State:

and

Lessor:

Street Address:

City, State:

Location:

Lease Agreement Date:

Effective Date of Franchise Agreement:

WHEREAS, Lessee and Lessor have entered into a Lease Agreement on the date and for the
location identified above (the “Lease™), in conjunction with the opening or continuation of a Giordano’s®
Restaurant under a Franchise Agreement between Lessee and VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC (the “Franchise
Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Lessee has requested and the Lessor has agreed to incorporate certain provisions
into the Lease as required by the terms of the Franchise Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is
hereby acknowledged, the parties do hereby agree as follows:

1. USES: Lessee shall occupy and use the premises during the term of this Lease only as a
Giordano’s® Restaurant.

2. NON-COMPETITION: During the term and any extension of the term of this Lease,
Lessor will not engage in, and agrees not be permit any other Lessee, tenant or occupant to engage in the
sale of products sold by Giordano’s® Restaurants in any other portion of the entire structure or premises
of which the demised premises are a part, or any premises owned or controlled by Lessor within a radius
of five (5) miles of the demised premises.

3. TRADE FIXTURES: Lessee is and shall be permitted to install and use in the Leased
premises any and all fixtures and equipment customary or necessary to the operation of a Giordano’s®
Restaurant, including, but not limited to, movable sinks and partitions, carpets, counters, shelves, and
accessories and products used in connection therewith. All of such fixtures and equipment shall remain
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the property of Lessee and may be removed by Lessee in accordance with the law relating to the removal
of trade fixtures, no matter how the same may be installed in, attached to or affixed to the premises.

4. SIGNS: Lessee is hereby given the right, at Lessee’s expense, to install and maintain
during the term of this Lease, and any extension of the term hereof, a sign or signs advertising Lessee’s
business in, on or about the leased premises, as per accompanying diagram initiated by the parties hereto.
Lessor agrees that the signs may at Lessee’s discretion be the maximum size permitted by local code.
The signs shall at all times remain the property of Lessee and may be removed by Lessee in accordance
with the law relating to the removal of trade fixtures, no matter how the same may be installed on,
attached to or affixed to the premises. If Lessor fails to approve Lessee’s signage, Lessee may cancel this
Lease and receive any monies theretofore paid to Lessor. Lessor warrants that there are no governmental
regulations or restrictions which would prohibit or restrict Lessee’s proposed signage.

5. HOURS OF OPERATION: Lessee agrees to keep such business hours as are
customary to the type of business in which Lessee is engaged. Lessee shall not be required to keep its
Restaurant open for business at any time prohibited by applicable law, ordinance or governmental
regulations. Lessee shall be permitted to close the Restaurant for a period not to exceed ninety (90) days
during any calendar year for repairing, cleaning or redecorating same, or for purposes reasonable in the
operation of Lessee’s business, but the same shall not relieve Lessee of its obligation to pay rent.

6. SPACE: Lessor agrees that during the term of this Lease or any extension hereof, it will
not move or alter the demised premises without the express consent of Lessee.

7. WARRANTY: Lessor shall give lessee a full ___ -day warranty on the premises and any
leasehold improvements made by Lessor.

8. LESSOR’S OBLIGATIONS: Lessor, at its sole cost and expense, shall, during the
term of this Lease, and any extension of the term hereof, maintain and keep in good repair the roof, floors
and subfloors, outside walls, foundation, structural portions, subterranean plumbing of the demised
premises, together with all common areas of the entire premises of which the demised premises are a part.

9. CONSENT: _ No consent required of Lessor hereunder will be required unreasonably
withheld or delayed nor any additional consideration, premium or payment required therefor. Lessor shall
act reasonably and promptly in the exercise of its rights hereunder.

10. DOMAIN: In the event of the exercise of the right of eminent domain or condemnation
by an authority having such right, Lessee shall be entitled to claim compensation for such condemnation
or taking from such authority as shall compensate Lessee for Lessee’s trade fixture, equipment, leasehold
interest and improvements and any and all other rights of and property of Lessor; and if but one award is
made to Lessor, Lessee shall be entitled to compensation from Lessor for the aforesaid items if included
in the award to Lessor. In the event of condemnation or eminent domain proceedings against any part of
the entire premises of which the demised premises are a part, if any portion of the entire premises or of
the demised premises taken by condemnation or eminent domain is sufficient to interfere substantially
with Lessee’s use of the demised premises or the conduct of Lessee’s business therein, Lessee shall have
the right to terminate this Lease as of the date that the authority instituting said proceedings is entitled to
take possession of any part of said entire premises or of any part of the demised premises so proceeded
against.

11. DESTRUCTION OF PREMISES: If there is any damage or destruction to any part of
the entire premises or to the demised premises portion thereof so as to interfere substantially with
Lessee’s use of the demised premises or the conduct of Lessee’s business therein, and the same is not or
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cannot be repaired or rebuilt within sixty (60) days after such damage or destruction, Lessee shall have
the right to terminate this Lease not later than ninety (90) days after such damage or destruction, the
effective date of such termination being the date of said damage or destruction. Lessee shall be entitled to
an abatement of rent while such repairs are being made, such abatement based upon the extent to which
the making of such repairs shall interfere with the business carried on by Lessee in said premises.

12. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS: Lessee’s obligations to comply with all statutes,
ordinances, laws and regulations, etc., expressly exclude any obligation to make any structural change(s)
in or to the demised premises.

13. GRACE PERIODS: Lessee shall not be deemed in default or breach hereof or
hereunder unless Lessee shall fail to pay the rent within ten (10) days after the receipt of written notice,
and as to any other term, provision, condition or covenant hereof, unless Lessee shall fail to cure or
reasonably commence to cure said default or breach within thirty (30) days after written notice from
Lessor to Lessee specifying said default or breach.

14. LIABILITY: Lessor shall be responsible for any and all damage of property and injury
and or death to person or persons, including but not limited to, damage to Lessee’s property and property
of other(s) in the possession of or under the control of Lessee, and injury and or death to Lessee, caused
by any act or negligence or omission of Lessor or any agent, server and or employee or representative of
Lessor, including any independent contractor engaged by Lessor, whether or not Lessor would be
otherwise liable.

15. INSURANCE: Neither of the parties shall be liable to the other of them, or to any
subrogee, for any loss arising out of damage to or destruction of said premises, including property of any
other or others under the control of Lessor or Lessee, when such loss is caused by any of the perils
included within and insured under any standard fire or extended coverage insurance policy which either
party hereto may have in force or which a party is required to have in force under the terms of this Lease
at the time of such loss or damage. This paragraph shall be binding upon the parties whether or not such
damage or destruction is caused by the negligence of either Lessor or Lessee, or their agents, employees
or representatives, and any and all rights of recovery on account thereof by either party and against the
other, including any and all rights of subrogation of any insurance carrier or insurer on account thereof,
are hereby waived and released. Each party shall use its best efforts to request that any insurance policy
obtained contain a waiver of all rights of subrogation against the other party.

16. IMPROVEMENT ALLOWANCE: Lessor agrees that the tenant improvement
allowance is per square foot. Lessee recognizes that the allowance provided by Lessor
will not provide for all leasehold improvements. In the event that the estimate for improvements provided
by a contractor recommended by Lessor exceeds per square foot prior to deducting the allowance, this
Lease may be terminated by Lessee.

17. SUBORDINATION: A condition of this Lease is that Lessor delivers to Lessee before
commencement, from each mortgagee (including trustee of a trust deed) and ground lessor of real estate
including, in whole or in part, the leased premises, a non-disturbance agreement acceptable to Lessee
providing that this Lease and Lessee’s right to possession of the leased premises shall not be disturbed by
such mortgagee or ground lessor or any other person or party claiming under or through such mortgagee
or ground lessor, provided that Lessee continues to observe and perform Lessee’s obligations under this
Lease and pay rent to whomsoever may be lawfully entitled to the same from time to time. A condition
of Lessee’s subordination of this Lease to the lien of a mortgage or ground lease of real estate including,
in whole or in part, the leased premises is this including, in whole or in part, the leased premises is that
Lessee receive from such mortgagee or ground lessor a non-disturbance agreement acceptable to Lessee
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providing that this Lease and Lessee’s right to possession of the leased premises shall not be disturbed by
such mortgagee or ground lessor or any other person or party claiming under or through such mortgagee
or ground lessor, provided that Lessee continues to observe and perform Lessee’s obligations under this
Lease and pay rent to whomsoever may be lawfully entitled to the same from time to time.

18. ATTORNEYS’ FEES: In the event Lessee prevails in any action or proceeding brought
hereunder to enforce any of the provisions of this Lease, all attorneys’ fees and costs of suit, including
those of legal counsel for VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC shall be paid by Lessor.

19. DEFAULT/ASSIGNMENT: Lessor agrees that in the event of default by Lessee under
the terms and conditions of this Lease, Lessor will permit this Lease to be assumed by VPC Pizza
Franchise, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, or a subsidiary or affiliate thereof, on the same
terms and conditions contained herein. Lessor agrees to give notice to VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC of any
default by Lessee under the terms and conditions of this Lease and to give VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC
forty-five (45) days written notice to cure such default and to permit VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC, at its
sole discretion, to assume this Lease for the remainder of the term herein, and to exercise any renewal
options. Lessor further agrees that in the event that Lessee’s Franchise Agreement should terminate for
any reason, upon receipt by Lessor of notice to that effect from VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC, Lessor will
permit VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC or a subsidiary or affiliate thereof to enter the premises and to become
the Lessee under the same terms and conditions contained in this Lease. The exercise of this provision
shall be at the sole discretion of VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC. Lessee specifically agrees that Lessor will
transfer this Lease to VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC upon VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC’s notice to Lessor of its
intent to assume this Lease.

20. ASSIGNMENT/SUBLETTING: Except as otherwise provided herein, Lessee shall not
have the right to assign this Lease, or to sublet the whole or any part of the premises, without the prior
written consent of Lessor, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, Lessee shall have the right to assign this Lease, or allow same to be assigned by operation
of law or otherwise, or sublet the demised premises or any part thereof to a qualified Giordano’s®
franchisee, without the prior written approval of Lessor.

21. ESTOPPEL.: Lessor will promptly upon request of VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC deliver
to Lessee, VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC, or such other party as Lessee or VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC may
designate, a certification (i) that this Lease is in full force and effect without modification or amendment,
(ii) that Lessee is not in default under the terms of this Lease and (iii) such other information and
certifications as may by reasonably requested (or, to the extent that Lessor cannot so certify, identifying
with particularly the reasons why a certification as to a particular matter cannot be given).

22. LIEN WAIVER: Lessor shall have no lien upon the assets of Lessee. Lessor waives
any statutory “landlord’s lien” on the assets of Lessee. Upon request, Lessor will execute and deliver to
Lessee or to VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC a waiver of lien waiver or other acknowledgment that Lessor has
no lien on the assets of Lessee.

23. REPORT OF SALES: Lessor is authorized to provide and disclose to VPC Pizza
Franchise, LLC, upon its request, sales and other information furnished to the Lessor by Lessee.

24, GOVERNMENTAL RESTRICTIONS: Lessor warrants that there are no
governmental regulations or restrictions, including zoning regulations, which would prohibit or impair
Lessee’s proposed use of the demised premises, and agrees that in the event that such restriction is
subsequently discovered, Lessor will use its best efforts to assist Lessee to obtain any necessary variances
or waivers. Lessor further agrees that if such variances or waivers are not obtained within thirty (30) days
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of the commencement of the term of this Lease, Lessee may cancel and receive any monies theretofore
paid to Lessor.

25. COMPLETION: If Lessor fails to deliver the leased premises in substantially complete
conditions on or before , 20, Lessee may terminate this Lease and receive from Lessor any
monies paid by Lessee to Lessor or otherwise in improving the leased premises.

26. RENEWAL OPTIONS: Lessee shall have three (3) five (5) year options to renew this
Lease at then-current market rates. In the event the parties are unable to agree on the market rate, each
party shall, within ten (10) days of the date on which they are unable to agree, select an arbitrator and
these two (2) arbitrators shall, within ten (10) days, select a third arbitrator. The arbitrators shall render
their decision within thirty (30) days of the appointment of the third arbitrator. The decision of the
arbitrators shall be binding on the parties. The notice of exercise of the option shall be given by Lessee to
Lessor not less than ninety (90) nor more than one hundred eighty (180) days from the last day of the term
or renewed term.

217. PARKING: Lessor agrees to take any and all actions necessary to provided Lessee and
Lessee’s employees, invitees and customers with uninterrupted access to the premises including but not
limited to temporary or more extended parking in the front of the Restaurant or about the premises.

28. NOTICES: Copies of all notices to be sent to or served upon Lessee shall be also served
or mailed to VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC, 60 E. Superior Street, Suite 300, Chicago, Illinois 60611.

29. PARTIES: This Lease shall benefit and be binding upon Lessor and Lessee and their
respective heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns.

30. CONFLICT: If there is any conflict between a provision of the Lease and a provision of
this Addendum, then the applicable provision of this Addendum will supersede the conflicting provision
in the Lease.

31. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS: The Lessor hereby acknowledges that the provisions of this
Addendum are required pursuant to the Franchise Agreement under which the Lessee plans to operate the
Restaurant, and the Lessee would not lease the Restaurant premises without this Addendum. The Lessor
further acknowledges that the Lessee is not an agent or employee of VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC and the
Lessee has no authority or power to act for, or to create any liability on behalf of, or to in any way bind
VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC or any affiliate of VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC, and that the Lessor has entered
into this Addendum with full understanding that it creates no duties, obligations or liabilities of or against
VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC or any affiliate of VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC, unless and until the Lease is
assumed and accepted in writing by, VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC or a designee of VPC Pizza Franchise,
LLC.

32. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY: VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC is an express third party
beneficiary of this Addendum and the Lease and may, directly or indirectly, enforce any right of VPC
Pizza Franchise, LLC or Lessee hereunder.

33. MODIFICATIONS: The provisions of the Lease and/or this Addendum will not be
modified, amended, extended, assigned or terminated without the prior written consent of VPC Pizza
Franchise, LLC.
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This Agreement is executed between the parties in Chicago, Illinois and shall be effective on the
date first set forth above.

LESSOR: LESSEE:
By: By:
Its: Its:
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EXHIBIT D
OPTION FOR ASSIGNMENT OF LEASE
THIS AGREEMENT is by and between:
VPC PI1ZZA FRANCHISE, LLC (*Optionee”)

Street Address: 60 E. Superior Street, Suite 300
City, State: Chicago, Illinois 60611

Franchisee/Lessee: (“Franchisee™)

Street Address:

City, State:

and

Lessor:

Street Address:

City, State:

Location:

Lease Agreement Date:

Effective Date of Franchise Agreement:

WHEREAS, Franchisee has entered into or intends to enter into a Lease Agreement, as Lessee,
with Lessor for the location identified above in conjunction with the opening or continuation of a
Giordano’s® Restaurant under a Franchise Agreement between Franchisee and Optionee (the “Franchise
Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, Optionee and Franchisee agree and intend that Franchisee, as Lessee, shall use the
location solely and exclusively for the operation of a franchised Giordano’s® Restaurant and that, in
connection therewith, Lessee is agreeable to grant an option to Optionee on the terms and conditions set
forth below.

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which
is hereby acknowledged, the parties do hereby agree as follows:

1. Franchisee, as Lessee, does hereby grant to Optionee an option to acquire Lessee’s
interest in and to the Lease Agreement and the location leased thereunder (the “Option™).
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2. Optionee shall have the right to exercise the Option, at its sole discretion, in the event of
any of the following:

A A default under the Lease Agreement caused by the failure of Franchisee to make
monthly rental payments on the location to Lessor when due;

B. A default under the Lease Agreement caused by the failure of Franchisee to
comply with the terms and conditions of said Lease Agreement for said location;

C. A default under the Franchise Agreement caused by the failure of Franchisee to
comply with the terms and conditions of the Franchise Agreement; including but not limited to,
failure to make payments for royalties, license fees, advertising fees and state and federal taxes
due and owing; or

D. Termination of the Franchise Agreement by the Optionee.

With respect to (A) and (B) above, this Option shall be exercised, if at all, within thirty
(30) days after receipt by Optionee of notice of such default by Lessor.

3. Optionee and Franchisee hereby agree that once any of the events described in Section
2(A)-(D) occur, then Optionee shall have the right to exercise the Option at any time by providing written
notice to Franchisee and Lessor. Upon receipt of such notice by Franchisee and Lessor, Optionee shall
have the right to possession of the location and shall thereupon and thereafter be deemed to be the Lessee
under the Lease.

4. Exercise of the option shall effectuate the grant, assignment and transfer to Optionee by
Franchisee of all rights, title and interest of Franchisee in and to the Lease Agreement, and the location
leased thereunder and all leasehold improvements.

5. Lessor and Franchisee agree that an exercise of the option by Optionee shall not make
Optionee liable for unpaid rent or any other obligations of Franchisee to Lessor in connection with the
Lease Agreement arising prior to the exercise of the Option. In the event of the exercise of the Option,
Franchisee shall remain solely liable and Lessor shall look solely to Franchisee for any unpaid rents or
obligations existing prior to the time of exercise of the Option by Optionee. The Option is applicable to
any extensions, renewals or other options of Franchisee with respect to the Lease Agreement.

6. Notices to be sent or served upon any of the parties hereto shall be delivered to a party at
the address set forth next to such party’s name above, by personal delivery or by postage prepaid certified
or registered United States mail.

7. This Agreement shall be binding upon the respective heirs, executors, successor, assigns
and legal representatives of the parties hereto.

8. This Agreement shall be interpreted and governed under the laws of the State of Illinois.
9. Failure of Optionee to enforce any of the provisions of this Agreement shall not

constitute a waiver of rights or a waiver of any subsequent enforcement of the provisions of this
Agreement.
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10. If any provision of this Agreement or any part thereof is declared invalid by any court of
competent jurisdiction, such remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect according
to the terms of the remaining provisions or parts of provisions thereof.

This Agreement is executed between the parties in Chicago, Illinois and shall be effective on and
after the day of , 20

OPTIONEE: FRANCHISEE:

VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC

By: By:

Its: Its:

LESSOR:

By:

Its:
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EXHIBIT E

OWNERSHIP OF FRANCHISEE

This form must be completed by Franchisee (“1,” “me,” or “my”) if | have multiple owners or if I,
or my franchised business, is owned by an entity (like a corporation, partnership or limited liability
company). Franchisor is relying on the truth and accuracy of this form in awarding the Franchise
Agreement to me.

1. Form of Owner. | am a (check one):

@) General Partnership O

(b) Corporation O

(c) Limited Partnership O

(d) Limited Liability Company O

(e) Other O

Specify:
I was formed under the laws of
(state)
2. Business Entity. | was incorporated or formed on , 20 , under
the laws of the State of . | have not conducted business under any name other than my

corporate, limited liability company or partnership name and the name
The following is a list of all persons who have management rights and powers (e.g., officers, managers
partners, etc.) and their positions are listed below:

Name of Person Position(s) Held

3. Owners. The following list includes the full name and mailing address of each person
who is one of my owners and fully describes the nature of each owner’s interest (attach additional sheets
if necessary).

Owner’s Name and Address Description of Interest % of Ownership

4. Management. As required pursuant to Section 5(A) of the Franchise Agreement, the
following Owner shall exert full-time efforts to the fulfillment of the obligations of Franchisee under the
Franchise Agreement as the General Manager, and shall have supervisory responsibilities in connection
with the operation of Franchisee’s Restaurant business pursuant thereto:

Name:
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5. Governing Documents. | agree to provide copies of any and all documents and
contracts governing the ownership, management and other significant aspects of the business organization
(e.g., articles of incorporation or organization, partnership or shareholder agreements, etc.) to Franchisor
upon request.

This Owners’ Statement is current and complete as of , 20

OWNERS

INDIVIDUALS:

Signature

Print Name

Signature

Print Name

Signature

Print Name

Signature

Print Name

Signature

Print Name

CORPORATION, LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY OR PARTNERSHIP:

By:

Title:
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EXHIBIT F

OWNERS’ AND GUARANTORS’ UNDERTAKING

THIS UNDERTAKING is made and entered into this day of , 20 , by the
undersigned (collectively, “GUARANTOR?”) for and in consideration of VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company (“FRANCHISOR?”) agreeing to enter into a Franchise Agreement, dated ,
20 (the “Franchise Agreement”) with
(“FRANCHISEE") for the grant of a Giordano’s® Restaurant License.

GUARANTOR acknowledges and agrees that FRANCHISOR entered into the Franchise Agreement with
FRANCHISEE solely on the condition that GUARANTOR be personally obligated and jointly and severally liable
with FRANCHISEE and all other GUARANTORS for the performance of each and every obligation of
FRANCHISEE and FRANCHISEE’S Owners under the Franchise Agreement, any amendments or modifications to
the Franchise Agreement, as assignments and all ancillary agreements that have been or hereafter may be entered
into by FRANCHISEE and FRANCHISOR (all such agreements are collectively referred to as the “Franchising
Agreements”).

In consideration of and as an inducement to the execution of the Franchise Agreement by FRANCHISOR,
GUARANTOR hereby personally and unconditionally: (1) represents, warrants and guarantees to FRANCHISOR
and its successors and assigns, that FRANCHISEE shall punctually pay and perform each and every undertaking,
agreement, and covenant set forth in the Franchising Agreements; and (2) agrees to be personally bound by, and
personally liable for the breach of, each and every provision in the Franchise Agreement, and each and every
provision of the Franchising Agreements, as if GUARANTOR were FRANCHISEE thereunder.

GUARANTOR waives: (1) acceptance and notice of acceptance by FRANCHISOR or its affiliates of the
foregoing undertakings; (2) notice of demand for payment of any indebtedness or non-performance of any
obligations hereby guaranteed; (3) protest and notice of default to any party with respect to the indebtedness or non-
performance of any obligations hereby guaranteed; (4) any right he or she may have to require that an action be
brought against FRANCHISEE or any other person as a condition of liability; and (5) all rights to payments and
claims for reimbursement or subrogation which GUARANTOR may have against FRANCHISEE arising as a result
of GUARANTOR'’S execution of and performance under this Undertaking; and (6) any and all other notices and
legal or equitable to which he or she may be entitled.

GUARANTOR hereby consents and agrees that: (1) GUARANTOR’S direct and immediate liability under
this Undertaking shall be joint and several with FRANCHISEE and any other GUARANTORS of the obligations
under the Franchising Agreements; (2) GUARANTOR shall render any payment or performance required under the
Franchise Agreement or any other Franchising Agreement upon demand if FRANCHISEE shall fail or refuse
punctually to do so; (3) GUARANTOR'’S liability shall not be contingent or conditioned upon pursuit by
FRANCHISOR or its affiliates of any remedies against FRANCHISEE or any other person; (4) this Undertaking
shall continue in full force and effect with respect to any extension of or modification or amendment to the
Franchise Agreement or any Franchising Agreement, notwithstanding the transfer of any interest in the Franchise
Agreement by the undersigned, and GUARANTOR waives notice of any and all such extensions, modifications,
amendments or transfers; (5) GUARANTOR’S breach of any provision of this Undertaking shall also constitute a
breach of the Franchise Agreement and, as applicable, the Franchising Agreements, and (6) GUARANTOR’S
liability shall not be diminished, relieved or otherwise affected by any extension of time, credit or other indulgence
which FRANCHISOR or its affiliates may from time to time grant to FRANCHISEE or to any other person,
including, without limitation, the acceptance of any partial payment or performance or the compromise or release of
any claims, or the taking of any action by FRANCHISOR which may have the effect of revoking the obligations of
any GUARANTOR, none of which shall in any way modify or amend this Undertaking, which shall be continuing
and irrevocable during the term of the Franchise Agreement and so long as any performance is or may be owed
under any of the Franchising Agreements by FRANCHISEE or its Owners and so long as FRANCHISOR may have
any cause of action against FRANCHISEE or its Owners.

If FRANCHISOR or GUARANTOR is required to enforce this Undertaking in a judicial or arbitration
proceeding, the party prevailing in the proceeding shall be reimbursed by the other party for its costs and expenses
including, without limitation, accountants’, attorneys’, attorneys assistants’, arbitrators’ and expert witness fees, cost
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of investigation and proof of facts, court costs, other litigation expenses and travel and living expenses, whether
incurred prior to, in preparation for or in contemplation of the filing of any such proceeding. If FRANCHISOR is
required to engage legal counsel in connection with any failure by GUARANTOR to comply with this Undertaking,
GUARANTOR shall reimburse FRANCHISOR for any of the above-listed costs and expenses incurred by it.

GUARANTOR hereby consents and agrees that Sections 16 and 17 of the Franchise Agreement apply to
GUARANTOR and this UNDERTAKING, including, without limitation, Section 16(J) (Construction), Sections
16(N) and (W) (Specific Performance, Injunctive Relief), Section 16(Q) (Consent to Jurisdiction), Section 16(S)
(Limitations of Claims), and Sections 16(T) through (V) (Arbitration).

This Undertaking will be governed by the laws of the state in which the Giordano’s® Restaurant is located.
The provisions of this Undertaking which conflict with or are inconsistent with applicable governing law will be
superseded and/or modified by such applicable law only to the extent such provisions are inconsistent. The parties
agree that any state law or regulation applicable to the offer or sale of franchises or the franchise relationship will
not apply unless the jurisdictional provisions are independently met. GUARANTOR waives, to the fullest extent
permitted by law, the rights and protections provided by any such franchise law or regulation. All other provisions
of this Undertaking will be enforceable as originally made and entered into upon the execution of this Undertaking
by GUARANTOR.

For purposes of this Undertaking: (1) “Owner” shall mean any person, partnership, corporation or other
entity holding any interest in the Franchise; (2) the term “GUARANTOR?” is applicable to one or more persons, a
corporation or a partnership, as the case may be, and the singular usage includes the plural and the masculine and
neuter usages include the other and the feminine.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has hereunto affixed its signature, under seal, on the same day
and year as the Agreement was executed.

PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP GUARANTOR(S)
%
Print Name:
%
Print Name:
%
Print Name:
%
100% Print Name:
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ADDENDUM TO
VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

THIS ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT (this “Addendum”) is made, entered into and
effective this day of , 20 by and between VPC Pizza Franchise,
LLC (“Franchisor”) and (“Franchisee”) to
amend and revise certain provisions of the Franchise Agreement between Franchisor and Franchisee,
dated the same date as this Addendum, as follows:

Article 3(A) of the Franchise Agreement is hereby amended to include the following language:

Franchisor will defer payment of the Initial Franchise Fee by Franchisee until such time
as Franchisor or an affiliate has completed all pre-opening obligations owed Franchisee under this
Agreement and Franchisee has commenced doing business at the Restaurant. The lllinois
Attorney General’s Office imposed this deferral requirement due to Franchisor’s financial
condition.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Franchise Agreement, to the extent that
the Franchise Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are
hereby amended:

Illinois law governs the franchise agreements.

In conformance with Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any provision in a
franchise agreement that designates jurisdiction and venue in a forum outside of the State of
Illinois is void. However, a franchise agreement may provide for arbitration to take place outside
of Illinois.

Franchisees’ rights upon termination and non-renewal are set forth in sections 19 and 20 of the
Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act.

In conformance with Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any condition,
stipulation or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive
compliance with the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any
claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the
franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the
franchise.

To the extent this Addendum is deemed to be inconsistent with any terms or conditions of the Franchise
Agreement, the terms of this Addendum will govern. All other terms and conditions of the Franchise
Agreement will remain the same.

[Signatures Appear on Following Page]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned hereby acknowledges having read this Addendum,
understands and consents to be bound by all of its terms, and agrees it will be effective as of the date first
above written.

VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC

Name of Franchisee

By
By

Its
Its
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EXHIBIT B
VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC

AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
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VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC

®

AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

Area Developer

Legal Name

Street

City, State, Zip Code

Telephone Number/Facsimile Number

Email Address

, 20
Date of Area Development
Agreement
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VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT is made and entered into on the day of
, 20 (the Effective Date”) by and between VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC,
(“Franchisor”) whose principal business address is 60 E. Superior Street, Suite 300, Chicago,
Illinois 60611, and , (“Area Developer”)
whose address is :

INTRODUCTION

Franchisor has developed a distinctive business system for operating and franchising restaurants
that specialize in the preparation and sale of stuffed and thin-crust pizza and other products under
the name “Giordano’s®.”

Franchisor is the owner of, or licensed to use and sublicense, certain trade secrets and confidential
and proprietary information including, but not limited to:

1. The trade name, trademark and service mark “Giordano’s®” (collectively, the
“Marks”), and
2. Proprietary and secret recipes and formulae for the preparation of stuffed and thin-

crust pizza and other Approved Products; secret spice ingredients for the preparation of pizza
dough and pizza sauces for stuffed and thin-crust pizza and other Approved Products; know-how,
trade secrets, formats, designs, systems, methods, specifications, standards, procedures, a unique
and readily recognizable commercial symbol, a uniqgue method and style of interior design, layout,
signage and decoration, and a unique and secret method of operating Restaurants serving stuffed
and thin-crust pizza and other Approved Products and providing Approved Services, all of which
are designed to maintain a uniform high quality of product, service and image, all of which may
be improved, further developed or otherwise modified from time to time by Franchisor (all of
which are referred to herein as the “System”).

Area Developer desires to enter into Franchise Agreements with Franchisor to develop, own and
operate franchised Giordano’s® Restaurants (the “Giordano’s® Restaurants” or the
“Restaurants”) in the area set forth in Section 1 in conformity with the System and Franchisor’s
uniformity requirements and quality standards established and promulgated from time to time by
Franchisor and to personally devote its full time and best efforts in the development and operation
of the Restaurants.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is
hereby acknowledged and in further consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained
herein, Franchisor and Area Developer agree as follows:

1. GRANT OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS; DEVELOPMENT AREA

A. Development Area. Subject to the terms, conditions and limitations elsewhere in
this Agreement, Franchisor hereby grants to Area Developer, for the term of this Agreement, the
right to enter into Franchise Agreements with Franchisor for the development and operation of
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Giordano’s® Restaurants to be located within the “Development Area” defined as the
geographical area described and delineated as follows:

The Development Area may be further described in a map attached hereto and signed by both Area
Developer and Franchisor. This Agreement will not constitute the sale of a Franchise to Area
Developer, but rather will give Area Developer the right to enter into Franchise Agreements with
Franchisor to own and operate franchised Giordano’s® Restaurants in the Development Area.

B. Exclusivity. The rights and privileges granted to Area Developer in this Agreement
are expressly limited to the Development Area and are expressly subject to the terms and
conditions of this Agreement. During the term of this Agreement, and provided Area Developer
is in full compliance with this Agreement, Franchisor will not grant to any other person or entity
a Franchise to open or operate a Giordano’s® Restaurant utilizing the System or the Marks within
the Development Area, and will not establish another franchised or company- or affiliate-owned
Giordano’s® Restaurant within the Development Area. Notwithstanding anything to contrary
herein, Franchisor retains the right to conduct sales at special events such as, but not limited to,
fairs or food-fests which may be located within the Development Area, in accordance with the
terms of the applicable Franchise Agreement and subject to any applicable right of first refusal,
and further excepting that Franchisor retains the right to conduct marketing tests in the
Development Area. Inaddition, Franchisor retains the sole and exclusive right to market its stuffed
and thin crust pizza and other products through grocery outlets, the Internet, airports, shopping
centers, food courts, stadiums, military installations, public carriers, and any other channels of
distribution (including, but not limited to, airplanes, trains, and cruise lines), which may originate
in or service the Development Area. Additionally, and not by way of limitation, Franchisor retains
the exclusive right to ship its stuffed and thin crust pizza and other Approved Products, whether
such orders for shipment are received by telephone, facsimile transmission, Internet
communication or otherwise, and without regard to the origination of the order or destination of
the shipped product.

C. Exceptions. Other than as expressly provided above, it is expressly understood
and agreed by and between Franchisor and Area Developer that (1) Area Developer does not have
any “exclusive,” “protected” or “reserved” territorial or similar rights; (2) Franchisor (on behalf of
itself and its affiliates) retains all rights with respect to Giordano’s® Restaurants, the Marks and
the sale of products and services, anywhere in the world including, without limitation: (a) the right
to operate or grant others the right to operate Giordano’s® Restaurants at such locations anywhere
outside the Development Area regardless of its proximity to Area Developer’s Restaurants, and on
such terms and conditions as Franchisor, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate; (b) the right to
develop, manufacture, distribute, rent and/or sell products, whether competitive or not and whether
identified by the Marks or otherwise, through any channel of distribution within or outside the
Development Area, and/or grant others such right; (c) the right to develop, market, distribute, rent
and/or sell any other product or service or own or operate any other business under the Marks or
any other trademark; and (d) the right to own, operate, manage, franchise and/or license other
restaurant concepts anywhere in the world if Franchisor or an affiliate derives its ownership or
other interest in such restaurants as a part of an acquisition or purchase of the ownership or assets
of another entity.
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D. Use of Marks. Area Developer will have the right to use the Marks only in the
Development Area and only in connection with the development of Giordano’s® Restaurants
pursuant to this Agreement. Area Developer will only use the Marks designated by Franchisor in
writing and only in the manner authorized and permitted by Franchisor. Area Developer will not
have the right to use any of the Marks or other intellectual property of Franchisor on any social
network, social media or online community on the Internet or any other online, digital or electronic
medium including, but not limited to, any “blog,” YouTube, Facebook, MySpace, Wikipedia,
professional networks like Linked-In, live-blogging tools like Twitter, virtual worlds, file, audio
and video sharing sites, and other similar social networking media or tools (as such programs,
platforms, and sites now exist and may exist in the future, “Social Media”), except with the prior
written permission of Franchisor. Area Developer will comply with all of Franchisor’s policies,
standards and procedures for use of any Social Media that in any way references the Marks or
involves the Restaurants in the Development Area.

E. Conditions. Area Developer hereby undertakes the obligation to open and operate
franchised Giordano’s® Restaurants using the System in the Development Area in strict
compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement for the entire term of this Agreement.
The rights and privileges granted to Area Developer by Franchisor under this Agreement are
applicable only in the Development Area, are personal in nature, and may not be used elsewhere
or in any other area by Area Developer.

F. Personal License. Area Developer will not have the right to franchise,
subfranchise, license or sublicense its rights under this Agreement. Area Developer will not have
the right to assign this Agreement or its rights under this Agreement, except as specifically
provided for in this Agreement.

2. TERM

This Agreement will be in effect for a term ending ( ) years after the
Effective Date set forth on Page 1 of this Agreement, or on the date Area Developer has completed
development of the cumulative number of Giordano’s® Restaurants required under the
Development Schedule set forth in Section 4(A), whichever is earlier. This Agreement will not be
enforceable until it has been signed by both Area Developer and Franchisor. At the end of the
term of this Agreement, Area Developer’s exclusive development rights with respect to the
Development Area will automatically terminate, and Area Developer will not have the right to
renew or extend the term of this Agreement.

3. FEES PAYABLE TO FRANCHISOR

A. Development Fee. On the date this Agreement is executed by Area Developer,
Area Developer will pay Franchisor a Development Fee in an amount equal to Twenty Thousand
Dollars ($20,000 multiplied by the total number of Giordano’s® Restaurants that Area Developer
is required to open and operate in the Development Area pursuant to the Development Schedule
set forth in Section 4(A) of this Agreement; $ (the “Development Fee™).
The Development Fee will be nonrefundable and will be fully earned by Franchisor when the
Development Fee is paid by Area Developer. The Development Fee is payment to Franchisor for
granting Area Developer the rights, as set forth in this Agreement, to develop Giordano’s®
Restaurants in the Development Area.
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B. Initial Fees. In addition to the Development Fee, Area Developer will, on the day
Area Developer signs each Franchise Agreement pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, pay
Franchisor a nonrefundable Initial Franchise Fee for each Restaurant that Area Developer is
required to open and operate in the Development Area pursuant to the Development Schedule set
forth in Section 4(A) of this Agreement. The amount of the Initial Franchise Fee payable by Area
Developer for each Restaurant will be the Initial Franchise Fee as required in each then-current
standard Franchise Agreement executed in accordance with the Development Schedule, less
Twenty Thousand Dollars ($20,000).

C. Payment of Initial Fees. Area Developer will pay Franchisor the Initial Franchise
Fee set forth in Section 3(B) of this Agreement on the date Area Developer executes the Franchise
Agreement for each Restaurant required to be opened and operated in the Development Area
pursuant to this Agreement. Area Developer must execute a Franchise Agreement for its first
Restaurant and pay the first Initial Franchise Fee on the date Area Developer executes this
Agreement. Area Developer will not purchase or lease the property for the proposed site for the
Giordano’s® Restaurant location until Area Developer has signed a Franchise Agreement with
Franchisor and complied with the applicable provisions of the Franchise Agreement relating to the
selection of the site for the Giordano’s® Restaurant location.

D. Continuing License Fee. During the term of each Franchise Agreement signed by
Area Developer pursuant to this Agreement, Area Developer will pay Franchisor Continuing
License Fees, as defined in, and required by, the Franchise Agreement. Area Developer will pay
Franchisor the Continuing License Fees for the Giordano’s® Restaurants at the rate and in the
amounts set forth in the first Franchise Agreement signed by Area Developer and Franchisor
pursuant to this Agreement, even if the Continuing License Fees then charged to developers or
franchisees by Franchisor at the time Area Developer signs a subsequent Franchise Agreement is
different. For each of its Giordano’s® Restaurants, Area Developer will pay the Continuing
License Fee on the day specified in, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of, the
Franchise Agreement for that Restaurant.

E. Advertising Fee; Other Fees. During the term of each Franchise Agreement
signed by Area Developer pursuant to this Agreement, Area Developer will pay Franchisor
Advertising Fees as defined in the Franchise Agreement. Area Developer will pay Franchisor the
Advertising Fees for the Giordano’s® Restaurants at the rate set forth in each then-current standard
Franchise Agreement executed in accordance with the Development Schedule in Section 4(A) and
as required by Section 5(B). For each of its Giordano’s® Restaurants, Area Developer will pay
the Advertising Fees on the day specified in, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions
of, the Franchise Agreement for that Restaurant. Except as set forth in this Section 3, Area
Developer will pay the fees, payments and other monetary obligations payable to Franchisor and
others at the rates, in the amounts and in the manner specified in the then-current standard
Franchise Agreement executed by Franchisor and Area Developer for each Restaurant in the
Development Area.
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4.

DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE

A

Development Schedule.

Area Developer acknowledges and agrees that the
following Development Schedule is a material provision of this Agreement:

Limited-Service Restaurants

Date by Which Date by Date by Which Cumulative Number of
Restaurant Site Which Lease Giordano’s® Giordano’s® Restaurants
Date by Which Must be Identified for Restaurant Must be Required to be Open and
Franchise and Letter of Restaurant Opened and Continuously Operating in
Restaurant Agreement Must Intent for Lease Must be Continuously Operating | Development Area as of Date
Number be Signed Signed Signed in Development Area in Preceding Column
Full-Service Restaurants
Date by Which Date by Date by Which Cumulative Number of
Restaurant Site Which Lease Giordano’s® Giordano’s® Restaurants
Date by Which Must be Identified for Restaurant Must be Required to be Open and
Franchise and Letter of Restaurant Opened and Continuously Operating in
Restaurant Agreement Must Intent for Lease Must be Continuously Operating | Development Area as of Date
Number be Signed Signed Signed in Development Area in Preceding Column

For purposes of determining compliance with the Development Schedule set forth in this Section,
only Area Developer’s Restaurants actually open and continuously operating in the Development
Area as of a given date will be counted toward the number of Giordano’s® Restaurants required
to be open and continuously operating. Notwithstanding any provision in the Franchise Agreement
to the contrary, Area Developer will be required to open the Giordano’s® Restaurants developed
by Area Developer under this Agreement according to the development dates set forth above in
the Development Schedule, and the Franchise Agreement for each of Area Developer’s
Restaurants will be deemed to be amended accordingly.

B. Reasonableness of Development Schedule. Area Developer represents that it has
conducted its own independent investigation and analysis of the prospects for the establishment of
Giordano’s® Restaurants within the Development Area, and approves of the Development
Schedule as being reasonable and viable.

C. Extension of Development Schedule. Area Developer’s failure to comply with the
Development Schedule will constitute a material breach of this Agreement by Area Developer.
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Area Developer, however, will have the right to one 60-day extension of each deadline set forth in
the Development Schedule upon written notice to Franchisor and the payment of a nonrefundable
Extension Fee in the amount of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) before the expiration of the
deadline stating that Area Developer will not be able to meet the deadline due to construction
delays or similar circumstances beyond the reasonable control of Area Developer. Franchisor will
have the right to investigate the circumstances of the extension request and to decline Area
Developer’s request for the extension of the applicable Development Schedule deadline or to grant
an extension of less than sixty (60) days if the circumstances described in the written notice do
not, in Franchisor’s determination, merit an extension of the deadline or require an additional sixty
(60) days to meet the deadline.

D. Failure to Comply with Development Schedule. If Area Developer at any time
during the term of this Agreement is not in compliance with the Development Schedule (i.e., does
not have the required number of Giordano’s® Restaurants open and operating in the Development
Area as of the dates specified in Section 4(A) and has not given Franchisor written notice of an
extension in accordance with the preceding provision), then Franchisor will have the right to
terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice to Area Developer. Termination of this
Agreement as a result of Area Developer’s failure to meet the Development Schedule will not
affect the individual Franchise Agreements for the Giordano’s® Restaurants opened and operated
in the Development Area pursuant to this Agreement which were signed by the parties prior to
termination of this Agreement; however, upon termination of this Agreement, all rights to open
and operate additional Giordano’s® Restaurants in the Development Area and all other rights
granted to Area Developer under this Agreement will immediately revert to Franchisor, without
affecting those obligations of Area Developer that continue beyond the termination of this
Agreement.

E. Termination for Failure to Comply with Development Schedule. If this
Agreement is terminated by Franchisor because of Area Developer’s failure to meet any element
of the Development Schedule, the rights and duties of Franchisor and Area Developer will be as
follows: (1) Area Developer will have no rights to open additional Giordano’s® Restaurants
within the Development Area; (2) Area Developer will continue to pay all required fees and to
operate its Restaurants opened in the Development Area pursuant to the terms of the applicable
Franchise Agreements signed by Area Developer prior to the date of the termination of this
Agreement, and will in all other respects continue to comply with such Franchise Agreements; (3)
Franchisor will have the absolute right to develop Giordano’s® Restaurants in the Development
Area or to contract with other persons for the development of additional Restaurants in the
Development Area; (4) Area Developer will have no right to obtain a refund of any monies it paid
to Franchisor pursuant to this Agreement or the Franchise Agreements; and (5) Area Developer
and Franchisor will not have any rights or obligations with respect to the Franchise Agreements
required to be signed pursuant to the Development Schedule in Section 4(A), but which were not
executed prior to the termination of this Agreement by Franchisor because of Area Developer’s
failure to comply with the Development Schedule.

S. OTHER OBLIGATIONS OF AREA DEVELOPER

A. Compliance with Applicable Laws. Area Developer will, at its expense, comply
with all applicable federal, state, city, local and municipal laws, ordinances, rules and regulations
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pertaining to the operation of Area Developer’s Restaurants in the Development Area. Area
Developer will, at its expense, be absolutely and exclusively responsible for determining the
licenses and permits required by law for Area Developer’s Restaurants, for qualifying for, and
obtaining and maintaining, all such licenses and permits, and for compliance with all applicable
laws by its employees, agents and independent contractors.

B. Execution of Franchise Agreements. Subject to the provisions set forth in
Sections 3(B) and 3(D) of this Agreement, for each Giordano’s® Restaurant that will be opened,
owned and operated by Area Developer in the Development Area pursuant to this Agreement,
Area Developer or an entity in which (1) Area Developer is the owner of at least 50.1% of the
ownership interests in the entity or (2) Area Developer’s owners are the owners of at least 50.1%
of the ownership interests in the entity (the “Controlled Entity”) must execute Franchisor’s then-
current standard Franchise Agreement and comply with the other requirements of this Agreement.
The failure of Area Developer or the Controlled Entity to provide Franchisor with an executed
Franchise Agreement within the time specified in Sections 3(C) and 4(A) will constitute a material
breach of this Agreement, and Franchisor will have the right to terminate this Agreement as
provided for herein. If the Franchise Agreement required to be executed pursuant to this Section
(and the other provisions of this Agreement) will be executed by the Controlled Entity, then: (a)
Area Developer (or Area Developer’s owners) will, at all times during the term of the Franchise
Agreement, be required to maintain at least a 50.1% ownership interest in the Controlled Entity
and (b) Area Developer will not be relieved from complying with the terms, conditions and
obligations under this Agreement including, without limitation, the obligations contained in
Sections 3(B), 3(C), 3(D), 3(E), 4(A), 5(A), 5(C), 8(B), 10(B) and 10(D) of this Agreement.
Contemporaneous with the execution of the second (2nd) and subsequent Franchise Agreements
signed by the parties in compliance with the Development Schedule, Area Developer and if
applicable, the Controlled Entity, will execute a general release, in a form satisfactory to
Franchisor, of any and all claims against Franchisor, its current and former affiliates and their
respective past and present owners officers, directors, agents and employees, in their corporate and
individual capacities, arising from, in connection with, or as a result of prior or concurrent written
agreements, including this Agreement and the prior Franchise Agreement(s) executed in
compliance with the Development Schedule.

C. Local Advertising; Other Payments. During the term of each Franchise
Agreement signed by Area Developer pursuant to this Agreement, Area Developer will be required
to spend monies for items such as grand opening advertising and promotion, approved local
advertising, and other related expenses. Area Developer will pay all such required promotional
and advertising expenses at the rates established in, and in accordance with the terms and
conditions of, the applicable Franchise Agreements for each of Area Developer’s Restaurants in
the Development Area.

D. Modifications to Franchise Agreement. Area Developer acknowledges in
connection with executing Franchisor’s then-current standard Franchise Agreement for each
Giordano’s® Restaurant that will be opened, owned and operated pursuant to this Agreement: (1)
the terms, conditions and economics of the Franchise Agreement may be modified from time to
time by Franchisor, (2) reasonable modifications and amendments to the Franchise Agreement will
not alter Area Developer’s obligations under this Agreement, (3) any changes or modifications
made to the Franchise Agreement in the future will not be applicable to any Franchise Agreement
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previously executed by Area Developer, (4) any Franchise Agreement signed by Area Developer
pursuant to this Agreement will require Area Developer to pay the Initial Fee set forth in Section
3(B) and the Continuing License Fee set forth in Section 3(D), regardless of whether these fees
have increased in the future, and (5) Area Developer will be required to pay any additional fees
contained in any Franchise Agreement signed by Area Developer after the date of this Agreement.

E. Area Developer’s Name. Area Developer will not use any of the Marks, any
derivative of the Marks, or the word “Giordano’s®” or any derivative or confusingly similar word
or phrase in the name of any entity formed by Area Developer or any affiliate of Area Developer.
Area Developer will at all times hold itself out to the public as an independent contractor operating
its Restaurants pursuant to Franchise Agreements with Franchisor. Area Developer will file for a
certificate of assume name in the manner required by applicable state law to notify the public that
Area Developer is operating its Restaurants as an independent contractor.

F. Interests of Operating Company. Area Developer’s operating company will be
dedicated solely to the development and operation of Area Developer’s Restaurants in the
Development Area and will not hold any interest in, operate, or manage any other business of any
kind without the prior written approval of Franchisor.

G. Franchise _Manager. When Area Developer signs this Agreement, Area
Developer will designate an individual Franchise Manager as described below and designated in
Exhibit A of this Agreement and approved by Franchisor. Such person is obligated to devote his
or her full time, best efforts and constant personal attention to the development and operation of
the Restaurants.

1) If Area Developer is a sole proprietorship, then the proprietor must engage actively
and personally in the management and supervision of Area Developer’s Restaurants and its
operations and act as the Franchise Manager for the Restaurants.

(@) If Area Developer is a partnership, then partners owning at least a majority interest
in the capital and profits of the partnership must engage actively and personally in the management
of Area Developer’s Restaurants. Area Developer must designate one partner as the Franchise
Manager for the Restaurants.

(3) If Area Developer is an entity, then it must designate as the Franchise Manager, a
person who owns at least ten percent (10%) of the ownership of the entity who is a senior officer
of the entity. The designated Franchise Manager will sign this Agreement as an owner of Area
Developer and the Owners’ and Guarantors’ Undertaking attached as an exhibit to this Agreement.

The Franchise Manager must attend the training required by Franchisor before Area Developer
commences business, be approved in writing in advance by Franchisor and must manage and
supervise the operations of Area Developer’s Restaurants and assure compliance by Area
Developer and its personnel with this Agreement. Area Developer must procure Franchisor’s
approval of any replacement Franchise Manager. Franchisor, subject to the terms of this
Agreement, will not unreasonably withhold such approval.

H. Certified Trainer. If Area Developer is required under the Development Schedule
to open more than five (5) Restaurants in the Development Area, then after Area Developer (or a
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Controlled Entity) has opened the fifth (5th) Giordano’s® Restaurant in the Development Area,
Area Developer will send one person to Chicago, Illinois, or another location designated by
Franchisor, to attend and successfully complete the training program required to become a
“Certified Trainer.” There will be no fee charged to Area Developer for one person to attend the
training program to become a Certified Trainer. However, Area Developer will pay Franchisor
the then-current per-diem training fee for all additional persons who attend the Certified Trainer
training program on Area Developer’s behalf. Area Developer will pay the salaries and benefits,
travel and living expenses and all other expenses for all persons who attend the Certified Trainer
training program on behalf of Area Developer.

l. Opening of Giordano’s® Restaurants. Area Developer will be required to open
its Giordano’s® Restaurants in the Development Area in accordance with the provisions of the
Franchise Agreement for each Restaurant. If Area Developer has a Certified Trainer, then the
Certified Trainer will be authorized to assist with (1) providing the on-the job portion of the
training program at Area Developer’s “Certified Training Restaurant” to the management staff
of each new Restaurant in the Development Area; (2) training new members of the management
staff hired after the opening of each Restaurant in the Development Area; (3) providing additional
training, as determined by Franchisor, to the management staff and employees specified by
Franchisor; and (4) providing opening assistance as a member of the opening team for the sixth
and each subsequent Giordano’s® Restaurant developed by Area Developer under this Agreement;
however, the Certified Trainer will be required to follow Franchisor’s training and opening
guidelines, which may be amended by Franchisor from time to time. For the sixth and each
subsequent Giordano’s® Restaurant opened by Area Developer pursuant to this Agreement,
Franchisor will, at no additional cost to Area Developer, provide up to two opening team members,
as determined by Franchisor, to be at the Restaurants for a maximum of four days to assist with
the opening of each new Giordano’s® Restaurant. If it is determined by Franchisor, in its sole
discretion, that any opening team member provided by Franchisor needs to remain at the
Restaurant for more than four days, then Area Developer will pay Franchisor its then-current per-
diem training fee and the additional travel and living expenses for each additional day of opening
assistance provided by Franchisor’s opening team member(s) within 10 days after receipt of an
invoice from Franchisor indicating the amount owed. Area Developer will not open and commence
initial operations for any Giordano’s® Restaurant developed by Area Developer in the
Development Area until Franchisor has given Area Developer written approval to open the
Restaurant.

J. Financial Statements. Area Developer shall, without any notice or demand by
Franchisor, deliver to Franchisor: (a) financial statements for each fiscal year within one hundred
twenty (120) days after Area Developer’s fiscal year end; and (b) a copy of Area Developer’s state
and federal tax returns for each year at such time as such tax returns are filed. All of Area
Developer’s financial statements shall be prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles consistently applied and will conform to the accounting year and standard
chart of accounts prescribed by Franchisor in the Manual or otherwise in writing. Franchisor
reserves the right to require that any or all financial statements be prepared and audited or reviewed
by an independent certified public accountant designated or approved by Franchisor.
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6. ASSIGNMENT

A. Assignment by Area Developer; Conditions. This Agreement is a personal one
being entered into by Franchisor in reliance upon and in consideration of the personal skills,
qualifications and representations of, and the trust and confidence reposed in Area Developer and,
where applicable, its partners, officers, directors, owners and managers. Accordingly, except as
otherwise provided herein, Area Developer shall have no right to assign, sell, transfer, or
encumber, by operation of law or otherwise (hereinafter referred to as “assignment” or, in the
predicate, as “assign”) (i) all or part of its interest in this Agreement, including the right of Area
Developer to develop Giordano’s® Restaurants in the Development Area, or (ii) any ownership
interest in Area Developer (the “Major Assets”) without obtaining the prior written consent of
Franchisor, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, and in conformance with the first
refusal procedures described in Section 6(E) below. It shall not be unreasonable for Franchisor to
impose certain conditions precedent to or as a condition of its consent to an assignment by Area
Developer including, but not limited to, the following:

1) That Area Developer has developed and opened for operation at least fifty percent
(50%) of the total number of Restaurants required under the Development Schedule;

@) That the purchaser, transferee or assignee (hereinafter referred to as “assignee”) in
the sole judgment of Franchisor meets Franchisor’s standards then applied to evaluate prospective
Area Developers, including but not limited to, good moral character and reputation, competence,
financial ability and satisfaction of credit requirements;

(3) That all outstanding debts of Area Developer owed to Franchisor and all others and
all other obligations incurred pursuant to this Agreement are fully satisfied and shall be assumed
by the assignee and its owners, in a manner satisfactory to Franchisor;

4) That prior to the assignment, Area Developer executes a general release of
Franchisor of all claims in a form approved by Franchisor;

5) That the assignee and its owners, if any, execute the then-current form of Area
Development Agreement in compliance with all waiting periods under applicable federal and state
franchise registration and disclosure laws or rules and agree to be bound by all provisions of the
Area Development Agreement, including, but not limited to, any restrictive covenants contained
therein;

(6) That Area Developer pays to Franchisor in cash or certified check or cashier’s
check a transfer fee in an amount equal to Franchisor’s costs and expenses associated with the
assignment (the “Transfer Fee”);

(7) That the assignee and/or its personnel successfully completes, to Franchisor’s
satisfaction, the next available initial training program. The cost of the training program as well
as transportation, lodging and meals shall be paid by the assignee;

(8) That Area Developer has cured all defaults and non-compliance under this
Agreement and any other Agreement between Area Developer and Franchisor or any of their
affiliates;
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9) That the assignee obtains, in the proper name, all necessary, effective and valid
insurance policies and business license(s) prior to the closing of any proposed assignment.

Franchisor may expand upon, and provide more details related to, the conditions for
assignment and Franchisor’s consent as described in this Section 6(A), and may do so in the
Operations Manual or otherwise in writing.

B. Transfer Costs. The Transfer Fee will include all costs attendant to such
assignment, including without limitation, credit investigation, legal fees, and related expenses,
including an allocation of Franchisor’s internal costs and, if applicable, the costs of training the
assignee and/or its Franchise Manager (the “Transfer Costs”). Area Developer shall pay
Franchisor a deposit of Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500) upon submitting its formal
written request to assign, which will be credited toward the Transfer Fee. If no assignment occurs,
Franchisor will return the deposit to Area Developer, less Franchisor’s Transfer Costs associated
with the request for assignment.

C. Consent to Assignment by Franchisor. At least sixty (60) days prior to the
closing of any proposed assignment, Area Developer must deliver by registered mail to Franchisor
written notice of all the terms and conditions of the proposed assignment and the financial
statements of the proposed assignee for the preceding three (3) years or such other financial and
other information as Franchisor may require including, if Franchisor so requests, a copy of the
unconditional, non-contingent contract for such sale or assignment. Franchisor shall not under any
circumstance be deemed to have ratified or approved any representation or warranty therein or
other provision thereof, and Franchisor shall have no liability to Area Developer or any successor
to any part or all of Area Developer’s interest hereunder due to any defects or inaccuracies in such
contract. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Franchisor may require full and accurate disclosure by
Area Developer to the proposed assignee of all obligations in connection with or related to the
Franchise. Area Developer must thereafter deliver to Franchisor by registered mail, within seven
(7) days after Franchisor’s request, any additional information Franchisor requests. Within thirty
(30) days after receipt of the notice of proposed assignment and the financial statements described
above, Franchisor shall either approve or disapprove the assignment or notify Area Developer that
Franchisor will exercise their right of first refusal described in Section 6(E) below. If Franchisor
fails to notify Area Developer within thirty (30) days, Franchisor shall be deemed to have
consented to the assignment. Consent to an assignment shall not constitute consent to an
assignment to the same assignee upon any other terms or conditions or to any subsequent
assignment to another assignee.

D. Deemed Assignments. In addition to the assignments described above, the
following shall be deemed to be assignments of this Agreement which will require Franchisor’s
prior written consent and the payment of the appropriate Transfer Fees:

1) If Area Developer is a corporation:

(@) any merger, consolidation, recapitalization or similar reorganization
involving the corporation or its shareholders;

(b) any sale or transfer of voting stock or debt instruments convertible into
voting stock;
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(c) the sale, lease or other transfer of all or substantially all the assets of such
corporation; or
(d) the dissolution of such corporation.

@) If Area Developer is a partnership or limited liability company:

(a) any sale or transfer of any general partner’s, manager’s or member’s interest
(including a transfer or series of transfers of shares of voting stock of a corporate partner,
manager or member);

(b) any sale or transfer of voting partnership or membership interests or debt
instruments convertible into voting partnership or membership interests;

(c) any sale, lease or other transfer of all or substantially all the partnership or
limited liability company’s assets; or

(d) the dissolution of the partnership or limited liability company.

E. Franchisor’s Right of First Refusal. If Area Developer desires to make any
assignment which requires Franchisor’s consent hereunder, Area Developer must give Franchisor
not less than sixty (60) days prior written notice of such proposed assignment. Said notice must
specify the name and address of the proposed purchaser or assignee and must set forth the price,
terms, conditions and date and place of the closing of the proposed assignment. Franchisor shall
have the option, exercisable within thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice, to purchase the
interest being assigned for the same price and upon the same terms and conditions as set forth in
the notice. During that period of thirty (30) days, Franchisor shall have the right to inspect all of
Area Developer’s books and records relating to the franchise operation, specifically including all
financial records and statements for the three (3) full fiscal years preceding the date on which the
thirty (30) day right of first refusal commences, and, if Area Developer is a corporation, all
corporate minute books and transfer records. If Franchisor waives or does not exercise its right of
first refusal, then Area Developer may complete the proposed assignment provided Franchisor first
consents thereto in writing as required by and under the terms and conditions stated in Section
6(A) above. In the event the proposed assignment is not completed, or the terms and conditions
of the proposed assignment are altered, Franchisor shall have a new right of first refusal for thirty
(30) days with regard to an assignment.

F. Assignment on Death. If Area Developer or, as applicable, Area Developer’s
majority equity owner(s) or general partner(s) die(s), the surviving spouse, heirs or estate of the
deceased Area Developer, owner or partner, as the case may be, shall be allowed to participate in
the ownership of Area Developer’s business during the one hundred eighty (180) days after such
death. During the one hundred eighty (180) day period, all standards and obligations under this
Agreement must be maintained. Prior to the end of the one hundred eighty (180) day period, the
participant must either (1) apply to Franchisor for the right to continue to operate the business for
the remainder of the term of this Agreement, which right shall be granted upon the participant’s
fulfillment of all the then-current qualifications for Giordano’s® Restaurant area developers; or
(2) assign this Agreement to an assignee who satisfies Franchisor’s then-current standards for area
developers in accordance with this Section 6.
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G. Area Developer’s Continued Liability. If any assignment is permitted and
effected hereunder pursuant to this Section 6, then the assigning Area Developer, partner or owner,
as the case may be, shall be and remain liable to Franchisor for payment of all monies due to
Franchisor, liability for which accrued prior to the effective date of the assignment. The assigning
Area Developer, partner or owner shall also continue to be bound by the restrictive covenants and
provisions set forth in Sections 8, 9 and 10 of this Agreement, except that the restrictive period
provided for in Section 9 shall commence on the effective date of the assignment.

H. Assignment by Franchisor. Franchisor shall have the right to assign this
Agreement without the consent or approval of Area Developer. This Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of Franchisor, its successors and assigns.

l. Agreement of Assignee. Any assignee of all or part of Area Developer’s or a
partner’s or owner’s interest in this Agreement shall be deemed to have expressly agreed to and
assumed all of the obligations of Area Developer under this Agreement, specifically including all
restrictions on assignment provided for in this Section 6, and any reference in this Agreement to
“Area Developer” shall be deemed to include any such assignees.

7. TERMINATION RIGHTS OF FRANCHISOR

A. Termination Without Notice or Opportunity to Cure. Franchisor shall have the
right to terminate this Agreement effectively immediately without notice or opportunity to cure if
any of the following events occur:

1) Area Developer fails to comply with the Development Schedule set forth in Section
4(A);

@) Area Developer (or a Controlled Entity) voluntarily or otherwise abandons any of
the Restaurants;

3 Area Developer is declared bankrupt or judicially determined to be insolvent, or all
or a substantial part of the assets of Area Developer are assigned to or for the benefit of any
creditor, or Area Developer admits an inability to pay Area Developer’s debts as they come due;

4) Franchisor and Area Developer agree in writing to terminate this Agreement;

5) Area Developer engages in conduct that reflects materially and unfavorably upon
the reputation of Franchisor, any of the Restaurants or the System;

(6) After curing any breaches described in Section 7(B) of this Agreement, Area
Developer engages in the same non-compliance, regardless of whether such non-compliance is
corrected after notice;

(7) Area Developer repeatedly fails to comply with one or more requirements of this
Agreement, regardless of whether corrected after notice;

(8) Any of the Restaurants or any other assets (including books and records) used by
Area Developer (or a Controlled Entity) in connection with the operation of the Restaurants or
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Area Developer’s business are seized by a government official in the exercise of such official’s
duties (other than condemnation) or seized by a creditor, lienholder or lessor;

9) A final judgment against Area Developer remains unsatisfied for thirty (30) days,
unless a supersedeas or other appeal bond has been filed, or a levy or execution is made upon the
license granted by this Agreement or upon any property used in any of Area Developer’s business
and is not discharged within five (5) days after such levy or execution;

(10)  Area Developer, any partner or owner of Area Developer is convicted of (a) a
felony or (b) other criminal misconduct that substantially impairs the goodwill associated with the
Marks;

(11) Franchisor reasonably determines that the continued operation of the Restaurants
will substantially impair the goodwill associated with the Marks or Giordano’s®;

(12) Area Developer sells, assigns or transfers all or any part of its interest in this
Agreement or, if Area Developer is an entity, an owner sells, assigns or transfers all or part of his
or her ownership interest, or, if Area Developer is a partnership, a partner sells, assigns or transfers
all or any part of his or her interest in the partnership, without first complying with the terms of
Section 6 of this Agreement; or

(13) Any Franchise Agreement between Area Developer (or a Controlled Entity) and
Franchisor is terminated by either party for any reason.

B. Termination After Notice and Opportunity to Cure. Franchisor shall have the
right to terminate this Agreement after notice and an opportunity to cure as follows:

1) If Area Developer fails to pay when due any monies owed to Franchisor or any
affiliate of Franchisor, or any supplier or other creditor, then written notice of such failure will be
personally delivered or sent, postage prepaid by certified or registered mail to Area Developer,
and this Agreement shall terminate upon the expiration of a period of five (5) days without any
further notice, except as may be required by law, if Area Developer fails to pay the monies owed
by the expiration of such five (5) day period,;

@) If Area Developer fails to comply with any federal, state or local law or regulation
applicable to the operation of any of the Restaurants, then written notice of such non-compliance
will be personally delivered or sent, postage prepaid by certified or registered mail to Area
Developer, and this Agreement shall terminate upon the expiration of a period of ten (10) days
without any further notice, except as may be required by law, if Area Developer fails to cure such
non-compliance by the expiration of such ten (10) day period; or

(3) If Area Developer breaches this Agreement, other than those described in Sections
7(A), 7(B)(1) and 7(B)(2) above, or if Area Developer (or a Controlled Entity) breaches any other
agreement between Area Developer or its affiliates, on the one hand, and Franchisor or its
affiliates, on the other hand, then written notice of such breach will be personally delivered or sent,
postage prepaid by certified or registered mail to Area Developer, and this Agreement shall
terminate upon the expiration of a period of thirty (30) days without any further notice, except as
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may be required by law, if Area Developer fails to cure such breach by the expiration of such thirty
(30) day period.

C. Termination After Notice. This Agreement will automatically terminate on
delivery of notice of termination to Area Developer if any part of this Agreement relating to the
payment of fees to Franchisor, to non-competition during the term of this Agreement or to the
preservation of any of the Marks is for any reason declared invalid or unenforceable, and if as a
result, Franchisor believes in its sole opinion that the continuation of this Agreement would not be
in the best interests of the Giordano’s® System.

D. Cumulative Remedies. The rights and remedies specifically granted to either Area
Developer or Franchisor by this Agreement will not be deemed to prohibit either Franchisor or
Area Developer from exercising any other right or remedy provided under this Agreement or
permitted by law or equity. If this Agreement is terminated by Franchisor pursuant to this Section
7, or if Area Developer breaches or violates this Agreement by a wrongful termination or a
termination that is not in strict compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, then
Franchisor will be entitled to seek recover of all damages that Franchisor has sustained and will
sustain in the future as a result of Area Developer’s breach of this Agreement. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the only remedy available to Franchisor if Area
Developer fails to meet the Development Schedule will be to terminate this Agreement in
accordance with Section 4 of this Agreement. The foregoing will not limit Franchisor’s rights
under any Franchise Agreements between Franchisor and Area Developer.

8. OBLIGATIONS UPON TERMINATION OR EXPIRATION

A. Obligations upon Termination; Reversion of Rights. Upon termination of this
Agreement for any reason, all rights to open and operate additional Giordano’s® Restaurants in
the Development Area and all other rights granted to Area Developer pursuant to this Agreement
will automatically revert to Franchisor, and Franchisor will have the right to develop the
Development Area or to contract with another area developer for the future development of the
Development Area. In addition, Area Developer will comply with all other applicable provisions
of this Agreement, including those provisions with obligations that continue beyond the
termination of this Agreement.

B. Franchise Agreements Not Affected. Area Developer will continue to operate
the Giordano’s® Restaurants owned by Area Developer in the Development Area pursuant to the
terms of the applicable Franchise Agreements signed by Area Developer and Franchisor prior to
the termination of this Agreement, and the rights and obligations of Area Developer and Franchisor
with respect to Area Developer’s Restaurants in the Development Area will be governed by the
terms of the applicable Franchise Agreements.

C. Continuation of Obligations. The indemnities and covenants contained in this
Agreement will continue in full force and effect subsequent to and notwithstanding the expiration
or termination of this Agreement.
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9. AREA DEVELOPER’S COVENANTS NOT TO COMPETE

A. In-Term Non-Competition Agreement. Area Developer agrees that during the
term of this Agreement neither Area Developer nor any shareholder, partner, owner, officer,
director or other principal of Area Developer, nor any member of Area Developer’s immediate
family or of the immediate family of any shareholder, partner, officer, director or the principal of
Area Developer, shall, directly or indirectly through a corporation, partnership, trust, association,
joint venture, or any other type of business or entity, perform any services for, engage in, acquire
or have any direct or indirect financial or other interest as a disclosed or beneficial owner, investor,
partner, director, officer, employee, manager, consultant, representative or agent in any franchisor
of or in any Similar Business (as hereinafter defined), except for other businesses franchised from
Franchisor or its affiliates. “Similar Business” means (a) any business which prepares or sells
pizza, pasta, flatbread or other similar products regardless of where or how prepared or sold
including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, preparation for sale or sale at wholesale
or retail, in grocery stores, in restaurants, or for carry-out or delivery, or (b) any business where
ten percent (10%) or more of the revenue from food or products is revenue from the sale of Italian
food or products, whether at a single location or in the aggregate from two (2) or more locations.
Area Developer and the owners of Area Developer and their immediate family if Area Developer
IS a partnership, corporation or other entity, may collectively own not more than three percent (3%)
of the stock of a company engaged in a Similar Business, the stock of which is publicly traded at
the time of such ownership. “Immediate family,” for the purposes of this Agreement, will include
a spouse, children and parents.

B. Post-Term Non-Competition Agreement Area Developer agrees that for a period
of two (2) years following the termination or expiration of this Agreement, or the date Area
Developer ceases to conduct its activities hereunder, whichever is later, neither Area Developer
nor any shareholder, partner, owner, officer, director or other principal of Area Developer, nor any
member of Area Developer’s immediate family or of the immediate family of any shareholder,
partner, owner, officer, director or other principal of Area Developer shall directly or indirectly
through a corporation, partnership, trust, association, joint venture, or any other type of business
or entity perform any services for, engage in, acquire or have any direct or indirect financial or
other interest as a disclosed or beneficial owner, investor, partner, director, officer, employee,
manager, consultant, representative or agent in any franchisor of or in any Similar Business, except
for other businesses franchised from Franchisor or its affiliates, which Similar Business is situated
within fifteen (15) miles from (a) any of Area Developer’s Restaurants then-existing or in
development; (b) all territories reserved to future Giordano’s® area developers by area
development or reservation agreements between such area developer or area developers and
Franchisor or another person or entity authorized to license Giordano’s® Restaurants (which
territories Franchisor shall disclose to Area Developer upon request following the termination of
this Agreement); (c) any office of Franchisor; and (d) any manufacturing, assembly, preparation,
or distribution facility of Franchisor, or an affiliate of Franchisor established as an Approved
Supplier of Approved Products, Approved Ingredients, or Approved Supplies, all without regard
to whether such radius extends beyond the border of the state in which Area Developer’s
Restaurants were located or beyond the border of the United States of America. If the time period
within which Area Developer may not compete with Franchisor shall be too long to be enforceable,
or if the area within which Area Developer may not compete with Franchisor shall be too broad to
be enforceable, then the time, area, or both, as applicable, shall be reduced to such time, such area,
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or both as shall be legally enforceable. Area Developer and/or the owners of Area Developer
acknowledge that they have previously worked in or have been gainfully employed in other fields
and that the restrictive provisions hereof will in no way prevent them from earning a living.

C. Remedies. Developer acknowledges that a breach of the covenants contained in
this Section 9 will threaten immediate and irreparable injury to Franchisor. Accordingly, Area
Developer agrees that Franchisor shall have the right, as more fully described in Section 11(N) of
this Agreement, to obtain immediate injunctive relief without limiting any other rights or remedies
of Franchisor.

D. Effect on Other Agreements. The covenants not to compete set forth in this
Section 9 will apply and be enforced independently of any covenant not to compete set forth in
any other agreements between Franchisor and Area Developer (or a Controlled Entity) and/or the
owners.

10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS; INDEMNIFICATION

A. Independent Contractors; No Fiduciary Relationship. Both Franchisor and
Area Developer understand and agree that this Agreement does not create a fiduciary relationship
between Franchisor and Area Developer, that Area Developer and Franchisor are independent
contractors, and that nothing in this Agreement is intended to make either party a general or special
agent, joint venturer, partner, or employee of the other for any purpose whatsoever. Area
Developer agrees to conspicuously identify itself in all its dealings with customers, suppliers,
public officials, Restaurant personnel, and others as a developer and operator of Giordano’s®
Restaurants pursuant to an Area Development Agreement with Franchisor, and agrees to place any
other notices of independent ownership on its forms, business cards, stationery, advertising, and
other material as Franchisor may require from time to time.

B. Operation of Restaurants. Area Developer will be totally and solely responsible
for the development and daily management and operation of its Giordano’s® Restaurants in the
Development Area, and will control, supervise and manage all the employees, agents and
independent contractors who work for or with Area Developer, including the right to hire and fire
its employees. Area Developer will be responsible for the acts of its employees, agents and
independent contractors, and will take all reasonable business actions necessary to ensure that its
employees, agents and independent contractors comply with all federal, state and local laws, rules
and regulations including, but not limited to, all discrimination laws, sexual harassment laws and
laws relating to the disabled. Franchisor will not have any right, obligation or responsibility to
hire, control, supervise, manage or fire Area Developer’s employees, agents or independent
contractors, and will no way be involved in the day-to-day operations of Area Developer’s
Restaurants.

C. Employment Decisions. Area Developer shall be solely responsible for all
employment decisions and functions of the Restaurants in the Development Area including,
without limitation, those related to hiring, firing, training, compliance with wage and hour
requirements, personnel policies, benefits, recordkeeping, scheduling, supervision, and discipline
of employees, regardless of whether Area Developer receives advice from Franchisor on these
subjects. Area Developer acknowledges and agrees that all personnel decisions shall be made by
Area Developer, without any influence or advice from Franchisor, and such decisions and actions
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shall not be, nor be deemed to be, a decision or action of Franchisor. Neither Area Developer nor
any employee of Area Developer will be considered an employee of Franchisor under any
circumstances. To the extent that any legal authority determines that Franchisor has a duty to act
or not act with respect to any of Area Developer’s employees, Franchisor hereby assigns to Area
Developer any such duty, and Area Developer hereby accepts such assignment.

D. Indemnification. Franchisor will not assume any liability or be deemed liable for
any agreements, representations, or warranties Area Developer makes that are not expressly
authorized under this Agreement, nor will Franchisor be obligated for any claims or damages to
any person, entity or property which arise directly or indirectly out of or are based upon or related
to this Agreement, the activities conducted under this Agreement or in connection with Area
Developer’s Restaurants and business, or Area Developer’s or Area Developer’s employees’
actions or inaction, whether caused by Area Developer’s or its employee’s negligent or willful
action or failure to act or otherwise. Franchisor will have no liability for any sales, use, excise,
income, gross receipts, property, or other taxes levied against Area Developer or Area Developer’s
assets or on Franchisor in connection with the Giordano’s® Restaurant businesses Area Developer
conducts, or any payments Area Developer makes to Franchisor pursuant to this Agreement or any
Franchise Agreement (except for Franchisor’s own income taxes). Area Developer agrees to
indemnify, defend (by counsel selected by Franchisor) and hold harmless Franchisor and the
shareholders, owners, directors, officers, employees, agents and assignees of Franchisor against
and from, and to reimburse any or all of them for, all such claims, obligations, damages, and taxes
for which any or all of them is held liable and for all costs any or all of them reasonably incurs in
the defense of any such claim brought against them or in any such action in which any or all of
them is named as a party, including without limitation, actual and consequential damages,
attorneys’, accountants’ and expert witness fees, costs of investigation and proof of facts, court
costs, other litigation expenses and travel and living expenses. Franchisor, VPC Pizza IP, LLC
and/or their affiliates have the right to defend any such claim against it. Area Developer further
agrees to hold Franchisor harmless from and to indemnify and defend (by counsel selected by
Franchisor) Franchisor against all cost, expense or loss Franchisor incurs in enforcing the
provisions of this Agreement, in exercising Franchisor’s rights under this Agreement, in defending
Franchisor’s actions taken relating to this Agreement, or resulting from Area Developer’s breach
of this Agreement, including, without limitation, arbitrators’ and attorneys’ fees (including those
for appeal) unless, after legal proceedings are completed, Area Developer is found to have fulfilled
and complied with all the terms of this Agreement. Area Developer’s indemnification obligations
described above will continue in full force and effect after, and notwithstanding, the expiration or
termination of this Agreement.

11. MISCELLANEQOUS

A. Invalid Provisions; Substitution of Valid Provisions. If any provision of this
Agreement relating to the payment of fees to Franchisor, to the preservation of any of the Marks,
or to non-competition during the term of this Agreement is declared invalid or unenforceable, and
if, as a result, Franchisor believes in its sole opinion that the continuation of this Agreement would
not be in the best interests of the System, Franchisor has the right to terminate this Agreement on
written notice to Area Developer. To the extent that any restrictive covenant contained in this
Agreement is deemed unenforceable because of its scope in terms of area, business activity
prohibited, or length of time, Area Developer agrees that the invalid provision will be deemed
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modified or limited to the extent or manner necessary to make that particular provision valid and
enforceable to the greatest extent possible in light of the intent of the parties expressed in that
provision under the laws applied in the forum in which Franchisor is seeking to enforce it.

If any lawful requirement or court order of any jurisdiction (1) requires a greater advance notice
of the termination of this Agreement than is required under this Agreement, or the taking of some
other action which is not required by this Agreement, or (2) makes any provision of this Agreement
or any specification, action or operating procedure prescribed by Franchisor invalid or
unenforceable, the advance notice and/or other action required or revision of the specification
action or operating procedure will be substituted for the comparable provisions of this Agreement
in order to make the modified provision enforceable to the greatest extent possible. Area
Developer agrees to be bound by the modification to the greatest extent lawfully permitted.

B. Unilateral Waiver of Obligations. Either Franchisor or Area Developer may, by
written notice, unilaterally waive or reduce any obligation or restriction of the other party under
this Agreement. The waiver or reduction may be revoked at any time for any reason on ten (10)
days written notice.

C. Written Consents from Franchisor. Whenever this Agreement requires
Franchisor’s advance approval or consent, Area Developer agrees to make timely written request
for it. Franchisor’s approval or consent will not be valid unless it is in writing.

D. No Guarantees. Ifin connection with this Agreement, Franchisor provides to Area
Developer any waiver, approval, consent or suggestion, or if Franchisor neglects or delays its
response or denies any request for any of those, Franchisor will not be deemed to have made any
warranties or guarantees which Area Developer may rely on, and will not assume any liability or
obligation to Area Developer.

E. No Waiver. If atany time or from time to time Franchisor does not exercise a right
or power available to it under this Agreement or does not insist on Area Developer’s strict
compliance with the terms of this Agreement, Franchisor will not be deemed to have waived its
right to demand exact compliance with any of the terms of this Agreement at a later time, and
Franchisor’s waiver of any particular breach or series of breaches under this Agreement or of any
similar term in any other agreement between Franchisor and any other area developers will not
affect Franchisor’s rights with respect to any later breach, and Area Developer waives any claim
that any such act or failure to act by Franchisor constitutes a custom or practice or deviation from
or variance with the terms of this Agreement. Subsequent acceptance by Franchisor of any
payments due to it hereunder shall not be deemed to be a waiver by Franchisor of any preceding
or succeeding breach by Area Developer of any terms, provisions, covenants, or conditions of this
Agreement.

F. Cumulative Remedies. The rights and remedies specifically granted to either Area
Developer or Franchisor by this Agreement will not be deemed to prohibit either Franchisor or
Area Developer from exercising any other right or remedy provided under this Agreement or
permitted by law or equity.

G. Binding Effect. This Agreement is binding on and will inure to the benefit of
Franchisor’s successor and assigns and will be binding on and inure to the benefit of Area
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Developer’s successor and permitted assigns, and if Area Developer is an individual, on and to
Area Developer’s heirs, executors and administrators.

H. Entire _Agreement. This Agreement supersedes and terminates all prior
agreements, either oral or in writing, between the parties involving the development of the
Restaurants and therefore, representations, inducements, promises or agreements alleged by either
Franchisor or Area Developer that are not contained in this Agreement will not be enforceable.
This Agreement, together with the recitals and exhibits to it, constitutes the entire agreement
between Franchisor and Area Developer relating to the development of the Restaurants, and there
are no other oral or written understandings or agreements between Franchisor and Area Developer
concerning the subject matter of this Agreement; provided, however, that nothing in this or any
related agreement shall disclaim or require Area Developer to waive reliance on any
representation that Franchisor made in the most recent Franchise Disclosure Document
(including its exhibits and amendments) that Franchisor delivered to Area Developer or its
representative, subject to any agreed-upon changes to the contract terms and conditions
described in that Franchise Disclosure Document and reflected in this Agreement (including
any riders or addenda signed at the same time as this Agreement). This Agreement will not
supersede any written agreements or contracts that are signed by the parties concurrently with this
Agreement. In addition, any Area Development Agreement between the parties, as well as any
other Franchise Agreement(s), will remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms
and conditions thereof, and will not be superseded by this Agreement. This Agreement may be
modified only by written agreement signed by both Franchisor and Area Developer.

. No Liability to Others; No Other Beneficiaries. Franchisor will not, because of
this Agreement or by virtue of any approvals, advice or services provided to Area Developer, be
liable to any person or legal entity who is not a party to this Agreement, and no other party shall
have any rights because of this Agreement.

J. Construction. All headings of the various sections and paragraphs of this
Agreement are for convenience only and do not affect the meaning or construction of any
provision. All reference in this Agreement masculine, neuter or singular or plural usage will be
construed to include the masculine, feminine, neuter or singular or plural, wherever applicable.
Except where this Agreement expressly obligates Franchisor to reasonably approve or not
unreasonably withhold its approval of any of Area Developer’s actions or requests, Franchisor has
the absolute right to refuse any request by Area Developer or to withhold its approval of any action
or omission by Area Developer. The term “affiliate” as used in this Agreement is applicable to
any company directly or indirectly owned or controlled by Franchisor or under common control
with Franchisor that owns or operates Giordano’s® Restaurants, that sells products, equipment or
any other materials used in connection with the operation of a Giordano’s® Restaurant or that
otherwise transacts business with Area Developer.

K. Joint and Several Liability. If two (2) or more persons are Area Developer under
this Agreement, their obligation and liability to Franchisor shall be joint and several.

L. Multiple Originals. This Agreement may be executed using multiple copies, each
of which will be deemed an original.
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M. Timing is_Important. Time is of the essence with respect to each and every
provision of this Agreement in which time is a factor; provided, however, neither Franchisor nor
Area Developer shall be liable for loss or damage due to delay in the performance of its obligations
resulting from transportation shortages, inadequate supply of labor, material or energy, or the
voluntary foregoing of the right to acquire or use any of the foregoing in order to accommodate or
comply with the orders, requests, regulations, recommendations or instructions of any federal, state
or municipal government or any department or agency thereof, compliance with any law, ruling,
order, regulation, requirement or instruction of any federal, state, municipal government or any
department or agency thereof, acts of God, acts or omissions of the other party, fires, strikes,
embargoes, wars, riots, or any other similar event or cause beyond a party’s control. Any delay
resulting from any of these causes shall extend performance accordingly or excuse performance,
in whole or in part, as may be reasonable.

N. Specific_Performance, Injunctive Relief. Provided Franchisor gives Area
Developer any notice which may be required by law, Franchisor will be entitled, without being
required to post a bond, to the entry of temporary and permanent injunctions and orders of specific
performance in any court of competent jurisdiction (1) to enforce the provisions of this Agreement
relating to Area Developer’s use of the Marks and Area Developer’s non-competition obligations
under this Agreement, (2) to enforce the provisions in Section 6 of this Agreement related to
assignment, and prevent Area Developer’s assignment of this Agreement without Franchisor’s
prior written consent, (3) to prohibit any act or omission by Area Developer or its employees that
constitutes illegal activity, a violation of any applicable law, ordinance or regulation, constitutes a
danger to the public, or may impair the goodwill associated with the Marks or Giordano’s®
Restaurants, or (4) to prevent any other irreparable harm to Franchisor’s interests, the Marks or
the System. If Franchisor obtains an injunction or order of specific performance, Area Developer
agrees to pay Franchisor an amount equal to the total of Franchisor’s costs of obtaining it, including
without limitation, attorneys’, arbitrators’ and expert witness fees, costs of investigation and proof
of facts, court costs, other arbitration or litigation expenses and travel and living expenses, and any
damages Franchisor incurs as a result of the breach of any such provision. Area Developer further
agrees to waive any claims for damage in the event there is a later determination that an injunction
or specific performance order was issued improperly. Nothing in this Agreement shall limit or
restrict Franchisor’s rights under this Section 11(N).

O. Independent Provisions. The provisions of this Agreement are deemed to be
severable. The parties agree that each provision of this Agreement will be construed as
independent of any other provision of this Agreement.

P. Costs and Legal Fees. If Franchisor or Area Developer is required to enforce this
Agreement in a judicial or arbitration proceeding, the party prevailing in the proceeding shall be
reimbursed by the other party for its costs and expenses, including, without limitation,
accountants’, attorneys’, attorneys assistants’, arbitrators’ and expert witness fees, cost of
investigation and proof of facts, court costs, other litigation expenses and travel and living
expenses, whether incurred prior to, in preparation for or in contemplation of the filing of any such
proceeding. If Franchisor is required to engage legal counsel in connection with any failure by
Area Developer to comply with this Agreement, Area Developer shall reimburse Franchisor for
any of the above-listed costs and expenses incurred by it.
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Q. Consent_to Jurisdiction. Except as limited by Section 11(U) below, Area
Developer agrees that it shall and Franchisor may institute any action arising out of or relating to
this Agreement in any state or federal court of general jurisdiction in Cook County, Illinois. Area
Developer and each partner, shareholder, or other owner of Area Developer irrevocably submits
to the jurisdiction of such courts and waives any objection it may have to either the jurisdiction or
venue of such court. Area Developer acknowledges and agrees that this Section shall survive the
termination or expiration of this Agreement.

R. Waiver of Punitive Damages; Class Action Proceedings and Jury Trial. Area
Developer hereby waives to the fullest extent permitted by law, any right to or claim for punitive
or exemplary damages against Franchisor and agrees that in the event of a dispute between them,
Area Developer shall be limited to the recovery of actual damages sustained by it. Franchisor and
Area Developer agree that any dispute and any arbitration will be conducted and resolved on an
individual basis only and not a consolidated, class-wide, multiple plaintiff or similar basis. Any
such proceeding will not be consolidated with any other proceeding involving any other person,
except for disputes involving affiliates of the parties to such dispute or arbitration. Franchisor and
Area Developer hereby irrevocably waive trial by jury in any action, proceeding or counterclaim,
whether at law or equity, brought by either of them against the other whether or not there are other
parties in such action or proceeding.

S. Limitations of Claims. Except with regard to Area Developer’s obligations to
make payments to Franchisor pursuant to this Agreement, any and all claims arising out of or
relating to this Agreement or the relationship of Area Developer and Franchisor pursuant hereto
shall be barred unless an action or proceeding is commenced within one (1) year after the first day
on which Area Developer or Franchisor knew or should have known, in the exercise of reasonable
diligence, of the facts giving rise to such claims. If written notice of the claim is not given by Area
Developer or Franchisor within one (1) year after the first day on which Area Developer or
Franchisor knew or should have known, in the exercise of reasonable diligence, of the facts giving
rise to such claim, then the claim will be deemed to be condoned, approved and waived by Area
Developer or Franchisor. Upon written request from Franchisor, Area Developer will furnish to
Franchisor written confirmation, in a form acceptable to Franchisor, that as of the date of the
request, Area Developer does not have any claims against Franchisor arising out of or relating to
this Agreement or its relationship with Franchisor.

T. Mandatory Meeting of Executives. The parties agree that that before resorting to
arbitration, as required under Section 11(U), or any other legal proceeding, they will first attempt
in good faith to resolve any dispute, claim, or controversy arising out of or relating to this
Agreement or any alleged breach hereof by arranging a meeting between Franchisor and Area
Developer. The party invoking a meeting under this Section 11(T) must notify the other party in
writing, which notice must name at least one (1) owner, officer or director with decision-making
authority who will be present at the meeting. The party receiving the notice must reply within
seven (7) days of receiving the notice, and must also identify at least one (1) owner, officer or
director with decision-making authority who will be present at the meeting. No more than two (2)
individuals from each party shall attend the meeting and, unless otherwise agreed, counsel for
either party shall not be present. The meeting will be held at Franchisor’s then-current
headquarters and must take place within thirty (30) days following the date either party first gives
notice hereunder. Neither party shall commence arbitration pursuant to Section 11(U) until thirty
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(30) days after the meeting of executives takes place, during which time the parties will attempt in
good faith to resolve the dispute. If no resolution is reached, either party may commence
arbitration pursuant to Section 11(U) on the thirtieth day following the meeting. The entire
meeting shall be confidential and the conduct, statements, promises, offers, views, and opinions of
the parties will not be discoverable or admissible in any legal proceeding for any purpose;
provided, however, that evidence which is otherwise discoverable or admissible will not be
excluded from discovery or admission as a result of its use in the meeting. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, this Section 11(T) shall not apply to Franchisor’s right to seek temporary and permanent
injunctions and orders of specific performance pursuant to Section 11(N) or any claim arising out
of Area Developer’s failure to pay any monies owed to Franchisor or any affiliate of Franchisor.

u. Arbitration. Except as provided otherwise in this Agreement, all controversies,
disputes or claims between Franchisor, its affiliates, and their respective owners, officers,
directors, agents, employees and attorneys, and Area Developer (its affiliates and owners and
guarantors, if applicable), arising out of or related to the following categories will be submitted for
Arbitration:

1) This Agreement or any other agreement between the parties, or any provision of
such Agreements;

@) Franchisor’s relationship with Area Developer, or the obligations by and between
the parties; or

3 The validity of this Agreement or any other agreement between Franchisor and
Area Developer or any provision of such agreements; or

4) Any applicable statute or regulation with respect to the parties.

V. Arbitration Procedures. The claim will be submitted before one arbitrator to the
Chicago, Illinois office of the American Arbitration Association on demand of either party. Such
Arbitration proceedings will be conducted in Cook County, Illinois and, except as otherwise
provided in this Agreement, will be heard in accordance with the then-current rules of the
American Arbitration Association including, but not limited to, its Commercial Arbitration Rules
and Optional Appellate Arbitration Rules. Upon election by Franchisor, the Arbitration
proceedings will be conducted in accordance with the American Arbitration Association’s
Expedited Procedures regardless of the amount of any claim or counterclaim. All matters relating
to Arbitration will be governed by the Federal Arbitration Act (9 U.S.C. 81, et seq.) and not by
any state arbitration law, and by the provisions of this Agreement.

1) Arbitration will be conducted on an individual basis only, not as a consolidated or
class-action proceeding, and Franchisor and Franchisee waive any and all rights to proceed on a
consolidated or class basis. Further, an Arbitration proceeding between Franchisor and Area
Developer (its affiliates and owners and guarantors) may not be consolidated with any other
Arbitration proceeding between them and any other Area Developer, person or entity.

@) The parties agree that the Arbitrator must have a minimum of ten (10) years of
experience practicing in the area of franchise and distribution law, and must have served as an
arbitrator in at least five (5) arbitrations involving disputes between franchisors and franchisees.
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(3) The Arbitrator shall have the exclusive jurisdiction to decide any questions as to
whether any claims are arbitrable or whether any respondent to such claims is subject to the
arbitration requirements of this Agreement.

4) Except as limited by this Agreement, the Arbitrator will have the right to award or
include in the award any relief which the Arbitrator deems proper in the circumstances, including,
without limitation, money damages (with interest on unpaid amounts from the date due), specific
performance, injunctive relief, and attorneys’ fees and costs, provided that the Arbitrator will not
have the right to declare any mark generic or otherwise invalid or to award exemplary or punitive
damages. The decision of the Arbitrator will be conclusive and binding upon all parties and
judgment upon the Arbitrator’s decision may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction.
The parties agree to be bound by the provisions of any limitation on the period of time in which
claims must be brought under applicable law or this Agreement, whichever expires earlier. The
parties further agree that, in connection with any such Arbitration proceeding, each must submit
or file any claim which would constitute a compulsory counterclaim (as defined by Rule 13 of the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure) within the same proceeding as the claim to which it relates. Any
such claim which is not submitted or filed as described above will be forever barred. All claims
subject to arbitration shall also be subject to the statute of limitations prescribed by applicable law
or by the applicable agreement(s) between or among the parties.

W. Injunctive Relief, Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this
Section, Franchisor has the right in a proper case to obtain temporary restraining orders and
temporary or preliminary injunctive relief from a court of competent jurisdiction, as permitted by
Section 11(N).

X. Survival of Arbitration Provisions. The provisions of Sections 11(U) and 11(V)
are intended to benefit and bind certain third party nonsignatories and will continue in full force
and effect subsequent to and notwithstanding the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

Y. Varying Standards. Because complete and detailed uniformity under many
varying conditions may not be possible or practical, Franchisor specifically reserves the right and
privilege, in its sole and absolute discretion and as it may deem in the best interests of all concerned
in any specific instance, to vary standards and Area Development Agreement provisions for any
area developer or prospective area developer based upon the peculiarities of a particular site or
circumstance, density of population, business potential, population or trade area, existing business
practices, or any other condition which Franchisor deems to be of importance to the successful
operation of such area developer’s business. Area Developer will not have the right to complain
about a variation from standard specifications and practices granted to any other area developer
and will not be entitled to require Franchisor to grant Area Developer a like or similar variation.

Z. Notices and Payments. All written notices and reports permitted or required under
this Agreement or by the Manual are given when personally delivered or deposited with the United
States mail or with an overnight courier for delivery and will be deemed delivered at the time of
delivery by hand, one (1) business day after sending by overnight courier and three (3) business
days after placement in the United States mail. Notices delivered by United States mail shall be
sent by Registered or Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested, postage prepaid. Notices to Area
Developer shall be deemed properly addressed if addressed to the address of the Restaurant. Any
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required payment or report which Franchisor does not actually receive during regular business
hours on the date due (or postmarked by postal authorities at least two (2) days before it is due)
will be deemed delinquent.

AA. Ownership of Area Developer. Area Developer warrants and represents that
Exhibit A attached hereto is a complete and accurate statement of any and all persons or entities
who have an ownership interest, either directly or indirectly, legally or equitably, in Area
Developer and the nature and extent of such ownership interest.

BB. Guaranty and Assumption of Obligations. This Agreement shall be personally
guaranteed by all owners of Area Developer if Area Developer is a corporation or other legal
entity, or all partners of Area Developer if Area Developer is a partnership. Concurrent with the
execution of this Agreement, all such owners or partners shall execute an Owners’ and Guarantors’
Undertaking in the form of Exhibit B attached hereto.

CC. Acknowledgments, Representations and Covenants.

1) Area Developer acknowledges that it received Franchisor’s Franchise Disclosure
Document at least fourteen (14) days prior to the payment of the Development Fee and/or its
execution of this Agreement, that it received a copy of this Agreement with all material blanks
filled in at least seven (7) days prior to the execution of this Agreement, and that it understands
and accepts the terms, conditions, and covenants contained in this Agreement as being reasonably
necessary to maintain Franchisor’s high standards of quality and service and the uniformity of
those standards at all and thereby to protect and preserve the goodwill of the Marks and the System.

@) Area Developer acknowledges and represents that it has conducted an independent
investigation of the business venture contemplated by this Agreement and recognizes that, like any
other business, the nature of the business conducted by Area Developer may evolve and change
over time, that an investment in a Giordano’s® Restaurant Franchise involves business risks and
that the success of the venture is largely dependent upon the business abilities and efforts of Area
Developer.

(3) Neither Franchisor’s sales personnel nor any employee or officer of Franchisor is
authorized to make any claims or statements as to the earnings, sales or profits or prospects or
chances of success of any Franchise. Franchisor specifically instructs its sales personnel, agents,
employees and officers that they are not permitted to make such claims or statements as to the
earnings, sales or profits or the prospects or chances of success, nor are they authorized to represent
or estimate dollar figures as to a Giordano’s® Restaurant Franchise. Area Developer
acknowledges and agrees that except as set forth in this Agreement or Franchisor’s Franchise
Disclosure Document, Area Developer has not received and has not relied on any representations,
warranties, or guarantees, express or implied, regarding actual or potential revenues, income,
earnings, profitability, or success of the franchised business. Franchisor recommends that
applicants for Giordano’s® Restaurant Franchises make their own investigations and determine
whether or not a Giordano’s® Restaurant Franchise is profitable. Franchisor recommends that
each applicant for a Giordano’s® Restaurant Franchise consult with an attorney of its choosing
and further be represented by legal counsel at the time of its closing.
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4) If Area Developer is a legal entity, Area Developer (1) represents that it is duly
organized and validly existing in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its
organization, is qualified to do business in all jurisdictions in which its business activities or the
nature of properties owned by Area Developer requires such qualification, and has the authority to
execute, deliver and carry out all the terms of this Agreement; and (2) agrees and warrants that all
certificates representing ownership interests in Area Developer now outstanding or hereafter
issued will be endorsed with a legend in form approved by Franchisor reciting that the transfer of
ownership is subject to restrictions contained in this Agreement. Area Developer further
represents and warrants that all owners of Area Developer and their interests therein are completely
and accurately listed in Exhibit A of this Agreement and that Area Developer will execute such
revised Exhibit A as may be necessary during the term of this Agreement to reflect any changes
in the information contained therein.

(5) FRANCHISOR HAS MADE NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY THAT
IT WILL REPURCHASE THE BUSINESS FROM AREA DEVELOPER OR IN ANY OTHER
WAY PROTECT AREA DEVELOPER FROM THE LOSS OF ANY MONIES PAID IN
CONNECTION WITH OR PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT AND THE FRANCHISE
BUSINESS. AREA DEVELOPER HAS BEEN INFORMED AND ACKNOWLEDGES ITS
UNDERSTANDING OF THE FACT THAT, BECAUSE OF THE HIGHLY COMPETITIVE
NATURE OF THE BUSINESS INVOLVED, SUCCESSFUL OPERATIONS OF THE
FRANCHISE WILL DEPEND UPON ITS BEST EFFORTS, CAPABILITIES,
MANAGEMENT, AND EFFICIENT OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS, AS
WELL AS THE GENERAL ECONOMIC TRENDS AND OTHER LOCAL MARKETING
CONDITIONS.

12. GOVERNING LAW; STATE MODIFICATIONS

A. Governing Law; Severability. Except to the extent governed by the United States
Trademark Act of 1946 (Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. 81051, et seq.) and the Federal Arbitration Act,
this Agreement and the relationship between Franchisor and Area Developer will be governed by
the laws of the state in which the Development Area is located. If the Development Area includes
more than one state, this Agreement will be governed by the laws of the state in which the first
Restaurant is located. The provisions of this Agreement which conflict with or are inconsistent
with applicable governing law will be superseded and/or modified by such applicable law only to
the extent such provisions are inconsistent. The parties agree that any state law or regulation
applicable to the offer or sale of franchises or the franchise relationship will not apply unless the
jurisdictional provisions are independently met. Area Developer waives, to the fullest extent
permitted by law, the rights and protections provided by any such franchise law or regulation. All
other provisions of this Agreement will be enforceable as originally made and entered into upon
the execution of this Agreement by Area Developer and Franchisor.

B. Applicable State Laws. If applicable, the following states have statutes which
may supersede the provisions of this Agreement in Area Developer’s relationship with Franchisor
in the areas of termination and renewal of the Franchise: Arkansas [Stat. Section 70-807],
California [Bus. & Prof. Code Sections 20000-20043], Connecticut [Gen. Stat. Section 42-133e et
seq.], Delaware [Code Section 2552], Hawaii [Rev. Stat. Section 482E-1], Illinois [815 ILCS
705/19-20], Indiana [Stat. Section 23-2-2.7], Michigan [Stat. Section 19.854(27)], Minnesota

2024 VVPC Pizza Franchise, LLC ADA 26
63404961v2



[Stat. Section 80C.14], Mississippi [Code Section 75-24-51], Missouri [Stat. Section 407.400],
Nebraska [Rev. Stat. Section 87-401], New Jersey [Stat. Section 56:10-1], Virginia [Code 13.1-
557-574-13.1-564], Washington [Code Section 19.100.180], and Wisconsin [Stat. Section
135.03]. These and other states may have court decisions that may supersede the provisions of
this Agreement in Area Developer’s relationship with Franchisor in the areas of termination and
renewal of the Franchise.

C. State Law Modifications. If the laws of any state below are applicable to this
Agreement, then the designated provisions of this Agreement will be amended and revised as
follows:

1) California. If this Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of California,
then: (@) the covenant not to compete upon termination or expiration of this Agreement contained
in Section 9(B) of this Agreement may be unenforceable, except in certain circumstances provided
by law; and (b) provisions of this Agreement giving Franchisor the right to terminate in the event
of Area Developer’s bankruptcy may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy laws (11 U.S.C.
§, et seq.).

@) Minnesota. If this Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Minnesota,
then: (a) except in certain circumstances provided by Minnesota law, if Franchisor gives Area
Developer written notice that Area Developer has breached this Agreement, such written notice
will be given to Area Developer at least ninety (90) days prior to the date this Agreement is
terminated by Franchisor, and Area Developer will have sixty (60) days after such written notice
within which to correct the breach specified in the written notice; (b) notwithstanding any
provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, a court of competent jurisdiction will determine
whether Franchisor will be required to post a bond or other security, and the amount of such bond
or other security, in any injunctive proceeding commenced by Franchisor against Area Developer
or the owners; and (c) notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, Area
Developer will have up to three (3) years after the cause of action accrues to bring an action against
Franchisor pursuant to Minn. Stat. 880C.17.

3) New York. If this Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of New York,
then all rights enjoyed by Area Developer and any cause of action arising in its favor from the laws
of the State of New York and the regulations issued thereunder will remain in force, it being the
intent of this provision that the nonwaiver requirements of General Business Law 8687.4 and
§687.5 be satisfied.

4) Washington. To the extent the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act,
Wash. Rev. Code §819.100.010 — 19.100.940 applies, the terms of this Addendum apply. (1) In
the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection
Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW will prevail. (2) RCW 19.100.180 may supersede the franchise
agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal
of your franchise. There may also be court decisions which may supersede the franchise agreement
in your relationship with the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your
franchise. (3) In any arbitration or mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the
arbitration or mediation site will be either in the state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed
upon at the time of the arbitration or mediation, or as determined by the arbitrator or mediator at
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the time of arbitration or mediation. In addition, if litigation is not precluded by the franchise
agreement, a franchisee may bring an action or proceeding arising out of or in connection with the
sale of franchises, or a violation of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, in
Washington. (4) A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee may not include rights
under the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder except
when executed pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the
parties are represented by independent counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably
restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for claims under the Act, or rights or remedies
under the Act such as aright to a jury trial, may not be enforceable. (5) Transfer fees are collectable
to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable estimated or actual costs in effecting a
transfer. (6) Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable
against an employee, including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s earnings from
the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $100,000 per year (an amount that will
be adjusted annually for inflation). In addition, a noncompetition covenant is void and
unenforceable against an independent contractor of a franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the
independent contractor’s earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed
$250,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). As a result, any
provisions contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere that conflict with these limitations
are void and unenforceable in Washington. (7) RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from
restricting, restraining, or prohibiting a franchisee from (i) soliciting or hiring any employee of a
franchisee of the same franchisor or (ii) soliciting or hiring any employee of the franchisor. As a
result, any such provisions contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere are void and
unenforceable in Washington.

%) Wisconsin. If this Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Wisconsin,
then the provisions of the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, Wis. Stat. Chapter 135, will supersede
any conflicting terms of this Agreement.

(6) If the Development Area includes more than one of the states indicated above in
this Section 12(C), then this Agreement will be governed by the laws of the state in which the first
Restaurant in located.

13. DEFINITIONS

For purposes of this Agreement, the following words will have the following definitions:

A. Franchise Agreement. “Franchise Agreement” will mean Franchisor’s then-
current standard Franchise Agreement.

B. Terms Defined in Franchise Agreement. Capitalized terms used but not defined
in this Agreement will, if defined in the Franchise Agreement, have the meanings ascribed to such
terms in the Franchise Agreement.

[the balance of this page is blank; signature pages follow]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Franchisor, Area Developer and Area Developer’s owners have
respectively signed this Agreement effective as of the date set forth above.

FRANCHISOR: VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC
DATED: BY:
ATTEST: TITLE:
AREA DEVELOPER:
DATED: BY:
ATTEST: TITLE:
DATED:

Individually
DATED:

Individually
DATED:

Individually
DATED:

Individually
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EXHIBIT A

OWNERSHIP OF AREA DEVELOPER

This form must be completed by Area Developer (“I,” “me,” or “my”) if | have multiple
owners or if I, or my development business, is owned by an entity (like a corporation, partnership
or limited liability company). Franchisor is relying on the truth and accuracy of this form in
awarding the Franchise Agreement to me.

1. Form of Owner. | am a (check one):

@ General Partnership 0

(b) Corporation O

(©) Limited Partnership 0

(d) Limited Liability Company O

(e) Other 0

Specify:
I was formed under the laws of
(state)
2. Business Entity. | was incorporated or formed on , 20,
under the laws of the State of . I have not conducted business under any name

other than my corporate, limited liability company or partnership name and the name
. The following is a list of all persons who have management rights
and powers (e.g., officers, managers, partners, etc.) and their positions are listed below:

Name of Person Position(s) Held

3. Owners. The following list includes the full name and mailing address of each
person who is one of my owners and fully describes the nature of each owner’s interest (attach
additional sheets if necessary).

Owner’s Name and Address Description of Interest % of Ownership

4. Management. As required pursuant to Section 5(G) of the Area Development
Agreement, the following Owner shall exert full-time efforts to the fulfillment of the obligations
of Area Developer under the Area Development Agreement as the Franchise Manager, and shall
have supervisory responsibilities in connection with the operation of Area Developer’s Restaurant
business pursuant thereto:

Name:
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5. Governing Documents. | agree to provide copies of any and all documents and
contracts governing the ownership, management and other significant aspects of the business
organization (e.g., articles of incorporation or organization, partnership or shareholder agreements,
etc.) to Franchisor upon request.

This Owners’ Statement is current and complete as of , 20

OWNERS

INDIVIDUALS:

Signature

Print Name

Signature

Print Name

Signature

Print Name

Signature

Print Name

Signature

Print Name

CORPORATION, LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY OR PARTNERSHIP:

By:

Title:
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EXHIBITB

OWNERS’” AND GUARANTORS” UNDERTAKING

THIS UNDERTAKING is made and entered into this day of , 20 , by the
undersigned (collectively, “GUARANTOR”) for and in consideration of VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company (“FRANCHISOR”) agreeing to enter into an Area Development
Agreement, dated , 20 (the “Area Development Agreement”) with
(“AREA DEVELOPER”) for the development and
operation of Giordano’s® Restaurants in the Development Area.

GUARANTOR acknowledges and agrees that FRANCHISOR entered into the Area Development
Agreement with AREA DEVELOPER solely on the condition that GUARANTOR be personally obligated
and jointly and severally liable with AREA DEVELOPER and all other GUARANTORS for the
performance of each and every obligation of AREA DEVELOPER and AREA DEVELOPER’S Owners
under the Area Development Agreement, any amendments or modifications to the Area Development
Agreement, as assignments and all ancillary agreements that have been or hereafter may be entered into by
AREA DEVELOPER and FRANCHISOR (all such agreements are collectively referred to as the
“Development Agreements”).

In consideration of and as an inducement to the execution of the Area Development Agreement by
FRANCHISOR, GUARANTOR hereby personally and unconditionally: (1) represents, warrants and
guarantees to FRANCHISOR and its successors and assigns, that AREA DEVELOPER shall punctually
pay and perform each and every undertaking, agreement, and covenant set forth in the Development
Agreements; and (2) agrees to be personally bound by, and personally liable for the breach of, each and
every provision in the Area Development Agreement, and each and every provision of the Development
Agreements, as if GUARANTOR were AREA DEVELOPER thereunder.

GUARANTOR waives: (1) acceptance and notice of acceptance by FRANCHISOR or its affiliates
of the foregoing undertakings; (2) notice of demand for payment of any indebtedness or non-performance
of any obligations hereby guaranteed; (3) protest and notice of default to any party with respect to the
indebtedness or non-performance of any obligations hereby guaranteed; (4) any right he or she may have
to require that an action be brought against AREA DEVELOPER or any other person as a condition of
liability; and (5) all rights to payments and claims for reimbursement or subrogation which GUARANTOR
may have against AREA DEVELOPER arising as a result of GUARANTOR’S execution of and
performance under this Undertaking; and (6) any and all other notices and legal or equitable to which he or
she may be entitled.

GUARANTOR hereby consents and agrees that: (1) GUARANTOR’S direct and immediate
liability under this Undertaking shall be joint and several with AREA DEVELOPER and any other
GUARANTORS of the obligations under the Development Agreements; (2) GUARANTOR shall render
any payment or performance required under the Area Development Agreement or any other Development
Agreement upon demand if AREA DEVELOPER shall fail or refuse punctually to do so; (3)
GUARANTOR'’S liability shall not be contingent or conditioned upon pursuit by FRANCHISOR or its
affiliates of any remedies against AREA DEVELOPER or any other person; (4) this Undertaking shall
continue in full force and effect with respect to any extension of or modification or amendment to the Area
Development Agreement or any Development Agreement, notwithstanding the transfer of any interest in
the Area Development Agreement by the undersigned, and GUARANTOR waives notice of any and all
such extensions, modifications, amendments or transfers; (5) GUARANTOR’S breach of any provision of
this Undertaking shall also constitute a breach of the Area Development Agreement and, as applicable, the
Development Agreements, and (6) GUARANTOR’S liability shall not be diminished, relieved or otherwise
affected by any extension of time, credit or other indulgence which FRANCHISOR or its affiliates may
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from time to time grant to AREA DEVELOPER or to any other person, including, without limitation, the
acceptance of any partial payment or performance or the compromise or release of any claims, or the taking
of any action by FRANCHISOR which may have the effect of revoking the obligations of any
GUARANTOR, none of which shall in any way modify or amend this Undertaking, which shall be
continuing and irrevocable during the term of the Area Development Agreement and so long as any
performance is or may be owed under any of the Development Agreements by AREA DEVELOPER or its
Owners and so long as FRANCHISOR may have any cause of action against AREA DEVELOPER or its
Owners.

If FRANCHISOR or GUARANTOR is required to enforce this Undertaking in a judicial or
arbitration proceeding, the party prevailing in the proceeding shall be reimbursed by the other party for its
costs and expenses including, without limitation, accountants’, attorneys’, attorneys assistants’, arbitrators’
and expert witness fees, cost of investigation and proof of facts, court costs, other litigation expenses and
travel and living expenses, whether incurred prior to, in preparation for or in contemplation of the filing of
any such proceeding. If FRANCHISOR is required to engage legal counsel in connection with any failure
by GUARANTOR to comply with this Undertaking, GUARANTOR shall reimburse FRANCHISOR for
any of the above-listed costs and expenses incurred by it.

GUARANTOR hereby consents and agrees that Sections 11 and 12 of the Development Area
Agreement apply to GUARANTOR and this UNDERTAKING, including, without limitation, Section 11(J)
(Construction), Sections 11(N) and (W) (Specific Performance, Injunctive Relief), Section 11(Q) (Consent
to Jurisdiction), Section 11(S) (Limitations of Claims), and Sections 11(T) through (V) (Arbitration).

This Undertaking will be governed by the laws of the state in which the Development Area is
located. The provisions of this Undertaking which conflict with or are inconsistent with applicable
governing law will be superseded and/or modified by such applicable law only to the extent such provisions
are inconsistent. The parties agree that any state law or regulation applicable to the offer or sale of
franchises or the franchise relationship will not apply unless the jurisdictional provisions are independently
met. GUARANTOR waives, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the rights and protections provided by
any such franchise law or regulation. All other provisions of this Undertaking will be enforceable as
originally made and entered into upon the execution of this Undertaking by GUARANTOR.

For purposes of this Undertaking: (1) “Owner” shall mean any person, partnership, corporation or
other entity holding any interest in the Franchise; (2) the term “GUARANTOR” is applicable to one or
more persons, a corporation or a partnership, as the case may be, and the singular usage includes the plural
and the masculine and neuter usages include the other and the feminine.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has hereunto affixed its signature, under seal, on the
same day and year as the Agreement was executed.

[signatures on next page]
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PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP GUARANTOR(S)
%
Print Name:
%
Print Name:
%
Print Name:
%
100% Print Name:
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ADDENDUM TO
VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

THIS ADDENDUM TO THE AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (this “Addendum”) is made,
entered into and effective this day of , 20 by and between VPC Pizza
Franchise, LLC (“Franchisor”) and (“Area Developer™)
to amend and revise certain provisions of the Area Development Agreement between Franchisor and
Area Developer, dated the same date as this Addendum, as follows:

Articles 3(A), (B) and (C) of the Area Development Agreement are hereby amended to include the
following language:

Franchisor will defer the payment of the Development Fee and the Initial Franchise Fees by Area
Developer until such time as Franchisor or an affiliate has completed all pre-opening obligations
owed Area Developer under this Agreement, and Area Developer has commenced doing business
at the first Restaurant in the Development Area. The Illinois Attorney General’s Office imposed
this deferral requirement due to Franchisor’s financial condition.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Area Development Agreement, to the
extent that the Area Development Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with the
following, such provisions are hereby amended:

Illinois law governs the franchise agreements.

In conformance with Section 4 of the lllinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any provision in a
franchise agreement that designates jurisdiction and venue in a forum outside of the State of
Illinois is void. However, a franchise agreement may provide for arbitration to take place outside
of Illinois.

Franchisees’ rights upon termination and non-renewal are set forth in sections 19 and 20 of the
Ilinois Franchise Disclosure Act.

In conformance with Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any condition, stipulation or
provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with the Illinois
Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void. To the extent this Addendum is deemed to
be inconsistent with any terms or conditions of the Area Development Agreement, the terms of this
Addendum will govern. All other terms and conditions of the Area Development Agreement will remain
the same.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned hereby acknowledges having read this Addendum,
understands and consents to be bound by all of its terms, and agrees it will be effective as of the date
first above written.

VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC

Name of Area Developer

By By

Its Its
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EXHIBIT C
VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC

Financial Statements

Years Ended January 1, 2024, January 2, 2023,
and January 3, 2022

The report accompanying these financial statements was issued by
BDO USA, P.C., a Virginia professional corporation and the U.S. member of
BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee.
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Tel: 614-488-3126 300 Spruce Street, Suite 100
Fax: 614-488-0095 Columbus, OH 43215
www.bdo.com

Independent Auditor’s Report

The Member
VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC
Chicago, Illinois

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC (the Company), which
comprise the balance sheets as of January 1, 2024, January 2, 2023, and January 3, 2022; the
related statements of income and changes in member’s deficit and cash flows for the years then
ended; and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Company as of January 1, 2024, January 2, 2023,
and January 3, 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended,
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (U.S. GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audits of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities,
in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial
statements are issued or available to be issued.

BDO USA refers to BDO USA, P.C., a Virginia professional corporation, also doing business in certain jurisdictions with an alternative identifying abbreviation, such as Corp.
or P.S.C.

BDO USA, P.C. is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of independent
member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audits of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with U.S. GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. GAAS, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly,
no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

BDO U}h J’P_C.

May 3, 2024
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VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC

Balance Sheets

January 1, 2024 January 2, 2023 January 3, 2022

Assets
Current Assets

Cash S 56,208 § 1,989,528 $ 2,382,550

Accounts receivable - - 196

Royalty receivables, net 369,573 374,935 388,830
Total Current Assets 425,781 2,364,463 2,771,576
Other Assets

Franchise rights, net 18,000 731,284 1,509,230
Total Other Assets 18,000 731,284 1,509,230
Total Assets S 443,781 § 3,095,747 $ 4,280,806
Liabilities and Member's Deficit
Current Liabilities

Current maturities of long-term debt, net S 3,905,354 § 4,308,967 S 4,835,364

Accounts payable - trade 9,561 2,454 2,000

Accrued liabilities 93,239 94,833 45,723

Deferred franchise fees 72,776 71,965 102,382
Total Current Liabilities 4,080,930 4,478,219 4,985,469
Long-Term Liabilities

Deferred franchise fees, net of current 268,921 292,223 315,271
Total Liabilities 4,349,851 4,770,442 5,300,740
Member's Deficit (3,906,070) (1,674,695) (1,019,934)
Total Liabilities and Member's Deficit S 443,781 S 3,095,747 §$ 4,280,806

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC

Statements of Income and Changes in Member’s Deficit

Year ended January 1, 2024 January 2, 2023 January 3, 2022
Revenues

Royalty fees ) 3,585,183 § 3,882,446 $ 3,725,984

Initial franchise fees 94,657 125,965 67,132
Total Revenues 3,679,840 4,008,411 3,793,116
Operating Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses 502,415 501,330 444,744

Amortization 713,284 777,946 777,947
Total Operating Expenses 1,215,699 1,279,276 1,222,691
Operating Income 2,464,141 2,729,135 2,570,425
Other Expense

Interest expense (459,525) (292,938) (268,102)
Other Expense (459,525) (292,938) (268,102)
Net Income 2,004,616 2,436,197 2,302,323
Member's Deficit, beginning of year (1,674,695) (1,019,934) (1,523,495)

Capital contributions 164,009 1,209,042 1,201,238

Distributions (4,400,000) (4,300,000) (3,000,000)
Member's Deficit, end of year $ (3,906,070) $ (1,674,695) $ (1,019,934)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC

Statements of Cash Flows

January 2, 2023

January 3, 2022

Year ended January 1, 2024
Operating Activities
Net income 2,004,616 S 2,436,197 S 2,302,323
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Amortization of franchise rights 713,284 777,946 777,947
Amortization of debt issuance cost - 14,354 17,170
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable - 196 40,811
Royalty receivables, net 5,362 13,895 (43,650)
Accounts payable - trade 7,106 454 1,918
Accrued liabilities (1,594) 49,110 (3,590)
Deferred franchise fees (22,491) (53,465) (7,132)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 2,706,283 3,238,687 3,085,797
Financing Activities
Principal payments of long-term debt (403,612) (540,751) (582,943)
Contributions from member 164,009 1,209,042 1,201,238
Distributions to member (4,400,000) (4,300,000) (3,000,000)
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (4,639,603) (3,631,709) (2,381,705)
Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash (1,933,320) (393,022) 704,092
Cash, beginning of year 1,989,528 2,382,550 1,678,458
Cash, end of year 56,208 $ 1,989,528 § 2,382,550
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
465,919 S 309,928 § 285,092

Cash paid during the year for interest

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC

Notes to Financial Statements

1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Operations

The Company is organized under applicable Delaware law as a Limited Liability Company (LLC). The
Company franchises restaurants under the name “Giordano’s,” which is a pizza restaurant and fresh
Italian food concept and is the franchisor for restaurants located in Illinois, Florida, Indiana, and
Colorado.

On November 22, 2011, the Company was formed as a wholly owned subsidiary of VPC Pizza
Operating Corp. (the Parent and the member) to purchase certain assets from Giordano’s
Enterprises, Inc. (GEI).

A schedule of franchised restaurants in operation is as follows:

Year ended January 1, 2024 January 2, 2023 January 3, 2022
Franchised Restaurants, beginning of year 36 37 35
Restaurants opened - 1 2
Restaurants closed 3 2 -
Franchised Restaurants, end of year 33 36 37
Liquidity

As described in Note 3, VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC (the Company) and its co-borrowers have
approximately $50,790,000 of debt outstanding under its credit agreement with a maturity in April
2024. As a result of the September 2023 maturity of the credit facility, the Company and its co-
borrowers have been in discussions with lenders regarding refinancing and/or replacement of the
credit facility. As described in Note 8, the Company replaced the credit facility by entering into a
new credit facility along with a preferred stock equity transaction. See Note 8 for further details on
payments due in 2024 for the new credit facility and when it matures.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(U.S. GAAP).

Reporting Period

The Company’s fiscal year is the 52/53-week period ending on the Monday closest to December 31st.
The fiscal years ended January 1, 2024 (2023) and January 2, 2023 (2022) included 52 weeks. The
fiscal years ended January 3, 2022 (2021) included 53 weeks.

Franchise Rights

Franchise rights are amortized over the remaining life of the franchise agreements as of the
purchase date.



VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC

Notes to Financial Statements

Impairment or Disposal of Intangibles and Long-Lived Assets

The Company assesses the recoverability of the recorded value of its long-lived assets, such as
franchise rights, on an annual basis or whenever events or changes in business circumstances
indicate the carrying amount of the asset may not be fully recoverable. The assessment of
recoverability is based on management’s estimate of undiscounted future operating cash flows of
its long-lived assets. If the assessment indicated that the undiscounted operating cash flows do not
exceed the net book value of the long-lived assets, then the difference between the net book value
of the long-lived asset and the fair value of such assets is recorded as a charge against income in
the statements of income and changes in member’s deficit. There was no impairment recorded on
long-lived assets during 2023, 2022, or 2021.

Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs of $84,607 were paid in 2017 related to debt financing. Such costs are amortized
over the five-year term of the debt agreements using the straight-line method, which approximates
the effective interest method, and the amortization is included as a component of interest expense.
The debt issuance costs were fully amortized as of January 2, 2023.

Royalty Fees

Royalty fees are based upon a percentage of adjusted gross revenue collected by the franchisees.
Royalty fees are primarily related to the use of the license agreement and are subject to the “royalty
constraint” under Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification
Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (ASC 606) and as such they are recognized as
income in the same period in which the sales occur by the franchisees.

Franchise Fees and Area Development Fees

The Company generates revenues from franchising through area development agreements and
individual franchise agreements. In consideration for the payment of an initial franchise fee,
continuing royalties, and other amounts specified in the franchise agreement, the Company grants
new franchisees the use of the Giordano’s trademarks in accordance with the Company’s system,
initial training, and access to proprietary recipes and methods.

For new franchise restaurant openings, the Company’s current franchise agreement requires the
franchisee to pay an initial, non-refundable fee of $40,000 upon the signing of the agreement and
continuing monthly royalty fees of up to 6% of gross sales. The initial term of the franchise
agreement is generally ten years with two five-year renewal options, subject to certain conditions.
In accordance with ASC 606, the Company satisfies the performance obligation related to the
franchise agreement and area development agreements over the term of the related agreement,
which is typically ten years. Payment for the franchise agreement consists of two components, a
fixed fee related to the franchise/development agreement and a sales-based royalty fee. Payment
for the area development agreements consists of a fixed fee. The fixed fees, as determined by the
signed area development and/or franchise agreement, are nonrefundable and due at the time the
area development agreement or franchise agreement is entered into, and/or when the franchise
agreement is signed. Revenue related to these franchise/development agreements is recognized on
a straight-line basis over the respective term upon adoption of ASC 606, which typically begins the
date of the opening of the new franchise restaurant.
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VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC

Notes to Financial Statements

Deferred Franchise Fees

The Company’s contract liabilities consist of fees from franchisees upon execution of their
respective area development and/or franchise agreements, which are referred to as deferred
franchise fees. The amounts received are recorded as deferred franchise fees until the Company
satisfies its performance obligations under the franchise and area development agreements or upon
cancellation of the area development agreement or franchise agreement by the Company due to a
default, as outlined in the agreement, or by permanent store closure. Revenue from franchise
agreements and area development agreements is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term
of the agreement as the underlying performance obligation is satisfied.

Royalty Receivables

Royalty receivables are comprised of unconditional amounts due from franchisees requiring payment
within 15 days from the end of each month. The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful
accounts that is calculated under the current expected credit loss (“CECL”) model. The CECL model
applies to financial assets measured at amortized cost and requires the Company to reflect expected
credit losses over the remaining contractual term of the asset. The Company uses an aging method
to estimate allowances for doubtful accounts under the CECL model as the Company has determined
that the aging method adequately reflects expected credit losses, as corroborated by historical
losses. The expense associated with the allowance for doubtful accounts is recognized as a selling,
general, and administrative expense. As of January 1, 2024, and January 3, 2022, the Company had
no allowance for doubtful accounts. As of January 2, 2023, the Company had an allowance for
doubtful accounts in the amount of $3,960.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit
risk consist primarily of cash. The Company places its temporary cash investments with financial
institutions. At times throughout the year the Company may, in the ordinary course of business,
maintain cash balances in excess of federally insured limits. Management does not believe the
Company is exposed to any unusual risks on such deposits.

Income Taxes

The Company, with the consent of its member, has elected to be formed as an LLC. The Company
is considered a disregarded entity for federal and state income tax purposes. In lieu of paying taxes
at the Company level, the earnings and losses are included in the tax returns of the member.
Therefore, no provision or liability for federal or state income taxes has been included in the
financial statements.

The Company follows accounting requirements associated with uncertainty in income taxes using
the provisions of FASB ASC 740, Income Taxes. Using that guidance, tax positions initially need to
be recognized in the financial statements when it is more likely than not the positions will be
sustained upon examination by the tax authorities. A recognized tax position is then measured at
the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon settlement.

For 2023, 2022, and 2021, the Company had no uncertain tax positions that qualify for either
recognition or disclosure in the financial statements. Additionally, the Company did not incur any
interest and penalties related to income taxes.
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VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC

Notes to Financial Statements

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
materially from those estimates.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

Effective January 3, 2023 the Company adopted Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-13,
Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326), along with related clarifications and
improvements. This pronouncement requires companies to measure credit losses utilizing a
methodology that reflects expected credit losses and requires a consideration of a broader range of
reasonable and supportable information to inform credit loss estimates. The Company adopted the
standard using the modified retrospective approach as of the effective date and therefore, has not
applied the standard to the comparative period presented in the financial statements. The modified-
retrospective approach requires an entity to recognize a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained
earnings as of the beginning of the first reporting period in which this guidance is effective. There
was no material impact to the statements of income and changes in member’s deficit, and no
cumulative adjustment was recognized.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-01, Leases (Topic 842): Common Control Arrangement,
which addresses the accounting by private companies for common control leases and leasehold
improvements associated with such leases. Specifically, the new guidance includes the following
provisions: (a) nonpublic entities can elect a practical expedient to use the written terms and
conditions of their arrangements between entities under common control to determine whether a
lease exists and, if so, to classify and account for that lease, rather than using legally enforceable
terms and conditions as currently required and (b) all entities (public or nonpublic) will be required
to amortize leasehold improvements associated with leases between entities under common control
generally over the useful life of the leasehold improvements to the common control group, rather
than over the shorter of the useful life of those leasehold improvements and the remaining lease
term as currently required. The standard is effective for private companies for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2023. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently analyzing the
impact of the pending adoption of this new standard on its financial statements.

2. Franchise Rights

In 2011, the Parent contributed certain acquired franchise rights relating to the acquired franchise
operations to the Company. The fair value of the franchise rights was estimated considering the
present value of anticipated fees for each individual agreement. Amortization of the franchise rights
is recorded each period based on the average lives of the franchise agreements acquired, which was
determined to be 12 years.
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VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC

Notes to Financial Statements

Franchise rights consisted of the following:

January 1, 2024 January 2, 2023 January 3, 2022

Franchise rights $ 9,351,357 S 9,351,357 § 9,351,357
Less: accumulated amortization (9,333,357) (8,620,073) (7,842,127)
Franchise Rights, Net $ 18,000 S 731,284 S 1,509,230

During 2023, 2022, and 2021, the Company recognized amortization expense of $713,284, $777,946,
§$777,947, respectively. Estimated amortization expense of franchise rights for each of the five years
subsequent to January 1, 2024 is approximately $2,000 for 2024 through 2028, and $8,000
thereafter.

3. Long-Term Debt

On November 8, 2017, the Parent secured an $83,000,000, five-year term credit facility with
third-party lenders consisting of a $60,000,000 term note with a $15,000,000 delayed-draw feature
and $8,000,000 of revolving credit facilities (Credit Facility). Proceeds from the term note were
used to refinance the third-party secured senior note of $36,579,195 and its related accrued interest
and financing costs, along with funding for an equity transaction. The remaining facility capacity
was used to fund the Parent’s growth initiatives.

The Company is a co-borrower under the Credit Facility, along with the Parent and other wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Parent. Pursuant to accounting principles related to joint and several
liabilities, as a co-borrower, the Company must record as its own liability for the portion of the
aggregate debt that it is expected to fund. That determination was based on an estimate of the
Company’s pro-rata fair value (as determined using 2016 EBITDA and an appropriate multiple)
compared to the fair value of the consolidated Parent. Accordingly, of the initial $60,000,000
borrowings under the Credit Facility, $6,036,289 was allocated to the Company.

Term Loan Commitment

Under the terms of the Credit Facility, the Parent received $60,000,000 of funds in the form of a
term loan. Additionally, the Parent had the option to borrow up to $15,000,000 of additional funds
subject to certain restrictions, as defined. The Parent elected to borrow an additional $5,000,000
using this facility in December 2018.

Under the Credit Facility, interest on the term loan is payable on the last day of each applicable
interest period at a variable interest rate of the then-outstanding principal amount of all loans,
which is equal to a base rate plus an applicable margin (the interest rate was 9.96%, 10.44%, and
5.00% as of January 1, 2024, January 2, 2023, and January 3, 2022, respectively), plus payable-in-
kind interest (“PIK Interest”). The PIK interest is added to the outstanding unpaid principle balance
and is due on the maturity date.

Mandatory principal payments are required to be paid quarterly in amounts between $375,000 and
$1,125,000 under the terms of the Credit Facility. The remaining principal balance is due upon
maturity, April 30, 2024. Mandatory prepayments are required if certain events occur, as defined in
the Credit Facility.
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VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC

Notes to Financial Statements

The Credit Facility is collateralized by substantially all business assets of the Parent and is subject
to certain financial covenants for certain periods as dictated in the agreements, including a
maximum net lease adjusted leverage ratio, a minimum fixed-charge coverage ratio, and minimum
consolidated liquidity requirements for certain stipulated periods. During 2020, the Company and
its co-borrowers were in violation of certain financial covenants. The Company and its co-borrowers
obtained a waiver of this event of default by the lenders. The Company and its co-borrowers
amended its credit facility in 2020, which modified certain covenant requirements and permitted
the Company and its co-borrowers to defer $812,500 of principal payments to become due at
maturity. In January 2021, the Company and its co-borrowers entered into an additional amendment
that waived additional events of default from 2020, further modified certain covenant
requirements, and added a minimum consolidated EBITDA requirement, as defined by the
agreement. This amendment also places certain restrictions on the Company and its co-borrowers
with respect to capital expenditures during fiscal year 2021. On November 8, 2022, the Company
and its co-borrowers entered into an additional amendment that waived additional events of default
from 2021. On March 16, 2023, the Company and its co-borrowers entered into an additional
amendment. As a result of the amendment, the lender agreed to waive certain existing events of
default on the existing credit agreement and extend the maturity date to September 30, 2023. On
February 28, 2024, the Company and its co-borrowers entered into an additional amendment. As a
result of the amendment, the lender agreed to waive certain existing events of default on the
existing credit agreement and extend the maturity date to March 29, 2024. On March 29, 2024, the
Company and its co-borrowers entered into an additional amendment. As a result of the
amendment, the lender agreed to waive certain existing events of default on the existing credit
agreement and extend the maturity date to April 30, 2024. See note 8.

Debt issuance costs represent legal, consulting, and financial costs associated with debt financing,
which totaled $84,607 (unamortized) at January 1, 2024. Debt issuance costs are amortized over
the term of the debt agreement (five years) using the straight-line method, which approximates the
effective interest method, and the amortization is recorded as a component of interest expense.
This component of interest expense was -$0-, $14,354, and $17,170, for 2023, 2022, and 2021,
respectively.

As of January 1, 2024, January 2, 2023, and January 3, 2022, the allocated loan balance, net of
allocated debt issuance costs, was $3,905,354, $4,308,967, and $4,835,364 with accrued interest of
$27,939, $34,333, and $4,073, respectively, included with accrued liabilities on the accompanying
balance sheets. The Company incurred interest expense, exclusive of debt financing cost
amortization, of $459,525, $235,804, and $250,932 for 2023, 2022, and 2021, respectively.

Delayed-Draw Feature and Revolving Credit Facilities

Under the Credit Facility, the Parent has the ability to borrow up to $15,000,000 delayed-draw
feature and the ability to borrow up to $8,000,000 through revolving credit facilities. Interest on
the outstanding balance of the delayed-draw feature and the revolving credit facilities is payable
on the last day of each applicable interest period at the same interest rate as the term loan. A fee
is charged for the unused balance of the revolving credit facilities and is payable quarterly at a rate
of 0.5% per annum plus PIK interest. Since the revolving credit was fully drawn on during years
ended January 1, 2024, January 2, 2023, no unused balance fees were paid. During 2020, the Parent
drew down $6,000,000 from the revolving credit facilities. As of January 1, 2024, January 2, 2023,
and January 3, 2022, the delayed-draw loan balance was $3,873,472, $4,075,633, and $4,263,133,
respectively. As of January 1, 2024, January 2, 2023, and January 3, 2022 the revolving credit facility
balance was $8,097,734 with the outstanding balance due at maturity date of April 30, 2024. This
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VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC

Notes to Financial Statements

was for specific purposes not related to the Company, and therefore no amount has been allocated
to the Company. See note 8.

4. Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Company has revenue from initial franchise fees and area development fees and continuing
revenue related to royalty fees.

Franchise Fees and Area Development Fees

The Company generates revenues from franchising through area development agreements and
individual franchise agreements. In consideration for the payment of an initial franchise fee,
continuing royalties, and other amounts specified in the franchise agreement, the Company grants
new franchisees the use of the Giordano’s trademarks in accordance with the Company system,
initial training, and access to proprietary recipes and methods.

During 2023, the Company recognized $21,000 of revenue related to area development and franchise
contract terminations, which is included in initial franchise fees on the accompanying statements
of income and member’s deficit. During 2022, the Company recognized $53,833 of revenue related
to area development and franchise contract terminations, which is included in initial franchise fees
on the accompanying statements of income and member’s deficit. During 2021, there was no
revenue related to area development and franchise contract terminations.

Deferred Franchise Fees

The Company’s contract liabilities consist of fees from franchisees upon execution of their
respective area development and/or franchise agreements, which are referred to as deferred
franchise fees. The amounts received are recorded as deferred franchise fees until the Company
satisfies its performance obligations under the franchise and area development agreements.
Revenue from franchise agreements and area development agreements is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the term of the agreement as the underlying performance obligation is
satisfied.
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VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC

Notes to Financial Statements

A summary of significant changes to the deferred franchise fees balance during 2023, 2022, and
2021 is shown below:

Balance, December 28, 2020 S 424,785
Amounts received in 2021 for new area development and initial franchise fee

agreements 60,000
Revenue recognized from area development agreements and initial franchise fees (67,132)
Balance, January 3, 2022 417,653
Amounts received in 2022 for new area development and initial franchise fee

agreements 72,500
Revenue recognized from area development agreements and initial franchise fees (125,965)
Balance, January 2, 2023 364,188
Amounts received in 2023 for new area development and initial franchise fee

agreements 72,166
Revenue recognized as a result of contract terminations (21,000)
Revenue recognized from area development agreements and initial franchise fees (73,657)
Balance, January 1, 2024 S 341,697

The following table illustrates the estimated revenue to be recognized in the future related to
performance obligations that are unsatisfied as of January 1, 2024:

Fiscal year ending

2024 S 72,776
2025 68,943
2026 59,443
2027 49,859
2028 36,962
Thereafter 53,714
Total S 341,697

5. Related Party Transactions

The Company utilizes certain employees, services and office space of its Parent for which the
Company is charged its allocable share of the costs incurred by the Parent. Total costs incurred by
the Company from the Parent amounted to $146,600, $145,044, and $145,136, in 2023, 2022, and
2021, respectively, and are included in selling, general, and administrative expenses on the
accompanying statements of income and changes in member’s deficit.

In order to support its franchises, the Company enters into certain transactions, such as intellectual
property licensing, food product, and recipe sourcing, with other wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Parent.

6. Contingencies

From time to time, the Company is subject to lawsuits and other charges from customers and
employees, which are typical within the industry. In the opinion of management, any open matters
that may have a material effect upon the financial position of the Company are deemed remote.

16



VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC

Notes to Financial Statements

7. Member’s Deficit

Original membership contributions were made for 100% of the LLC interests, as defined in the
operating agreement. The Company’s profits, losses, and cash distributions are allocated to the
member set forth in the operating agreement.

During 2023, 2022, and 2021, the Parent paid certain expenses on behalf of the Company and
converted the underlying payable due to the Parent into a contribution to the Company in the
amount of $164,009, $1,209,042, and $1,201,238, respectively.

8. Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated all events and transactions that occurred between January 2, 2024 and
May 3, 2024, which is the date that the financial statements were available to be issued.

On February 28, 2024, the Parent entered into the twelfth amendment to the Credit Agreement and
Limited Waiver, which extended the Citizens Bank National Association term note and LOC to mature
on March 29, 2024 along with providing a limited waiver that covers the debt covenants.

On March 29, 2024, the Parent entered into the thirteenth amendment to the Credit Agreement and
Limited Waiver, which extended the Citizens Bank National Association term note and LOC to mature
on April 30, 2024 along with providing a limited waiver that covers the debt covenants.

On April 30, 2024, the Parent entered into a Credit Agreement with CIBC Bank USA (CIBC Credit
Agreement). Under the terms of the CIBC Credit Agreement, the Parent received $24,000,000 of
funds in the form of a term loan, less closing fees and expenses of $629,087, with $1,200,000 due
in 2024 and full maturity on April 30, 2027. Additionally, the Parent received $3,500,000 in the form
of a revolving note, of which SO was drawn at closing, with $0 due in 2024 and full maturity on April
30, 2027. On April 30, 2024, the Parent issued Preferred Stock for an aggregate amount of
approximately $28,500,000. The Parent used the CIBC Credit Agreement and equity to payoff the
Citizens Bank National Association term note and LOC on April 30, 2024.

The Company is a co-borrower under the CIBC Credit Agreement, along with the Parent and other
wholly owned subsidiaries of the Parent. Pursuant to accounting principles related to joint and
several liabilities, as a co-borrower, the Company must record as its own liability for the portion of
the aggregate debt that it is expected to fund. That determination was based on an estimate of the
Company’s pro-rata fair value (as determined using 2023 EBITDA and an appropriate multiple)
compared to the fair value of the consolidated Parent. Accordingly, of the initial $24,000,000
borrowings under the Credit Facility, $6,787,753 was allocated to the Company with $339,388 due
in 2024. The new Parent revolving note was for specific purposes not related to the Company, and
therefore no amount has been allocated to the Company.

No other material events or transactions have occurred through May 3, 2024 that required
recognition or disclosure in these financial statements, outside of those disclosed above.
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UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF APRIL 1, 2024

THE FOLLOWING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HAVE BEEN PREPARED WITHOUT AN AUDIT. PROSPECTIVE
FRANCHISEES OR SELLERS OF FRANCHISES SHOULD BE ADVISED THAT NO INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED

PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT HAS AUDITED THESE FIGURES OR EXPRESSED AN OPINION WITH REGARD TO
THEIR CONTENT OR FORM.
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VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC
Balance Sheet

Balance Sheet as of 4/1/2024 1/1/2024
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash & equivalents S 420,386 S 56,208
Royalty receivable 321,103 369,573
Other receivables (7,223) -
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS ) 734,266 S 425,781
OTHER ASSETS
Intangible assets, net 17,500 18,000
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS S 17,500 S 18,000
TOTAL ASSETS S 751,766 S 443,781
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable - trade S - S (9,560)
Other accrued expenses and liabilities (406,095) (434,936)
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES S (406,095) S (444,496)
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term debt S (3,806,552) S (3,905,354)
TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES S (3,806,552) S (3,905,354)
TOTAL LIABILITIES S (4,212,647) S (4,349,849)
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Interco elimination - FR 6,146,084 5,909,133
Retained earnings (2,685,203) (2,003,065)
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY S 3,460,881 S 3,906,068
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY S (751,766) S (443,781)




VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC
Income Statement

YTD YTD
Income Statement for year ended 4/1/2024 4/3/2023
Revenues:
Franchise Royalties 831,809 876,658
Total Revenues $831,809 $876,658
Payroll:
Corporate Payroll 27,532 26,557
Subtotal - Payroll $27,532 $26,557
Bonus 5,000 3,750
Benefits 7,769 6,338
Taxes & All Other 2,582 4,302
Total Payroll & Fringes $42,883 $41,447
Operating Expenses:
Restaurant Supplies 7,994 15,570
Professional Services 11,792 42,628
Other Expenses 4,783 339
Total Operating Expenses $24,614 $58,537
Ongoing EBITDA $764,312 $776,675
Other Non Op Expense / (Income) 0 0
Reported EBITDA $764,312 $776,675
Interest Expense 81,674 0
Amortization 500 194,487
Net Income $682,138 $582,188




EXHIBITD
VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC

FRANCHISEE APPROVED SUPPLIER AND DISTRIBUTOR
ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT
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FRANCHISEE APPROVED SUPPLIER AND
DISTRIBUTOR ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT

Agreement  between VPC  Pizza  Franchise, LLC  (*Franchisor”) and
(“Franchisee”) pursuant to which Franchisee is
authorized to assist Franchisor in approving suppliers and distributors of the products, materials,
equipment and supplies used in the operation of a “Giordano’s® Restaurant.”

Whereas, Franchisee agrees to:

1. Represent Franchisor in negotiating and recommending new approved suppliers
and distributors of products, materials, equipment and supplies for use by all Giordano’s®
Restaurant franchisees and Franchisor as a company.

2. Accurately and truthfully represent and state Franchisor policies in all negotiations
with any potential and/or present approved suppliers and/or distributors.

3. Promptly inform Franchisor of any new supplier or distributor recommendations.

4, Act at all times in the best interest of Franchisor and its franchisees when
negotiating and securing new approved suppliers.

5. Act at all times in compliance with the terms of the current Franchise Agreement.

6. Not to enter into any contract or agreement that will bind Franchisor in any manner
without the express consent and approval of Franchisor.

7. Schedule any initial meetings and/or negotiations with Franchisor so that a
Franchisor representative may be present.

8. Notify Franchisor in writing on a weekly basis as to the status of any negotiations
they are involved in.

9. Provide Franchisor with 30 days’ notice should Franchisee intend to terminate this
Agreement.

Whereas, Franchisor agrees to:

1. Oversee any and all Franchisee’s negotiations with potential approved suppliers
and distributors.

2. Participate in initial negotiations with potential approved suppliers and, if necessary
any subsequent negotiations.

3. Provide final and binding approval or denial of any and all suppliers and distributors
recommended by Franchisee.
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Whereas:

1. This constitutes the entire agreement between the parties.
2. Franchisor may terminate this Agreement at any time with or without cause.
3. This Agreement will be automatically terminated should Franchisee be determined

to be in violation of the Franchise Agreement.

Signed this day of , 20

VPC PI1ZZA FRANCHISE, LLC: FRANCHISEE:
By: By

Print Name: Print Name:
Title: Title:

Date: Date:
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EXHIBIT E
VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC

MANUAL TABLE OF CONTENTS

2024 VVPC Pizza Franchise, LLC FDD
63401274v5



CONFIDENTIAL OPERATIONS MANUAL

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Topic Page No. No. of Pages

Restaurant Operations 5
1. Opening And Closing Procedures 6 1
2. Guest Experience 7 1
3. Food Service 7 1
4, Culinary Management 11 4
5. Beverage Service 14 3
6. Retail 15 1
7. Guests with Disabilities 17 2
8. Handling Complaints 18 1
9. Revenue Management 20 2
10. Safety & Sanitation 23 3
Office & Administration 26 3
11. Cash Handling 28 2
12. Vendor Management 29 1
13. Licenses 30 1
14, Quality Assurance 31 1
15. Office Policies & Technical Support 33 2
Marketing 34 1
16. Brand Usage And Guidelines 36 2
17. Marketing Support 38 2
18. Menu And Collateral 42 4
19. Local Restaurant Marketing 43 1
20. Grassroots Marketing 47 3
Facilities 49 2
21. Emergency Power Outage 51 2
22. Emergency Gas Leak 51 1
23. FFE Maintenance 52 1
Total number of pages 73
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EXHIBIT F
VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC

LIST OF CURRENT FRANCHISEES
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CURRENT FRANCHISEES
(As of December 31, 2023)

Restaurant Street Address

Franchisee Telephone Number City State/Zip Code
COLORADO
3G3 Arvada, LLC 15177 Candelas Parkway
Jeff Kaplan (720) 716-3611 Arvada Colorado 80007
3G3-LoDo,LLC 1600 California St.
Jeff Kaplan (720) 874-5205 Denver Colorado 80202
FLORIDA
Giordano’s of Orlando, LLC 7866 W. Irlo Bronson Mem. Hwy. o .
Nick Apostolou (407) 397-0044 Kissimmee Florida 34747
Giordano’s of Orlando, LLC 12151 S. Apopka Vineland Rd. Lake Buena Florida 32836
Nick Apostolou (407) 239- 8900 Vista
Sand Lake Pizzeria, LLC 6203 W. Sand Lake Rd. Suite A-1 .
Hayssam Elkoussa (407) 377-0022 Orlando Florida 32819
ILLINOIS
Katerina's Pizza, LLC 1505 South Randall Road . L
George Lois (847) 854-0076 Algonquin Illinois 60102
AlX Indigo, LLC 1505 N. Veterans Parkway . -
Aaron Uftring (309) 403-0432 Bloomington | Illinois 61704
Themi's Pizza, LLC 270 N. McHenry Road I
Georgios Lois (847) 520-1600 Buffalo Grove | Illinois 60089
Stephano’s Pizza on Sheridan, Inc. 6836 N. Sheridan Road . -
John Daoulas (773) 262-1313 Chicago lllinois 60626
Athena’s Best Pizza Inc. 5927 W. Irving Park Rd. . .
Peter Skiouris (773) 736-5553 Chicago lllinois 60634
JBA, Inc. 5311 S. Blackstone . -
Peter Skiouris (773) 947-0200 Chicago lllinois 60615
Pulaski Pizza, LLC 5159 S. Pulaski Street . I
Louis Giannakopoulos (773) 582-7676 Chicago lllinois 60632
Business Keys, LLC 6314 S. Cicero . -
Louis Giannakopoulos (773) 585-6100 Chicago lllinois 60638
Beverly Pizza, Inc. 9613 S. Western Ave. . L
Louis Giannakopoulos (773) 239-5000 Chicago lllinois 60643
South Loop Pizza, LLC 1340 S. Michigan Ave. . .
Louis Giannakopoulos (312) 842-1100 Chicago Illinois 60605
Lincolnwood Carryout, Inc. 6485 N. Lincoln Ave Lincolnwood Illinois 60712
John Daoulas (847) 983-0223
Gourmet Food Concepts, Inc. 1510 Market St. Metropolitan Squire Des Plaines Illinois 60016
Syed Hassan (847) 635-8550
CMJ, Inc. 5115 Main St. Downers Illinois 60515
Constantinos (Dino) Alexakos (630) 435-5999 Grove
Jason's Pizza, Inc. 455 Roosevelt Rd. I
Peter Skiouris (630) 790-1717 Glen Ellyn Hllinois 60137
Grand West, Inc. 7105 Grand Ave. L
Athanassios Kourliouros (847) 856-6100 Gurnee lllinois 60031
Rambo’s Pizza in Lake Zurich, Inc. 483 S. Rand Rd. . I
Ramiz Mareewa (847) 726-1500 Lake Zurich | Illinois 60047
Global Food Concepts, Inc. 2075 S. Ridge Rd. Minooka Illinois 60447
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Restaurant Street Address

Franchisee Telephone Number City State/Zip Code
Syed Hassan (815) 828-5641
Eat at Joe’s Il, Inc. 3224 S. Route 59, Ste. 120 . L
Joseph LoCascio (630) 904-9800 Naperville | lllinois 60564
Maria's Best Pizza, Inc 1115 Chicago Ave. I
Peter Skiouris (708) 386-2223 Oak Park Hllinois 60302
Cara Sales, Inc. 2344 S. Route 59 g -
Rafael and Amy Centeno (815) 609-5900 Plainfield | Illinois 60586
Cento’s, Inc., 333 Executive Parkway I
Jose Centeno and Kimberly Centeno (815) 398-5700 Rockford lllinois 61107
NGDS Pizza, Inc. 320 S. Randall Rd. . -
Niko Sbirakos (847) 841-8700 South Elgin | Illinois 60177
America’s Finest Pizza, Inc. 3641 Main St. -
Peter Kates (630) 762-1600 St. Charles Illinois 60174
Cento’s & Sons, Inc. 1556 Buttitta Dr. -
Jose Centeno and Kimberly Centeno (630) 372-8600 Streamwood | Illinois 60107
For Love of Pizza, Inc. 1840 Dekalb Ave. Svcamore linois 60178
Asencion Centeno (815) 899-2999 y
Ann Kondiles 10410 W. Cermak Rd. -
Dimitri Dimitropoulos (708) 531-1122 Westchester | lllinois 60153
INDIANA
Stuffed Za, LLC 101800 Diebold Rd. :
Tom Fife (260) 366-4787 Fort Wayne | Indiana 46825
Schereville Pizza, LLC 625 Lincoln Highway . .
Joeseph Chojnowski (219) 215-0333 Schereville | Indiana 46375
Signed but not Opened:
Restaurant Street Address
Franchisee Telephone Number City State/Zip Code
ILLINOIS

. 253 Genesis Way North I

Innovative Food Concepts Inc. 994-678-6260 Aurora llinois 60542

If you buy this Franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when

you leave the franchise system.

2024 VVPC Pizza Franchise, LLC FDD
63401274v5

F-2




EXHIBIT G
VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC

LIST OF FORMER FRANCHISEES
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FRANCHISEES WHO HAVE HAD AN OUTLET

TERMINATED, CANCELED, NOT RENEWED OR OTHERWISE
VOLUNTARILY OR INVOLUNTARILY CEASED TO DO BUSINESS
DURING 2023 OR WHO HAVE NOT COMMUNICATED WITH FRANCHISOR
WITHIN LAST 10 WEEKS

Closed Outlets:

Name Phone Number City State | Zip Code
George Diskos (630) 458-0044 Addison IL 60101
George Apostolou (312) 265-0243 Chicago IL 60608
Paul Leongas (773) 467-9400 Chicago IL 60631
Dean Georgelos (815) 828-5641 Minooka IL 60447

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers

when you leave the franchise system.
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EXHIBIT H
VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC

STATE AGENCIES AND
AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS
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STATE AGENCIES AND

AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

STATE STATE ADMINISTRATOR/AGENT ADDRESS
320 West 4" Street, Suite 750
- . . . Los Angeles, CA 90013-2344
Comm|§5|oner of Financial Protection and 1-866-275-2677
Innovation Ask.dfpi@dfpi.ca.gov
California California Department of Financial Protection ' =
mngf‘gagfnov DFPI Main Office
-afpr.ca.g 2101 Arena Boulevard
Sacramento CA 95834
llinoi llinoi | 500 South Second Street
Illinois Illinois Attorney Genera Springfield, IL 62706
Indiana Indiana Securities Commissioner 302 West Washington Street, Room E111
(State Administrator) | Securities Division Indianapolis, IN 46204
Indiana . f 302 West Washington Street, Room E018
(Agent) Indiana Secretary of State Indianapolis, IN 46204
L G. Mennen Williams Building, 1% Floor
Michigan Michigan Departrr_\ent o_f A‘gtorney General 525 West Ottawa Street
Consumer Protection Division Lansing, M1 48933
Mi N Commissioner of Commerce 85 7™ Place East, Suite 280
ihnesota Minnesota Department of Commerce St. Paul, MN 55101-2198
. . - 150 Israel Road SW
Washington SD:fjrriminési;LnnanC'al Institutions Tumwater, WA 98501
360-902-8760
Department of Financial Institutions
. . - f . Division of Securities
Wisconsin Commissioner of Securities 4822 Madison Yards Way, North Tower
Madison, WI 53705
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EXHIBIT I
VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC

FRANCHISE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE
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FRANCHISE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION

The purpose of this Certification is to determine whether any statements or promises were made to you that we
have not authorized and that may be untrue, inaccurate or misleading. Do not sign or date this Certification
the same day as the Receipt for the Franchise Disclosure Document; you should sign and date this
Certification the same day you sign the Franchise Agreement. Please review each of the following questions
and statements carefully and provide honest and complete responses to each.

1.

Have you received and personally reviewed our Franchise Agreement, and each Addendum (if any) and
related agreement (i.e., personal guaranty) attached to them?

Yes No
Did you receive the Franchise Agreement, and each related agreement, containing all material terms, at
least 7 days before signing any binding agreement (other than any deposit agreement) with us or an
affiliate?”

Yes No

“This does not include changes to any agreement mutually agreed upon.

Do you understand all of the information contained in the Franchise Agreement, and each Addendum
(if any) and related agreement provided to you?

Yes No

If No, what parts of the Franchise Agreement, Addendum (if any) and/or related agreements do you not
understand? (Attach additional pages, if necessary.)

Have you received and personally reviewed our Franchise Disclosure Document (“FDD”) that was
provided to you?

Yes No

Did you receive the FDD at least 14 days before signing the Franchise Agreement, this document or any
related agreement, or before paying any funds to us or an affiliate?

Yes No

Did you sign a receipt for the FDD indicating the date you received it?

Yes No

Do you understand all of the information contained in the FDD and any state-specific Addendum to the
FDD?

Yes No

If No, what parts of the FDD and/or Addendum do you not understand? (Attach additional pages, if
necessary.)
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10.

11

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Do you acknowledge and understand that no parent or affiliate of ours promises to back us financially
or otherwise guarantees our performance or commits to perform post-sale obligations for us?

Yes No

Have you discussed the benefits and risks of purchasing a Giordano’s® Restaurant franchise with an
attorney, accountant or other professional advisor?

Yes No
If No, do you wish to have more time to do so?
Yes No

Do you understand that the success or failure of your Giordano’s® Restaurant franchise will depend in
large part upon your skills and abilities, competition from other businesses, and other economic and
business factors?

Yes No

Has any employee or other person speaking on our behalf made any statement or promise concerning
the actual or possible revenues or profits of a Giordano’s® Restaurant franchise that is not contained in
the FDD or that is contrary to, or different from, the information contained in the FDD?

Yes No

Has any employee or other person speaking on our behalf made any statement or promise regarding the
amount of money you may earn in operating a Giordano’s® Restaurant franchise that is not contained
in the FDD or that is contrary to, or different from, the information contained in the FDD?

Yes No

Has any employee or other person speaking on our behalf made any statement or promise concerning
the likelihood of success that you should or might expect to achieve from operating a Giordano’s®
Restaurant franchise that is not contained in the FDD or that is contrary to, or different from, the
information contained in the FDD?

Yes No

Has any employee or other person speaking on our behalf made any statement, promise or agreement
concerning the advertising, marketing, training, support service or assistance that we will furnish to you
that is contrary to, or different from, the information contained in the FDD?

Yes No
If you have answered “Yes” to any one of questions 11-14, please provide a full explanation of each

“Yes” answer in the following blank lines. (Attach additional pages, if necessary, and refer to them
below.)

Do you understand that the Franchise Agreement, Addendum (if any) and related agreements contain
the entire agreement between you and us concerning the Giordano’s® Restaurant franchise, meaning
that any prior oral or written statements not set out in the Franchise Agreement, Addendum (if any) or
related agreements will not be binding?

Yes No
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17.

18.

Nothing in this document or any related agreement is intended to disclaim the representations we made
in the FDD that we furnished to you.

Do you understand that, except as provided in the FDD, nothing stated or promised by us that is not
specifically set forth in the Franchise Agreement, Addendum (if any) and related agreements can be
relied upon?

Yes No

You signed the Franchise Agreement and Addendum (if any) and related agreements on ,
20__, and acknowledge that no agreement or addendum is effective until signed and dated by us.

YOU UNDERSTAND THAT YOUR RESPONSES TO THESE QUESTIONS ARE IMPORTANT TO US
AND THAT WE WILL RELY ON THEM. BY SIGNING THIS COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION, YOU
ARE REPRESENTING THAT YOU HAVE CONSIDERED EACH QUESTION CAREFULLY AND
RESPONDED TRUTHFULLY TO THE ABOVE QUESTIONS.

The individuals signing below for the “Franchisee Applicant” constitute all of the executive officers,

partners, shareholders, investors and/or principals of the Franchisee Applicant, or constitute the duly authorized
representatives or agents of the foregoing.

FRANCHISEE APPLICANT:

Signature

Printed Name

,20
Date
Signature
Printed Name
,20
Date
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EXHIBIT J
VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC

SAMPLE RELEASE
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VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC
SAMPLE RELEASE

Unless precluded by applicable state law, if you sell, assign or transfer your Franchise Agreement
or Area Development Agreement to a third party, you will sign a joint and mutual release
containing language substantially similar to the following:

This Joint and Mutual Release is made, entered into and effective this day of :
20 , by and between VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC (“Franchisor”) and
“Franchisee”).

Franchisee entered into a Franchise/Area Development Agreement, dated
20 with Franchisor (the “Agreement”) authorizing Franchisee to open and operate
franchised Giordano’s® Restaurant(s) at/in

Franchisee desires to transfer, sell and assign the Agreement to a third party (the “Assignee”).

Franchisor has agreed to consent to the transfer, sale and assignment of the Agreement by
Franchisee to the Assignee, a condition of which is the execution of the following joint and mutual
release by Franchisor and Franchisee:

1. Release of Franchisor by Franchisee. For and in consideration of the execution of
this Joint and Mutual Release and the consent by Franchisor to the assignment of the Agreement
to the Assignee, Franchisee and its affiliates hereby release and forever discharge Franchisor and
its current and former affiliates and their respective past and present owners, officers, directors,
executives, agents and employees, in their corporate and individual capacities, from any and all
claims which Franchisee and its affiliates have had or now have or may in the future have against
Franchisor and its current and former affiliates or any of them, for, upon or by reason of any matter,
fact or thing whatsoever from the beginning of time through and including the date of this Joint
and Mutual Release including, but not limited to, any alleged violations of the Federal Trade
Commission’s Trade Regulation Rule relating to Disclosure Requirements and Prohibitions
Concerning Franchising and Business Opportunity Ventures, “mini” FTC laws, deceptive or unfair
trade practices laws, franchise laws or securities laws, and all other local, municipal, state, federal
or other laws, statutes, rules or regulations, and any alleged breaches or violations of the
Agreement and/or any other agreements between Franchisee and its affiliates and any of them, and
Franchisor and its affiliates and any of them; provided, however, that this provision will not apply
to any claims specifically excluded by terms of this Joint and Mutual Release.

2. Release of Franchisee by Franchisor. For and in consideration of the execution of
this Joint and Mutual Release and the consent by Franchisor to the assignment of the Agreement
to the Assignee, Franchisor and its affiliates hereby release and forever discharge Franchisee and
its affiliates and their respective past and present owners, officers, directors, executives, agents
and employees, in their corporate and individual capacities, from any and all claims which
Franchisor and its affiliates have had or now have against Franchisee and its affiliates for, upon or
by reason of any matter, fact or thing whatsoever from the beginning of time through, up to and
including the date of this Joint and Mutual Release including, but not limited to, any local,
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municipal, state, federal or other laws, statutes, rules or regulations, and any alleged violations of
the Agreement, and/or any other agreements between Franchisee and its affiliates and any of them,
and Franchisor and its affiliates and any of them; provided, however, that this provision will not
apply to any claims specifically excluded by terms of this Joint and Mutual Release.

“Franchisee” “Franchisor”

VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC

By By

Its Its

The above language may be modified or supplemented to address issues specific to the transfer of
your Franchise Agreement or Area Development Agreement to a third party, or to comply with
applicable law (see Addendum to the Franchise Disclosure Document).
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EXHIBIT K
VPC PIZZA FRANCHISE, LLC

STATE EFFECTIVE DATES & RECEIPTS
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State Effective Dates

The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise Disclosure
Document be registered or filed with the state, or be exempt from registration:
California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North
Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.

This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the
document is filed, registered or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated
below:

State Effective Date
Illinois Pending
Indiana Pending
Michigan May 8, 2024
Minnesota Pending
Wisconsin Pending

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise under other
laws, such as those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-
assisted marketing plans.
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RECEIPT

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the Franchise Agreement and Area Development
Agreement and other information in plain language. Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully.

If we offer you a franchise, we must provide this Disclosure Document to you 14 calendar days before you sign a
binding agreement with, or make a payment to, us or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale. lowa
and New York require that we give you this Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 10
business days (or 14 calendar days in lowa) before the execution of any binding franchise or other agreement, or
payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship. Michigan requires that we give you this
Disclosure Document at least 10 business days before the execution of any binding franchise or other agreement, or
payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first.

If we do not deliver this Disclosure Document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement, or a material
omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade
Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and any applicable state agency (as listed in Exhibit H to this Disclosure
Document).

The Franchisor is VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC, located at 60 E. Superior Street, Suite 300, Chicago, Illinois 60611.
Its telephone number is (312) 701-1777.

We authorize the respective state agencies identified on Exhibit H to receive service of process for us if we are
registered in the particular state.

Issuance Date: May 8, 2024

The name, principal business address, and telephone number of the franchise sellers offering the franchise are:

Name Principal Business Address Telephone Number
60 E. Superior Street, Suite 300,
Chicago, Illinois 60611 (312) 641-6500
60 E. Superior Street, Suite 300,
Chicago, Illinois 60611

David Poole

Yorgo Koutsogiorgas (312) 641-6500

I received a Disclosure Document, dated May 8, 2024 (the state effective dates are listed on the pages preceding the
Table of Contents for the Disclosure Document). The Disclosure Document included the following Exhibits:

Addenda for State Modifications

EXHIBIT A Franchise Agreement (with Exhibits and, if applicable, State-Specific Addenda)
EXHIBIT B  Area Development Agreement (with Exhibits and, if applicable, State-Specific Addenda)
EXHIBITC  Financial Statements

EXHIBIT D  Franchisee Approved Supplier and Distributor Assistance Agreement
EXHIBITE  Manual Table of Contents

EXHIBIT F  List of Current Franchisees

EXHIBIT G  List of Former Franchisees

EXHIBITH  State Agencies and Agents for Service of Process

EXHIBIT | Franchise Compliance Certification

EXHIBIT J Sample Release

EXHIBIT K State Effective Dates & Receipts

Date Signature of Prospective Franchisee

Print Name
[Prospective Franchisee’s Copy]
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RECEIPT

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the Franchise Agreement and Area Development
Agreement and other information in plain language. Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully.

If we offer you a franchise, we must provide this Disclosure Document to you 14 calendar days before you sign a
binding agreement with, or make a payment to, us or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale. lowa
and New York require that we give you this Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 10
business days (or 14 calendar days in lowa) before the execution of any binding franchise or other agreement, or
payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship. Michigan requires that we give you this
Disclosure Document at least 10 business days before the execution of any binding franchise or other agreement, or
payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first.

If we do not deliver this Disclosure Document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement, or a material
omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade
Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and any applicable state agency (as listed in Exhibit H to this Disclosure
Document).

The Franchisor is VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC, located at 60 E. Superior Street, Suite 300, Chicago, Illinois 60611.
Its telephone number is (312) 641-6500.

We authorize the respective state agencies identified on Exhibit H to receive service of process for us if we are
registered in the particular state.

Issuance Date: May 8, 2024

The name, principal business address, and telephone number of the franchise sellers offering the franchise are:

Name Principal Business Address Telephone Number
. 60 E. Superior Street, Suite 300,
David Poole e Cpago’ i 60611 (312) 641-6500
Yorgo Koutsogiorgas 60 E.Cﬁijcpazr(l)or”?it;gei};, 680u6|t1e1300, (312) 641-6500

I received a Disclosure Document, dated May 8, 2024 (the state effective dates are listed on the pages preceding the
table of contents for the Disclosure Document). The Disclosure Document included the following Exhibits:

Addenda for State Modifications

EXHIBIT A Franchise Agreement (with Exhibits and, if applicable, State-Specific Addenda)
EXHIBIT B  Area Development Agreement (with Exhibits and, if applicable, State-Specific Addenda)
EXHIBITC  Financial Statements

EXHIBIT D  Franchisee Approved Supplier and Distributor Assistance Agreement
EXHIBITE  Manual Table of Contents

EXHIBIT F  List of Current Franchisees

EXHIBIT G  List of Former Franchisees

EXHIBITH  State Agencies and Agents for Service of Process

EXHIBIT | Franchise Compliance Certification

EXHIBIT J Sample Release

EXHIBIT K State Effective Dates & Receipts

Date Signature of Prospective Franchisee

Print Name

Return this Copy of the Receipt to:
VPC Pizza Franchise, LLC, 60 E. Superior Street, Suite 300, Chicago, IL 60611, Attn: David Poole

2024 VVPC Pizza Franchise, LLC FDD K-3
63401274v5



